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r=i-18 qrei-17 =t -16 arei-15 rei-14
FH BTN 3,67,831 3,68,119 3,97,241 4,25,090 4,09,057
EIECEASLII 2,16,832 2,11,343 2,24,514 2,46,049 2,27,976
TR ST 2,10,388 2,05,154 2,18,556 2,39,819 2,19,731
TR Tt H 1,38,516 1,42,651 1,55,429 1,62,838 1,61,992
Af¥aeh freer 3w 1,32,489 1,40,459 1,60,861 1,71,756 1,75,888
wrerfEehar & 7 70,040%* 63,984 67,615% 63,635% 58,090%
P FT 29,851 %% 29,348% 30,237% 29,236* 26,254%
faaa fraw 68,646 71,654 79,189 79,298 70,237
I 3 17,915 19,719 23,517 23,938 22,684
T =S 3 3,746 3,373 2,528 2,139 2,169
IR = 5,585 4,912 5,025 4,200 3,749
bl oY 3,629 3,650 2,885 3,322 3,997
frgat @ / foae g -6,299 3,417 -2,897 -454 602
sfaaet srar osht 4,890.77 2,454.73 1,807.27 1,235.35 1,235.35
el TTHT (%) 25.28 22.39 17.40 8.33 4.98
faaa wfie (%) 15.33 13.99 11.89 5.68 3.20
USft gt st (%) 9.25 10.50 9.66 10.11 10.78

. 319/ b IR

o TP & 9 el yiRe & ki R & SFER 9 2016-17 & 9R fomfeat & Shd T 3 oM wrfesar &

dert 3R IudeEt o) mftd § grft
At a Glance
R in Crore)

Mar-18 Mar-17 Mar-16 Mar-15 Mar-14
Total Business 3,67,831 3,68,119 3,97,241 4,25,090 4,09,057
Global Deposits 2,16,832 2,11,343 2,24,514 2,46,049 2,27,976
Domestic Deposits 2,10,388 2,05,154 2,18,556 2,39,819 2,19,731
Domestic Gross Advances 1,38,516 1,42,651 1,55,429 1,62,838 1,61,992
Global Net Advances 1,32,489 1,40,459 1,60,861 1,71,756 1,75,888
Priority Sector Advances 70,040** 63,984** 67,615* 63,635* 58,090*
Agricultural Credit 29,851** 29,348** 30,237* 29,236* 26,254*
Net Investments 68,646 71,654 79,189 79,298 70,237
Interest Income 17,915 19,719 23,517 23,938 22,684
Non Interest Income 3,746 3,373 2,528 2,139 2,169
Operating Expenses 5,585 4,912 5,025 4,200 3,749
Gross Profit 3,629 3,650 2,885 3,322 3,997
Net Profit/Net Loss -6,299 -3,417 -2,897 -454 602
Equity Share Capital 4,890.77 2,454.73 1,807.27 1,235.35 1,235.35
Gross NPA (%) 25.28 22.39 17.40 8.33 4.98
Net NPA (%) 15.33 13.99 11.89 5.68 3.20
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 9.25 10.50 9.66 10.11 10.78
* Qutstanding as on 31stMarch
** As per revised priority sector guidelines of RBI, from the FY 2016-17 the average performance of four quarters will be reckoned
towards achievement under Priority Sector targets and other sub targets.
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INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK - CENTRAL OFFICE CHENNAI

Ta=T (E9Teh 9 Y& el uTereh STt § U3t
Letter from Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

arl

ft ST GamUaEHaR, ya fHevTe o YT wEwnt SRt

Shri.R. Subramaniakumar, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

T Jramenent,

af 2017-18 & fore qgt amves o @ A fure 3k facha
foerott @t 7T F F gHAd & @ 21 F 9 & G 9% b
fses geeh T weqE & WY-wg 3 Fed A% & Y
BAH I ot U T IR BT FRA & |

3m¥feR iRaer

a5 2016-17 | St #t foewme & @l 7.1% o, 78t 39 o
F2017-18 & 7 6.7% W1 2016-17 3 S HY &7 1 fFbrg
el 6.3% o, 98 39! GO & 3.4% U T2 | A § Het
31T 3% geft & § SEHae el & Fod TH g 21 fuwd
qrer famfor &3 sl 7.9% =@, 9d eifyd @ § 98 5.5%
& 9T T 98 B 2017-18 i o faure § wich e &
FNT g3 &, FAi(h STUHS o 3Tl | 37 T F Icaa-Ashef 371/
fomfureratatt 9 €t-weifem nfafafeey o sfemg fean e oft, 39
&7 ¥ sifqw 3 famfeal & SOA guR 3@ T, =6 stradt &
A § 3T 9 S faghd o1 off, 3 Tt 2, gafere §-weifeh
TfafafeEt & S @ ot 2017-18 o I teforawen § gaea
[T &F gRI g3, 5 2016-17 % 7.5% 1 g5 #t qad 7.9%
Fe11 S o gfererd & &9  Gebet o gt g (Sfrumdis)
2015-16 ¥ & 28.5% W& fRer &1 e oft, fraw w & fiwd
fommet oz =teft famrt & qam gam, S f6 wEen 28.2% 3R
29.1% T 3t = 2017 ¥ forea o o "I 317 S =g
T Haife I o 9RA 39 30 T FW 78d g 1004 FR | 9§
T, S UM, AHET, v g S e s |
U & SR refeqae H Gaiyd Fi & TR & T 6t
TAF R

ORa | ST aikaer

ST &7 WU F ST O gEeE % g qc g1 gan gl
31.03.2018 T Frefwif=1sh &7 & Bl BT Hebel TIHT £.895592
FUE T, S 31.03.2017 F T8 €.619199 U o1 32 37afy
& ToTq GrefSie &9 o Sl @ Jrae TR ST SHFHAT
57 wftem aEdt g3 ©.149808 FE § .235508 HUS & 7% |
FHfeTT et Jret Rie o 10 %.472 TS o feret o & g
H T &7 % S g %.85362 FAT H A A @ &
8 RIS #1 7 | 3= S7Teiah At 3 R T FBIH

Dear Shareholders,

| have pleasure in presenting your Bank’s Annual Report and
financial statements for the year 2017-18. | would like to share
with you the performance highlights of the Bank during the
year as well as the outlook for the Bank going forward.

Economic Environment

GDP grew at 6.7% in 2017-18 compared to 7.1% growth in
2016-17. Agriculture sector grew at 3.4% lower than 6.3%
during 2016-17. This is due to deficient monsoon along with
uneven spread across regions. The manufacturing sector
grew at 5.5% as against the growth of 7.9% in the previous
year. The decline in growth was due to lacklustre performance
in the first quarter of 2017-18 when the producers undertook
destocking activities with the implementation of the GST.
However, the sector withessed improvement in the last 3
quarters after the restocking activities were undertaken
following waning of disruptions post implementation of the
GST. During 2017-18, the economy was driven by service
sector with growth of 7.9% compared to 7.5% in 2016-17.
The gross fixed capital formation(GFCF) as a % of GDP
is stagnant at 28.5% since 2015-16. However, there has
been an improvement in Q3 (28.2%) and Q4 (29.1%) in the
investment rate. Meanwhile, India rose 30 places in the
World Bank’s Ease of Doing Business ranking in 2017 to rank
100th in recognition of the Government’s efforts to streamline
the economy through reforms in taxation, licensing, investor
protection and bankruptcy resolution and is poised to
improve further.

Banking Environment in India

Banking sector is reeling under bad loans and heavy
provision burden. As on 31.3.2018 PSBs reported GNPA of
Rs.895592 crore as against Rs.619199 crore as on 31.3.2017.
For the same period the provisions and contingencies of
the PSBs increased by 57 percent from Rs.149808 crore
to Rs.235508 crore. As such the net loss reported by PSBs
amounted to Rs.85362 crore as against the reported net profit
of Rs.472 crore during the last year. More than half of the
public sector banks are under the Prompt Corrective Action
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Tl (SIRATCY) o HROT QS &7 & 379 @ A §
yire Hifaea o (fefin) & deq s e &1 fee oft, diefie =
VT2 FF AT & FoTT H-3RFE AT IR 0 § 3T 78
S| P 3UR, THUEEEE g 2T wewiera & forg fAfeat &
THE Bl ST &7 o Ao & W

S TUTERT AR G & Heier & go o oft o e s
# o 7 ygfer 9 TR & WIE | ISTIE N ToHah fmas
U e feemfeen o FRT & 7 §9 9 T R Zare &
33 31 FORe TANT ¥ TeAE F T & I6E A A
T B A ST A E | g aieh 374 aret asi # "R, Py
3R THUHUHS-hf-5d A" a1 @M

anfeler gREIT (3T H)

AR AT & IR 9 2018-19 3R 2019-20 & fow
AT 7.4 FAWE R 7.5 Wl & awafas St fFw &
o1y fava it dgay 1fq 9 9 @ srf=aen & 9 F 97 gN
U LT S T S 37t 8 1 farmphener e sftuwet &
IRt FHRIHE FTal o TR=T Sreferaee ga uedt W N @
21 AT FEIA B TIAEE SHATS Red (TTHUEem) %
SR STuwet & forgd &9 6 sa | o1 94 § 0.9 Ffea § 1.7
gferer & IS § 9 & et h &t oy faem ) o o, sreferamen
ST gt # SIS SN, FHAT A0S 4, Fafdd FRER
T T, 9¢ U Afvash a1 qedl ST qET B S anens’ 9 -
TR E @ 2| 3= e gl i Ueh TG % &9 § foran St =Ry
e afeiia aTemst sl THTEM S gU SR SIS S aeral faar
ST TH |

Mgt hi TAAT A ATHT & o FeTT TSR

FEca 4 [ A Hig (3Edt) & ded T FarEE &
FHROT AT &7 qee STafa 8, fore de & forw S feftst
B @ FaEAT 2 1 2017-18 @ =teft ot wreSes &7 o Sl
g e &1 7 gifal 5 9 § @Ua ®= @ uea 3 aeia
% BT €, ST Saraus S I SEH3E o G Seeh
& STTER S | R sft, TahToh U8 78 ¢ foh aif & T #oi
T foRrEa i YUl TeTH & TgT BT T T2 ST Jaenfh
FART I § GUR IWT TR | AR G ST A TIHT F
&Y 1 99 § e 9ot § Arvgaa se S, d@feh gEatary
H 78 19 JaH M 3R Te-E H SHT b &7 & o
Fge uifdfea wmi

ST &7 & oL T AR W SRee® & URyed ¥, g A
TAfiT g 3R o TH-awsT Wiy & fafie i | e
o5 BT A I 3 SeAEHAT § R A T | S 370
et e H R @ % Wi 3TN § 3R fawha av 2019 F
TS A HT S FSf BT

> HIER AR ot e i favaand-2017-18

O i &t i &9 F 3 Tsh R S Jiohigel €
F & LTI | IF AN P SHIST I THAYT TS FI B
G 791 RS WY SIS i 9@ & (7 S g 3BT 7T Hedt
& TheTea& T dh i o TG 31 7T 2018 T 5.2,16,832 FT
T, @i 31 9/ 2017 B T 8.2,11,343 FUT |

»
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(PCA) framework, due to high non-performing assets and
negative return on assets (ROA). However, PCA is meant to
help design a turnaround plan for banks. PSBs will continue
to be a major source of funds for agriculture lending, MSME
and Retail Portfolio.

Our Bank is also witnessing the trend observed in the banking
industry in terms of asset quality and provisioning. The stress
of NPA is mainly due to new regulatory guidelines on stressed
asset framework. With recognition of Corporate NPA, the time
to unlock value is imminent. Our Bank will remain a “Retail,
Agriculture and MSME-focused bank” in the coming years
also.

Economic Outlook

India is expected to maintain its status as the world’s fastest
growing economy with the real GDP growth at 7.4 per cent
and 7.5 per cent for 2018-19 and 2019-20 as per OECD
estimates. Economy is rebounding after the transitory
negative impacts of demonetization and GST. As per
National Council for Applied Economic Research (NCAER),
implementation of a comprehensive GST would provide
gains to India’s GDP in the range of 0.9 to 1.7 per cent.
However, the economy is facing a number of headwinds
like non-performing assets of the banking system, elevated
bond vyields, increased trade protectionism, elevated global
oil prices and currency depreciation. High oil prices need to
be taken as an opportunity to boost domestic production by
addressing exogenous bottlenecks.

Outlook for Banking Sector vis-a-vis |OB

Revival in banking sector is expected due to NPA resolutions
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) which in
turn is expected to release capital for the banks. The losses
reported by PSBs in Q4 of 2017-18 were mainly on account of
acceleration of bad loan recognition in terms of RBI’s revised
framework on stressed assets. However, the positives are
that the banking sector is moving close to full recognition of
legacy of bad loans and there is an improvement in provision
coverage ratio. The asset recognition as NPA by banks will
reduce profitability in the near term but produce benefits over
the longer term and cleaning the balance sheets will be credit
positive for the banking sector.

In the light of the outlook for the Banking Sector in general,
our Bank will be focusing on NPA reduction and on various
aspects of its Turnaround strategy so as to improve efficiency
and productivity. Bank is poised to improve the fundamentals
and post strong results in FY19.

»  Business and Financial Performance Highlights - 2017-18

O Total deposits stood at Rs. 2,16,832 crore as on 31st
March 2018 as against Rs. 2,11,343 crore as on 31st
March 2017, by reducing high cost deposits and bulk
deposits and increasing retail term deposits with a
view to reduce the cost of funds and have a stable
deposit profile.
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31 714 2017 % %.1,56,776 FUT & Fehed T 1 T
F 31 7 2018 T Fehel ATH £.1,50,999 HUS B 1§
3 et SR A % iw (e, 3w o THUHEHE) YW
T BhieT TEmifer f-aiy fhar @ 3T 31.03.2017 &
58.74% F AT ¥ 31.03.2018 T 66.14% =t Farfdfq
ERIEA

31.03.2017 &t g9 a9 & [T S&f s o1 qR=reid ey
%.3650.20 FUg o1, 7 31.03.2018 st THT o & oI
Ig %.3629.08 FUE W

31.03.2017 =t TE Y & forw st et a1 %.3416.74
Fg o, 7t 31.03.2018 1 THTS 9 o [T 78 %.6299.49
FUS 8 T8, THAY [ EUw el o qHE favas
T SHash T SRASTE & faentee & o mE 7
F=IaH JEEHT gigd a9 o 2 3T T €.9928.58 HUS o
YT % HROT T 3T |

31.03.2017 & Hra a8 o U Sl Ha 4 £.23091
F0g off, a8 FA IR T T BT F THId F BN
31.03.2018 i FHIE & 3 1T T8 ©.21662 HUS & 3T
dogset 3rafeE & fou = 3m & TR A 5.19719
FE AN E.17915 HUE W T SANTE 3™ D e
St %.3373 wUS o, o gardfq g 78 31.03.2018 &t
U 99 & foTT £.3746 HUS W&

31.03.2017 &t T o & fow sl ot T €.19441
FUS o1, T&1 T8 TR 31.03.2018 & To v & fog
%.18033 HUS & T

31 7 2017 T ST Tl TANT 22.39% & U &
1 €.35098 HAT o1, & I8 31 7 2018 T 25.28%
& LI o W19 €.38180 S I, &l £.3629 FUT Hl
TEAETE R & GG GHeaeh & HROT 79 st &
e &9 9 98 U ad |

31.03.2017 & {78 TAdT 5@t 13.99% o 3T o 69
%.19749 ®Ug @, =& T@ 31.03.2018 7% 15.33% &
3T & 19 %.20,400 FUS & T4

Gl U WS i FIoae Hhl 3T Tl 3 3T ot
a5 2016-17 & forg Sief .8710 FUs a9 a4, &t
fawftar a 2017-18 o forw €.15496 g a9a fd |

31 9 2017 T & 36.09% i q@T1 | S T ST Fr
3T 31.03.2018 T 36.75% i Hafefa faman |

b 1 IX RS (AT F20T, a8 0T, & STt o7, 3
FE0T, Sereh FT) TS HIferat aef-aL-a 3R W 26.26% 9
T

JTaEf HeRS U 31.03.2018 T 59.45% &% T,
et feet §1et 98 53.63%

31.03.2018 e AT F 31 &l 31U 60.61% T
31.03.2018 %t THA T & [T THEEH 2.19% T &
31.03.2017 i GHIG g8 & [T ST # AEd T S8t

S
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Gross Advances stood at Rs.1,50,999 crore as on 31st
March 2018, as against Rs.1,56,776 crore as on 31st
March 2017. The Bank has consciously rebalanced
its credit portfolio with RAM’s (Retail, Agri and MSME)
share of total domestic advances improving from
58.74% as on 31.03.2017 to 66.14% as on 31.03.2018.

Operating Profit of the Bank is Rs. 3629.08 crore for
the year ended 31.03.2018 as against Rs. 3650.20
crore for the year ended 31.03.2017.

Net Loss for the year ended 31.03.2018 is Rs.
6299.49 crore as against Rs. 3416.74 crore for the
year ended 31.03.2017 mainly due to provisions of
Rs. 9928.58 crore made during the year including
higher provisions on account of RBI guidelines on
revised framework on Resolution of Stressed Assets.

While Total Income for the year ended 31.03.2018 is
Rs. 21662 crore as against Rs. 23091 crore for the
year ended 31.03.2017 on account of less treasury
income and contraction of credit and Interest Income
stood at Rs. 17915 crore as against Rs. 19719 crore
for the corresponding periods, Non Interest Income
improved to Rs. 3746 crore for the year ended
31.03.2018 as against Rs. 3373 crore for the previous
year.

Total Expenditure declined from Rs. 19441 crore for
the year ended 31.03.2017 to Rs. 18033 crore for the
year ended 31.03.2018.

Gross NPA as at 31st March 2018 is at Rs. 38180
crore with ratio of 25.28% as against Rs. 35098 crore
with ratio of 22.39% as on 31st March 2017 with fresh
slippage due to revised framework of stressed asset
of Rs. 3629 crore.

Net NPA is Rs.20,400 crore with ratio of 15.33% on
31.03.2018 as against Rs. 19,749 crore with ratio at
13.99% as on 31.03.2017.

On the Recovery front, the Bank has performed well
by clocking recovery of around Rs. 15496 crore for FY
2017-18 as against Rs. 8710 crore for FY 2016-17.

The Bank was able to improve CASA ratio to 36.75%
as on 31.03.2018 as against 36.09% as on 31st March
2017.

Core Retail (Housing Loans, Vehicle Loans, Clean
Loans, Education Loans, Mortgage Loans) of the
Bank has shown y-o-y growth of 26.26%.

Provision Coverage Ratio has improved to 59.45% as
on 31.03.2018 from 53.63% a year back.

O Cost to Income Ratio is 60.61% as on 31.03.2018.
O NIM stood at 2.19% for the year ended 31.03.2018.

O Average Cost of Deposit is 5.49% for the year ended
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6.17% ft, =&t 31.03.2018 =t GaT o6 & {70 78 5.49%
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> H-3[8US W

ST TF TRIER A1 & ArfaRid S gL % @y da 7
T Fefefad &3 T (R Wiy 30 gU T H-3R8ve Wit
FIR L

* St R S R

" e gAY 3 AT RAUS it Yhar

© g G ge 9 9 A9 G9ree foe
" ST SR FRER giE F R

gefteeft af & SUA 3 BiHT &3 W AH g 33T TT HIH H
ST 7 319 TIERENH i 1 AR 1 g oft I =AEm 6
TR 24-3Rue Wi % S g W €, 9 wefd e §
ek ol SEIAT TS ScATEehal hl @4 & [T sish Sl A=A FrsHT
FME

1. dwmiersh 73 o fratfim

® TN A% UgA W &4F F 9% 7, o b &
et aeia 10.2.17 1 (0 8 A faeeht v wied
3R weft ST TR | el @ &1 o 9ar gade
& T fohTehet deohsT ohi foTesl &t &t UTshaT A 2 | aih bt
-8R W A 7 Fad e § afes 399 I8 gasE §
E SATh T HEAEH I & A1 faahid [y |

o ThAIH e Rt yaH i i qey I wregeh & w9
H fora e 3R YA & STER J% 7 Heftud wewd i
TR 9o i |

o ffed Ted 3 ge dHAF U3 3T GlAw & Wy
TTEH Pl N TgAMET A (e S i drsed
P & A F g ghem smoft @ e |

- Tum & WWEEES & dadft wEsT & ded
1.09.2015 & 31.03.2018 & &9 826 feHa@IS
TITHT i &g o 2 T SR 27.72 S St A
TGS |

- %9 704 U S REEHeR 3R 700 TC TEATH H
Al 3 & St 379l & ded 7 |

- FF 700 ¥ U I e oft i R 1

- J% A A TR F e HiaEd Hy REwser” #
HEd 2018 § wOA 1 8 |

- EUR g SfhT H =T U SR Ui |iee vefaat
F JANT Fd gU 9RA et 9He faeen (dfeidue) =it
[EAM 3% 7 # ¢ | TN A TRl fuwed 9% ¢
fora fdfidftug § Suagsh foer =t Siten |

- TR & w0 §% 3 gitend @l e

- @ EE SR THOEeEEl # SWET FRd gu
AECAATH o ST S 7 SER H ITAT F g

S
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31.03.2018 as against 6.17% for the year ended
31.03.2017.

» TURNAROUND STRATEGY

With the guidance and oversight of an experienced and
professional Board, the Bank had in the previous year
finalized a Turnaround Strategy with special focus on the
following areas :

* Technology Issues and leveraging

* NPA Resolution and NPA Management

* Credit Monitoring and arresting fresh slippage
*HR management and HR development

* Leveraging Capital and Business Growth

| take this opportunity to apprise our shareholders of the
steps the Bank has taken during the year under review on
these focus areas as well as our future plans to improve the
efficiency and productivity of the Bank in these areas that
form the cornerstone of our Turnaround Strategy.

1. Technology issues and leveraging

O Our Bank is the first Public Sector Bank to have
migrated to latest version of Finacle and has
successfully migrated all the branches including
Overseas Branches to Finacle 10.2.17 version. The
Bank is in the process of leveraging the Finacle
package for service enhancement. Bank’s in-house
team has developed several applications with
customisations in Finacle as well as in the surrounding
applications.

O Technology platform stabilization was taken as top
agenda and as assured, Bank stabilized the CBS
platform.

O Digital Initiatives and strong technology penetration.
IOB has always been a pioneer in launching various
digital products and schemes that benefit customers
the most along with utmost convenience.

- Under the ATM rationalization program, 826
unviable ATMs have been closed from 1.09.2015 to
31.03.2018 resulting in annual savings of Rs. 27.72
crore.

- Bank has already deployed another 704 new Cash
Recyclers and 700 new ATMS which are under
implementation.

- Bank has also deployed 700 E-Passbook kiosks

- The Bank rolled out the first of its kind “Mobile
Cash Recycler” in February 2018.

- Bharat Bill Payment System (BBPS) has been
enabled using Insta Pay and Post Login modes in
our internet banking. Our Bank was the first PSB to
onboard a biller (TNEB) in BBPS

- As an acquirer, UPI has been made LIVE for our
Bank.

- IMPS can be done using Aadhar apart from IMPS

o/
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HEFTANTE T i AT i | using Account Number and MMID.
_ e H d8R THF JaH & & 32T & % 3 - gaﬂk inlir?gtéc'e\:ld rganylggjig\l initiatti;/esﬂ:iki It?B
TEE e S 2 ahayak, anban, onnect for the better
Egﬁaﬁ ,:;rl's’ﬁaﬁ ﬁ’ sl St dissemination of information to customers.
e d ugd AT |
T O Our Bank has initiated implementation of the
o m%ﬁwmwm(&n—gﬁm processes aligning with the best practices of
7 P - £ : . Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)
i weel & Y ol & aﬁ so as to have improved IT service delivery and
3T B ¢ AMfb I 3T Y faeRwr iR et wd satisfaction through optimized costs and resources
IR & St AoTed IRV T GeH IR & o ST 3R for better management of risk and services to enable
Jaraii F Ve vELA F e &WW IR I ¥ strong alignment between IT and the business.
o1y ¥ AP & GuUR fosar o o | O Technology Risk Management Framework devised.
A2 e 2 . O Strengthening system security is one of the key
° OaYT Rl strategies of the Bank. SWIFT system was integrated
! - with CBS for all payment messages along with

o R ﬁq&”ﬁw HE & I 9.11@_ rifer § ¥ T centralization of FEX operations with Document
B fawe gomelt & gt Y e & forg vy & Management Solution (DMS) and all other directions
1y FRfed T T Ut ST e JHIH —SIeHTy ppt.St\(VlFTfseCL:rity r:ﬁs t')eens(\:/f/)|r|r=]"|:')“ed witth. Several

frg N 5 e B = initiatives for strengthening operations were

N ! . b I 3R taken including centralization of SWIFT operations,

Qe TR 3T ol fernfe=t ot off srgarer fopam | STP with CBS implemented. Various security

g # T IRY HrEfauT 3R 3T, TSUlse USIiRe measures were implemented across the Bank

e TRaRH (e, Sy fwrad fixdvs @) afka including Anti virus implementation and updation,

AR X 5) ' & e & Endpoint Advanced Threat Protection (ATP), Deep
htl L= il arg Rl Discovery Analyser (DDAN).

o R2d HUl S MG BT, dlgd BU 9 [dy B BT O Online processing of retail loans viz., Housing Loans,

e : Vehicle Loans and Clean loans, with digitalization
wise ' WW BﬁT B0 A & A right from sourcing of loan, credit rating, standardized
SFOCTHRN & T ST TR0 documentation and loan disbursement.

O UEH 3MES & WY YR Sied & forg wrars &t O Customized menu provided to branches for linking
HICHIZTS A UM fobdl T | the Aadhaar with customer ID.

[ ) Aeiey O SMS Alert facility to Deposit Customers on TDS

° %mﬁfamaagmﬁ aﬁﬁ?ﬂamﬂéﬁﬁﬂ/g Qﬂﬂg deduction, submission of Form 15G/15H, exemption

i R E 1590/ 54 of Form 15 G/H when crossing the threshold limit
B¢ & THUHTY fauT UeH H| enabled.

0 ¢ dfHT BT ITANT HRA AT AEHI BT JgaR JR&T UG O Several security features were introduced to give
A & U w3 JRen giaurstt 1 ywema &t T3 o better protection to customers using net banking
AT o 6 3! dP TEHI, PRURE TEH! F T e including increasing OTP to 6 digits, setting of daily

transaction limit for corporate customers, option for
A T PRI, IBiS JaT Yeraret F wem I ion limit f fon f
3N B fiFR ¥ Ao F Rpey, Tear &I':ﬁr%{ fmd e resending OTP through alternate service providers
R N defien W rdfag afve ard if the first request fails, GSTIN Registration Online,
GTT,'"!T'TE:T e i g R \’;lT%!ﬂT&IFr%I Suspending debit card online, TNEB payment session
' g fixation etc
2 TAUT dde U9 THUT gaed 2. NPA resolution and NPA Management
RIS UMY 1 T TId T yee W & An important focus of the Turnaround Strategy is NPA

ST o Ul e o o 9o § TR S o geT © o fomrgt 1, Management.
forTgl2 ok fomTel 3 Ty ferdst e R o 81t 77w ok Haifera As informed and shared earlier, NPA slippage gradually
At & SR Il § YR g3 | 1Y €, 51 fob Yo s=mft reduced in Q1, Q2 and Q3 and the recovery improved

T 3 Tee 9 Rmfeat ¥ SR s @t e b e 7  during the same period. Further as strategised, the recovery
?{@5?5 | increased over slippage during the first 3 quarters.

A 2018 HY TES e ¥ Riw 7 RIS .9868 TS B The total slippage for quarter ended March '18 stood at

Sl for G FU Y WHS/AaU SRRl & Yhed WR R

Rs. 9868 crore mainly on account of the impact of RBI
guidelines on revised framework on Resolution of Stressed

RS s gRT ARG THah IR SR fG=FERN & SR G| Assets. Pursuant to the revised framework, the Bank has
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o M@ el furé yomet |

o A& sged, Read! 0, Repadt g5a , e & A
T aYel BRAT BIC @ b AU @Il Bl Fue & g
RS Yt feas | |

o FHfY Faith Tdie @l & ayelt & siavfa sRITR Harfeat
3R o faT SifrsTRET &1 afoha IuahT |

0 gl de IuTeY § 981 UH R @l H WU HRATS &b
TRT qaafRyd aget |

O AN, I I GHE & Ie[@ ¥ THUHUHS & HegH
iffa TTT @I & S Fal TR agel <l &1 s SRR |

o RRd it @l ok @Y iR ga@ of & wHwauHs
Tl & hfse Toifal & FRT garfed SURSAlsi &1 gal
TR Gl & 1T SrgacH faam T |

o 3Ty &I Fuer & fow wman / & / sf=re ueiye! Bl
RIBR 23 F IL@ A IRy Ny e Ay Bt T |

O BUT aYcil Toic! HT garad YN

0 UA® &7 8 10 F 15 Wl &1 IRy guleprferep agelt v
RFE Ty @i & SRRyl g RFfy wran emeifed @t
&

O TR & R TS TeF TS Hasd T B LB
& T o Tdie el fafte, Tdie Ak, oRft faiwand
e g

O TR MR GHIYH 3G YR Re1d § o F =N oryads
F AR F. 1 TS P DI, .1 IS Y T.3 PG P 3R
.3 BRIS Y 3P I P Wd aTdl a1 SN /g 3 SU
iéwa Afed aTauRd SR afédmd &t RITAT ST TR |

classified the specific restructured accounts in accordance
with extant IRAC norms. The fresh slippage due to revised
framework of stressed assets amounts to Rs. 3629 crore.

NPA Recovery for the year is Rs. 15496 crore which is 77.91%
higher than last year. Net accrual to GNPA in 2017-18 is
Rs. 3082 crore as against Rs. 5050 crore in March '17 thus
showing reduction in the Net GNPA accrual.

GNPA of Retail is 2.44 % as on 31.03.2018 with reduction of
19.95% over March ’17.

The Bank has taken the following measures for NPA
Management :

O Special focus on Chronic NPA accounts where
provision is 100%, accounts migrating to higher
provisions in small value accounts

O Daily Recovery Report mechanism

O Effecting recovery through Lok Adalats, Recovery
Camps, Recovery drives etc. National Recovery
Day observed to settle maximum small value NPA
accounts.

O Active utilisation of Business Correspondents and
RDO in recovery of agriculture NPA accounts.

O Systematic recovery through SARFAESI action in case
of Retail NPA accounts where mortgage is available.

O Recovery teams make multiple visits to MSME
medium sector NPA accounts to rehabilitate, upgrade
or resolve through compromise

O Skip tracing of untraceable borrowers done through
credit agencies in retail NPA accounts as well as
MSME NPA accounts of Small and Micro Sector and
follow up for recovery

O Special OTS scheme to empower Branch / Regional /
Zonal Managers to settle OTS.

O Optimal utilisation of Debt Recovery Agents

O Special full time Recovery Teams with 10 to 15
members in each region who have been allocated
specific branches for follow up of NPA accounts.

O I0B Sahayak, a mobile app for our Staff has been
released by our Bank with features including NPA
Recovery Visit and NPA War

O Stressed Asset Vertical has been set up with 3 sub-
verticals to deal with stressed assets of slabs upto
Rs. 1 crore, Rs. 1 crore to Rs. 3 crore and above Rs. 3
crore in terms of RBI’s revised framework for stressed
asset resolution.




%

HUI FEIY 3R AT A0 B FH HIAT

S9d prafedl § TollTH BT Sfegerd & faRivigd shfse yalem
fQumT s T aifr FfEe &1 Rigiadie uURT o I,
YEIATH TG Yhdd! B UgaH $I Tk 3R AU deit ot
RAHUH B o b |

Ted fse AR By URIEU & gRT Bis TR W Hise
NG DI B Ee T BT T |

oo gl & sfdia TaEHY diéel Iuersy § St fb hida
IYH ¥ BoR BITST b 1y T TIuHT Wit & 3ffeps e
FRATR |

TUHT 3ded UIdd  &H1g wrtad & sifafig @l &
AT B T T e o PR DHIST Il &7 F Tt
WH GEGH! Pl THTHT TNl STafed I B AT T Bl
BIRETH Y 39 ey H TOUHTY 3fad O T 7

I8 YA o7 2q 6 &0 g & @rdl & Fafid sada
o o1 <e1 § Rew 9 Toens @l & $@ 9aid dered /g
P Yex &b ATOH J Sda AT

ey @Tdl § THTHTE A GRI SURSBAISH Bl JbdH B
T 3R IRAT Yeiedh F ST e qdb BT AR YR TR
Al GRT |

T T Teee 3R ey

0 IREaH YstH 3R Bies & s T=IHd Jriory Ui

HRd gU eI &1 FAEd de/ 74T |

0 HRIUTeS Hefe, AR AieT 3R SRER gy &1 fHafor St

TIR Ugd! & TIRT 713 JoIelt QuIid ot mft |

o &mar fmior uge : TR, ST v, o, hfge e,

o=l gar, o sy S faRw &t & Yy
SHfereTRRET @} e o1 fufor A & fore AT SRt
I SMg3muw, He, Tanseien, gor $iR gt Tafe s
F TRT e fmfor W sRetems ot afiifa ot Ry &
IR T HTfeh et Bt e §TS 18 |

0 IRYE IHM P! WA HXd gU YN JUell Bl Yea

Y TR T 3R UfREor gonet &Y 4w gt §F I 8
i fopar T |

fRravs Yot wa samuiive faera

3N ft ¥ Ps el I GUR fhran § 9k Tl W g 9o
2 T SarauRE o Thrad W =Y fafame fewfdwr sma #
MTE |

1)

37 43 UfaRifd W g FrT 3o i R B SR ford
TS Bt 5 35 U § | &l e dedl B 9d 9
ST < IfdT € TTgeh AT YR BB GUR MR |

PR ed JHc a8 R 99 MMYR W 26.26 UfA=d db
e 3R fammd) o fammet SMYR R 1% 6 .71 Ufqwrd s¢1
s oy 01 &t g 36 UfaRa @ |

¢

>

o &

Vi

D

o

Credit monitoring and arresting fresh slippage

Specialised Credit Monitoring Department has been
formed at Zonal Offices headed by AGM to improve
the credit overview, to identify early warning signals
and to arrest fresh slippages.

Credit underwriting skills are being strengthened at
field level through intensive credit and FEX training.

SMA Portal is available under Business Intelligence
which provides data on all SMA accounts with colour
coding to drive focused recovery with visual colour
impact.

SMA accounts are allotted to every staff member at
the branch for follow up and recovery of overdues in
irregular accounts. SMS alerts are also sent to staff
reminding them of their responsibility.

Soft calls made through call centres for recovery of
overdue SME accounts to ensure that small value
accounts are followed up regularly.

SMS alerts to borrowers for repayment of overdue
amount, personal visits from Branch Manager to
Zonal Manager on continuous basis.

4. HR management and HR development

o

5.

Staff morale improved with establishing strong
connect between Senior Management and field team

HR engagement initiatives like mentoring the
executives, succession planning, building career path
has been established

To build up the capacity of officers handling specialized
areas like Treasury, Risk Management, Accounting,
Credit Management, Forex, IT etc. certification
programs introduced from accredited institutions like
Indian Institute of Banking & Finance (lIBF), Mumbai,
National Institute of Banking Management (NIBM),
Pune and Moody’s Analytics.

The training system has been strengthened with
induction of Senior faculty to make it more effective.

Leverage Capital & Business growth

I0OB improved in many fronts and the stress of NPA is seen

mainly

due to new regulatory guidelines on stressed asset

framework.

)

Domestic CASA at 37.43% is at peak with SB
growth of 5.35% and addition of 2 million
customers demonstrates the customer service
level improvement

Core Retail segment grew by 26.26 % YoY & 6.71%
QoQ with Housing Loans growth of 36%.
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RAM is robust 66% of the total domestic advances.
With Retail share of 20.34%, Agri 22.35%, MSME
23.54%, the rebalancing of loan book is achieved
to conserve capital and improve the fundamentals.

COD at 5.49% without losing deposit base has
shown improvement over 6.17% as at March ‘17.
Lower bulk and almost NIL high cost deposit is a
testimony of balance sheet strengthening.

Although YOAis 7.51%, the reduction demonstrates
competitiveness of our loan products. However
with healthy recovery especially under chronic
NPA it will increase in FY 19.

Priority sector of 47.48% facilitated risk spread
and participation of all branches in the Bank’s
Turnaround effort.

The interest income reduced by 9.15% mainly
due to restructured corporate book under SDR,
S4A etc not earning since almost one year despite
being standard (now slipped to NPA due to revised
regulatory framework) but the non interest income
increased by 11.08% .

Interest expenditure reduced by 14.33% with the
strong CASA and low bulk , nil high cost deposit.

Operating profit for Q4 2017-18 almost doubled
QoQ and remained flat YoY and despite less
interest earning assets grew by 8.47% over
corresponding quarter of last year.

Bank booked loss of Rs. 3607 crore in Q4 2017-18
mainly due to high provision on NPA to the extent
of Rs. 6738 crore.

Cost to income ratio reduced from 65.71% in Q3
2017-18 to 58.49% in Q4 2017-18.

RWA reduces drastically to 89.34% from 107.89% with
the higher provision and rebalancing of loan book.

Loss making branches reduced from 15.89% to
11.13% in one year

NPA Recovery at Rs. 15496 crore in the year is one
of the highest. However the same is impacted by
slippage of Rs. 16825 crore with Rs. 3692 crore
slipped due to new frame work in stressed assets.
These assets along with another Rs.3000 crore
would have been restructured but for withdrawal of
the restructured guidelines.




5

&

15 RN & GRM AT # Faet ufad Rt %3082 15 xv) Net addition to NPA is Rs. 3082 crore only in the
7 3R 30 ¥ ot .3692 TS TN THadh & HRUT entire year and the major portion is Rs. 3692 crore
TS & Tea § | of slippage due to revised framework.

16) %! HRUN a1 ST 3R TATAUN g 7Y, bR oft xvi) GNPA AND NNPA peaked due to these reasons,
R3S BT TTHTTE Gt 1 3R G 2 F d8d $.8000 however with Rs. 8000 crore under NCLT list 1&
RS P B9 Y 50% TN | AT TH § FS9P PRUT list 2 of RBI, resolution in atleast 50% accounts
HH Y HH 3.4000 HAS AP fHT A | 37 @ral & amounting to atleast Rs. 4000 crore will be
UIaYT &1 UTA=Td hHRT: 71% 3R 63% § | unlocked. The provision in these accounts are 71%

& 63% respectively.

17)  o& 3 THATH 71 SR Tfigerd] urau™ &) bham &

ufd B BRAYY et forar g sfcp 9 91 g 39T xvi) Bank did not avail forbearance given towards

AT R for B 3R 39 R Hidwnra SftefAfesy &t
gerfearg |

it far fewe @rdl &t uga™ g 9 & Iad Yfdw ¥ Biey
T ) 1 IR T 3R SRS T1e B FEforearss Hea
@ IO M | U5 g ed DI TS ¢ TS W B fern
T § 3R YHTATAG AT 3R STGHhdT | 3f BT TE 7 | 400+ BT
e agelt A B g0 & agferdl W ARy ®u ¥ s aR
®E

fo<a o 2019 & 9% oA g dal & YR AT 3R Yee Aol
&S B

§F P TORNES WA B SMURT M@ FgH
3R firs HRURE T WISl BIURE TR &M <d §T GerT
3R THTHTHS ¥ aRd 3fs Ifed BT faew & gur
P R Had TSP 7 Hige NCHIRN B Fa W
T A SR T TH (Red, HiY ok THTwEs ) MR o
58.74% q §GIR 66.14% (ATE '17 BT Ja-1 § A 18
) B T GexT hise H 17.98% B! I ot BI T8
3R THUHUHS 6.71% Ufd Y 91| BR Red 26.26%
§¢ Tl 31.03.2018 Pl UIUHEG &F IUR TCAS
P 40% P! STl P GBIEW 47.47% & T g
31.03.2018 &I TTASI @1 18% 1 3MaRAHAl B

oA HiY 20.23% B
IR TTH &I GYRA g 0 ugd S it 3
o WA g IuHT ol 5q Red Hise WINT Aisd &1
BIRI G

o  &fxd wH gg Rea o aféewa s=man man.

o  32FF W 57 R A &t YFaa &t Wi

o 156 faRy Red faoma Uay®! &1 Adid

o  dTEd SIeR SR UfAf¥d Qefores SR & T TaaeH

o 1w FHwal SR spmoft uradf Uidet & Ty ey

o 28 faRiied 9 273 THTHS Hicd wraTstt & AIEw ¥
Hfad IUR

o 9T fafkiy drerHrsl #1 grema

MTM loss and spreading the NCLT provision and
accounted for the same in this year itself , thereby
removing the future definitives.

With almost all big ticket accounts recognized, the future will
be focusing on NPA reduction and the strategy is to digitalise
RAM processing, already retail is end to end automated, and
improve efficiency and productivity. The robust recovery team
of 400 plus on the field is working exclusively on the small
value recovery.

Bank is poised to improve the fundamentals and post strong
results in FY19.

Bank’s turnaround strategy is focused on augmenting
fee based income and improving credit growth with
accelerated growth in retail and MSME while not losing
sight of Mid Corporate and Large Corporate. The Bank
has rebalanced the credit portfolio with RAM’s (Retail,
Agri and MSME) share of total domestic advances
improving from 58.74% to 66.14% YoY (March "18 over
March ’17). Retail credit recorded a growth of 17.98%
and MSME grew by 6.71% YoY. Core Retail grew by
26.26% YoY. Priority Sector Lending as a % of ANBC as
on 31.03.2018 is 47.47% as against the requirement of
40%. Agriculture as a % of ANBC as on 31.03.2018 is
20.23% as against the requirement of 18%.

The initiatives taken to improve RAM are as follows :

o  Retail Credit Scoring Model introduced for easy and
timely sanction.

o Retail Asset Vertical formed for focussed attention.
o 57 Retail Marts introduced at 32 centres
o 156 exclusive Retail Business Managers nominated

o  Tie up with Vehicle Dealers and reputed Educational
Institutions.

o Tie up with Fintech companies and leading property
portals

o Focused lending through 28 specialised and 273
SME focussed branches

o Introduced 9 Cluster Specific schemes

o Online registration of MSME application with

&
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E-Tracking

End to end digitalisation and online Retail and MSME
credit processing

Introduced New Scoring Model for MSMEs

IOB SME 300 Daily product aimed at Small Traders /
Vendors

Lead generation
Udayamitra portals

from Standup India, KVIC,

Introduced IOB GST - EASE Scheme to facilitate
borrowers to formalize their business from the issues
related to input tax credit etc. during post GST
implementation

Enrolled as member with RXIL to participate in the
TReDS platform for financing against receivables

Focus to sanction capital efficient growth with RWA
based approach such as lending to A, AA, AAArated
borrowers, Zero Risk Weight assets — Jewel Loans,
Loans against liquid securities, Central Government
guaranteed loans, retail & MSME segments.

Cautious approach in stressed sectors

Revenue generation is a primary focus area. The Bank
is focusing on non interest income growth driven by
technology.

Sustained growth in CASA through building up of
digital based products and frequent campaigns.

Reduction in cost of deposits gives the Bank
headroom for being competitive in retail loans

Expenditure control both in administrative costs
and employee cost with optimizing of resource
management. The Bank’s space audit initiative
has yielded good results. ATM operations earlier
outsourced have been made in-house.

Bank is aggressively concentrating on cost reduction
by reducing the number of loss incurring branches as
well as rationalisation of branches and administrative
offices. The Bank presently has 3332 Branches and
3552 ATM / Cash Recyclers.

Bank is currently prioritising the resolution of accounts
referred to NCLT as such resolution has the potential
to improve capital allocation.

Conservation of capital and reduction of Risk Weighted
Assets (RWA) will play a vital role in the growth path
charted for the Bank.

The recapitalisation plan for Public Sector Banks
announced by the Government of India during the year
under review is accompanied by a strong Reforms
Agenda for Public Sector Banks under the overarching
framework of “Responsive and Responsible PSBs”
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aimed at EASE -Enhanced Access and Service
Excellence, focusing on six themes of customer
responsiveness, responsible banking, credit off take,
PSBs as Udyami Mitra, deepening financial inclusion
& digitalisation and developing personnel for brand
PSB. These six themes are already a sharp focus
area for the Bank.

Ratings Outlook Upgrade

o

International Credit Rating Agency, Moody’s Investors
Service, Singapore has revised their rating outlook on
our Bank and our Hongkong Branch to “POSITIVE”
from “STABLE” (09.02.2018)

CRISIL Limited has revised its outlook on the long
term debt instruments of Indian Overseas Bank
(I0B) to ‘STABLE’ from ‘NEGATIVE’, while reaffirming
the ratings at CRISIL A+/A-/FAA. The rating on the
certificates of deposits programme of the Bank has
been reaffirmed at 'CRISIL A1+’. (25.01.2018)

Awards and Accolades won by 10B:

o

Runner Up Award for Best Payment Initiatives
amongst Medium Banks from IBA.

Bank's quarterly Hindi Magazine " VANI " has received
prize in Bronze category from Association of Business
Communicators, Mumbai.

2nd Prize for in-house Hindi magazine VANI for
2016-17 received by our MD & CEO on the occasion
of Hindi Diwas ie. 14.09.2017 from Hon’ble President
of India

Our Bank was chosen as one of the winners (out of
36 banks) of Intelligent Enterprise Award (Category-
Enterprise Apps) presented by Indian Express group
for the year 2017 for the product 10B PAY which is an
online integration.

Basketball : Our Bank’s Basketball Team is No.1
in the Country for having won a Gold Medal in the
recently concluded National Federation Cup held at
Chittoor (May 2018).

The Bank has won 2 State level tournaments viz.
Mayor Radhakrishnan State level Invitational @
Egmore, Chennai and State Level Invitational
Tournament @ Royapuram, Chennai

Atthe National Level, the Bank has notched up wins
in 6 All India tournaments viz. 52nd Nachimuthu
Gounder Cup @ Coimbatore, PSG Tech @
Coimbatore, Invitation tournament @ Rohtak,
Haryana, 4th Mulki Sunder Ram Shetty organised
by Vijaya Bank @ Bangalore, Invitation tournament
@ Kolkata and Invitation tournament @ Goa
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O In Hockey, this year, the Bank has won two State
level tournaments viz. 11th Pasupathi Abdul Shadhik
Memorial at Ariyalur and Invitational tournament at
Madurai.

O Our Bank’s Volleyball team is No.1 in Tamil Nadu, by
virtue of winning the Prestigious State Championship
@ Chennai. Besides this, we have also won Sunder
Memorial State Level Tournament @ Chennai and All
India Mayor’s Cup @ Bangalore.

O Three players viz. Shri.Rupinder Pal Singh (Olympian
in Hockey), Shri.A.Aravind and Shri.PJeevanantham
(Basketball) had represented our Indian Teams in the
recently held Commonwealth Games at Gold Coast,
Australia 2018.
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the 18" Annual General Meeting of
the shareholders of INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK will be held on
Wednesday, 11th July 2018 at 10.00 a.m. at Auditorium, Staff
College, Indian Overseas Bank, Behind Vee Care Hospital,100
Feet Road towards Thirumangalam, 230/7A Jawaharlal Nehru
Road, Anna Nagar, Chennai - 600 040 to transact the following
businesses:

1. Todiscuss, approve and adopt the audited Balance Sheet
of the Bank as at 31t March 2018, Profit and Loss account
of the Bank for the year ended 31t March 2018, the report
of the Board of Directors on the working and activities of
the Bank for the period covered by the accounts and the
Auditors’ Report on the Balance Sheet and Accounts.

2. Toissue further shares to public:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of The Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970 (Act), The Nationalised Banks (Management and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970 (Scheme) and the
Indian Overseas Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations,
2003 (Regulations) as amended upto 2008 and subject to
the approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, if any,
of the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the Government of
India (“GOI”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”), and / or any other authority as may be required
in this regard and subject to such terms, conditions and
modifications thereto as may be prescribed by them in
granting such approvals and which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Bank and subject to the regulations
viz., SEBI(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 (ICDR Regulations) as amended up to date/
guidelines, if any, prescribed by the RBI, SEBI, notifications/
circulars and clarifications under the Banking Regulation Act,
1949 (B R Act), Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (SEBI Act) and all other applicable laws and all other
relevant authorities from time to time and subject to the Uniform
Listing Agreements entered into with the Stock Exchanges
where the equity shares of the Bank are listed, consent of
the shareholders of the Bank be and is hereby accorded to
the Board of Directors of the Bank (hereinafter called “the
Board” which shall be deemed to include any Committee
which the Board may have constituted or hereafter constitute
to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this
Resolution) to create, offer, issue and allot (including with
provision for reservation on firm allotment and/or competitive
basis of such part of issue and for such categories of persons
as may be permitted by the law then applicable) by way of
an offer document/prospectus or such other document, in
India or abroad, such number of equity/preference shares
(cumulative / non-cumulative) / securities (in accordance with
the guidelines framed by RBI from time to time, specifying the
class of preference shares, the extent of issue of each class

(16)
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of such redeemable preference shares and the terms &
conditions subject to which each class of preference shares
may be issued) of the face value of Rs.10 each and in any
case not exceeding 354,97,76,735 equity shares as on date
which together with the existing Paid-up Equity share capital
shall be within the total authorized capital of the Bank of
Rs.10000 crore, being the ceiling in the Authorised Capital
of the Bank as per Section 3(2A) of the Act or to the extent
of enhanced Authorised Capital as per the Amendment
(if any), that may be made to the Act in future, in such a way
that the Central Government shall at all times hold not less
than 52% of the paid-up Equity capital of the Bank, whether
at a discount or premium to the market price, in one or
more tranches, including to one or more of the members,
employees of the Bank, Indian nationals, Non-Resident
Indians (“NRIs”), Companies, private or public, Investment
Institutions, Societies, Trusts, Research Organizations,
Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”) like Foreign
Institutional Investors (“FlIs”), Banks, Financial Institutions,
Indian Mutual Funds, Venture Capital Funds, Foreign
Venture Capital Investors, State Industrial Development
Corporations, Insurance Companies, Provident Funds,
Pension Funds, Development Financial
other entities, authorities or any other category of investors
which are authorized to invest in equity/preference shares/
securities of the Bank as per extant regulations/guidelines or
any combination of the above or to QIBs under Institutional
Placement Programme as per Chapter VIl A of ICDR
Regulations, as may be deemed appropriate by the Bank”.

Institutions or

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such issue, offer or allotment
shall be by way of public issue, rights issue, issue of equity
shares to employees through SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (“SEBI Regulations”),
preferential issue and/or private placement, with or without
over-allotment option and that such offer, issue, placement
and allotment be made as per the provisions of the Act,
ICDR Regulations and all other guidelines issued by the
RBI, SEBI and any other authority as applicable, and at
such time or times in such manner and on such terms and
conditions as the Board may, in its absolute discretion,
think fit”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall have the
authority to decide, at such price or prices in such manner
and where necessary in consultation with the lead managers
and /or underwriters and /or other advisors or otherwise on
such terms and conditions as the Board may, in its absolute
discretion, decide in terms of ICDR Regulations, other
regulations and any and all other applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines whether or not such investor(s)
are existing members of the Bank, at a price not less than the
price as determined in accordance with relevant provisions
of ICDR Regulations”.

(17)
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the
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provisions of the Uniform Listing Agreements entered into
with relevant stock exchanges, the provisions of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“LODR”)
the provisions of the Act, the provisions of Regulations,
the provisions of ICDR Regulations, the provisions of the
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Foreign
Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by
a Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2000, and
subject to requisite approvals, consents, permissions
and/or sanctions of SEBI, Stock Exchanges, RBI, Foreign
Investment Promotion Board (FIPB), Department of Industrial
Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce (DIPP) and all
other authorities as may be required (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “the Appropriate Authorities”) and subject
to such conditions as may be prescribed by any of them
while granting any such approval, consent, permission
and/or sanction (hereinafter referred to as “the requisite
approvals”) the Board may, at its absolute discretion, issue,
offer and allot, from time to time in one or more tranches,
equity shares or any securities other than warrants, in such
a way that the Central Government at any time holds not
less than 52% of the Equity Capital of the Bank, to QIBs (as
defined in Chapter VIII of the ICDR Regulations) pursuant
to a Qualified Institutions Placement (QIP) as provided
for under Chapter VIII of the ICDR Regulations, and / or
Institutional Investors pursuant to Institutional Placement
Programme (IPP), as provided for under Chapter VIIIA of
the ICDR Regulations through a placement document and/
or such other documents / writings / circulars / memoranda
and in such manner and on such price, terms and conditions
as may be determined by the Board in accordance with the
ICDR Regulations or other provisions of the law as may be
prevailing at that time; provided the price inclusive of the
premium of the equity shares so issued shall not be less than
the price arrived in accordance with the relevant provisions
of ICDR Regulations”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of a QIP made pursuant
to Chapter VIII of the ICDR Regulations, the allotment of
Securities shall only be to QIBs within the meaning of
Chapter VIII of the ICDR Regulations, such Securities shall
be fully paid-up and the allotment of such Securities shall
be completed within 12 months from the date of passing of
this resolution”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of QIP issue, the
Bank in pursuance to proviso to Regulation 85(1) of ICDR
Regulations is authorized to offer shares at a discount as
prescribed by ICDR Regulations from time to time and

relevant date for the determination of the floor price of the
securities shall be in accordance with the ICDR Regulations”.
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to any approval,
consent, permission and/or sanction of GOI, SEBI, RBI and
the stock exchanges, as may be required and subject to all
other necessary approvals, permissions, consents and/or
sanctions of concerned statutory and other relevant authorities
and subject to such terms, conditions and modifications
thereto as may be prescribed by any of them while granting
such approvals, permissions, consents and sanctions and
which may be agreed to by the Board, consent, authority and
approval is hereby accorded to the Board to create, offer,
issue and allot equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each
(the “Equity Shares”) by way of fresh issue of Equity Shares
through an Institutional Placement Programme (“IPP”) to
qualified institutional buyers in accordance with Chapter VIIIA
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such that the total number
of Equity Shares held by the ‘public’ (as defined in the
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 as amended
(“SCRR”), immediately at the completion of such offerings
does not exceed 25 percent of the total number of outstanding
Equity Shares as at the date of allotment of such Securities,
including pari passu clause for dividend entitlement, as may
be applicable.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall have the
authority and power to accept any modification in the proposal
as may be required or imposed by the GOI / RBI / SEBI/Stock
Exchanges where the shares of the Bank are listed or such
other appropriate authorities at the time of according / granting
their approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions to issue,
allotment and listing thereof and as agreed to by the Board
and no further approvals in this regard would be required from
the shareholders of the Bank”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the issue and allotment of new
equity shares / securities, shall be subject to the Regulations
as amended and shall rank in all respects pari passu with
the existing equity shares of the Bank including dividend
declared, if any, in accordance with the statutory guidelines
that are in force at the time of such declaration and such
issue and allotment, if any, to NRIs, Flls and/or other eligible
foreign investors be subject to the approval of the RBI under
the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 as may be
applicable but within the overall limits set forth under the Act”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to enter into and execute all such arrangements
Banker(s),
Underwriter(s), Depository(ies), Registrar(s), Auditor(s) and

with any Book Runner(s), Lead Manager(s),
all such agencies, to remunerate all such institutions and
agencies by way of commission, brokerage, fees or the like in
consultation with them to determine the form and terms of the
issue(s), including the class of investors to whom the shares/
securities are to be allotted, number of shares/securities to
be allotted in each tranche, issue price (including premium,
if any), face value, premium amount on issue and do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things and execute such deeds,

(19)
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documents and agreements, as they may, in its absolute
discretion, deem necessary, proper or desirable, and to settle
or give instructions or directions for settling any questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in regard to the public offer,
issue, allotment and utilization of the issue proceeds, and to
accept and to give effect to such modifications, changes,
variations, alterations, deletions, additions as regards the
terms and conditions, as it may, in its absolute discretion,
deem fit and proper in the best interest of the Bank, without
requiring any further approval of the members and that all or
any of the powers conferred on the Bank and the Board vide
this resolution may be exercised by the Board as the Board in
its absolute discretion deems fit”.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such of these shares / securities
as are not subscribed may be disposed off by the Board in its
absolute discretion in such manner, as the Board may deem
fit and as permissible by law and that the Board be and is
hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein
conferred to the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
or to the Executive Director/(s) or to Committee of Directors
constituted/hereafter constitute to give effect to the aforesaid
Resolutions.”

3. To consider further issue of shares to Employees:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of The Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970 (Act), The Nationalised Banks (Management
and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970 (Scheme),
Regulation 41 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR), the Indian
Overseas Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2003
(Regulations) as amended upto 2008 and the provisions of
the Uniform Listing Agreements entered into with the BSE
Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(Stock Exchanges) as per LODR (including any amendment
thereto or re-enactment thereof) and in accordance with
the provisions of Regulation 4A of the Regulations and
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment from time
to time) (“SEBI Regulations”), and subject to the approval,
consent and sanction of RBI, GOI, SEBI, Stock Exchange(s)
in which Bank’s equity shares are listed, wherever applicable,
and subject to any applicable approval(s), permission(s) and
sanction(s), at any stage, of any authority and subject to any
condition(s) and modification(s) as may be prescribed or
imposed by such authorities while granting such approval(s),
permission(s) and sanction(s) and which may be agreed to and
accepted by the Board, consent be and is hereby accorded
to the Board to grant, offer, issue and allot, in one or more
tranches, to such permanent employees, whether working
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in India or outside India, which expression shall include the
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Director(s) of the Bank (“The Employees™), as may be decided
by the Board, up to 24,45,00,000 equity shares of face value
of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, ranking pari-passu with
the existing equity shares of the Bank for all purpose and in all
respects, including payment of dividend, as may be decided
by the Board under an Employee Stock Purchase Scheme
(hereinafter referred to “SBEB-ESPS 2018”), at such price or
prices, and on such terms and conditions as may be decided
by the Board in its absolute discretion.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bank shall conform to
the accounting policies as specified in Regulation 15 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 or any statutory
modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment thereof.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to take necessary steps for listing of the equity
shares allotted under the “SBEB-ESPS 2018”, on the stock
exchanges where the shares of the Bank are listed, as per
the terms and conditions of the uniform listing agreements
entered into with the stock exchanges and other applicable
guidelines, rules and regulations.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to implement, formulate, evolve, decide upon and
bring into effect the “SBEB-ESPS 2018”on such terms and
conditions as may be decided by the Board and to make
any modification(s), change(s), variation(s), alteration(s)
or revision(s) in the terms and conditions of the “SBEB-
ESPS 2018”, from time to time, including but not limited to,
amendment(s) with respect to price, period, eligibility criteria
or to suspend, withdraw, terminate or revise the “SBEB-ESPS
2018”in such manner as the Board may determine in its
sole discretion and also to settle all questions, difficulties or
doubts that may arise in relation to the implementation of the
“SBEB-ESPS 2018”and to the shares to be issued pursuant
to the proposed “SBEB-ESPS 2018”without being required
to seek any further consent or approval of the Shareholders
or otherwise to the end and intent that the Shareholders shall
be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by
authority of this resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred
on it, to the Committee(s) of Directors, the Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer or Executive Director(s) or such
other officer(s) of the Bank as it may deem fit to give effect
to the aforesaid Resolution in compliance to Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 and other applicable laws.

By order of the Board of Directors

ez Hed & Sex ¥
Chennai (R Subramaniakumar)
EEl (N IHUIPHR) 11.06.2018 Managing Director & CEO
11.06.2018 T Fe=Id 9 g HRIUTad ISR
(21)
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1. The Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts in
respect of the business of the meeting is annexed hereto.

2. APPOINTMENT OF PROXY:

A SHAREHOLDER ELIGIBLE TO ATTEND AND VOTE, IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED
NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER OF THE BANK.

The instrument appointing proxy should, however be
deposited at the Central Office of the Bank not less than four
days before the date fixed for the meeting i.e. on or before
6™ July, 2018, 5.00 p.m.

3. APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED

REPRESENTATIVE:

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at any meeting
of the shareholders of Indian Overseas Bank as the duly
authorised representative of a company unless a copy of the
resolution appointing him as a duly authorized representative,
certified to be a true copy by the chairman of the meeting at
which it was passed, has been deposited at the Central Office
of the Bank not less than four days before the date fixed for the
meeting i.e. on or before 6" July, 2018, 5.00 p.m.

4. No officer or employee of the Bank shall be appointed as
Authorised Representative or proxy of a shareholder.
5. ATTENDANCE SLIP

For the convenience of the shareholders, Attendance Slip is
annexed to this notice. Shareholders/Proxy holders/Authorised
Representatives are requested to affix their signatures at
the space provided therein and surrender the same at the
venue. Proxy/Authorized Representative of shareholders
should state on the Attendance Slip as “Proxy” or “Authorized
Representative” as the case may be.

6. CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS:

The Register of Shareholders and Share Transfer Books of the
Bank will remain closed from 04.07.2018 (Wednesday) to
11.07.2018 (Wednesday) (both days inclusive).

7. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND, IF ANY

The shareholders who have not encashed their Dividend
Warrants / received dividend from 2010-11 onwards are
requested to contact the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
of the Bank for issue of duplicate.

Pursuant to the amendment of the Act, Section 10B provides
that the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed
for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the
Unpaid Dividend Account is required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by
the Central Government under Section 125 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (Section 205C of The Companies Act, 1956).

8. CHANGE OF ADDRESS:

In case of shareholders holding shares in physical form, they
are requested to intimate to the Registrar and Share Transfer

\Z
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In case of shareholders holding shares in Electronic form i.e.
through Demat account, they are requested to intimate to their
depository participant any change in their address.

9. CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS:

It has been found that many shareholders maintain more
than one folio (i.e.) multiple folios. In order to provide efficient
service, we request the shareholders to consolidate the folios
by forwarding their share certificates to Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents for necessary corrections in their records.

10. VOTING RIGHTS

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (2E) of Section 3 of
the Act no shareholder of the corresponding new Bank other
than the Central Government, shall be entitled to exercise
voting rights in respect of any shares held by him/her in excess
of ten per cent of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
of the Bank. In case of any amendments to the Act, Regulation
Act, Scheme and Regulations which would result in change
of any or part of the existing process as laid in this Notice, the
amendment shall prevail.

11. REMOTE E-VOTING

Pursuant to LODR Regulations and the Uniform Listing
Agreements with stock exchanges, your Bank is pleased to
provide Remote e-voting facility to enable shareholders to cast
their votes electronically on the items mentioned in the notice
for which Bank has appointed Central Depository Services
(India) Ltd. (CDSL) as e-voting agency to provide the remote
e-voting platform. E-voting is optional. The E-voting rights of
the shareholders/beneficiary owners shall be reckoned on the
equity shares held by them as on Friday, 29.06.2018 being the
Cut-off Date for the purpose. Shareholders of the Bank holding
shares either in physical or in dematerialized form, as on the
Cut-off Date, may cast their vote electronically.

12. VOTING PROCESS on 11" July 2018

After the agenda item have been discussed, the Bank will
conduct voting in respect of the agenda items. Voting will
be conducted and supervised by the Scrutinizer appointed
for the purpose. The shareholders/Proxy (ies)/Authorised
Representative(s) present at the venue of the annual general
meeting can exercise their votes through voting process.
However, the shareholders who have already cast their votes
through remote e-voting will not be entitled to participate in the
voting process at the venue of the meeting. After conclusion
of the voting, the Chairman will declare the meeting as closed.

13. VOTING RESULT

The Bank has appointed M/s R Sridharan & Associates,
Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the
remote e-voting process and the physical voting process at
the meeting in a fair and transparent manner.
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The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM,
within forty eight hours of the conclusion of the AGM, issue
a consolidated Report of the total votes cast in favour of or
against the Special Resolution to the Chairman of the meeting.

The Voting Results will be announced by the Bank to the stock
exchanges, hosted in the websites of the Bank and CDSL, the
e-voting agency.

The instructions for Remote E-Voting are as under:

Members are requested to follow the instruction below to cast
their vote through e-voting:

() The voting period begins on 08.07.2018 at 9.00 a.m.(IST),
and ends on 10.07.2018 at 5.00 p.m.(IST). During this
period shareholders of the Bank, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off
date 29.06.2018 may cast their vote electronically. The
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

(i) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com.

Click on Shareholders.
Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits
Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should
enter Folio Number registered with the Bank.

(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click
on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged
on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier
voting of any company, then your existing password is to
be used.

(vii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat
Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued
by Income Tax Department (Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical

shareholders)

¢ Members who have not updated their
PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first
two letters of their name and the 8 digits
of the sequence number in the PAN field.

* In case the sequence number is less
than 8 digits enter the applicable number
of 0’s before the number after the first
two characters of the name in CAPITAL
letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar
with sequence number 1 then enter
RA00000001 in the PAN field.
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(xvii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on
“SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then
directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will
now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are
required to mandatorily enter their login password in
the new password field. Kindly note that this password
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended
not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the
details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN of Indian Overseas Bank.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to
the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to
view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to
vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL’ and
accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking
on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login
password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter
the details as prompted by the system.
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(xviii) AIRYRSP U dic WSITgud & Higsd U0 TH-difdT s (xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s
SRT Y e goha % S qsfqg YR Hieed W Iuasy mobile app m-Voti‘ng available for android based
= @ﬁﬁnmﬁm@f@ﬁm@mww gobllles.P'll'heSm-Votlzg allpp c:nwt?eddownliaded from
3| o SR S B S 9 a1 STt oogle Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users

can download the app from the App Store and the
R 1 fISId WIF ©R § AR 7Y $I SIS PR Febe Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the
g1 3 HiEsd W dlc FRd §U HUAT 30 TEIsd TR 3 instructions as prompted by the mobile app while
R 3@@ EAINGE Y voting on your mobile.
(xix) R-Jafas !ﬂwsmaﬁq? WW%W@E (xix) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and
Custodians

. R-JUfaE JRURS! @ FufFIH,TagUw, TIARSAS
w—@% 3{eram GhTW&‘IH'ﬁ @l www.evotingindia.com T3 ¢ Non-Individual shareholders. (i.e. other thgn Individuals,
@ 3 B o % AR @ T FOE F IR R W HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on

e %I to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporates.

’ . 0T T 1 X guﬁrﬁﬁrwé ém@'qsﬁvé e, A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the
3f>el BIefl & I helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com T T stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
fapa g helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

- TN 3 TAaR0T OTGd R b URT USTHA AT g SR TS o After receiving the login details a Compliance User should
P AeE U UH U IUNTHdT Jiord HAT BRI be created using the admin login and password. The
AT ST I W (Tl Y i HR b s Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for
ﬁ‘rq 3 dic Wa‘[@ﬁ%| which they wish to vote on.

. T ;o i ; _* Thelist of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
SIS LYy helpdesk.evoting@cd
slindia.com a%ﬁa&ﬁaﬁm%qaﬁ?@ﬁfa%’rﬁqﬁﬁaﬁéﬁ helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the
1T 3 30T e ST THA| accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

. e . * A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of

ﬁﬂﬁww%\ﬁ%fgggggmm ?ﬁg:; Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the

. ! ) y STe UR Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
e & forg et # srucrs faar s system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

. Tie¥g é’. & T H AT ST HAAE AT HRR o | case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting,
TS T U8 ("THER) SR www.evotingindia.com TR 3¢ you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)
JRM & STl Iuasy 3-aIf A3 &1 YgH & gha g a1 and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com,
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com & d &R Jhd g | under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@

cdslindia.com

. A AT H e W g g a AT &

LTS a0 Hﬂﬂ-ﬂ"TﬁaﬁfT‘f ufpar & 3FER 11 @?I'I’it * Those who do not opt for remote e-voting can cast their
2018 @1 81 areht Yo% A Tded ¥ IR U i BT votes at the Poll to be conducted at the meeting on 11th
. uly 2018 as per the procedure stated in the Explanatory
1% Jul h d d in the Expl
Statement section of this Notice.

- IE B SHURIT . 5% & fe a1 % E g;ﬁsclﬁ T & * The Results of the e-voting shall be declared on or after
T j_ 33 feb ST ii_: XU : & XU the AGM of the Bank. The Results declared along with

& Y s &b SoITA & qf fal & a1G o P dadrge g Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Bank’s website
www.iob.in 3R ¥ TIUd &1 dedrse https://www. i.e. www.iob.in and on the website of CDSL i.e. https://
evotingindia.com TR STAT ST A1RT 3R TS / Siuds www.evotingindia.com within two days of the AGM of the
w1 it gfera frar s anfewl Bank and also communicated to NSE/BSE.

g ded & ey ¥ By order of the Board of Directors

g N (3R YTHUIPHR) Chennai (R Subramaniakumar)

11.06.2018 o e 1% T SHUPR 11.06.2018 Managing Director & CEO
/2\
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Explanatory Statement

Agenda item No. 2

1.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank as on
March 31, 2018, as per Basel lll is 9.25% and above the
9.00% stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India. However,
with a view to comply with Basel Il requirements relating
to capital adequacy, there is an increasing need to raise
capital to shore up the capital adequacy of the Bank and
fund the general business needs of the Bank.

The Bank in terms of Section 3(2B)(c) of the Act will obtain
requisite approval of the Government of India, Ministry of
Finance for increasing the paid up capital. However, the
Central Government shall, at all times, hold not less than
fifty-two per cent of the paid — up equity capital of the
Bank.

Regulation 41 of the LODR Regulations, 2015 provides
that whenever any further issue or offer is being made
by the Bank, the existing shareholders should be offered
the same on pro rata basis unless the shareholders in the
general meeting decide otherwise. The said resolution,
if passed, shall have the effect of allowing the Board on
behalf ofthe Bank to issue and allot the securities otherwise
than on pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

The Resolution seeks to enable the Bank to offer, issue
and allot equity shares/preference shares/ securities by
way of public issue, rights issue, preferential issue and/
or on a private placement basis. The issue proceeds
will enable the Bank to strengthen its Capital Adequacy
Requirements as specified by RBI from time to time.

The Resolution further seeks to empower the Board of
Directors to undertake a Qualified Institutions Placement
with Qualified Institutional Buyers as defined by ICDR
Regulations. The Board of Directors may in their discretion
adopt this mechanism as prescribed under Chapter VIlI
of the ICDR Regulations for raising funds for the Bank,
without seeking fresh approval from the shareholders.

In case of a QIP issue in terms of Chapter VIl of ICDR
Regulations, issue of securities, on QIP basis, can be made
only at a price not less than the average of the weekly
high and low of the closing prices of the shares quoted
on a stock exchange during the two weeks preceding the
“Relevant Date”. “Relevant Date” shall mean the date of
the meeting in which the Board or Committee of the Bank
decides to open the QIP Issue.

As on 31.03.2018, GOI holds 89.74% and the public
holds 10.26% of the paid up capital of the Bank. Bank is
proposing an enabling resolution before the shareholders
to create, offer, issue and allot equity shares in one or
more tranches to Institutional Investors under Institutional
Placement Programme (IPP) under Chapter VIII A of SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

The detailed terms and conditions for the offer will be
determined in consultation with the Advisors, Lead
Managers and Underwriters and such other authority or
authorities as may be required, considering the prevailing
market conditions and other regulatory requirements.
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T & wayrEl o 9Hg 9y WR SRR € a1 3 with the provisions of the ICDR Regulations, the Act and
RamhrE e R B the Regulations as amended from time to time or any other
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S¥ BT | or required.

9. Jad BRUT B HRUI 3R Th Ybeq U 4 &I Y@ 9. For reasons aforesaid, an enabling resolution is therefore

% Y ded o1 g $ AeyT Ruftg a9 %’ﬁ i proposed to be passed to give adequate flexibility and
a [ | discretion to the Board to finalise the terms of the issue.
] e ] ] 10. The equity shares allotted, shall rank pari passu in all

10. 3fiafed 3febet TR it Fanll § amvie THd I & Hiol respects with the existing equity shares of the Bank

St MR & EFY B
I 3G Y Haiferd RRI DT pid el (SMSATSIR) fafram,
2009 & ST VI / VI & SHTIR &1 S|

Y 35T & oW §F Bl AT Tobed &b AT F YRYURS! B
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T S T B

e Hew Aifew # aftfd Gabed! Bl Uy B Bt I 2 B
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Tolt Fe ) AT & SR, S 307 HHATRG! & "Tqelssl-
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TGI8 T, 9gaR a1 & ol 391 el &) S¢rar &1
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TN B REPR T

i. S H Wit f{d & urd o7 & o U eHeilRal gRy
g ATt &Y ggrar &1
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R} & Y g

TaeiiSiem fafaet &1 fafaw 41 samar g o i@ waft s S grr
g 3ifaRead 39g a1 SHTHR fba o @1 § o) IdAM ARYRSD!

11.

including dividend.

11. Pricing of Shares relating to the said issue shall be done
in accordance with Chapter VIII / VIII A of SEBI (ICDR)

Regulations, 2009.

For this purpose the Bank is required to obtain the consent of
the shareholders by means of a special resolution. Accordingly,
the consent of the shareholders through a special resolution
is being sought for the proposal as contained in item no. 2 of
the Notice.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the Resolution
as mentioned in the notice. None of the Directors of the Bank
is interested or concerned in the aforementioned Resolution,
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Bank.

Agenda No. 3

In order to meet the growing requirement of funds for
expanding the business by way of long term resources as may
be decided by the Board, as also to comply with BASEL Il
requirements relating to capital adequacy, the Bank proposes
to issue shares under “SBEB-ESPS 2018” to its employees.
The said proposal is subject to approvals from GOI/RBI/Stock
Exchanges and other regulatory bodies, if required.

Now, the Bank proposes to grant equity shares to all permanent
employees of the Bank including Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer, Executive Directors of the Bank (“Eligible
Employees”) on such terms and conditions as stated under
“SBEB-ESPS 2018” or as may be decided by the Board or
Committee of Directors for Issue of Equity Shares (Committee)
subject to the applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and
Guidelines, inter-alia, with the following objectives:

i) Providing incentive to eligible employees, to stimulate their
efforts towards better performance to contributing to the
growth and profitability of the Bank;

ii) Rewarding eligible employees for their continued support
and contribution towards the Bank’s growth;

iiiy Encouraging equity ownership by eligible employees by
providing them with the means to acquire a proprietary interest
in the Bank.

The equity shares issued as above shall rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing equity shares of the Bank.

Regulation 41 of the LODR Regulations provides that whenever
any further issue or offer is being made by the Bank, the
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existing shareholders should be offered the same on pro rata
basis unless the shareholders in the general meeting decide
otherwise. The said resolution, if passed, shall have the effect
of allowing the Board on behalf of the Bank to issue and allot
the securities otherwise than on pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

Further as per Regulations 6 & 14 of SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (SEBI Regulations)
all employees’ benefit schemes involving the securities of
the Bank shall be in compliance with SEBI Regulations and
any other guidelines, regulations etc., framed by SEBI in this
regard.

As per the requirements enumerated by SEBI through Circular
No. CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/2/2015 dated 16th June, 2015 the
following would inter-alia be the broad terms and conditions of
the "SBEB - ESPS 2018”:

1. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHEME:

The Bank desirous to grant equity shares to all permanent
employees of the Bank including Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer, Executive Directors of the Bank (“Eligible
Employees”) on such terms and conditions as stated under
“SBEB-ESPS 2018” or as may be decided by the Board or
Committee of Directors for Issue of Equity Shares (Committee)
subject to the applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and
Guidelines, inter-alia, not exceeding 24.45 crore equity shares
at a face value of Rs 10 each with appropriate premium, at the
time of offer.

2. TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES TO BE GRANTED

Up to 24,45,00,000 equity shares are proposed to be offered to
the eligible employees under the SBEB - ESPS 2018. However,
the portion of shares offered, pursuant to the SBEB — ESPS
2018, to any eligible employees, if remains unsubscribed,
shall be made available to interested eligible employees at
such price, as may be decided by the Board or Committee.

3. IDENTIFICATION OF CLASSES OF EMPLOYEES
ENTITLED TO PARTICIPATE AND BE BENEFICIARIES
IN THE SBEB - ESPS 2018

All permanent employees of the Bank including Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors of the
Bank

4. REQUIREMENTS OF VESTING AND PERIOD OF

VESTING
Not Applicable.

5. MAXIMUM PERIOD (SUBJECT TO REGULATION 18(1)
AND 24(1) OF THE SEBI REGULATIONS, AS THE
CASE MAY BE) WITHIN WHICH THE OPTIONS / SARs
/ BENEFIT SHALL BE VESTED

Not Applicable

6. EXERCISE PRICE, SAR PRICE, PURCHASE PRICE OR
PRICING FORMULA

Purchase price or pricing formula will be determined by the
Committee of Directors for Issue of Equity Shares as per SEBI
Regulations at the time of offer.

N




X

)

7. fapeu vaT SafY aut faeeu uaT &t ufsear
a3 1 IRIE 9 U A1

8. .1 .% §1-F. v .11.u¥ 2018 & forw =il 9t uEdar &
Frufzor 3 geais= uftsar

R} B} ABRAT / i Ft aRRe a% §F & vy w9

T Hrfuees ISR, FRUTAs Feie Iud & & gt =g

FHHAR! an] fafame sdenstt a fexnfe=t & sref| ym an &

BHER Bl

9. Ufd FHARY T GHIar # 9N} faw ey, THTSIR, TR, o
HTHET B, B 3rfRrepaw =

S THTar H 3iftredH 24,45,00,000 3BT WY B FRT HRA BT

TR T § SIR U HHART AR} [T S a1l —eR R Uolt &
1 gfo=ra 9 ot et g1 afeul

10. AT & dgd Ufd HIRY $ UeH PT 9 ardd ATy Bt
Siftrdd yHET

Ffh U WR FT WWAIA-3TAHTH 2018 F dgd A
TR §, UTH HHATNG 1 PIg 3= aTH 71 UeH fobar S|

11. RT3 BT Y B gRTPEET dUTTsiifRe
forar i @ 1 =T & Wikg

wWasasraditg 2018 WY 6 gR1 HEifAd Tl
TSHReR fasar S|

12. FT A1) # BU gRT ¢ AR $1 i = grRy
fodfa® siftrrgor ar 41 wnfia @

WA RTE 2018 F dgd s T 3B AW B A
U HHAIRAT B FRT BT

13. ST GRT <O &1 Ai(eN) & srafaad gg UeH
B A qTell B P AR, IFS! 3@fy, ITANT, gHAH
fae onfe:

Ifp 9% gRT A I N-Z T d Ty 2018 F dgd WK HI WY
U SHATRAY ) SR {51 ST B, =919 & 76 a1 U1 61 BT
e fPU WM &1 Uy Tl I3

14.qbsH ftgur Y yfamaar @fFaw & dga
fafdy Wwr & srehe) oA isAE) & fore = grt
frar ST gear g

(P 5 R A S-S TaHTT 2018 F 5T AR BT AT
U HHATRGT B TR fobar ST 8, <9 & T gRT Jhe
TGN T U 5l Il

15. S fafaw 15 ¥ Sy a@ie Hifaal & gy gn,
39 31 P faarof

o fafaw 15 & Ay aRate= Hifaal & ergeu gft

>

)

¢
~&

Vi

Y,

EXERCISE PERIOD AND PROCESS OF EXERCISE
One month from the date of issue / offer.

8. THE APPRAISAL PROCESS FOR DETERMINING THE
ELIGIBILITY OF EMPLOYEES FOR THE SBEB - ESPS
2018

All permanent employees including Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer, Executive Directors of the Bank as on the date
of offering/ issue of shares will be entitled to participate subject
to the applicable regulatory requirements and guidelines.

9. MAXIMUM NUMBER OF OPTIONS, SARs, SHARES, AS
THE CASE MAY BE, TO BE ISSUED PER EMPLOYEE
AND IN AGGREGATE

The Bank proposes to issue maximum of 24,45,00,000 equity
shares in aggregate and shares proposed to be issued per
employee shall not exceed 1% of the issued capital.

10. MAXIMUM QUANTUM OF BENEFITS TO BE PROVIDED
PER EMPLOYEE UNDER THE SCHEME

As the new shares are proposed to be issued under SBEB
— ESPS 2018, no other benefits will be provided to eligible
employees.

11. WHETHER THE SCHEME(S) IS TO BE IMPLEMENTED
AND ADMINISTERED DIRECTLY BY THE COMPANY
OR THROUGH A TRUST

SBEB - ESPS 2018 will be implemented and administered
directly by the Bank.

12. WHETHER THE SCHEME(S) INVOLVES NEW ISSUE
OF SHARES BY THE COMPANY OR SECONDARY
ACQUISITION BY THE TRUST OR BOTH

Under the SBEB - ESPS 2018, the Bank will issue new equity
shares directly to the eligible employees.

13. THE AMOUNT OF LOAN TO BE PROVIDED FOR
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SCHEME(S) BY THE
COMPANY TO THE TRUST, ITS TENURE, UTILIZATION,
REPAYMENT TERMS, ETC.;

As the shares are directly issued to the eligible employees
under the SBEB - ESPS 2018 by the Bank, formation of the
trust or providing loan to the trust does not arise.

14. MAXIMUM  PERCENTAGE OF  SECONDARY
ACQUISITION (SUBJECT TO LIMITS SPECIFIED
UNDER THE SEBI REGULATIONS) THAT CAN BE
MADE BY THE TRUST FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE
SCHEME(S)

As the shares are directly issued to the eligible employees
under the SBEB - ESPS 2018 by the Bank, secondary
acquisition by the trust does not arise.

15. A STATEMENT TO THE EFFECT THAT THE COMPANY
SHALL CONFORM TO THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 15

Bank will conform to the accounting policies specified in
Regulation 15
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16. THE METHOD WHICH THE COMPANY SHALL USE TO
VALUE ITS OPTIONS OR SARs

As only the shares are issued under the SBEB - ESPS 2018,
the valuation of options or SARs does not arise.

17. THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT, IF APPLICABLE:

‘In case the company opts for expensing of share based
employee benefits using the intrinsic value, the difference
between the employee compensation cost so computed
and the employee compensation cost that shall have been
recognized if it had used the fair value, shall be disclosed
in the Directors’ Report and the impact of this difference on
profits and on earnings per share (“EPS”) of the company
shall also be disclosed in the Directors’ Report’.

The Bank will comply with the above requirements as and
when applicable.

Lock in period:

The equity shares issued under SBEB-ESPS 2018 shall be
locked in for a minimum period of one year from the date of
allotment as per SEBI Regulations. For this purpose the Bank
is required to obtain the consent of the shareholders by means
of a special resolution. Hence your consent is requested for
the above proposal.

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the
proposed Special Resolution. None of the Directors of the
Bank is interested or concerned in the aforementioned
Resolution(s), except to the extent of their shareholding in the
Bank.

By order of the Board of Directors

Chennai
11.06.2018

(R Subramaniakumar)
Managing Director & CEO
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2017-18

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report together with Audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss
Account of the Bank for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

Global Business Performance

Fiscal year 2017 witnessed a significant improvement in global
economic growth and trade situation. However, Geopolitical
tensions between US and China was a major cause of concern
as strenuous relations between the two could weigh down global
trade. India is pegged to be the fastest growing economy in the
world in 2017-18 and will be a key driver for global growth. As per
the economist reports, the first quarter of the year saw the impact
of demonetisation settling down, in the next quarter, introduction
of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) brought in some pressures
as businesses adjusted to the new regime. However, from the
third quarter onwards, signs of growth returning were evident.
Private investment activity in India has been weighed down by
capacity related issues and firms’ (especially corporate) stressed
balance sheets. Economic growth has been heavily dependent
on consumer spending and public investment by the government.
However, capital goods output, a proxy for investment activity in
the economy, rose for the seventh straight month in February
at 20%, the fastest pace in 20 months. India’s retail inflation
decelerated for the fourth consecutive month in March to 4.28%.
RBI has lowered its inflation forecast for 2018-19 to 4.7%-5.1% in
the first half and 4.4% in the second half. The central bank has
a mandate of achieving the medium-term target for inflation of
4% within a band of +/- 2 percentage points, while supporting
growth. The Reserve Bank of India has steadily cut the repo rate
from 7.25 per cent in August 2015 to 6 per cent in August 2017.
Since then the RBI has held the policy rate steady, with a greater
emphasis on reviving domestic growth.

The Bank continued its efforts towards rebalancing its Balance
Sheet under the current year. The focus was laid on to improve
the RAM portfolio with a view to mitigate the risk and improve
capital efficiency. The Bank further reduced the concentration
of Bulk deposits and improved the share of low cost deposits.
The Global Business level stood at Rs. 3,67,831 crores as on
31st March 2018 against Rs. 3,68,118 crores as on 31st March
2017. The global deposits and gross advances stood at Rs.
2,16,832 crores and Rs. 1,50,999 crores respectively as on 31st
March 2018 against Rs. 2,11,343 crores and Rs. 1,56,776 crores
respectively as on 31st March 2017.

Financial Performance

The efforts during the current year were to improve the operational
efficiency as the operating environment remained firm. The right
sizing of balance sheet had its impact felt on the revenue streams
substantially. Focused attention was laid to improve the income
from non-core operations which helped the Bank to maintain
its operational efficiency. As a result, the Bank maintained its
operating profit which ended at Rs 3,629 crores in FY 2017-18
compared to Rs. 3,650 crores recorded in previous year.

Gross NPA had increased to end at Rs. 38,180 crores for FY 2017-
18 as against Rs. 35,098 crores in FY 2016-17, major fallout of the
changes in regulatory guidelines. The resultant higher provision
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requirements of Rs.9,929 crores during the year forced the Bank
to report a Net Loss of Rs.6,299 crores for the year. The Bank had
reported Rs. 3,417 crores of loss during 2016-17.

Income and Expenditure Analysis

The rebalancing of asset side of the Balance sheet had major
impact on the revenues of the Bank. Even though, the Bank
got benefit from its focused attention on low cost deposit with a
favorable Cost of Deposits, the NPA levels & Capital constraints
restricted the growth opportunities to improve the income level.
Maximum effort was laid on towards improving the Non interest
income with higher thrust given on automating charges which
has yielded results. It is noteworthy to mention that the Non
Interest Income recorded a growth of 11.08% to end at Rs. 3,746
crores as against Rs. 3,373 crores recorded in FY 2016-17.

The domestic CASA deposits stood at Rs. 78,739 crores as on
31st March 2018 as against Rs. 75,446 crores as on 31st March
2017. The CASA% stood higher at 37.43% as on 31st March 2018
as against 36.78% as on 31st Mar 2017.

The higher level of CASA and reduction of the bulk deposits
helped the Bank to reduce the domestic Cost of deposits which
ended at 5.62% for FY 2017-18 as against 6.32% in FY 2016-17.
The Bank’s one year MCLR rate which stood at 8.65% as of 1st
April 2017 was brought down to 8.40 % during the review period
in line with the industry trend. Further, the incremental NPAs also
resulted in decline in incomes. As a result, the yield on domestic
advances came down to 7.91% for FY 2017-18 as against 8.92%
in the previous year.

The domestic yield on investments improved to 7.77% for the
whole year 2017-18 compared to 7.36% in 2016-17. The Bank
was able to maintain the global Net interest margin at 2.19% in
2017-18 as against 2.03% in 2016 - 17. The Bank maintained a
Provision Coverage Ratio of 59.45 % for FY 2017-18 as against
53.63% for FY 2016-17.

Capital Raised during 2017-18

The Bank issued 39,78,30,018 equity shares of Rs.10/- each
for cash at issue price of Rs.27.65 per equity share (including
premium of Rs.17.65 per equity share) aggregating upto
Rs.1,100 crores to Government of India on Preferential Basis on
31.08.2017 for the capital infusion received from Government
of India on 16.03.2017 and 203,82,11,029 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each for cash at issue price of Rs.23.03 per equity share
(including premium of Rs.13.03 per equity share) aggregating
upto Rs.4,694 crores to Government of India on Preferential
Basis on 28.03.2018. Hence, the paid-up capital of the Bank
has increased from Rs.2,454.73 crores to Rs. 4,890.77 crores.
The shareholding of Government of India, has increased from
Rs.1,953.04 crores (79.56%) to Rs.4,389.08 crores (89.74%) and
the Public shareholding stood at Rs.501.69 crores (presently
10.26%).

Set off of Share Premium Account as on 31.03.2017 as
against the accumulated losses as on 31.03.2017

The Bank had, after obtaining the approval of the shareholders
by way of a Special Resolution at the EGM held on 30.01.2018 for
utilizing the balance available in the Share Premium account as
at 31.03.2017 to set off the accumulated losses as at 31.03.2017,
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31 AE 2018 A% S BT Yol Gaftadr SUTd 99 I HFES! &
3R 9 .25% T |

RAT Acadh

31 01 2017 HY & BT 3,373 T IS & GHES 31 A
2018 TRAT3T 3,332 TATy off | Foraw 922 Frior IraTd (27.67%),
990 31¢f TGN TRATT (29.71%), 678 XS TTTTT (20.35%) 3MR 742
TeluTere RATY (22.27%) WA off | 39 3relTaT, S & U
7 3 BrTay, 48 &Y Hafed, 4 faR HEER, 20 e
Py, 3 {4 9% 3ihg 3R 6 ASeunea § | etendi= adf &
IR, S 7 UEAS ARG BT dHETd S P T 41 WA
3R Tw & R s IR AT R |

PHIURE Mg

PRARE Taq A fe7-ufafeT & Ama & T § o o
Sfafied gea voneh & g=far § | S uuTdt BiuRe U= &
e &I HEAYUl B § BT QRIAT 3R g SRy & forg
T 3T 8 3R 8 3R I feaura! & Rl & a1 & fow
oo ILRAT BT RIMT B3 & fow Temmell, ufsanal ok
Junfery} &1 R B W SR ST § 3R S gHrd R o
gfaer oft ueH FHRar g

3mgandl - STl AUR, 2015 F Ay & forg smaR Hfgar
YR wfayfa iR fafaa a1 (sieet samaR &1 fF8e) fafa-
T, 2015 & A9 9 & UTaeTi o faf-ae= quT SrguTeH & fag
¥ 7 sigE-l AR, 2015 & Ay & g agandt smarR
Jfear R B ? i e, HH=ial dul §& 3 Safd o=
il & GRT AR &1 RUIE qut TR &1 o 95 |

YR R& 3R faf g 91 -wded! ot gt 3R sraxas faf-
U T YA -2015

Tl & AR

Sb B AU MWRYRB! BT e 3mH THT / SMfafafRiy
M IUTH < - AaeH gq Rl Ygm &A1 a1fgul

1S b T gamii guT IR UseH (SR S b HeT UsHeD)
R ot SR arL gt

§F FIORe Tag TR fomrgt srure Rurd amar udten
HART SIR ST quT TIews el W dF & YR fone
fPuu g S HRA © |

g NuwE qur s o e Fage Rerd fRad
W ST BT B |
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fra=re g 3k JRam vs

HIARE e HATCH, YR WBR & GRS & AR, §&
¥ 2009-10 ¥ Fefdd e AU 16 27.10.2017 BT 3MTs-
UG & WA H g&iaRd Rar <l g | a8 2010-11 ¥ 2013-14
BT SHIGT ATHIY THAT FT JqIEE R UIE 01 €1 1S & a1 I8
www.iob.in. TR I SUA § | TGIIAR ATSS U P 3MTed AT
BHARA B & AHA H §b 7 HRd DR gRI WX} fegnfrd =it
BT e fHar g |

o e Tl / YRd TSR gRT 90 JHT R SIRT
feanfE /e &1 Sgue ®Rar § | 56 AWURS! Bt
fRrepTadl &1 fAuer fomr fodf fids S Aar g |

v &

ot FRH FUR Srard , AR YRS =1, 7 faAi® 07.12.2017
HI 3 19 Y &1 BrdwTa guf R o § 1 4 Sorg Fer
YRYRF FAx® FT 1} feiF 07.12.2017 B 30T A a9 &
FrfeTa qui foar |

ot 3R GIHUI FUR DI f&id 05.05.2017 ¥ 30.06.2019 T &
U B dF & yey A aUT T FRIGRT HER & T
o fged fear T g1 39 4d 8% § e e srduras
eI & = B A1 29.09.2016 B Fgfad 1 7S | 37 i
11 78R 2016 ¥ 10 TRART 2017 3R ITP YT 28 TRA 2017
¥ 27 HS 2017 0% I 9% & UaY Fex® qul G SRR
BT & U H sifafvad SRIUR fearm | 4t srorr FuR diar-
4 i fem 09.10.2017  08.10.2020 T I foTT & & HRIUT-
% e & T H e fdar | f ¥eg ¥91e1 08.12.2017
07.12.2020 T P! 3(afe & o §ob & AIRURS = & T
g faffea gu | ot 7 vt R8T 08.12.2017 ©07.12.2020
TH DI A & T % & WRYRS FS=H & =0 | AT 7T |
off IR 3Fd ARMUN 27.12.2017 ¥ 26.12.2020 TP BT 3@fy
¥ fore §& & simmiaia fewe & =9 o g1 T |

SITHR

e S URd WHR , URdIa Rord §& , YRl TRem sk
faframa a1, wie TR, I R, faia I ofik guft
ferer=t Faret 1 3 3iHed elTe 3R HeTad o oy SHRY
7 | P 91 ot offfed UTe !, FHARI gia , 3ifeR) ¥,
W R fagsh sfbm ag , JRuURS qur ;b Raurs! &
3T THT & U SMuRt AW TG MM HRAE [P I o
T UHR TREUT S |

TP Y SIS §b & I TWRI F W6 Tl o1 T8+ U o
1t RS o a1 8 IR Hidsy & I T 31121 &l § fob 3 wea

1 oIy & 3o Sgul ITEH UeH B |

e 918 & fo SR ST SR &
EE} oft AR AT FAR
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so as to present a true and fair picture of the state of affairs of the
Bank, utilised an amount of Rs.6,978.94 crores out of an amount
of Rs. 7,650.06 crores standing to the credit of Share Premium
account as at 31.03.2017 to set off the accumulated losses of
Rs. 6,978.94 crores as at 31.03.2017 and the Share Premium
account and accumulated losses stand reduced accordingly.

Authorised Capital

As on 31st March 2018, the Authorized Capital of the Bank is
Rs. 10,000 crores which was increased from Rs.3000 crores vide
GOl notification dated 27th Feb 2017.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank’s capital adequacy ratio as on 31st March 2018 stood
at 9.25 % as per Basel lll norms.

Branch Network

As on 31st March 2018, the Bank had 3,332 domestic branches,
as against 3,373 branches as on 31st March 2017, comprising of
922 rural branches (27.67%), 990 Semi Urban branches (29.71%),
678 Urban branches (20.35%) and 742 Metropolitan branches
(22.27%). Besides, the Bank has 7 Zonal Offices, 48 Regional
Offices, 4 Extension Counters, 20 Satellite Offices, 3 City Back
Offices and 6 Inspectorates. During the year under review, the
Bank has closed 41 branches and one Regional Office with a
view to rationalize administrative costs.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance reflects the built in value system of the
Bank in conducting its day to day affairs. The Bank recognizes
the critical importance of effective Corporate Governance for the
safe and sound functioning of the Bank and lays emphasis on
ensuring that structures, processes and systems are put in place
to establish strategic objectives to serve the interest of the Bank
and its stakeholders and which also facilitate effective monitoring.

I0B - Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading,
2015

Pursuant to Regulation 9 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Bank
has formulated IOB Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider
Trading, 2015, to regulate, monitor and report trading by the
Directors, employees and other connected persons of the Bank
with a view to comply with the provisions of the Regulations.

Securities and Exchange Board of India - Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015 (LODR)

As per SEBI (LODR),

» The Bank is providing remote e-voting facility to
its shareholders, in all Annual General Meetings/
Extraordinary General Meetings.

» The Code of Conduct is applicable to all members of
the Board and the Senior Management (i.e., General
Managers of the Bank).

» The Bank is submitting a quarterly compliance report
on Corporate Governance to the Audit Committee of the
Board and to BSE & NSE, where the shares of the Bank
are listed.

» The Bank is also submitting Quarterly Investor Grievance
Report to BSE & NSE.

Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF)

As per the guidelines of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA),
Government of India, the Bank transferred Unpaid Dividend
amount pertaining to the year 2009-10 to IEPF on 27.10.2017.
The unpaid dividend data pertaining to the years 2010-11 to
2013-14 is ported in MCA website and is also available at www.
iob.in. Accordingly, the Bank has complied with the guidelines
of Government of India in respect of transfer of unpaid dividend
to IEPF.

Bank is complying with all guidelines/regulations laid down by
the Regulatory Authorities and Government of India from time to
time. The Bank redresses the shareholders’ grievances without
any delay.

Board of Directors

Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal, Shareholder Director, completed
his three years’ term on 07.12.2017. Shri Sanjay Rungta,
Shareholder Director, completed his three years’ term on
07.12.2017.

Shri R. Subramaniakumar has been appointed as Managing
Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Bank from 05.05.2017 to
30.06.2019. Previously, he was appointed as Executive Director
with effect from 29.09.2016. He was entrusted with the additional
charge of MD & CEO for a period of 3 months from 11th November
2016 to 10th February 2017 and for a period of another 3 months
from 28th February 2017 to 27th May 2017. Shri Ajay Kumar
Srivastava has been appointed as Executive Director of the Bank
from 09.10.2017 to 08.10.2020. Shri Sanjay Rungta has been
re-elected as Shareholder Director of the Bank from 08.12.2017
to 07.12.2020. Shri Navin Prakash Sinha has been elected as
Shareholder Director of the Bank from 08.12.2017 to 07.12.2020.
Shri Sivaraman Anant Narayan has been appointed as Non-
Official Director of the Bank from 27.12.2017 to 26.12.2020.
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The Board of Directors are grateful for the valuable guidance
and support received from the Government of India, Reserve
Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI),
Stock Exchanges, State Governments, Financial Institutions and
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shareholders & other stake holders for their valued support and
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commitment towards achieving the future goals.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chennai
29" May, 2018

(R. SUBRAMANIAKUMAR)
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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Teyd fouR fausf ud fazeyor S &1 uREeH
afife 3k ¥Rbw ararazor T ST

YR 7 fafmfor sik Tarsit & & & facita 99 2018 FT SfaIR -
TR fomTgt gis Tferd g 3 fay 1 gad dult ¥ gl TgE
SrferaRy ot fRUfa gIRA &t | Siaer - fedeR faurd! & woa
o MR & 7.2% 3T 3 g | fodR fomgt & <R fafmfor
¥ forg gora 4o aftfa eidigfisd fommst & 6.9% @t gamn o
8.9% 1% 5 T | Ao & & el famme & 2.8% &t g
" 6.8% B G oo BT | T UHR I SN & & Sfdie st
fATE & 2.7% Bt T H 4.1% S| FHfor 83 7 6.8% H1 FGIas!
ol o1 g oft o foreeft foamme) ot gormn & 2.8% e 81 facia Sarait
Tfgd Far &= # fraaht fommet # 6.4 fawd I 9o 6.7% 81 TS
| b & &, 34w & IoTa & SR YR @S faar 1 31 7
2018 T S ST YUIE T Gt ST 1,14,749.90 3R & 4T oY
% o 2017 & 1,08,051.52 3RT & BT T A 6.19% B Ifx
gs| T A 2017 & 78,818.80 3RT & ¥ T UMH 2018
T 86,507.10 3RE = Bl AT | 31 3fafy o forw o WSt U
72.94% ¥ TG 75.39% B T |

S 3 gy

S0ST SfiaRE d% BT RITAT 10 HRasT 1937 B of T At
T FIdeRA IER SNt fos &5 & & St 3, GRI & 715 1 1969
T AFTP 14 BT H F SNl U M b o1 | 1969 H

JITEERU BT g e W, MSSAEl Bt WRA H 195 @y off
oo ad TS 67.70 RS TUY 3R 44.90 HRIS T 2t |

JAAF T TSNS < &g Ut St B Ui R 38T 7, afiy-

TG # wftsa Ao S qur Sifsen & sifgwn undt 8% |

% 3! fag # 5 411 § JufRYeh 8, i & R g &1 uiscis

Srciat ok aféon wifvar |

T fawang

A ST e H 81 auf I Yard

A YRA ® 3332 @S SR 3552UTH & WY Ao IU-
Ryt

A ot THERE Bt uge i AN de Uge SR 3!
TR B B 57% RARATE AT qT Srefret & &

A 3% AN a% UgeH /g 2713 HRIR YdTgdh

G201 YR faRYeR dHEHrg I8 H U Holgd s

35 fafera wfsha Trga! o1 fayr |

A wmaredt 3R 1 wfafAfy wrtag & wry fagw o

A &H AaRTd SETS § ¥ad 9fg

A G, PN ud THTHEAS gl H Fued # guUR, W
ST & 66% TG TH Y Ugd 54%

A TEfSied ugd Ud URIed ddbHid!

31 O1F 2017 & 3. 2,05,154 HRIS ST ga-1 & 31 A 2018 Hi
% B! A I TEN 3. 2,10,388 HRIS @ BT H R 8q
T ¥U Y §F §RT I3 T Al $I goig ¥ @Ial W STraft
H gfg ool gS| WS HIT 31 A 2017 & F. 75,466 HAS U
FEHR 31 T 2018 BT ¥. 78,739 FRIS Bl TN I@-1I ¢ fob
31 1/ 2017 S a1 B I9d §F STHN 5.35% TGHR I, 66,455
B T A 2018 T rm off YeRaR 37.43% & AT B

W 3y

gfexiia TAdie wd il IR TgfE A §@ &1 98 TR R IUR
7 3Hferp raur 89 W AoeR $R 3 §1 adAH faxdig o
T ST B HH B 3R A H YR & o1y S 3 gevr 3R
THUHUHS &7 W SIS faar| e I 31 31 A 2017 & 3.
1,42,651 BRI & GdTad 31 A 2018 H1 %.1,38,516 HIS 3@

Sawdie ufvares

T 2018 & A H o & 12 UfagH fagwr & 3, R 8 shavfis
AT, 1 Ul wrfay, 2 U s ek 1 Tged IumH
STt <fere 81 gTep i, Sficit SR Seblep F €)-c) TRy § 3R
R T 3o BT & ve-ues wmar 1 wfafAf wrafag gas
A fRd 31 9 § Rya qai g uRaffy st e ie o5 7S
2017 B! dg B a1 7| fauvor o §e vd WA, RimgR o
IR & | S SushH S 3fPsar Sexawd S @i
IRETE, AR & B R TG ¢ 1 SNIRU HRITR 31 A 2017
F T. 20,314 BRIS S GHIEA 31 A 2018 B 3. 18,927 HRIS
R

TR TR

7 o # I %.15.92 FE o HEd €.186.32 FUT Ht
G gat @i 3faRkd & o o a8 2017 - 2018 & WA
A &t fasht T e £.636.30 FUS o1 (3% 2016 - 17 &
I £.631.70 FAT) | R FRAR ¥ 1 W e avf &
FIT 538.80 FE o @ T 552.87 FUE |

fraw

31HE 2017 & T, 71,485.69 TRIS & abTad (Had (a1 31 AT
2018 &I UTHR B. 68,912.58 FRIS @l 2016-17 &F ¥.1,191.75
PG & GHEd I 2017-18 P GRM

gfayfadt & fawt ok fafma R @y &t AR oo ay &t
AR T, 1,208.01 BAS L 10 99 B STHD Wiy a9 & SR
6.66% T TEHR 7.40% TR T TS |

THTHUAS

31 A1 2018 BT Y&H, TY 3R AT ITH! & wiee &1 e
32,615 HRIS BT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic and Banking Environment

India regained the status of the world's fastest-growing major
economy in the October-December quarter of FY’18, driven by a
pick-up in growth in manufacturing and services sectors. Gross
domestic product grew 7.2 per cent in the October-December
quarter. During the December quarter, the gross value added
(GVA) for manufacturing grew at 8.9 per cent higher than 6.9
per cent in the previous quarter. Similarly, the farm sector GVA
grew at 4.1 per cent compared to 2.7 per cent in the previous
quarter. The construction sector recorded a growth of 6.8 per
cent, higher than 2.8 per cent in previous quarter. The services
segment including financial services grew at rate of 6.7 per cent
up from 6.4 per cent in previous quarter.

In banking sector, the credit off take has started showing
improvement. The total deposits in the banking system stood
at Rs.1,14,749.90 billion as on 31st March 2018, as against
Rs.1,08,051.52 billion with growth of 6.19%. Advances have
increased from Rs.78,818.80 billion from March 2017 to
Rs.86,507.10 billion in March 2018 with a growth of 9.75%. As
such the CD ratio improved from 72.94% to 75.39% for the same
period.

Background of the Bank

Indian Overseas Bank (IOB) was founded on 10th February 1937
by Shri. M. Ct. M. Chidambaram Chettyar, a pioneer in many
fields. 10B was one of the 14 major banks that were nationalized
in 1969. On the eve of Nationalization in 1969, IOB had 195
branches in India with aggregate deposits of Rs.67.70 crores and
Advances of Rs.44.90 crores.

Currently I0OB is sponsoring two Regional Rural Banks; Pandiyan
Grama Bank in Tamil Nadu and Odisha Gramya Bank in Odisha.
Bank has its overseas presence in 5 countries Singapore,
Hongkong, Thailand, Srilanka and South Korea.

Key Highlights

81 years in the service of Banking.

LR

Strong Domestic presence of 3332 Branches & 3552
ATMS.

&

57% of Branches catering to the needs of Rural and Semi
Urban centres enhancing deeper Financial Inclusion.

2713 Business Correspondents provide extended reach.

RN

A strong Brand name in South India especially in the
State of Tamil Nadu.

Trust of 35 million active customers.

RN

Overseas Presence with 8 branches and 1 Representative
Office.

Sustained Growth in Low cost CASA deposits.

Y

Improved performance in Retail, Agri and MSME
Segments contributing to 66% of Domestic Advances up
from 54% a year ago.

< Digital initiatives and strong technology penetration.

S

¢
¢

Bank’s Operations

Domestic Deposits

The Bank’s total domestic deposits stood at Rs.2,10,388 crores
as on 31st March 2018 as against Rs. 2,05,154 crores as on 31st
March 2017. The increase in deposits was mainly on account
of steps taken by the Bank towards improving the CASA. The
domestic CASA has increased from Rs. 75,446 crores as on
31st March 2017 to Rs. 78,739 crores as on 31st March 2018.
It is noteworthy to mention that the savings bank deposits have
grown by 5.35% over 31st March 2017 to end at Rs. 66,455
crores. The CASA% also improved to 37.43 % as of March 2018.
Domestic Advances

The incremental NPAs, capital constraints and slower credit
off take have forced the Bank to be more cautious on large
scale lending. With a view to diversify the risk and to improve
the margins, the Bank focused more on Retail and MSME
sectors during the fiscal year. The Domestic Gross Advances
stood at Rs.1,38,516 crores as on 31st March 2018 as against
Rs. 1,42,651 crores as on 31st March 2017.

Overseas Operations

The Bank had 12 establishments abroad, including 8 overseas
branches, 1 Representative office, 2 Remittance Centers and 1
Joint Venture Subsidiary as on 31st March 2018. There are two
branches each at Hongkong, Sri Lanka and Bangkok and one
each at Singapore and South Korea. Representative office is
located at Dubai. The representative office at Guangzhou, China
was closed on 05th May 2017. Remittance Centres operate at
Boonlay and Serangoon, Singapore. The Joint Venture subsidiary
India International Bank (Malaysia) Berhad is functioning at
Malaysia. The overseas business stood at Rs. 18,927 crores
as of 31st March 2018 as compared to Rs. 20,314 crores as of
31st March 2017.

Forex Operations

The profit on sale of investments was higher at Rs.636.30
crores during 2017-18 (Rs.631.70 crores during 2016-17) before
accounting category transfer loss at Rs.186.32 crores as against
Rs. 15.92 crores in the previous year. The profit on exchange from
Forex business stood at Rs.552.87 crores as against Rs.538.80
crores in the previous year.

Investments

Net investments of the Bank decreased to Rs. 68,912.58 crores
as of 31st March 2018 from Rs. 71,485.69 crores as on 31st
March 2017. Total Profit including sale of securities & profit on
exchange amounted to Rs. 1,208.01 crores during the year
2017-18 as against Rs. 1,191.75 crores during the vyear
2016-17. 10-year benchmark yield has gone up from 6.66% to
7.40% during the year.

MSME

The share of credit to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises stood
at Rs. 32,615 crores as on 31st March 2018. MSME portfolio

37

2/




N

¥ P THTHUHS UISwIfer 3 fad ¥ 2017-18 & SR . 2,051
HAS DI I ool DI 3R 31 AT 2017 B F 30,564 PRI I TG
T HTgehT At S Y unfa H BN gfS o 3t 18 3R 31
A 2017 Y TEASRA & 9.43% T, 39 IRE 7.50% & HATard
TET Y UR HR 7T UTUTAHar & o1 i §f vHuauss ofw 31
A 2017 B B 28,234.29 TRIS (S b Hof Trdfiyerar & &1
41.89% T . 67,400.80 HRIG) & HTEd 31 HH 2018 I 3.
32,615 RIS (S P Gt YTl & BT 44.21% T 74,429.80
FIS FU) B T3

§F 7T, 1,956.34 TS (93.16%) P 1,55,527 HUN B A €t g
3R it af 2017-18 % SR T Wit GaT AT (fururars)
& Sfld . 2,100.00 PRIS AT & GbTad 31 A 2018 BT 3.
1,882.99 BRI (89.67%) faaid favar mar| 59 3ramar, faw o
2017-18 % SRM §& 3 XS 30 T A1 & d8d 3. 175.57
IS & 801 HBUN HoR fbu &1 bt zranaeft & Aiea st &
T T AT SX6 TR T B |

31 A, 2018 o, HeTHTTS TeT ¥ RS SR & dgd
2,215.50 BRIS UL §h1A & 1Y §b § YeH Td 7Y & 7
65,732 TuTi¥es Tad 01 Wigpd foman B

FoRUwHTHy TeHT & TRE SR & dgd §d A TaT TS (10.00
TG 0 AP B! BT AR & ded Widd TH GaxT AR Rt
DI JRA&d A & U TSI & Y 95 B0 G-I &
Y N AHiH fbar §1 31 AT 2018 A, T WiellUHTHG TiorT
& dgd 307.16 BRIS ¥UY & TaUIGR & FIY 29,391 Wdl B!
FR fHar gl

S 7 IRUTTAETA S Y JHSAT UeeH fobar g 3R 3ifars
WehH § THTOUAS & miedl & favg fad diwor & fa dan-
FITY Ha H U & T Y= & = § AHiferd fpan 81 b
< THUHUHS o 0w & g Rt gar 2ife g (Sarsuady,
ey e SR 3HMNE Ads & WY THIAAT 10 BT TdIHR0T/
giften B g1

¥ 7 g3l SHeTdl-golt AT Y B 7 i TS
IYRGASH B URe It HrIfaad & GRM TGS TR bl
TS T IS T § I AR & UATRes 30 I Hraffad faan
D

3rEfad SHeR! % Ty TR/ gl % g, THeaeHs
 Hafta 9o & fafame fenfds R gt 9d=aw s &
1y 33t ifems ¥ IRy THuIuHS Giéd - T B

S 7 THTTUHS fah &dT & I1Y 273 WRATSN B UgaTH 61 @
IR I Tiefer 28 fafkry wouns wmanelt & ifafved THeaeTs
Ffod wrareii & wu § A fbar 81 37 WRare & & R W/
Tt zrRET gl SR hfee SfIERE B 3o I TR & 959G
B SR THIIUHE &7 &) IUR 3 R 9 Hied o & fw
g URI&T ver fsar ma g

it fodly TquHS SRaral @R 273 THUOUAS Sfgd wmareh
AR ifeTREl & T1fd A o1 ufshar & tHuguas Ral-
TR HfIBRGT B! ug== Fi TS g
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% A THTHUHS Hee & gerdl - & fod =y oM duR &t
T 3R U TR B UEaH B3 B Ufehan B QR YR H A g
THE! &I UgaH B B

feRfres ST e, ToRTd IS

I FE PRISCR, AMfEATg I
aifer gof R /TgRH, AfeTg Iw
3l yedh TSR el
Fofifafar oiR AsforT | TR et

WRgS SN VAR, B I

BN / CHIeT=d NERIEIRSEICRc:

3Tl / Arfhd gedh NRRISIRvEIC R )

AT A T T BT Jfaer & e §& 10.00 TRI IUY dF
@1 BT AT P Y ST THTHTAS U] TR e &=
HRA B Ui § g 3R 39 fat af 2008-19 B R fawa s |
¥ 7 fafte HeH 3oL § IR Toft TR R THUguns %ise u-
G} B TRIRGd A & T THORISS THT &1 6 o T g
THUYUAS FHUT &1 @R Aol 3R T Wl &7 3dd- $HRA &
ot § 3 Wit &g St § TS Aea e Aifta
fPu g1 R3S F ¢ A B & dgd s - "TAIYUHAS P
TSR 3R gAa R AAifa off a1 § SR a1a & dgd -
JuHS IH1A! &1 Aed UeH B R faaR & & forw wt afig
Frafadl & gffadt &1 e g fear R

o 3 faggiesu dite, Shead! ey § THUEUHS gRT QAT
U ST 910 SATaRTRS el &) gHZ & ford e &= & IR
| &I0T IR a1 § SR THUHUHS &1 Hag & forg faftrer wfsa
Hey 331, ford sifafvad glawrsit &) tot, saret o= & F,
et H feamad, @l e onfe aftiferd g1

Qe SfbT

DR Gl hise TSHIST & dgd d gHrT AR AR 2017 I6
¥.20,349 TRIS T Fgdh AE 2018 TH 3.25,693 FRIS BId §U
26.26% Pt gfG A &1 FA Tl Hise AR 2017 B 5.23,887
TS T TGP A 2018 F AR 3.28,183 HRIS &l T B

foa 9 2017-18 & forw Wexr faaRur & dgad @& gifia foran
T 81 %.11,335 HRIS & AT &b THIEA $d $.15, 985 BRI BT
TR o | e ST & fOTT Sat GavT AR 16% J TG
19.94% B T B

T U UICHIferdl = A 2017 $1 R & S8R 36.82% Bt
3G @ 8, Tafes 39 3faf¥y & SRM AT HUT AR ¥.5,404 TR
8191 2017 Y U & 4.55% 3} 9fG oo HR gU Reifors Hor
GIST & d8d SHTT %.5,009.80 HIS & | A8 U1 AISHT b d8d,
¥ & IR ¥.1,237 FRIS & ¢ fJaR0 & Y ATE 2018 IF
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of the Bank registered a growth of Rs. 2,051 crores during the
FY 2017-18 and increased from Rs. 30,564 crores as on 31st
March 2017. Micro Category advances registered substantial
growth and stood at 9.43 % of ANBC as on March, 31st 2017,
thereby surpassed the mandatory target of 7.50%. MSME
share towards Priority Sector advances has increased manifold
from Rs. 28,234.29 crores (41.89 % of total priority sector of
the Bank i.e., Rs. 67,400.80 crores) as on March, 31st 2017 to
Rs. 32,615 crores (44.21 % of total priority sector of the Bank
i.e., Rs. 74,429.80 crores) as on March, 31st 2018.

Bank has sanctioned 1,55,527 loans amounting to Rs.1,956.34
crores (93.16 %) and disbursed Rs.1,882.99 crores (89.67 %) as
on 31st March 2018 vis-a-vis target of Rs. 2,100 crores under
Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana (PMMY) during the Financial Year
2017-18. Further, Bank has sanctioned 801 loans amounting to
Rs.175.57 crores under Stand Up India Scheme during the FY
2017-18. MUDRA facilitation desk with a Nodal Officer created
at all Branches.

As on March 31st, 2018, collateral free loans to Micro and Small
Sector sanctioned by the Bank increased to 65,732 loans with
outstanding amount of Rs. 2,215.50 crores under the guarantee
cover from CGTMSE scheme.

Bank has enrolled as Member Lending Institution with NCGTC
to secure all Retail Trade advances sanctioned under MUDRA
Scheme (Loan amount upto Rs.10.00 lakhs) under the guarantee
cover from CGFMU Scheme. As on March 31st, 2018, we have
covered 29,391 accounts with an exposure of Rs.307.16 crores
under CGFMU Scheme.

Bank has entered into a Tie up arrangement with RXIL and
enrolled as member to participate in the TReDS platform for
financing against receivables of MSMEs in the online platform.
Bank has also Reviewed / Renewed the MoUs with Bharatiya
Yuva Shakti Trust (BYST), TVS Motors and Ashok Leyland for
financing to MSMEs.

Bank has introduced IOB GST - EASE Scheme to facilitate the
MSME borrowers to formalize their business from the issues
related to input tax credit etc., during post GST implementation.

Exclusive MSME portal created in IOB ONLINE with all latest
updates on Bank, Regulatory guidelines related to MSME, to
facilitate Branches / Regions with the updated information.

Bank has identified 273 Branches with MSME growth potential
and designated them as MSME Focused Branches, in addition
to the existing 28 Specialized SME Branches. Intensive Training
has been provided to all the Branch heads and Credit Officers
working in these branches to enrich their knowledge levels and
focus on lending to MSME sector.

MSME Relationship officers have been identified in all Specialized
SME branches and also in the process of designating the
Relationship officers in 273 MSME focused branches.

3
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Bank has identified nine potential clusters Pan India, formulated
special schemes to promote MSME credit and also is in the
process of identifying more such Clusters.

Ceramic Industry Morvi, Gujarat State

Textiles Industry Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu State

Engineering goods Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu State

Auto components Chennai / Kancheepuram,

Tamil Nadu State

NCR Delhi

NCR Delhi

Perumbavoor, Kerala State
Ludhiana, Punjab State
Ludhiana, Punjab State

Auto components

Engineering & Packaging

Plywood Industry

Hosiery / Textiles

Auto / Bicycle components

Bank is in the process of
processing facility with a loan amount upto Rs.10.00 lakhs to
facilitate ease of doing business and it will be introduced in
FY2018-19.

introducing Online MSME loan

Bank has taken various steps and reduced the Turnaround time
for processing the MSME credit proposals at all layers. Bank
has designated MSME Nodal Officers at all Regional Offices to
facilitate quick sanction of MSME loans and follow up of NPA
accounts. Bank has also implemented the “Policy on Revival
and Rehabilitation of MSMEs” under the New Frame work of RBI
and ensured formation of committees at all Regional Offices to
consider extending Relief to MSME units under stress.

Bank has undertaken a Market Survey in selected Regions to
understand the practical issues faced by MSMEs in the post
demonetization, GST regime and taken various proactive steps
to help MSMEs, which include sanction of additional facilities,
reduction of interest rates, concessions in charges, quick
disposal etc.,

Retail Banking

The total outstanding amount under the Core Retail credit
schemes increased from Rs. 20,349 crores as of March 2017 to
Rs. 25,693 crores as of March 2018 showing a growth of 26.26%.
The overall retail credit has increased from Rs. 23,887 crores as
on March 2017 to Rs. 28,183 crores as on March 2018.

Target has been achieved under Retail disbursement for the FY
2017-18. The total disbursement made was Rs. 15,985 crores
against the target of Rs. 11,335 crores. The overall Retail share to
total advances has increased from 16% to 19.94%.

Housing Loan portfolio has shown a growth of 36.82% over
March 2017 position while the fresh disbursement during the
period is Rs. 5,404 crores. The outstanding under Educational
Loan Scheme is Rs. 5,009.80 crores registering a growth of
4.55% over the March 2017 position. Under the Vehicle loan
scheme, the outstanding stood at Rs. 2,618.27 crores as of
March 2018 with fresh disbursements made to the tune of
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2,942 528.38

9,290 335.00

14,257 232.51

1,030 345.49

1,441.39
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Rs. 1,237 crores during the year. The outstanding under clean
loan segment is Rs. 856 crores.

New Retail Products introduced during the FY 2017-18

< Vidya Suraksha, an educational loan scheme that
provides credit up to Rs 7.50 Lakhs without any third
party guarantee or collateral security. The loans availed
under this scheme is provided with credit guarantee
cover to extent of 75% of default.

< Vidya Shrest, a loan product designed to provide
educational loan to students for pursuing higher
education in India, in premier institutions, in country’s

best engineering and medical colleges.

< In order to make the retail scheme - Loan against
property (LAP) more competitive, the loan quantum
has been enhanced from Rs. 25.00 Lakhs to Rs. 2.00
crores. Also the income criteria to avail the loan has been
changed to Rs. 30,000/- gross pay per month from Rs.
75,000/- per month.

< Subhagruha Topup - The scheme has been modified
slightly to fit the market. Earlier loan can be availed only
after completion of minimum one third of the housing
loan tenor. Now the scheme is modified in such a way
it can be availed with minimum satisfactory repayment
of 24 months after completion of the moratorium period.

< NCT Delhi Scheme for Higher Education and Skill
Development -The scheme provides education loan
for higher education/Skill Development in recognized
institutions in Delhi. The maximum loan amount under
the scheme is Rs. 10.00 Lakhs with no collateral security/
third party guarantee. The scheme is covered under the
Credit guarantee coverage.

Performance on Para Banking Products

Under Bancassurance and Mutual Fund Business, the Bank
has earned income of Rs.21.25 crores during the year 2017-
18 which is 35.95 % growth over 2016-17 where in the income
was Rs.15.63 crores. Various campaigns were floated for Para
banking Products and Mutual Fund Schemes during the financial
year 2017-18, which increased our Para banking income.

10B Suraksha

Our Bank has launched I0B Suraksha - Personal Accidental
Death Insurance Scheme on 14th April 2017 for coverage of
Rs.10 Lakhs with a nominal annual Premium of Rs.100 + Service
Tax for all our Customers. Our Bank has covered 9.34 Lakhs
account holders under this scheme as on 31.03.2018.

During the financial year 2017-18 under 10B Suraksha, Bank
has settled 60 number of claims amounting to Rs.6.00 crores.
By settling 60 numbers of claims IOB lit the life and removed the
uncertainty in 60 families due to sudden demise of their bread
earner.

¢
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Shikhar - Retail Loan Campaign
In order to give thrust to our Retail Loan portfolio and have an
increase in small ticket advances, a new campaign by the name
“SHIKHAR” w.e.f from 01.08.2017 to 31.10.2017 was started
which was aimed towards reaching to greater heights with a
special focus on Retail Loans only.

The overall performance during the campaign period:

PARAMETER NUMBER SANCTIONED
AMOUNT

(Amt in Crores)
Housing Loans 2,942 528.38
Vehicle Loans 9,290 335.00
Other Retail 14,257 232.51
Mortgage Loans 1,030 345.49
TOTAL 27,519 1,441.39

10B Meet & Greet - Season 2:

As a part of connecting with our customers we have launched
our Meet & Greet — Season 2 from 27.07.2017 to 31.08.2017
wherein all the Regional Offices/Branches met the top clients
under Savings, Term Deposits and Advances. At the end of the
program, a total of 80,463 customers have been met by our RO/
Branch officials and feedback/suggestions were taken. Overall
satisfactory feedback was received. The exercise established
stronger relationship and removed the misgivings amongst the
clients.

SB Corp and SB Premium Corp Salary Account:

In order to increase our CASA base with a special focus on
corporate salary accounts, we have revamped the existing
corporate salary account scheme into 2 new schemes whose
features are at par with the salary account packages of other
Banks including new Gen Banks.

The New Schemes are:
1) 10B CORP Salary Account
2) 10B Premium CORP Salary Account

The features of the account are designed based on the Average
Quarterly Balance to be maintained by the customers. Unique
features like Overdraft facility with repayment in EMIs is available.
Special Insurance coverage packs for self and spouse are given
under the new SB schemes.

I0B Suvidha: With a view to improve our Retail Deposits
portfolio, a new deposit product “IOB Suvidha” was launched
on 10.02.2018.

Unique Feature of the product: The deposit product with inbuilt
credit facility sanctioned instantly and can be availed as Cash
Credit Facility by the depositor. 90% of the principal amount is
sanctioned as limit with an interest rate @ 1% over the deposit
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interest rate. A personalized cheque book is issued to the
customer.

I0B Saral: With a view to improve our Retail Deposits portfolio,
Bank launched on 15.12.2017 a new deposit product “IOB
SARAL. Unique Feature of the product is Partial withdrawal of
the amount in multiples of Rs.1000/- without disturbing the whole
deposit and without losing the interest for the whole amount.
Under this scheme the customers can partially withdraw the
amount in multiples of Rs.1000/- any time from the total deposit.
The interest payable for such withdrawn amount will be calculated
at the rate for the period the deposit has run less applicable
preclosure charges. The balance deposit amount will continue
as it is with the contracted rate till maturity.

New Initiatives

< “lOBIndia” Official YouTube channel and official
Instagram: During the year, the Bank moved closer to the
customers through its YouTube channel sharing all our
corporate videos through this platform. Bank started the
use of Instagram where official images are shared. The
page is being handled by its Social Media Management
and Response Team at Central Office. (SMMART).

< TANGEDCO Direct Recruitment Examination Fee
Collection: For their recruitment process I0B has been
chosen to be one of the fee collecting banks which will
pave way to earn a good amount of Fee Based Income.

Mid Corporate

Mid Corporate Department caters to the lending requirements of
borrowers in the range of Rs.40 crores and upto Rs.100 crores.
In the prevailing market conditions, to maintain the asset quality,
the Bank has been selective in extending new/ enhanced credit
limits. During the year 2017-18, Mid Corporate Department has
sanctioned total credit limits of Rs. 1,707.44 crores (Fresh: Rs.
879.14 crores and Enhancement: Rs. 828.30 crores). Aggregate
exposure under Mid Corporate segment as on 31st March 2018
is Rs. 12,539 crores (Including Fund Based exposure of Rs.
8,900 crores and Non fund based exposure of Rs. 3,638 crores).

Large Corporate

Large Corporate caters to the requirement of borrowers other
than agriculture, retail and MSME, where credit requirement is
above Rs.100.00 crores for an individual borrower. Under this
vertical, Bank has Fund based exposure of Rs. 68,012.90 crores
and Non Fund based exposure of Rs. 26,191.74 crores spread
over various core industries and other segments. During the year,
the bank has sanctioned 46 proposals for Rs. 6,884.09 crores
with enhancement and 22 fresh proposals for Rs. 6,783.51

¢
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crores totaling to Rs. 13,667.60 crores for Corporate Clients all
over India, mostly in Investment grade accounts and/or accounts
guaranteed by State Government. Bank has initiated measures
to exit/reduce the Non- Investment grade accounts, which
is expected to yield results during ensuing year. As initiation
of exit route, bank has reduced exposure to the tune of Rs.
3,970.00 crores during the FY2018 in stressed sector. Measures
like withdrawing concessions, deliberating in consortium for
upgrading rating, avoiding additional exposure etc., have been
taken.

During FY2017-18, in order to promote focused lending, LCB cell
was formed in Large Corporate Department to cater exclusively to
Large Corporate Branches (LCB). LCB Branches were enhanced
from 7 to 13 which operate all over India.

These Specialized Branches are focusing in lending to borrowers
coming under Large Corporate Segment, making available
necessary expertise in Credit Appraisal and quick delivery of
credit.

The proposals from these specialized large corporate branches
are directly processed by respective department at Central Office
which is forwarded through Zonal Offices. This has improved the
Turn around Time (TAT).

As a part of steady turnaround, it is focused on lower Risk Weight
Assets including Government Guaranteed advance and ‘A’
rated accounts. The department is taking efforts to reduce the
exposure/exit from stressed sector, wherever feasible like Power,
Steel and Road.

Priority Sector Credit

The average achievement of four quarters for the FY 2017-18
stood at Rs. 70,040 crores against the target of Rs. 59,024 crores
and the Bank has surpassed the mandatory norm of 40% of
ANBC by achieving 47.47% under Total Priority sector advances.
Our Priority sector advance witnessed an unprecedented growth
during FY 2017-18 by achieving the aforesaid 47.47% of ANBC
against the achievement of 40.33% during the previous FY 2016-
17 due to the strategic approach in leveraging the Rural / Semi
Urban branches and Rural Development Officers. Our Rural and
Semi urban branches mainly engaged in priority sector credit,
constitute 57.38% of the total branches and with the strong
workforce of 412 specialized Rural Development Officers being
reoriented to render their services effectively in these centers,
has yielded a very good result in the growth and development of
Priority sector advances during the FY 2017-18.

During the FY 2017-18 our Bank has sold Priority Sector Lending
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YT, Sl I &b FHIISIT A S hiSe BT 10.00% AT

AR § 3 faRy =u 3 afgarsit & forg amseidt OnR dedt
BI A IR oS R &1 & - bR Afgensit &1 B, et
yfty wfd: $Y & dea i nfafafat & fog afgensit & o
3R 3mgaiet Tauns Afgar ww: fafnfor ok Jar &=t & dga
Tfgar IefEa &1 Bl
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50,000 U ¥ 34/ & forT 0.25% 3R faem sfar eoqd=ma
FHUI QST & dgd SHST BY 0.50% HI IS RArd UegH o
JE

fa<ita qumaRE

1 S arer &=t B SfdhT gfaems ueH & & fore % 7 smaEfeq
JU-aT & (TIUHY) H 2,590 Fu YAt &) uae fasar §
3R 41 et g wfafAfiat afgd fomm siee are Tauge #
123 9T Ul e vaa fan 81 §F 3 23,16,017 WIE
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g H, il WIE HIS SfebT I AU 2.99 TRT FGTawAT U
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sficiepTs aftre RO Bl 61 FT T I AIRID Siet U A
& fom gem AR T B

faxT HaTer, YR WHR & =gt & garfad, & 7 eMyR
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3R 3HTh-g A-e fpe 7MY 3|

YT §9- 89 g (feaeidtans):
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FRIET | TG TSI 15 3T 2014 P HRA & YU Tl gRT L&
31 13 1 S 7 43,88,020 FugeSt @Al B WA SR T IS
¥ ded 31 A 2018 & 41,24,821 U Sfae w18 oY fhu §
TS Q UTb T GRT 54% HTS Ffhd fPT T |

YR faffw, 2016 & AR MYR ATHIGA R Srera-
Fzl

YR fAfTm, 2016 & STUR, YIESTTSME A bl 1 AR URIR
B YR AT / 3T % R I e gad fovdT | gAR o
J 335 TSt H SR 91 SRR WRATSH T YR AHH g
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Certificate of Rs. 1,405 crores out of which Rs. 1,300 crores are
under SF/MF and Rs.105 crores under General category and
earned a profit of Rs.4.40 crores. The average achievement of
47.47% of ANBC under priority sector advances during the year
is after reduction of the above PSLC sale.

During the Financial year, the Bank has received Award for
Excellent Performance under Priority Sector Lending, Tamil

Nadu 2016-17 in the event of State credit seminar organized by
NABARD.

Agriculture

The average achievement of four quarters for the FY 2017-
18 stood at Rs. 29,851 crores against the target of Rs. 26,561
crores and the Bank has surpassed the mandatory norm of
18% of ANBC by achieving 20.23% under Agriculture advances.
There is substantial growth in Agriculture advances with average
achievement of 20.23% of the ANBC during the FY 2017-18 from
18.19% during FY 2016-17, even after sale of Rs. 1,300 crores
of PSLC under SF/MF category. The Bank disbursed Rs. 30,968
crores under Special Agriculture Credit plan (SACP) as against
the target of Rs. 30,000 crores during the year.

Loans to Small and Marginal farmers

The average achievement of four quarters for the FY 2017-18
stood at Rs. 15,894 crores against the target of Rs. 11,805 crores
and the Bank has surpassed the mandatory norm of 8% of ANBC
by achieving 10.77% under loans to Small/ Marginal farmers.
This achievement is arrived at after reducing the sale of PSLC
- SF/MF of Rs. 1,300 crores during FY 2017-18 and the growth
under the sector is considered to be high when compared to the
average achievement of 8.09% during the FY 2016-17.

Loans to Non-Corporate farmers

The average achievement of four quarters for the FY 2017-18
stood at Rs. 20,791 crores against the target of Rs. 17,265 crores
and the Bank has surpassed the mandatory norm of 11.78%
of ANBC by achieving 14.09% under loans to Non- Corporate
farmers.

Loans to Weaker Section

The average achievement of four quarters for the FY 2017-18
stood at Rs. 20,132 crores against the target of Rs. 14,756 crores
and the Bank has surpassed the mandatory norm of 10% of
ANBC by achieving 13.64% under loans to Weaker Section.
Microfinance

During the year, the Bank credit-linked 37,831 Self Help Groups
(SHGs) with a credit outlay of Rs. 1,247 crores. The cumulative
number of SHGs credit linked by the Bank is 7,00,065 and with
a total disbursement of Rs. 9,919.85 crores as of March 2018.
The total SHG Savings Bank linkage is 1,06,073 groups with net
balance of Rs.257 crores as on 31st March 2018.

During the Financial Year, the Bank has received National Award

for recording high growth rate in SHG — Bank Linkage under
the category of Medium Sized Banks, DAY- NRLM - 2016-17
from Ministry of Rural Development, Govt. of India. Our Bank
is also awarded 2nd prize among Public Sector Commercial
Banks for Excellence in Performance under SHG- BANK Linkage
Programme in the State of Tamil Nadu during the year 2016-17.

Credit flow to women

Bank’s credit to women stood at Rs. 14,933.72 crores as of 31st
March 2018 which constitutes 10.00% of the Bank’s Adjusted Net
Bank Credit.

Our Bank has formulated three Special schemes exclusively
for women namely IOB Sagar Lakshmi: Loans to Fisher
women, I0B Bhoomi Shakti: Loans to women for all activities
under Agriculture and 10B SME Mahila Plus: Loan to women
entrepreneurs under manufacturing and service sectors.

The Bank is providing Interest concession at the rate of 0.50%
for limits up to Rs. 50,000 and 0.25% for limits above Rs. 50,000
to women beneficiaries under IOB Bhoomi Shakti scheme and
interest concession of 0.50% to the Girl student under Vidhya
Jyothi Educational Loan scheme.

Financial Inclusion

Bank has engaged 2,590 Business Correspondents (BCs) in
allotted Sub-Service Area (SSA) & 123 BCs in un-allotted SSA
including 41 Urban BCs for providing Banking facilities in un-
banked areas. The Bank has issued 23,16,017 smart cards and
the number of transactions undertaken in the smart card terminal
is 4,89,27,526. It is noteworthy to state that in co ordination with
Government of Tamil Nadu, IOB Smart Card Banking has been
enabling about 2.99 lakh old age pensioners to get their monthly
pension and about 0.25 Lakh Sri Lankan Tamil Refugees in 61
camps to obtain their monthly dole.

As per the guidelines from MoF, GOI, the Bank enabled
Aadhar Enabled Payment System (AEPS) ON-US and OFF-US
Transactions in Business Correspondent Hand Held Devices.
As on 31st March 2018, 1,72,74,083 AEPS ON-US and OFF-US
transactions were carried out by Business Correspondents.

Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY):

The Bank is implementing PMJDY as per the directives of
Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India. The Scheme was launched by
the Prime Minister of India on 15th August 2014. The Bank has
opened 43,88,020 BSBD Accounts and issued 41,24,821 RuPay
Debit Cards till 31st March 2018 under this scheme out of which
54% cards have been activated by the customers.

Aadhaar enrolment and update centres as per Aadhaar
Regulations, 2016.

As per Aadhaar Regulations, 2016, UIDAI has advised Banks
to establish Aadhaar enrolment/update Centres in Branch
premises. Our Bank has decided to establish Aadhaar
Enrolment centres in 335 Branches and in 91 Branches of our
RRBs i.e 36 Branches in PGB and 55 Branches in OGB. Bank
has identified 335 Staff Members as “Supervisor/Verifier” from
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3o T, §UR §F & SUBIS - 0659 F dgd AU frar mar § 3R
% 3 gARY 132 YRareft & uRIR A YR AHiew / I Hg
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STRIREH YIS

013 2015 I TUTTH GRT SHYRET TSI 1 ST DI T3 |
AT SR SFRRET SIS & d8d e Bl AHifesd B 8T
81 31.03.2018 T, I TREM 3R 3red U=H Ao ArorTdl &

31.03.2018 H1 av2017-18F
YIS e o1 RN | SR ST 3t
GER]) fRufa
LI EEEICIF 8,89,777, 46,758
HuHTgdas 27,73,384 81,130
Fa 36,63,161 1,27,888
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IR @RI

3rcd UM T
fo<iig a9

2015-16
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18,540

2016-17 60,084

2017-18
oo QUIaTg AHie (Had)
Teftor T ISR URNEOT ERIT (SRTTESATS)

ITHoT ATy HATE, YR ISR gRT IR} fe=nfAg =1 & garfas
Tt oY UfRIeT, THTESt & Tewd, THeiugars & dgd -
3R TArIRITT BT URIE0T Ta™ FxA & oY §F 3 $f 13 3RY-
Fes afed it s forel & 12 eRugdtens wifud fpu 71
SWad & 3faral, §& A snfeardt @ & @y & forg frafrd
o & o SRTTEINE wIfid BT §1 SIRTHTAE BT yaier
b gRT TG VT 2 gRT e S 81 Tt af & IR,
SRUTSISNE 3 462 A0 HRIHH AT fHT § o 10, 929
ISR garsit H AaIfad A g1 I 70% Jadt Jeadc
3R 50% Tt fsc Jeawc B ot I 66% SR 42% & AP
I § FHWR g1 faran g1

1,11,959

1,90,583
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Branches for establishment of Aadhaar enrolment centres. All
335 Staff members have been trained and certified by UIDAI
as Supervisors. As on 31.03.2018, 191 Operators outsourced
by M/s.ITI Ltd., have been mapped under our Bank’s EA Code
— 0659 and Bank has established Aadhaar Enrolment/Update
centre in the premises of our 132 Branches.

Jansuraksha Schemes

The Jansuraksha Schemes were launched by the Prime Minister
of India on 1%t June 2015. The Bank is enrolling customers
under Jansuraksha schemes like PMJJBY, PMSBY and Pension
schemes like Atal Pension Yojana. As on 31.03.2018, the
enrollment count under Jan Suraksha and Atal Pension Yojana
schemes is as below:

Status of enrolment Status of
Schemes as on 31.03.2018 Enrolment during
(Cumulative) the year 2017-18
PMJJBY 8,89,777 46,758
PMSBY 27,73,384 81,130
Total 36,63,161 1,27,888

“Enhanced Access & Service Excellence” (EASE) - Mandates
massive expansion in Micro Insurance Coverage by tagging
with MSME, Agricultural and other Retail disbursements to cover
borrowing individuals and employees of borrowing entities
under PMJJBY & PMSBY. Bank is in the process of automation
of enrolment along with loan sanction under MSME /Agri/Retail.
Bank is also enabling provision for enrolling PMJJBY/PMSBY
through net banking by June 2018.

Atal Pension Yojana

Financial Year Enrolments
2015-16 18,540
2016-17 60,084
2017-18 1,11,959
Total APY Enrolments (Cumulative) 1,90,583

Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs)

In line with the guidelines issued by Ministry of Rural
development, Govt of India, the Bank had set up total 13 RSETIs
of which 12 RSETIs are in Lead Districts, to provide training to
farmers, members of SHGs, beneficiaries under SGSY, Educated
unemployed youth, artisans and beneficiaries belonging to
weaker sections. In addition to the above, the Bank has set up
one RSETI in the Nilgiris District for the benefit of the tribals.
The RSETIs are managed by SNEHA trust established by the
Bank. During the year under review, the RSETIs have conducted
462 training programs benefiting 10,929 unemployed youth.
They have also achieved cumulative settlement of 70 % and
Cumulative credit settlement of 50 % which are well above the
national average of 66% and 42% respectively.

3
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Financial Literacy

During the year, the Bank has spent about Rs.0.28 crore towards
Corporate Social Responsibility by imparting Financial Literacy
through Financial Literacy Centers (SNEHA) established at 23
locations. The counselors of these centers are educating the
people in rural and urban areas with regard to various financial
products and services available from formal financial institutions,
provide face-to-face financial counseling services and offer debt
counseling to indebted individuals. They are also conducting
periodical camps at various places. During the current year, FLC
Counselors have conducted 10,810 credit counseling, held 1,041
Financial Literacy camps and opened 6,810 SB accounts. Apart
from the above, all Counselors put together have conducted 280
special camps by covering 45,881candidates for newly inducted
people in the financial system and 355 camps for the target
group viz. SHGs, Students, Senior Citizens, Farmers and Micro &
Small entrepreneurs by covering 74,119 beneficiaries on Digital
Financial Literacy as per RBI guidelines.

UIDAI CELL

UIDAI CELL is involved in processing of DBT & DBTL files
received from Ministry of Rural Development, GOI through NPCI,
generation of Aadhaar Mapped file and acting as Sponsor Bank
for Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana — Gramin (PMAYG) Scheme
of Government of India. A total of 5.07 crores transactions were
processed under DBT/DBTL schemes amounting to Rs. 5,456
crores during 2017-18. Commission earned for processing the
above transactions was Rs. 14.28 crores.

State Level Bankers’ Committee (SLBC) — Tamil Nadu

State Level Bankers’ Committee (SLBC) came into existence
under Lead Bank Scheme as per RBI guidelines. SLBC is an inter
- institutional forum at State level ensuring coordination between
Government and Banks on matters pertaining to banking
development. Indian Overseas Bank is the Convenor Bank of
SLBC, Tamilnadu.

SLBC facilitates effective
programmers in the areas of poverty alleviation, employment

implementation of development

to un-employed, providing banking outlet in un-banked areas,
training, financial literacy etc. The role of SLBC is reinforced by
the High Level Committee constituted by RBI to review Lead
Bank Scheme.

Pradhan Mantri Jan-Dhan Yojana (PMJDY) - Tamil Nadu

PMJDY is a National Mission on Financial Inclusion encompassing
an integrated approach to bring about comprehensive financial
inclusion of all the households in the country. The plan envisages
universal access to banking facilities with at least one basic
banking account for every household, financial literacy, access to
credit, insurance and pension facility. In addition, the beneficiaries
would get RuPay Debit card having inbuilt accident insurance
cover of Rs 1 lakh.
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forg Aot St § 1

g PG Y FT A W AR 1800-425-4415 § |
diAsioretars / forgwetars / gdiarg dremed & fig
3T it ST fpar SaT 8,

o deHsSEars, doHudstars iR gdiars grerst & feg

Tquasl 3 fadi af 2017- 18 & ERE gy H# W
T TR / Forel TR & Bt o1 e fabar|

YT HA a1 Ao (feAewars)-afters:

o AT T 14 3G 2017 B U TR G Ao BT (G5 F
forg Isa TR SR e TR WR "ae i smafera faan
T o g1 & 33, YR WHR g Hfafd aur

TR TR TR 130, T e ofiR faRy sraf-aga
7=, afeTg R Iad HRHH § T Y & | 98
SHTYRI 11 (AR 2017 B Yo § ot sriford fasan mar o
forad A fag SR A-uftagur =g T3t Td A= gar
HeTT 3R B faar faum w=t, afierg WRaR wriwma
# wa sifafy & wu o Iufyd o forgm anifial &
U1 fadRd fbu |

ST &SB! = GaT Aol & dgd 58.61 TR $UY &b HBUT Bl
Tt < € arfifes dea 15,006.06 PRS F TP 31 A
2018 P 24,980,92 FRIS FYY dh HU faaRd gu ¥ |

THuAsl A Rrerd FaR o iy YR RHR & fad |-
e & ST & garfas ga1 Bur & forg gaffa aa wi
FaR 1800-425- 1646 BT RITAT P11 B Ve & ATLH
Y U RIBradl Bl debTd THIYHE & e J&fia Sof o
AT AT & |

farfta af 2017-2018 & fore gat faarRor & faaRor

AR PRI |

arreTg

a1 BT it

weift Bt He

TeR MRy

. faafia sor

gy

(50,000/-) A% & B

53, 66, 238

13, 266.11

13,237.15

fraR
(50,000/- ¥ 5.00 ARG T & FHU)

4,31,410

7,404.05

7,171.88

T
(5.00 ARG ¥ 10.00 ARG TP & HU)

62,308

4,655.26

4,564.44

£l

58,59,956

25,325.42

24,973.47

aftrerg ® sreief fora:

AfrerTg B W= gu T 3 Teardhiel et & SRisH BT uRade I fbar et Se%a 37 fralt &F asht F 3R gurdt &
Y T § | BRIHH &b ATUS TUIR IR (LT 3R IT ASHISH) & TeanT ([, Isd TR UHRY fBRY 3R e
TEH), 3R TH Sigra- gRT Faferd fral & dita uforaef § 1 Isat & 1y g arass, 39 HRisH U fod &1 didd WR &
FHed B, TUT BT &b W SR Tl & ¥h & depTdd YR & AT Sy vt & Uga &R Iahai g |

3epieft forat Y st fafry e s drsit o1 Taiftid evd gu auT doll & Uiad- UTed = 3 oy Suth ey, THSiuw, HRd
WHR A W & 115 e el & wf THua<t vd wrt & fadi gamawm e & w7 & fore gfud frar 8 | ey QR 3R

faegTR afiyaTg o & Ugam T snien a3 ¥ B

Sfarteft forett & ofdT gfaum:
As on 31.03.2018
forar Tdtg k| T
THATIGRY 198 270 166
faegTR 351 276 248
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< Banks in Tamil Nadu, have opened 89.82 Lakhs accounts Development and Implementation of Special Program,
in Tamil Nadu under PMJDY till 31.03.2018. Government of Tamil Nadu was the Guest of Honor.
< SLBC, Tamil Nadu has established an exclusive Toll Free The campaign was also conducted at Salem on 11th
number for grievance redressal pertaining to PMJDY. The Oct 2017 in which Hon’ble Minister of State for Finance
complaints received through the call centre are sent to & Shipping, Gol & Hon’ble Minister for Youth Welfare &
the respective Banks for immediate resolution. Sports Development Department, Government of Tamil
Nadu were the Guests of Honor and distributed loans to
< The Toll Free number of the call center is 1800-425-4415. the beneficiaries.
This is also used for PMJJBY/PMSBY/APY Schemes.
< Banks in the State have sanctioned 58.61 Lakhs loans
< SLBC organized the State Level/ District Level functions under MUDRA scheme to the tune of Rs. 24.980.92
of PMJJBY, PMSBY and APY schemes during the crores as on 31st March 2018 against the annual target
Financial Year 2017-18. of Rs. 15,006.06 crores.
Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana (PMMY) - Tamil Nadu o} SLBC has established a dedicated Toll Free number
<) SLBC has conducted the State Level and District Level 1800-425-1646 for MUDRA loans as per the instructions
promotion campaign for Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana of Ministry of Finance, Government of India for grievance
Loans (MUDRA) on 14th October 2017 at Chennai. redressal. The complaints received through the call
Hon’ble Minister of Defence, Gol was the Chief Guest centre are sent to the respective Banks for immediate
and Hon’ble Minister for Municipal Administration, Rural resolution.
Mudra Disbursement Details for Financial Year 2017-2018
Amount in Rs. Crores
Tamil Nadu
Mudra Loan Categories No. of Sanctions | Sanctioned Amount | Disbursed Amount
Shishu 53, 66, 238 13, 266.11 13, 237.15
(Loans upto Rs. 50,000/-)
Kishore 4,31, 410 7, 404.05 7,171.88
(Loans from Rs. 50, 000/- to Rs. 5.00 Lakhs)
Tarun 62, 308 4,655.26 4,564.44
(Loans from Rs. 5.00 Lakhs to 10.00 Lakhs)
Total 58, 59, 956 25, 325.42 24,973.47

Aspirational Districts in Tamil Nadu

< Hon’ble Prime Minister launched the ‘Transformation of Aspirational Districts’ program which aims to quickly and effectively

transform these districts. The broad contours of the program are Convergence (of Central & State Schemes), Collaboration

(of Central, State level ‘Prabhari’ Officers & District Collectors), and Competition among districts driven by a mass Movement.

With States as the main drivers, this program will focus on the strength of each district, identify low-hanging fruits for immediate

improvement, measure progress, and rank districts.

< DFS, MoF, GOI advised all CMDs / MD & CEOs of Banks the Financial Inclusion Campaign in 115 Backward Districts of

the country, identified as Aspirational Districts for achieving rapid transformation by addressing their specific developmental
needs. Ramanathapuram and Virudhunagar are the Aspirational Districts identified in the state of Tamil Nadu.

Banking Facilities in the Aspirational Districts

As on 31.03.2018
Districts ATM BC Branch
Ramanathapuram 198 270 166
Virudhunagar 351 276 248
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Indian Overseas Bank, having lead responsibilities in
Ramanthapuram district, conducted a Mega Mudra Campaign
wherein Hon’ble Union Minister of State, Finance Shri Pon.
Radhakrishnan and the Hon’ble Minister for information &
technology, Govt. of Tamil Nadu Dr. Manikandan attended the
function, in which about 7,900 beneficiaries were sanctioned
with MUDRA loans to the tune of Rs. 16 crores involving all the
banks in the district.

SLBC Initiatives for Financial Inclusion

< SLBC has mapped 62 Government ITls, 559 Private ITls,
165 Skill Centres and 35 Vocational Training providing
Institutions to the 59 Financial Literacy Centres in the
State for providing Financial Literacy courses to the
students.

< The FLCs have completed Financial Literacy courses in
all the Government ITls and are conducting the courses
in the Private ITls and skill centres.

SLBC Initiatives on Credit Flow

Banks in Tamil Nadu have achieved the following as of December
2017

< Achieved higher CD ratio of 109.48 %.

< 106.04 % under Annual Credit Plan 2016-17 and 96% as
on Dec 2017.

< 49.28% under Priority Sector against the national norm
of 40%.

< 21.79 % of Agricultural Advances against the national
norm of 18%.

< 13.88 % of advances to weaker sections against the
national norm of 10%.

Lead Bank Scheme

The Bank has been assigned Lead Bank responsibility in 13
districts of Tamil Nadu and one district of Kerala. The Bank is also
the Convener of State Level Bankers’ Committee (SLBC) of Tamil
Nadu. During the year under review the Bank has conducted four
meetings of the SLBC. In addition, the Bank convened 18 special
|/ core committee / sub-committee meetings during the year.

Regional Rural Banks

Bank has sponsored two Regional Rural Banks viz., Pandyan
Grama Bank in Tamil Nadu and Odisha Gramya Bank in Odisha.
Pandyan Grama Bank operates in 16 districts of Tamil Nadu with
a branch network of 329 and staff strength of 1,345. As on 31st
March 2018 the RRB had a business mix of Rs. 11,044 crores
with a CD ratio of 89.46%. Odisha Gramya Bank has presence in
13 districts of Odisha with a network of 549 branches and staff
strength of 2,244. As on March 31, 2018, the RRB had a business
mix of Rs. 15,027 crores with a CD ratio of 45.07%.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a part of image building exercise various activities like Blood
Donation Camp, Health check up camps, Swachh Bharat
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Abhiyan, Supply of ornamental tree sapling were carried out for
the financial year 2017-18 which created brand visibility of the
bank pan India to a great extent.

Further, Beach Cleaning activity was organized by the Bank and
same was covered by Doordarshan. Our MD & CEOQ inaugurated
the function and also participated with IOB Staff in cleaning Eliots
Beach, Besant Nagar, Chennai.

Merchant Banking Activities

ASBA (Banker to Issue activity): All our general banking
branches in India have been made ASBA enabled branches
to accept ASBA applications for IPO, FPO and Rights Issues.
E-ASBA continued to be in usage effectively by our Customers.
Our Bank is also acting as a Syndicate ASBA bank to accept
IPO/FPO/Rights applications from Brokers and select branches
are nominated as Syndicate ASBA Branches. ASBA applications
were handled for 203 issues and an amount of Rs.1046.17 crores
were blocked during the reporting period.

Other activities under Merchant Banking: The Bank continues
to act as Merchant Banker for issues, Debenture Trustee, Paying
Banker for Dividend / Interest Warrants etc. Our Bank is one
of the PSU Banks who is active in IPO segment, especially
SME segment, by Underwriting and Co-Lead Managing. Our
Bank acted as Co-Lead Manager for 3 SME IPOs along with
underwriting commitment and earned an income of Rs.62.50
lakhs.

Depository Operations: The Bank continues to act as
Depository Participant (DP) of NSDL and CDSL and is extending
depository related services through service centre branches.
11,755 accounts are under NSDL setup and 67 accounts are
under CDSL setup.

3 in 1 E-Trading facility in tie up with Emkay Global Financial
Services Limited has been implemented to improve the fee based
income. Around 375 e-trading accounts have been opened so
far. In addition to the above, our Bank has signed a MOU for
entering into a tie-up with SMC Global Securities Ltd also for
providing 3 in 1 e-trading facility.

Capital Market Services Branch, Mumbai: CMS Branch,
By
taking up several assignments in SME IPOs, the image of the

Mumbai is actively mobilizing assignments for IPOs.

Bank has been enhanced in stock exchanges / capital market
intermediaries.

Customer Service

The Bank is a member in Banking Codes and Standards Board
of India (BCSBI). BCSBI has revised various Fair Practice Codes
which is elaborately covering all the areas of Banking.

A web based online system called SPGRS (Standardised Public

Grievance Redressal System) assisting customers to lodge
complaint online with status tracking facility is already in place.
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The Regional offices and branches are enabled to view the
complaints in the system and resolve the same immediately. Toll
Free Teleservices for Customer Service (No 1800-425-4445) is
provided on 24x7x365 basis for receiving the complaints from the
customers to resolve within 48 hours.

As per New Initiatives, to redress the Grievance and improve the
Customer Service at the branches, a concept was introduced
at the branches called” Collect feedback from the Customers
through Missed Call concept”. The customers to give missed
call to pre dedicated two mobile numbers i.e., for “Happy (88288

7N

46625) and Unhappy (88288 46220)”. A team from the Customer
Service Department will download the data of Missed calls from
the portal and call the customer/numbers to get their feedback/
suggestions about their experience at the branches. On the basis
of feedback, action is initiated to rectify the deficiencies pointed
out in the services at the branches. The concept is working well.

The Details of customer complaints received and redressed
during the year 2017-18 other than the complaints related to
Digital Banking/ATM are detailed below:

S:l:i.al Details Complaint Numbers
1 No of Complaints pending at the beginning of the year 185
2 No of Complaints received during the year 5603
3 No of Complaints redressed during the year 5596
4 No of Complaints pending at the end of the year 192
Settlement rate 96.68%

Analysis of Complaints other than Digital Banking/ATM related received by the Bank for the year ended 31.03.2018.

Details of Complaints are given below:

Nature of Complaints No of complaints % of Total Complaints
Advances related complaints 1317 23.51
Customer Service related complaints 982 17.53
Demat Services 14 0.25
Deposits 492 8.78
General Banking 1996 35.62
Government Business 89 1.59
NRI Services 15 0.27
Remittances 399 712
Credit Card 189 3.37
Pension 110 1.96
TOTAL 5603 100.00

Recovery Management

The Bank’s principal focus was on maximizing recovery and
minimizing fresh slippages as Gross NPAs stood at Rs. 35,098
crores during the beginning of the year. Towards this objective,
a multi-pronged strategy was adopted from April 2017 itself
comprising of various proactive measures such as

» Formation of 15-member Special Recovery Teams in
each Region who have been allocated specific branches

for follow up of NPA accounts.

Motivation, Support and Monitoring of field functionaries
through Video Conference and Task Force Meetings.

Daily Recovery Report mechanism.

Emphasis on 100% action under SARFAESI in all eligible
cases.

» Special OTS Scheme with discretionary powers to
Branch managers to settle Educational loans upto

Rs.7.50 Lakhs, Agriculture loans and other NPA accounts

up to Rs. 10.00 Lakhs, to Regional Managers to settle
accounts upto Rs.1.00 crores and to Zonal managers to
settle accounts upto Rs.3.00 crores.

Allocation of 20 accounts each with outstanding of

above Rs.10.00 Lakhs upto Rs.1.00 crores to the Officials
of Regional office including the Regional Manager to
take ownership for resolution either through recovery/
upgradation/ OTS.

Allocation of 20 accounts each with outstanding
above Rs.1.00 crores upto Rs.3.00 crores to the to the
Officials of Zonal office including the Zonal Manager to
take ownership for resolution either through recovery/
upgradation/ OTS.
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» Focused follow up by segregating accounts vertical wise
i.e., Retail, Agri and MSME (RAM). Remaining accounts
are classified into sole banking, consortium accounts
where we are leader and consortium accounts where we
are member and following different strategies for these

accounts.

» In respect of suit filed accounts, we have filed various

interim applications to build pressure on the borrowers/
guarantors.

> Sale of accounts to ARC was done vigorously and NPA
reduction of Rs. 3,775 crores were effected by sale to
ARC.

» Special emphasis on recovery in accounts with 100 %
provision.

» Mega e-auction under SARFAESI Act was organized in
March 2018 covering 52 accounts.

» Conduct of Task force meetings at all centers headed
by senior executives with NPA borrowers to arrive at
settlements.

» Rural Development Officers are entrusted with specific
recovery targets and advised to engage Business
Correspondents for recovery of NPAs.

» Full utilization of Lok Adalats to arrive at settlements.

» Optimal utilization of Debt Recovery Agents for recovery
as well as assistance in SARFAESI actions.

» Constant improvisation in functioning of NPA War
Room with development of various utilities to assist field
functionaries in recovery as well as data analytics for
providing vital inputs to Top Management for developing
strategies. NPA recovery tools enabled in IOB Sahayak
Mobile app for all employees.

» Intensive focus and rationalization of 16 specialized Asset
Recovery Management Branches (ARMB) to improve the
recovery under suit filed accounts.

» Additional steps were taken in Corporate Accounts by
issuing notices to erstwhile Directors of the Company who
had executed personal guarantee and also against those
Directors who had not executed personal guarantee.

» Follow up with the debtors of borrowers by issuing
notices to them calling upon them to pay the amount due
from them to our borrower directly to us.

The above measures and active involvement of all staff in camp
mode helped the Bank to make substantial recovery to the tune
of Rs.15,496 crores including recovery of Rs.1,134 crores in

technically written off accounts and upgradation to an extent of
Rs. 2,329.86 crores.

Slippages of Rs.1 crore and above are being reviewed by the
Board and the specific directions given by the Board are duly
carried out. All NPAs with minimal security coverage were focused
upon to reduce migration provision. Board Level Committee for
monitoring recovery in NPAs meets every month and reviews
recovery performance as well as Top 30 NPA accounts.

Action under SARFAESI act has been initiated in all eligible
accounts and properties brought for sale. Frequent Lok Adalats/
Recovery camps have been conducted especially in respect of
small value NPA accounts. In the National Lok Adalat, Bank’s
participation was significant. Innumerable cases were settled
with substantial recovery on the spot. The Bank is following up
with DRTs closely to bring speedy conclusion to the cases.

Disposal of petitions received under RTI Act

In our Bank RTl applications are handled by a separate specialized
cell called RTI Cell. The RTI Cell is working under the control and
supervision of Deputy General Manager, Law Department who
is designated as Central Public Information Officer (herein after
CPIO). Bank has also designated Regional Managers as Central
Assistant Public Information Officers (herein after CAPIOs) to
assist CPIO in disposing RTI applications within the prescribed
time-frame (i.e. 30 days from the receipt of RTI application). All
together there are 48 CAPIOs in our Bank.

Bank has designated General Manager, Law Department as First
Appellate Authority (herein after FAA) for disposing appeal filed
by the appellants who were aggrieved with the reply of CPIO and
CAPIOs.

Our Bank has received 1,823 applications filed under RTI Act,
2005 for seeking information in the year 2017-18. All applications
were duly disposed in conformity with the provisions of RTI Act,
2005 and also within the prescribed time-frame (i.e. 30 days from
the receipt of RTI applications) by CPIO and CAPIOs.

Our Bank has received 282 First Appeals from those applicants
who were not satisfied with the reply of CPIO and CAPIO and the
same have been duly disposed by FAA by passing appropriate
order on merit and in conformity with the provisions of RTI Act,
2005. All the appeals were disposed within the prescribed time-
frame (i.e. 30 days from the receipt of RTI appeal).

The appellants who were aggrieved with the reply of both CPIO
and FAA have preferred second appeal before Honourable
Central Information Commission, New Delhi (herein after
CIC). Bank has received 58 summons for CIC hearing before
Information Commissioner. All the second appeals were duly
disposed by Information Commissioner by passing appropriate
order on merit, without any adverse remark against the Bank,
which were duly complied by CPIO and CAPIOs.
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A9 UG (THUHTH) S AR 3 39 ey H d6 e
3faemail &1 quf SrgeUTaT HR @1 81 §F 1 30d 2013 J g
HRATT Rod ¥ gRT oY 99 11 e = & AR doft &
TG @&

TRAAT Havsl UM (TAHISR) qUT FHad Rt BT srurd
(TIUHUHSR) W el & ey ¥ §& sHat 2015 @
YR Red 9% & Taiem &) RaiféT o= @1 81 Taitem
& HAFGIT Bl 1 AR, 2015 ¥ 60 UIRId TR FAad if-ard
T P 1Y TRUEG foban 741 8, o efR-¢fRR 1 SF1avt, 2019
b 100 Ufa=Td T §¢ ST | HR Roid S ¥ R & St A
faie 1 AR 2018 ¥ TITHUHSHR DI AR B H1 Y fobar
B TIUIUH SR W sifow femnfAdw ufaférd 81 s9a m 3 W,
UReRN g IR SNfEH snetid IdIe uTd & ST B &, o
f Shifem snerfia doft smigmsit 3 faye-ia e Iurl & ¥4
A &1 B & oy SrGfT 81 b Sxila 3rurd W e
3fugmail o1 1t SuTer FHRaT § Td 30 S, 2013 HI GAN TS
YR TR YR Rord S o1 RUld Frar s @1 8|

IR SR Yaier Ufhan & geg d1 & U & 30§, 9% A
IS gR1 fafiad srAifed SYR Sifem geie Hfa oiR e
&Y 9 IYR SIRGA 0T fd TR P 81 I<reR0r ifd Iidfa
il YR S &1 3T usieA & e srieRt affa &
3T H B BT g1 IURB P o Fsger I A F ITy
F fu o S= =B Bt 3R Tg7 & fow 3oy g, §F A
TRy TRl W 3iidie IUR I o1 Ao B & fog fomr
U Brffad &1 8, S {6 IYR faumT & Wdd g1 9 & &-
<= Hrfad & AfFaal & dgd 3 ara Udal & gaiy H, I
®T adfiepRur ST TeieA UM, P ety & fear S 2|
HraRe/NTa s,/ SRl & Bl B Iudsy Tred A F
YR R SIGH YR F Ty 601 o0 S 81 39 3229 & g,
YR Roid 8% 3 ©: Mg a5 IuR I iRt ot
RIS B3 & T ST Y A 1 B 3R S ol e Se=a
& foTT 39 SESRT gRT € 775 I BT TN el 5|

HRATT Rrd § 3 71 2013 T UHTE dRadT SIRaH UsieH fasaes
sifew et ot faru €1 fReenfdwr sremt @ faftrr smgfoat
R 3 ufereHl 9 faesh uferaHl afed fed ufEet &
fa=for ot ot 7 TRfd FaR I § | 39 ey B §% F uRd
f¥o1d S & SruTe B YoIelt U Ufsha URgd &1 § Td STl Igd
frar g | yRd Rerd § & fexnfd 2 ok S Gufzy Sgar ey
uaen) Hfd & UR, faam TR feu ord § 8k sRatams
3R §AR 91 Y o1 fpu o1l &

¥ 7 TR SIfAH, RAT SNGH 3R T R SRAH P YIS
TS Bq SIS R SAlad STeR SIRgH JaeH =ifd 3R o
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AT TEYE (TUATH) Hifd §918 31 aReldT SAH &1 UeeE 3R
fazamur & wifvy forar orar § St SR onfid @ Sad1 & Sray
URUSH /ATl Ue UR TR BidT 8| SWR SIRaH Udi-
¢ Hifd & d8d IR SR geieH S g ufsharsii & foau guik-
U TSP TR 2 T8 § 9% gRT S gR1 98+ &t o
It SR SIRAA &I Uga, URebeH, Uaied g gz §& o
SITEH FETIal ¥R & 370U UeT Thidd & 3faR B! Sl |
TR SIRAT & YU yeeH gq Hfadl sgd 3 sifey ag o=t §
3 Al & o ufarer S anfia Saar vee gR1 SoR
T B S ST a1y B YR & 33U &

S 7 UTPIID TAHS Radl YU a7 bR o qiwor
TSI ) JomTelt §1S 718 8| yuTdt Snf&y St weee ' faftm
3faRy uRuemdr 3afy ghey & fae faawmygul @ g S,
Fytia @ 718 ¥ 1 S & Raar Nb1sd &1 Yedic- [T e
STl & ST fpar Sar 8 | S 3 dRatd o fufa & fordt R
¥ 71 ¥ Fues & fo fafte s Sur fhu 81 o' wom-
Hag T =il A yaemr & aRe =it SOt gRT vl arerar
Taie & G FHRar g1

I 11 THdd dF Wit gfe ((gea doft erurd, uaelt Tefen
TR SR STOTR S(IRIH) & SN SfebT sbreal § S wroe
¥ fore ue amues efPeiur Sar 81 wHaelt wefer uftear ) a8 g-
fAf3ra v & fore B fob St & Uy oo pRIER & gt it 7
TR Bq Ut Uit § 3R I1Y 81 37 UieTied R & forg foh §'
3O SRGHT BT Jale T TEe B o 9gaR SiaH da-id!
oI B RId ¥ 3R I ITaNT | ame? fUeR 2 & sidla d&f &
forg srfafves Uoft vafwan seam ufsan (mgefiuedh) &1 fufor
PHRAT A g arfep Gt 5 SRAA Y gps1 o b o fUeR
178 H R e fbu 7 8, s saR 76 vy U a7 $iifkes
37U Y HaR fHU MU SNy e 81 § 3 szt thiad &
ST B 3R ST aiftics THter o1 et 2

9 11 Thad & forg freR 2 & 3iaid, St & Ry 3 e gt
3! 9t 8 o 3 a8 gRfa W & 56 & FRER & @i yae
STt & T\ 37 & fow 3% U vaf doht § afes oo
SRl & UEIY 9 UeYH gq 9gaR Sl Jae da-iiddl ol
far g v ot B3| SRfiEiuy cway & SR, YR Red
% 3 o= uRo f&Aifdd 26 T 2007 GRT A1 Uie0r fawads
feanfads SRt fpe A1 9% T T9 gdemn B o sae s
(T3MTZ3TS) T Yoit vafdar (ieRusiR) & deuf § o o fRufa
T S & T19 T DI &HdT BT JeichT B b I I ST
Tl

% 7 9 g1 fafdaa sgAifed uRararTers i vee Hifa
TR B | 39 Ui SiReY UeeH & e SeHTds o
IR foga ufsran &1 @t o T 71 Aeayul uRaraHTEs
B I uRaTamTds siiad o &t a0g 1R Raifér sir k-
IAHTHS SIRGH HH B T G301 9 Ueied, Gedic, THId!
UgaH & fon yfierell &1 Wy ¥u ¥ FuRer s gu dF Bt
YRATAHTES S FeieH Ufcharsii bl T Iy &1 81 Aifd B
T I 31 ¥ H uREHIES S ST U6 FF 9 G-
Wy 3ffaRes a0 had & ST fesar srar g1 uRaramTas
Sifew geee affa (SiemRua) & & uRere sifew usy=
FHTIYUTEH & UG Uae g HAGR! Tifa grftl sfamuah
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Risk Management

The Bank has adopted the New Capital Adequacy Framework
(Basel Il) with effect from March 31, 2008. In line with Reserve
Bank of India guidelines, the Bank has adopted the Standardized
Approach (SA) for computation of Credit Risk Capital, Basic
Indicator approach (BIA) for calculating the capital for Operational
Risk and Standardized Measurement Method (SMM) for Market
Risk Capital computation. The Bank is in compliance with the
regulatory requirements in this regard. The Bank is maintaining
capital as per Basel lll guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India
with effect from 1st April 2013.

With regard to the guidelines on Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)
and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR), Bank is reporting LCR to
RBI from Jan, 2015 onwards. The implementation of the LCR has
been phased in from January 1, 2015 with a minimum mandatory
requirement at 60 per cent, which will gradually increase to 100
per cent by January 1, 2019.The Reserve Bank had proposed to
make NSFR applicable to banks in India from January 1, 2018.
Final guidelines on NSFR are awaited. Basel lll has introduced a
simple, transparent and non-risk based leverage ratio, which is
calibrated to act as a credible supplementary measure to the risk
based capital requirement. Bank also has been in compliance
with the regulatory requirement on Leverage ratio and reporting
to RBI on a quarterly basis from the quarter ending June 30, 2013.

As a measure of robust credit risk management process, the Bank
has formulated Credit Risk Management Policy and Collateral
Management & Credit Risk Mitigation Policy duly approved by
the Board. The Credit Risk Management Committee (CRMC) acts
as an executive committee for appropriate management of Credit
Risk. The Bank has implemented a tiered system for validation
of internal credit ratings at specified levels, which is independent
of credit departments, in order to draw unbiased rating for
borrowers, for moving to advanced approaches. In respect of
proposals falling under the powers of Bank’s Central Office, the
validations of ratings are done at Risk Management Department,
Central Office. Exposures on Corporate /PSEs/Primary Dealers
are assigned with risk weights based on available external ratings.
For this purpose, the Reserve Bank of India has permitted Banks
to use the ratings of six domestic External Credit Rating Agencies
(ECRA) and the Bank is using the ratings assigned by all these
ECRAs for capital relief purpose. The Bank uses the solicited
ratings assigned by any of the ECRAs.

Reserve Bank of India has issued final guidelines on Liquidity Risk
Management effective from March 2013. The guidelines cover
preparation and submission of the statements of Consolidated
Operations including domestic operations and overseas
operations separately at various frequencies. The Bank has put
in place system and procedure in this regard in compliance
with the RBI guidelines and submitted the data. As per the RBI
guidelines and Bank Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy;
statements are prepared and submitted to RBI and our Board.

The Bank has put in place Board approved Market Risk
Management Policy and Asset Liability Management (ALM)
policy for effective management of Market risk, Liquidity Risk and
Interest Rate Risk. The Liquidity risk is managed through gap
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analysis based on residual maturity/behavioral pattern of assets
and liabilities on daily basis. The Market Risk management
policy lays down well defined organizational structure for market
risk management functions and processes whereby the market
risks (carried by the bank) are identified, measured, monitored
and controlled within the ALM framework, consistent with the
Bank’s risk tolerance level. The policies set various risk limits
for effective management of market risk and ensure that the
operations are in line with Bank’s expectation of return to market
risk through proper Asset Liability Management.

The Bank has put in place a mechanism of short-term dynamic
liquidity management and contingency funding plan. Prudential
(tolerance) limits are prescribed for different residual maturity
time buckets for effective asset liability management. Liquidity
profile of the Bank is evaluated through various liquidity ratios.
The Bank has also drawn various contingency measures to deal
with any kind of stress on liquidity position. The Bank ensures
adequate liquidity by Domestic Treasury through systematic and
stable funds planning.

Basel Il framework provides a comprehensive approach to
risk measurement in the banking entities, by adopting three-
pillar structure (such as minimum capital ratio, supervisory
review process and market discipline). The supervisory Review
Process (Pillar 2) is to ensure that banks have adequate capital
to support all the risks in their business as also to encourage
them to develop and use better risk management techniques for
monitoring and managing their risks. Pillar 2 requires the banks
to establish an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP) to capture all the material risks that are not covered
under Pillar | prescriptions, which includes those that are not
covered or partly covered. Bank has adopted ICAAP framework
and it is being annually reviewed.

Under the Pillar 2 of Basel Il framework Banks are required not
only to ensure adequate capital to support all the materials
risks in bank’s business, but also to develop and use better
risk management techniques in monitoring and managing their
risks. In line with BCBS document RBI vide their circular dated
26.06.2007 had issued guidelines on Stress testing. Bank has
adopted stress testing with an objective to evaluate bank’s
capacity to withstand stressed situations in terms of Net Interest
Income (NII) and Capital Adequacy (CRAR).

The Bank has framed operational risk management policy duly
approved by the Board. It outlines organization structure and
detailed processes for management of operational risk. The
basic objective of the policy is to closely integrate operational
risk management processes of the Bank by clearly assigning
roles for effectively identifying, assessing, monitoring and
controlling or mitigating operational risk and by timely reporting
of operational risk exposures including material operational
losses. Operational risks in the Bank are managed through
comprehensive and well-articulated internal control framework.
The Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) will be an
executive committee for appropriate management of operation
risk management function in the Bank. ORMC reviews the
operational risk exposures across the Bank.
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§ ° WR 7 uREeHIee i TauioR] &t gHier Sdl gl
URETATES SR Use Iaeft S gRT Siu-mft 18 3 Hifear
® : (@) LI IR qRam -, (@) darust shiam vey= =ifa @
RE SIRGH gaed —ifd, (@) 3 AeH! DI o (Bargdl) g o
e PR ufanEeaee) R i gwa @) @A wefie!
FRIGR FRARAT T 3MTUET FRGRU YRASHT @) SareH =ifa 3R
@) foxita Yareft oF smacaiRfn ¥ Tefdd ifd|

FRUR'CINE ]

T & ¥R &I $H F $ U 9 T @l o1 age &
Ty f&T0 B A WR & dHisd HR T 8| 33T, fosrehl, vew
RS SR a%el A 99 TN R §AR dF B A IR
ufrdt & anrer fean B

TYUAT Oiéa gt THUAT @Al WR 3T UeH Rl g1 HelH &
IRY H &g wrafea grT g+t faRiy SeeiRa Wrdl o 2mRar & g+t
HHAIRGT & Te=T B 3feifed fHar Srar 81 Irar TR W HH-
=IRE! B 39 B H @17 39 B o (B esifed @ uefRia
B &1 TTdl & T & J1¢ UAD W1 BT fAaR01 U fohar i
R, SATT-STH B & o) 3R UIce & Sgacl prars Rkebls Bt
S

TIRAT TS, &30 B / 3iad Srafad / H41d Hrafad 3d-
ff BRars &1 TR AR Thd § | W Gaw! Bl gHTet e &
foTT THTHTE & AT ¥ i ATe e S § | HRIie Y, B
FHred gRT gxaeid fafte ¥ o emdfed w@rdl &t sradf
U F sMyR R Tft T T ot A o1 § 1

TETIS P GRT GEAERA UF & TSl BT & & Sgad rufd
& IR o ofrar 8 | gt RauRe! 1 fia {1 T aifen & fe
T TG TN UG 37 & foIg TR 3R A1ef T HHT: TITAT 0,
TYUHT 1 Td 2 Wl P! a1 71 7| T Tl &l 30 Faiferd
W1l &I A1 ¥ AR SR diet T H F 9 B I Hdl gl g
T8 TRe ¥ Frafta @ gL 3§ fezarar s

g AR 3 THBIAG SERS & oY YRGB! ¥ Pis Ufd-
fopam 7Et fircrelt @ oY SRt pHaR) aafaTd U ¥ IYRBArsi &1
TR BT | R SPTITC P ThTa iyl & oy 39 TguAY
IYRBATSH BT T Vol ST |

SUSSUY W & WeiH ¥ 3[adl Ras & U e@EE
fama wHariRal o Jarst & gurd &7 F IR} @ o 6T B
IR BT Yex & HegH § THUHS 3R Gl JURSBATS B
1 fee™ # Hit ATe o T g | SrgATd Wirus Rule daR &
et 8 SR et o fore wmrarstt / &t wrafaa / sfea srfag
/ BT BRI & ITANT & AU SUdrs B el § R & e
YR TR SHfad o St §

i e o T Tobd 817 IR O e 81 811, ot hige
S TR-faciig ge) wR ot Rdid Iam 8iar 8, 3R 3rgacl dRars &
foru ot fepar Sira 81

5.00 FRIS ST 3R I 31 I TSR a1 W@l & forg wreh
AT I SMRATSTA foam S 81 gfe &1 o, widh TWRwTd 3iR
qd BT Rbls B! AT B & T8 U SfFarge siifee ot
2 | g AWIole UeeT % SUR B B H e S & g
WA & IR A WF GRS et It B
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Iudad Il W, s i, sifrdan aye 3R Tufty & Jura-
1 & ST 3G T WeH B

T [HI&T FoTTedt

HiSc NI R RN & AT e & =, TelaT 3M-
T ol URIEMT o RIH WR hfSe SuTe ol URIel I1Hd U
3R T SR Tqul shfge oiffse o U faar man g 1 T Hixiie
e THadl TRaT Uterds! gRT S Wrse siffge wR 31 o
TRieh] 1 Ud Wi, THDHRUT, SISm0, fAaror 3R radf
T e Gfd AT S| TRAT Uhent b WA SGH W
& WY T Ik YR WRAT 81111 S8 URRY § 115 U4l & 91
10 Rifier € O 3ifrpdd 1,134 TR €1 Wl &1 HH, q&H
3R I SR WId & =0 | e fobam SITE | Iugad Iuten
IR e BrRars +ft TRarfad &1 FU 50 ARG SR ST 31fF &
TRIUISR dTdl ETd 39 WY & d8d HaR [T T4 3| 25 a1 39
Y 50 AR ¥9Y & oI WAl & 2% & 3ardl Ht weR forar S @t
Bl 9IS B! AETaten WHfa @1 Yo 25 HIS IUY 3R IqY
3 & aTal bt Rufa & IR o sref a1fffes =0 3 faan smaam|

PITRE HUT GAHIET FAURT

JREISTS & dgd W TSR dF & dgq, faxfia af 2017-18
F CRM §F B IS T¢AWA ol I § 1 SRS P WY G-
TR 3R TSR 3R T 4 T St 78 aiorredf & ufeg R
Tufty Fffexu R Fame Tg-=iad aud oF & oy Hets)
T & I8d YERE & U SR &1 Uarg &g &) fear
R3S &b TR uRTufral R T g & a1y, dSiem
TISHT a0 & T TS 81 31.03.2018 dh, WSISR & ded AFD
YRR Wl § §% BT TaaIsR 18 WIal § %. 1,001.44 FRIS
B 9 ¥ 15 Tral § TIHIT %.929.29 HRIS + Falooeh TR
3l g &1 8 |

CRCIGE]

YR Rord S & fe=nfe = & SuR o 7 srureH Hifd &)
3t R F uRHTd faa 8 iR SrguTa H1af & Ueied & forg
Rrew 3R uftparstt # w71 Fame et w smawas
R / Y o fe o R €1 Ude T / &5 sty /
Fdla wriag fUF § T U ISR g1 § St Srurer
THIUT O STHT Rl § | $df STITA Wk SIS Bl &S / AT TRed
e oY S fepar ST 81 S / ol g1 fw e = @ fepw
STd &1 §% 7 T 39 UIcd UG hal g, O §& & S¢e § I
geitH Ul fored quft fFram, eRafterns, It snfe S faftrar
frame! & g &1 v & fig W v e gwar g1

AT HroaTS

faxiva 9 2017-18 & ERM, TuSSITT 7 362 AT BT AUeRT
forar & Forad 172 gadhdr 3R 193 TR-TadhdT & HHA M g
grtenei= 9 & IRM, 9 7 401 TS LWe IR B g

31 A/ 2018 T 277 AHG & &Y T SIS Hriare!
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Other policies adopted by the Board which deal with management
of operational risk are (a) Information Systems Security Policy (b)
Fraud Risk Management Policy (c)Forex Risk Management Policy
(d) Policy document on Know Your Customer (KYC) and Anti-
Money Laundering (AML) procedures (e) Business Continuity
and Disaster Recovery Plan (f) Compliance Policy and (g) Policy
on Outsourcing of Financial Services.

Credit Monitoring

The bank continues to focus on preventing slippages along with
recovery of NPA accounts to reduce the level of NPA.  Steel,
power, road projects and textile have contributed largely to total
stressed assets of our bank.

The SMA portal provides data on all SMA accounts. All the
Special Mention Accounts are allocated to all the staff members
of the branch by RO at the beginning of the month. At branch
level the staff has to log in to this menu (wherein the accounts
allocated are displayed. The details of each account is provided
once the account is selected, without going for different menus)
and record the follow up actions in the portal.

The Branch Manager, RO/ZO/CO can monitor the follow up. The
staff members are also reminded through SMS for effective follow
up. Different coloured letters signed by the General Manager,
CO, is sent to all the staff members depending on the follow up
position of the allotted accounts.

Letters signed by GM is sent to Regional Managers about position
of Region’s follow up. To give a visual color impact to all stake
holders colour coding of yellow; orange and red were give to
SMA 0; SMA 1 & 2 accounts respectively. The staff members are
required to move their respective accounts from red to orange
then to yellow. The fully regularized account will be shown in
green.

If there is no response from the borrower for 3 consecutive
telephonic reminders the branch staff will be visiting the borrowers
personally. Then letters will be sent to these SMA Borrowers for
immediate regularization of the account.

The services of visually handicapped staff member for follow
up action through JAWS program is continuing effectively.
Reminding SME and Retail Borrowers through outsourced
call centers has also contributed. Projected slippage report is
generated and uploaded for the use of branches/RO/Z0/CO for
follow up and updated on a daily basis

Report on non financial issues prompting slippages like no
credit, inadequate credit in CC etc are also generated and up
loaded for follow up action.

For accounts with an exposure of Rs.5.00 crores and above,
stock audit is conducted. It is also an onsite audit to verify the
stocks; working of the unit, maintenance of stock and book debts
records. This audit gives clear Early Warning Signal about the
account, to enable the management to act accordingly.

By the above measures, the bank is able to contain the slippages,
recover maximum and maintain asset quality.

Loan Review Mechanism

In line with RBI’s guidance note on Credit Risk, a more robust and
exhaustive Credit Audit Mechanism called Credit Compliance
Audit has been introduced in place of existihg CALRM Audit.
This CCA is on site audit conducted by the respective concurrent
auditors. The auditors have to verify right from pre sanction,
processing, documentation, disbursement and follow up. The
auditors have to fill up a detailed format with CCA risk scoring.
This format has 10 parameters with 115 questions with a
maximum of score of 1,134. The accounts will be graded as
low; moderate and high risk accounts according to its scores.
Appropriate review and follow up actions are also proposed.
The accounts with an exposure of Rs. 50 lakhs and above were
covered under this CCA. Besides 2% of the accounts between
Rs.25 lakhs to Rs.50 lakhs are also being covered. The Audit
Committee of the Board will be appraised half yearly about the
position of the accounts of Rs.25 crores and above.

Corporate Debt Restructuring

Under the CDR mechanism set up under the aegis of RBI, the
bank during the financial year 2017-18 has not received any
new references. The flow of requests for restructuring under
CDR mechanism stopped with RBI withdrawing regulatory
forbearance on asset classification upon restructuring and
introduction of new schemes like SDR and S4A. With revised
framework of RBI on stressed assets, the CDR scheme is
withdrawn. As on 31.03.2018, the Bank’s exposure in standard
restructured accounts under CDR is Rs. 1,001.44 crores in 18
accounts. Of which, 15 accounts aggregating Rs. 929.29 crores
have completed satisfactory performance period.

Compliance

The Bank has well defined Compliance Policy as per Reserve
Bank of India guidelines and has in place systems and
procedures for managing Compliance functions. Necessary
circulars/instructions on the regulatory guidelines are being
issued. Each branch/Regional Office/Central Office department
has one Compliance Officer who is submitting compliance
certificates. The overall compliance level is submitted to Board/
Audit Committee of the Board. The directions given by Board/
ACB are carried out. The Bank has provided a Web Portal viz.,
Knowledge Management Tool in Bank’s intranet wherein all the
regulations, guidelines of the various regulators like RBI, SEBI
etc., can be accessed at a single point.

Disciplinary Proceedings

During the Financial Year 2017-18, C&DAC has disposed of
365 cases comprising of 172 Vigilance and 193 Non-Vigilance
cases. During the year under review, the Bank issued 401 charge
sheets.

The disciplinary proceedings are in various stages of progress
in respect of 277 cases as on 31st March 2018. Efforts are made
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wIfa & faftre =Ron # ¥ 1 prfuree! gRT AR THien & AR
fuiia T Hw & fR RIS HIEars ufhar & [
B S TN BT S B

it A9 IHT d6 FADhdl SRINHTES AHal, Jef 30 RdaR
2017 P IR ST WIf TR R Y 31 Arf 2018 F v T feran
T T (AT & 1Y fad 2 J1al bl Brgay) |

RIS HIIaTE! HI fadbdied a1 & U T 78 Uga
e ded gRT g &t 18 o 3R 38 1 wRadl, 2017 9
T fopam T o)

TS a1 Yobot T 33t fafsrer Srfan SR WR Sr=ma-TeTs
FRIATE! & HAHRU & forg [y fasar mn g

fAteror

9 & IRM, ST SeTid 3idie aRaTaieT (ke e
o1 Tften Bt TS 3R gaAE uRoEl SR feRnfae i @1 ufafs-
fSa H & o SaToRien s SN forg Tu) Ao Sewat
TR RO ST & AATal AR TR 960 Bivd 3R SR 33 &
fore PTiRe IET & SEY, ST 3neTia Sidlke aRaTaien
(3MaRe AReon & WHIRIT ATSd BT 400 3i (125 J FETHR) 3R
f3dzor uggell & Wi AGuRS uggsil & 9y WRNfed fobar
%@'I 600 3id (825 J TETHR) AT 3R 9 3(FgaR 2017 J AL
T

yd® Tfafafy 7 =P & Wiy e I wrRa fQurT ot gerdr
o gfg & forg, faum 3 faftr nfafafer S i siffee, RIS
3fifSe, 3img g, et wdten sratadl / fHmT & BT & fog
A e Ufehar RITfd &t g1 FA-eror 3R 3iaRe aramadiarn
A & Hed IR 90 a1 & AT &= TR R it srdwdrai
HI URET 3R ARieRH e & Tu § e @ s gaan
EREIRERIT

ad FHEtadl & 9 FeuTed ¥ ded &g srtadl &
HYBR &= DI Fufias B & fog Ba=w 7 Rra Aaomer o1
SR ®FARa e f&ar mar g1 Adiead, 01.04.2018 § FRte-
IR} T T Sa B 3T AQTURIT Hriay HR f&ar T gl
e draferdl H sfud 3iifSe Iu-wfhfar Bl SfayRun &1 side
Frafaal & dgar 0T 3R wiaem & for & fvar mar g
ST THTA B YR 3R JUR & AT dabTa IufRfd R IR
3 & T, Sifdd GUR THT0T U (TSR ST R 3R Tl
Tiem RO sg A R GG RIFHE Wy 0 I grgar
Ry fHT U &; 31.03.2017 BT 417 ¥ 31.03.2018 TH 25
TRATSH dF B HeH A 31 dfed Wear &1 g1 T8 81811 3-
UTeH HTd B S8R S & fore wmranait # - aar usterr yormeht
& @t 15 | Al deraien & SR U s Rarat &t IR-
It SR & ot aryvear & gyifad fasan 8, RO sigeuar
IR T & WY YeTYd W HIHdd agelt 89 & Iy fqumr
GRT AT /T 81 31.03.2017 B 64.75 RIS FUY & g <fed
o AT Bedhr 31.03.2018 BT JUY 8.38 BRI ©l 3MEclS!
& Y g8 - | fqunt 7 @it Suifad Yool @1 Warferd
Yl B e fran SR fafia cratoiten fearef o Yo frama
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to complete the disciplinary action process within the stipulated
time frame, by continuous review by Executives.

All long outstanding vigilance disciplinary cases, where domestic
enquiry was in progress as on 30th September 2017 were
completed before 31st March 2018 (Except 2 cases which are
pending with Courts).

A new initiative to decentralize the disciplinary proceedings
was approved by the Board of Directors and the same was
implemented from 1st February, 2017.

A new package i.e. OB VIGIL is developed for computerization of
disciplinary proceedings on end to end basis.

Inspection

During the year, the Risk Based Internal Audit (Internal
Inspection) was revisited and the audit points were revised to
reflect the present circulars and guidelines in force. In line with
the Corporate Objective to give increased focus and thrust on
Business besides continuing concentration on Control areas, the
scoring model in Risk Based Internal Audit (Internal Inspection)
has been revised with Business aspects carrying 400 points
(increased from 125) and Control Aspects carrying 600 points
(reduced from 825) and implemented from 9th Oct 2017.

To enhance efficiency of the department functioning with
structured way of approach in each activity, the department
has put in place Standard Operating Procedure for the various
activities viz., Stock Audit, Forensic Audit, Income Leakage,
functioning of audit offices/departments. A series of guidelines
in the form of circulars and guidance note were issued to various
functionaries at field level in order to stress the importance of
inspection & internal audit activity.

To align the jurisdiction of Regional Offices under Inspectorates
with that of Zonal Offices, Inspectorate at Trivandrum has been
shifted to Bangalore. Consequently, the Inspectorates are
renamed as Zonal Audit Offices from 01.04.2018.

Concept of ‘Zonal Audit Sub-committee’ at Zonal Offices has
been introduced to bring in improved Control and Oversight of
Zonal Offices.

To emphasize prompt attendance to rectifications and
improvement in compliance culture, revised guidelines on
submission of Final Rectification Certificate (FRC) and closure
of audit reports were issued clearly defining timelines; the
pendency beyond six months has significantly come down from
417 branches as on 31.03.2017 to 25 as on 31.03.2018. Further
‘self-audit’ system was introduced in branches in order to improve
the compliance function. Non- recovery of income leakages
detected during various audits, which affects the profitability of
the Bank has been taken up consistently and persistently with
maximization of on-the- spot recovery. The revenue leakage
pending for Rs 64.75 crores as on 31.03.2017 is reduced to Rs.
8.38 crores as on 31.03.2018. Bank has automated recovery of all
possible charges and the reporting of revenue leakage in various
audit reports showed significant reduction in last few months.

During the year, concurrent audit/functional audit at Data Centre/

ITD were introduced with the objective of ensuring that the
parameter set in FINACLE matches with circular/guidelines and
also the output on execution provides desired results. These
activities include revenue generation parameters in order arrest
revenue leakage. This will act as additional level of verification to
eliminate any IT related anomalies/errors at operational level and
achievement of compliance to CO/regulatory guidelines.

The Bank has selected 399 branches for conducting concurrent
audit having coverage of 50.31% in deposits and 68.60% on
total advances. The bank has procured ‘eTHIC package’ for
online report submission of concurrent audit system. This also
facilitates future integration of reporting under RBIA (Internal
Inspection) and Concurrent audit with avoidance of duplication
of reporting aspects and improving the risk assessment.

The bank developed risk based reporting for Management Audit
and accordingly the Risk Based audit is being conducted since
April 2017. The scope of the audit has been revisited again and a
revamped policy has since been approved in March 2018 for the
audits from 2018-19.

Audit Committee of Executives (ACE) meeting is being held on
monthly basis since June’ 2017 with clearly defined agenda
to review the audit and control functions and appraising Audit
Committee of the Board. For the current year 10 such meetings
were held.

During the year, the branch auditors (internal inspectors) were
given training twice, one on improving skills of audit and other
was on general banking.

Vigilance

During the year 2017-18 the Bank continued to take effective
steps for disposal of pending Vigilance Disciplinary cases within
the time schedule prescribed by Central Vigilance Commission.
As on 31st March 2018, 166 Vigilance Disciplinary cases were
disposed and penalties were awarded. As on 31st March 2018,
there are 196 vigilance cases pending of which only 38 cases
are beyond 18 months. In most of the cases, enquiries have
been ordered and respective summing ups are awaited from
Presenting Officer/Defence.

Preventive Vigilance measures have been strengthened through
periodical branch Inspection/visits by CVO. The following are
some of the measures taken to strengthen preventive vigilance

> Periodical/Surprise Inspections: Periodical and
surprise inspections of branches are conducted on
compliance of systems and procedures including KYC/
AML guidelines, etc.

» 10B Vigil: A quarterly in-house news letter to spread
vigilance awareness launched in June 2013, was
circulated for all the four quarters of the year. Learning
points from frauds, success stories, vigilance news,
messages from Top Management, etc. are circulated
among staff members.

> Action against Third Party Entities: Bank has already
put on intranet, the list of banned third party entities viz.,
Chartered Accountants, Valuers and Lawyers. So far
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5 Panel Advocates have been removed from the panel
for their failure to comply with the bank’s instructions
which enabled perpetration of fraud on the bank by the
borrowers by submitting fake title deeds relating to the
properties which were mortgaged to the bank either as
prime or collateral security.

» Bank has identified Officers having aptitude for
investigation; data analysis etc. and they are given
appropriate training in investigations.

» To create vigilance awareness, Bank has conducted
essay competition and Quiz competition for all the
officers and award staff members and awarded prizes to
winners during Vigilance Awareness Week 2017.

All the Regional Offices have been posted with Vigilance Officers
to handle Vigilance matters and their role functions have been
well defined which includes submission of monthly report on visit
to branches. A Workshop on Investigation, Enquiry Proceedings,
was conducted for a team of senior officers for investigating large
value frauds at the Bank’s Staff College Chennai. The participants
were refreshed on various issues relating to Preventive Vigilance
measures and post-fraud follow-up action. Vigilance Awareness
week was observed by the Bank in October 2017 i.e. from 30th
October 2017 to 04th November 2017.

Information Technology

IT Infrastructure: The Bank has robust infrastructure architecture,
resulting in perfect alignment of Business and IT aspirations.

Network Availability: High-end servers for all the applications
along with network equipments have been installed at the Data
center, which provides no single point of failure thereby ensuring
availability of services. Bank has upgraded the network across all
branches and also reduced the number of single link branches by
431 during the year. Several measures were taken for improved
bandwidth utilization resulting in better user experience.

Core Banking Solution: The Bank has successfully migrated all
the branches including four overseas centers to Finacle. Data
archival solution for overseas centers has been initiated and is
under progress.

Internet Banking: Several security features were introduced
to give better protection to customers using net banking.
Innovative digital products on mobile launched. These include
{OBNANBAN’ an app with several features for both customer and
non-customers.

ITIL Implementation: Bank has adapted Information Technology
Infrastructure Library (ITIL), to better its IT Service Strategy, IT
Service Design, IT Service Transition, IT Service Operation and
IT Continual Service improvement. This will enable improved
IT service delivery and satisfaction with reduced costs through
improved utilization of resources for better management of risk
and service. This will ensure strong alignment between IT and
the business.

Technology for Customer Service: Bank has introduced novel
methods for improving customer service using technology. It has
introduced Standardized Public Grievance Redressal System
(SPGRS). It is a single point where all customer complaints are
tracked with active follow up.

Digital Banking

» ATM / Cash Dispensers (CDs): As at the end of March
2017 the total number of ATMs of the Bank stood at
3,679 and the number of ATMs as on 31.03.2018 is 3108.
During the last one year we have closed 571 unviable
ATMs. In addition to the 3108 ATMs we have installed
444 Cash recyclers across all the regions, till 31.03.2018.

» Out of the 3108 ATMs 2327 are located onsite and 781
are located offsite. The geographical spread of these
ATMs is 729 in Metro centres, 665 in Urban centres, 951
in Semi urban centres and 763 in Rural centres.

» Debit Cards: Bank has a card base of 151 Lakhs as

on 31st March 2018 with 20.05 Lakhs new debit cards
issued during the year under review. Bank has issued

more than 17.22 Lakh Rupay Debit Cards during the
year. Bank is giving more thrust for issuance of Rupay
cards as advised by NPCIl. Bank launched Prepaid
Card under Rupay variant with EMV Chip for enhanced
security to cope up with the Digital drive for less cash
economy. Bank started the EMV migration process for
the existing Magstrip cards and detailed Migration Plan
is in place. Bank has provided the facility of replacement
of magstrip card to EMV card in the Internet Banking to
enable the customers to place the request for EMV card
without visiting the branch. Bank has mandated Green
PIN which will help the customers to generate the ATM
PIN without waiting for physical PIN mailers.

» Payment Gateway Operations: The Bank has 11
aggregators who have nearly 12,000 sub-merchants
under their banner including public sector organizations
like BSNL, LIC of India etc. The Bank’s direct clients
include State Government Enterprises & Educational
Institutions. IOB payment gateway is listed in IRCTC site
to book tickets through IRCTC using IOB debit/credit
cards.

» RTGS/NEFT: Based on feedback from Customers and
Branches, various updates were done in I0B RTGS/
NEFT module to meet their needs/requirements. BULK
NEFT and RTGS facilities were given to branches and
Internet banking customers to attract more corporate
customers and promote usage of electronic payment
channels effectively.

» Internet Banking/Mobile Banking: The internet banking
and mobile banking registrations have shown a good
growth during 2017-18. Presently 15.51 lakh customers
registered for Internet Banking against 12.94 lakh for
last year and 6.62 lakh customers registered for Mobile
Banking as on 31st March 2018, as against 2.86 lakh
customers last year.
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M-Passbook: Customer friendly M-passbook was
introduced during last year in which a customer can view
their account statement upon downloading the mobile
app. Balance enquiry through missed call was also
introduced during the year. Total number of customers
registered for M-Passbook as on 31.03.2018 is 5,68,593.

10B Connect: Our Bank has released a comprehensive
mobile app “IOB Connect” for Android Phones, for our
customers, which can be linked to 10B-Mobile, 10B
Rewardz and IOB mPassbook.

I0B-Pay: It is an integrated online payment gateway
platform which offers fee payments, merchant payments,
donations for charitable institutions etc. 69 Institutions
have been registered in this application and the
transactions are being routed through this platform.

BHIM & BHIM IOBUPI: Bharat Interface for Money
(BHIM) application has been launched to make direct
customer to customer payments across the Banks
instantly and collect money using just Mobile number or
Payment address.

BHIM IOBUPI is the application launched by our Bank
using Unified Payment Interface. As on 31.03.2018,
8.11 lakh customers have been on boarded on this
platform and 3.23 lakh users on BHIM.

BBPS: Bank has launched Bharat Bill Payment System
(BBPS), an integrated bill payment system, which
offers interoperable bill payment service to customers
online. For BBPS, I0B has been integrated as Customer
Operating Unit (COU) in March 2017 and as Biller
Operating Unit (BOU), with TNEB as biller, in Feb 2018.

Credit Cards: Our Bank has introduced VISA
International Credit Card in association with VISA with
effect from 01.04.2006. Credit Card Division has initiated
various developmental activities in order to improve the
credit card business and increase the card base during
the financial year 2017-18. Details of such activities are
as follows.

Credit Card issuing process is digitalized which facilitates
to reduce the turnaround time as the data flow from Bank
to Vendor is automated.

Discretionary powers for sanctioning Credit Card Limits
have been revised and restructured to provide powers
to all branch managers and Regional Level Credit
Committee. Previously, the sanctioning powers were
vested with only RLCC. The changes also contributed to
reduce the turnaround time.

Credit card campaign was launched during December
2017 to January 2018 for issuing more and more credit
cards.

NPA Level is reduced from Rs.8.27 crores to Rs.8.17
crores after arresting the slippages.

Credit card base increased from 60,530 to 78,567 as on
31.03.2018.
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Government Accounts

Direct Tax Collections: The Bank is authorized to collect Income
Tax and other Direct taxes in physical mode and through On Line
Tax Accounting System (OLTAS) by 354 branches all over India.
The Bank is also authorized to receive e-payment of Direct Taxes.
During the year under review, the bank has handled transactions
amounting to Rs. 10,139.41 crores and earned commission of
Rs. 1.95 crores.

Indirect Tax Collections: The Bank is authorized to collect
indirect taxes through Electronic Accounting System in Excise
and Service Tax (EASIEST) by 217 branches authorized by CBEC.
The Bank is also authorized to receive e-payment of Excise and
Service Tax, E-payment of Customs Duty and e-refunds of Duty
Drawback. The Bank has handled transactions amounting to Rs.
17,544.86 crores and earned commission of Rs.4.08 crores.

Centralised Pension Processing Centre

Payment of Pension: The bankis servicing 2.25 Lakhs pensioners
belonging to Central Civil, Defence, Railways, Telecom, State
Civil, EPFO, CMPFO, TNEB, Chennai Port Trust, Chennai Dock
Labour Board, Local Fund Audit of Tamil Nadu and Malaysian
Government Pension apart from credit through ECS.

Centralised Pension Processing Centre disburses pension on a
centralised basis to Central Civil, Defence, Railway and Telecom
Pensioners for 63,385 accounts. The Bank has disbursed about
Rs. 1,740 crores during the year and received reimbursement
under scheme for Central Civil, Defence, Railway and Telecom
Pensions within 2-3 days from the date of disbursement. During
the year bank has earned commission of Rs. 4.95 crores.

The Bank has also handled Treasury Business of the Government
of Tamil Nadu at 13 branches and Government of Odisha at
3 branches and with the turnover of Rs. 2,091.22 crores of
receipts and payments. The bank services the account of
Planning Commission and Department of Telecommunications
and handled receipts and payments of Rs.180.34 crores and
Rs.185.67 crores respectively. Post Office Collection (Drawing
and Deposit) Account is maintained at 66 branches in Tamil
Nadu handling receipts and payments of Rs.187.29 crores. The
Bank has been actively participating in the Government of India
Savings Schemes like Senior Citizens Savings Scheme 2004, 8%
Taxable Bond etc. Public Provident Fund and Sukanya Samriddhi
Yojana schemes are contributing subscriptions of about
Rs.1,035.84 crores.

Sovereign Gold Bond Scheme: During the year our bank has
collected Rs.68.65 crores and earned an income of Rs.0.69
crores.

National Pension System: During the year our branches have
opened 2,700 NPS Accounts and earned income of Rs.0.10
crores.

Campaign | - 08.09.2017 to 22.09.2017: 1,388 NPS accounts
were opened by branches during the campaign.

Stood 3rd among all Public Sector Banks for maximum number
of branches activated — 2,905 Branches.

Campaign Il - 18.10.2017 to 28.10.2017:

FIRST among all Public Sector Banks for maximum number of
branches activated — 128 Branches.

=




3

X,

7N

¢

7N

ff grdeiie &4 & d@l § 410 Widl & AU GG T A T) TSI TIARICH

TUITY @Td Wi o fo gaRT AT e o
3fR-ITET AT FHTYT

SR -TIRAT GAg A U Nl B ad g A% Aeed form B
URdTg oid 8 7 St o) faomg Saaudic & 0 3faR-mraT
TR GHTY b1 T fErehar & ) ot Teg & ¥ | SiRaltais 3 3faR-
-RTET UfaSat T T B3 & e B He i o1 wrd HefiRa fovar
21 IR SR URaT elTg THIE R &) T8 8 | BIgd UaiaRur
& qed Ul higcd (Misc) B & W1 F 23 AT G Bl
mififa forar < @1 31 SIS & thise ufafdat &1 3e Faa
YA arsll gRT gIUe B TRdfd | Iyd 31 e Ul & dgd
6 TEH ¥ 31w & fou @is Sfve ufafdat semn 78 €, i fos
2,557 ARG 30T B 6 UTAfBT 3 SIS § | 38 HeH & RSNSMS
OFcS! & GHIad cIet YiaH YITaH Ufagfd @i & ded ®is U-
QT 1 Heey (1) gafaron § wirHiaia & fear m gl
Mg SaTee faer

e 3R TP wE

¥ 2017 - 2018 H TRM, I = TRITT F HRUT B Yl
TeI P18 1 BT, 3R aburd (01), aIRY et
(01) 3R IS P TIH DI, TS (04) P UG P foIU
ey Hff &t 718 B

31914 2018 AF d& $I o Wb TBAT 27,936 FHAR § Fored
F 14,751 IABRY, 10,243 ol 3R 2,942 TR HHIRT B

T HHAMA! Bt G- H, 5,573 YT SYad ofifd 7, 1,928
SR St Aot & SR 7,338 3 forwst af aoft & Teiftra
&1 Hart Wem # 9,350 Ufgen HHAR, 1063 Yayd AfE 3R
527 feaT 95 g

ISR FieT 3R WRom

Ag@ FRaRaT A FRA IR GHIfad STRIRISRY A Rid Ha
¥ fo, SWINGR AT &1 ufhar T 31 12 R uger =R
% o Tyl el &t ugam SR YuIfad STRINSRY & ugaH
& Y FE gl TR AUt &1 uga yds faur o sifew
YRUMST & YR TR 3R YR HTIRIH WTd BT e H @
TP E B Ude R F g, I SRS tearH ek
URRIféra meayul ugl / faurT &R @R SR ISTWINGR AT &
&Y §IF ¥ forg wiifra fop ol €1

&1 BT AP BT

IR &1 AT & fo @R R} sifdeiial & fafed ms-
gl R TR R $RA & U S 7 emrar & s w Red §%
¥ e & SUR € HHARG! BT &dl &) Sg & oY Th
o TR Pt g | 39 Yay &, § 3 & Hrar urd TR by
fafed fran g e 90§ -

® ) 3157 SR 31t 9 T8 BTy ( MM ) Fraig
W ) AR §Reee 3 Sfdh Ao

S o fafed &t o for Ioie Iy ufareq |, fae=h faftma , ara
yee R geied Sk @rdr & yHuiieRur T @1 8 | W el
1 g Yford e o © fos 39 &t & vmmofiavor 9 & egan
P A de & LTI A U Y |

AU srdeH

¥ 7 TdAH SERal B @H § [d gU ARy srfen o
TEIHT BT § ot Iea Tt Wk & i fomast g=ay
I I P a1 AN 81 B [ BRI/ I P 3R Bl BH BT
2

¥ 3 Tt Frfurers! & forg Frfen 3R e ofik waft Aedd iR
Afew ! 59 Taiy H U AT TR |

Afqwe g

§F 7 IR DT B e D1 8 ol o F & Juft w1
=R &Y <A favar man § aifes wHenial & o ewdr o
Tpfa Frdofe ERY & Ty o , § & Y YOR . S8
THIST P 1Y RER Jare , Foras wifsar 3R wgarfial & Iy
Fdld AT A §, FRA S I | T8 iy qagR & A o
RHTYT Rt § Forest e quft el @ § drfes srom o
HI A | 3R S ) fafdyer st o) foraerial & FAum & e
Aol foran oo |

Hid i & Srafag= & fore ue A ufkarad ufhar (s
) ST ST T § STl It HHaial @ effqarg sfigfy, smar
Jfear (S % Aaewra Hifa A Rar T ® ) & srgued &
AR Y U B S g |

FHraTial @1 G 1 Hufor

S & S o & Taie H U =701 HedTdH fordT § gl -
IR B AT BT AR TTH P IATGHdT F YR WR fHar
ST | T &) WReAT HT YeU1dh- THg 3R TR 3fidha & Iy

Toram T T | SR TR SHiHT 72 + B SRR (WIS, YT
, UG, B 3G ) 3R TGl 374c TR fasa a7 o |

= ufthar H, i T aret &= &1 fafRd farar mar § 1 g%
UBR 4, W & oel Sranial B ot 7 o1 fafed o forn ma
B 3R SRl B HH I RIMT R e RIFIGRO Uehar &
Jugad ¥ ¥ a1 far T A |

TR ® IufRufa Rew &1 ot 3Ry § & faan mar arfes -
INAT & GRTGHY D Uleiat UR QX7 44301 81 o Sif fobs Ufern e
& ORI H Yoy Srast UGS Tl S Bt AYRYT SRevd ¢ | ©Th
et 1 g8 gferd fasar a3 vawr SiR o & Iy ar-
Afed T N 3 3o 31U & STl & RIS &l o o
T, HH T H 3R I 1 HH 3MTad o T H & |

yerAfaat
TP HHATRT! BT T HS F 3T B H UeTaid fohaT 777 T |

66

=/




2

SECOND among all Public Sector Banks for opening maximum
NPS Accounts — 410 accounts.

Inter Branch Reconciliation

Inter - branch reconciliation has assumed greater significance in
view of its vulnerability. Reserve Bank of India has also advised
Banks to accord priority to inter-branch reconciliation at par
with Business development. RBI has fixed six months time for
elimination of inter-branch entries.

Physical inter branch advices have been done away with. Inter
branch transactions are being routed through Sundry Creditors
(Misc) account under Finacle Environment. The elimination of
Credit entries in DDR is possible only on presentation of the
drafts by the payees. No debit entries are outstanding for more
than 6 months under Funds Transfer except 6 entries amounting

to Rs. 2,557 Lakhs. No entries are outstanding under TTs Paid
Reimbursement Accounts as against RBI norms of six months.
Demand Draft reconciliation, Funds Transfer and TTPR accounts
have been migrated to CBS (Finacle) environment.

Human Resources Development
Recruitment & Staff strength

*  During the year 2017 - 2018, the bank has not done
any recruitment due to PCA. However, Contract
Recruitment has been done for the post of Internal
Ombudsman (01), Senior Economist (01) and Faculty
for Staff College, Chennai (04).

The Bank's staff strength stood at 27,936 Comprising 14,751
Officers, 10,243 Clerks and 2,942 Sub-staff as of 31st March,
2018.

Of the total staff strength, 5,573 members belonged to SC
category, 1,928 to ST Category, and 7,338 to OBC Category.
Staff Strength includes 9,350 Women employees, 1,063 Ex-
servicemen and 527 physically challenged members.

Succession Planning and Motivation

To ensure leadership continuity and develop potential successors,
succession planning process was initiated. The First phase
started with the identification of critical positions in the bank and
identifying potential successors. The Critical positions have been
identified on the basis of the risk perceptions at each department
as well as taking into account the replacement required. For
every position, three successors to be identified and trained for
placing them at identified critical positions/ departments and to

be in line with succession planning.
Capacity Building

In order to plan the succession and equip the identified officers
for identified critical positions, Bank has drawn a Policy on
“Capacity Building” in tune with RBI guidelines to build up the
capacity of the staff members. In this regard, bank has identified
three accredited institutes namely

a) Indian Institute of Banking & Finance (lIBF), Mumbai

b) National Institute of Banking Management (NIBM),
Pune &

c¢) Moody’s Analytics

¢
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who are providing certifications for the identified areas i.e.
Treasury Operations, Foreign Exchange, Credit Management,
Risk Management & Accounts. Staff members have been advised
to obtain the certifications in those areas in order to build up the
capacity in the Bank.

Mentorship Program

Bank has initiated Mentorship Program in tune with the current
bank requirements with an objective to bridge/share the
knowledge gap for officers of all levels having minimum of two
years of left over service.

The Program has been initiated for all Executives of the bank by
sending letters to respective mentors and mentees.

Ethics Policy

Bank has introduced “Ethics policy” covering all the employees
of the Bank, to create a culture of cooperation among the
employees in respect of public conduct, communications with
the Bank, interactions with external entities including the media
and dealing with colleagues. The policy defines the standards of
the conduct that is expected of all employees in order that the
right decisions are taken in performing roles and responsibilities
across various functions in the Bank.

For implementation of the said policy, a Standard Operating
Procedure (SOP) has been adopted wherein online affirmation
from all the employees confirming adherence to the code of
conduct (as detailed in the Ethics policy) is obtained on annual
basis.

Staff Strength Assessment

Bank has undertaken a new assessment with regard to
Manpower Planning wherein staff strength was determined on
staff productivity basis. The Staff strength assessment had been
undertaken with time and motion analysis. The said assessment
was done with 72+ work drivers (types of works in a branch like
Receipt, Payment, Credit, Forex etc.) and productivity inputs.

In this process, the excess staff regions had been identified.
Similarly, regions with shortage of staff had been identified and
the staffs were being appropriately placed in the promotion
transfer process in the shortage pockets.

Biometric Attendance System was also introduced in the Bank
to have a complete control over staff punctuality which is one of
the basic requirements to provide best customer service in this
competitive environment. Staff members were advised to put the
biometric at the time of entry and exit which will automatically
update the leave records with nil error, less time and nil or less
recurring cost.

Promotions

Promotions were given to staff members from one cadre to next
cadre. Sub-staff to Clerical 100, Clerical to Officer 350, Scale |
to Scale Il 305, Scale Il to Scale Ill 175, Scale Ill to Scale IV 109,

2/




A

D
K

TR AR ¥ fafies 100, it ¥ Sif¥eRY 350 SR Wha
1 QWb 2, 305 IR WA 2 AWpA3 - 175, A3 J WA 4 -
109 3R Whd 4 W6 5 104, Thdl 5 T Whd 6 -24 3R Whd 6
JWHA7 -9

3 TEd

T 3 e Tordh gt ¥ RIfhe IR & gRI B Wiy
SRl I3 O - AR, 3R WY , HRISTTS Wi,
A, Sod Hu 3nfe W e fovar mar 7 |

afRgor

HRURC T O §F BT TP TED di-%d M P HRURE AL
W T T WA §U SMURYT &5 B! BISH b P debIier Id-
e W 3MaR® SR el TS U gR1 fear mar o |

I P 3rraT, s fawa S URe geaiee / ARd AR, Bie
3R Teg Iy o, gadbar & &7 | fafte ok sl &t
AR ufreror fean T § | 59 Iy &) v Ufa SR fgdig dfd
Teee! & forg t Brdepd gt T HHaRt & oY T Bia
3R W TRIET Hex TR AT fopg 77T |

foxita THRE W IRy ufiemr HrimH iR A = WS o1e
BT SRI BT BT HY e 3491 9ra i fosar mar o7 |

aiRdleneii siftreTial & fere qd gf wricem 1 sate faft
W TRIeor Bl IR faman T o | Srgfud Snfa SiR St
e o & srefey it 9 forftres e, fifies & Suwsiey
1, SUHSITY 1 ¥ THUASITY 2 THUHGTY 2 § THUASIOY 3 &
foe od uerafa ufRtemr o srier faftr T e dt W
fopam T 1 | HRBTRGT SR UeiTe T o fb I I1d & SR

Jqriige g A & e gd Yarige Taire HrichH T e faar
T T |

ST UiRneor

3fidfer UfRrer foraH Te Wi Sias , RE W©Ih Ui hx
3R TH T ST ufkeor B AT § | ARk ke,
121 BRIHHI BT IS PR 18235 HHATRAT 1435 =T S fob
3T YR J Ugd Yd Jargd Targ H midd g 3, ITh!
Do ) P! faur mar U1 R 12235 SHfIBRY 5357 fafie iR

643 TR HHARY AT & | F URAfEd Wb Gawal & 4157
S Sfd 3R 1574 SFYfIT Sonfa J e @d & |

TS ufkgror

T 165 HUTAS / AAGRAT &1 R0 HrieH & e u-
SESMESTT® TS, TAISRENTH gUl , =S SrbraH 3 MR-
ZSTHRCISNS ST , TS g0, SSSISRETCT garag 31fe
& GRI T T ot |

3NN Hay

g & gt erafauy wraret # oSt enfiie ¥9y & d1da-
07 B FATRFT 3R F91 W & o, SR &7 wadH, ey

4\\/\

\ 2

Y

o e gred fbar o 8 ofe & dey & 99g-99g R
oo / feRmfc s iRkt fosd o § | ST off Faeies ofR St
¥ o9 3R HHaRAl & o9 faare @1 fRufq § 987 faum e
T e & Y T / g8 &b gRI e far S § a
SR § dl SN IHHA & 9918 @1 & e S o e &
forg =7t B ofR faf 9= § & & SIER  SIRIMIES SRiaT
P UA B R |

FHHANA & gRT 50 T SEeR amd F Taifta Rl /
adl & Hey § orgl ff SR ff g% A a1 gedl o s
RIS HRATS B! T} 1 S & SR 3R JHMT B
1Y AN Tae TR T S b |

TIHRUAS! - SR TS B9 HATAT  3fATS HHART & o1y
HfYFd WTe &S Y TSI, RIFAR, aH onfe & oy &
TrEidT foran § arfes searial/ st &t Rremadl gfa /
TR S gy eI e e fhar o T |

g T TTeT & I B U B & o Neifiis Iy o
FIATERUT RISl 3R SgHd o |
o FaTeT 3R sfUeu o URIRRA & gRI W% AHE! J SR

feanfe Dt R uRua Ot &R oot @ st fear mn dife
WP Y&} & oY 81 T |

¥ 3 TR SURURY R ) +f SR e o R
DI AT §99 P AT 3R TI% TH UTe R (550 391 &
foe forar ¥ 1 Sl & g2t Repls & a9 gel Rals &
A T T A JHY B HH B 3R IRl Bl §18 [
& forg g werd B | |

ety Ures a1 B Ugd a1 H HHATRA! &1 QU & HioH &1
STHT FhIT YR R FA P o4 AR I, F1§ |

mAfafa ok MIUMR & ofaRT sgNE HraR!
Tefigrd TomTelt o1 Qe foaT T € A1f 3 g T e &
foru faftr foman srufa ueafa, wem goft &t fgfaa, swor/dh &,
JaTAgh 3nfe ¥ MgeR fRaay ITd o 9o, it fob w1, 91
3R W B HH B

A, 3T AR Yo Yufd Bt HTTars- JaftRe ifieRt &-
IR & §RT131.03.2018 TF RbIS 99% TSR I Ugd 1§
| €T TGl & GRT9Id 3dd [davur B 100% BHEH B Uichan
B gP! 8 3R =T aifamg s e man g |

Tt v STl (P, 3, IR &Y erEie)  #
3ffales Rrerad wffifadl &1 T TERTAS! - SR TS &
AT & ofeR , B wa W wfgensit & wry a4 IafisT (Jb
7, Fy, Faror ) sfefad 2013 F SR S S g@HT R |
I ot Rl & ogaR 81 Rierdl & fHaru & o s
FHH I TE |

e 2017 -18 F SR TH IdTsT T Fafdd urd Riraar 8k
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Scale IV to Scale V 104, Scale V to Scale VI 24 and Scale VI to
Scale VII 9.

Other initiatives

The Department, in coordination with external agencies
conducted various health awareness sessions by medical
professions on various topics such as Lifestyle and Health,

Cardiac Screening, Orthopedics, Dental Camp, Eye Camp, etc.
Training

Keeping in view the corporate goal of making the bank a customer
centric one training has been imparted on contemporary issues
of banking apart from basic areas of banking through the internal
and external mode.

Apart from the above, regular training on Banking topics
have been imparted to officers and clerks in the field of Credit
Appraisal/ Credit Monitoring, Small & Medium Enterprises
Financing, Vigilance. Also Programs for First Line and Second
line managers were conducted for all staff members at Staff
College and various Staff Training Centers.

Special Training Programs on Financial Inclusion and issuance of
multi travel prepaid card were conducted during the year.

Pre confirmation program for Probationary Officers was

conducted at various Staff Training Centers. Pre Promotion
Training for SC/ST members who are eligible for promotion from
Sub Staff to Clerical cadre, Clerk to JMGS I, JMGS | to MMGS Il
and MMGS Il to MMGS Il was conducted at various Staff Training
Centers. The Pre Retirement counseling program was conducted

for Officers and Award Staff Members who retired during the year.
Internal Training

The internal training system comprises of One Staff College,
Eleven Staff Training Centers and One Rural Banking Training
Centre. Internal training was imparted to 18,235 staff (excluding
1,435 members who have undergone Pre - Retirement
Counseling prior to their superannuation) comprising of 12,235
Officers, 5,357 Clerical and 643 Sub-staff by conducting 121
programs. Of the total staff trained 4,157 belonged to Scheduled
Caste (SC) and 1,574 belonged to Scheduled Tribe (ST).

External Training

We had also deputed 165 Executives/ Officers for training
programs conducted by reputed external institutes like CAFRAL,
Mumbai; [IB&F, Mumbai; NIBM, Pune; National Academy of
RUDSETI, Bangalore; CAB, Pune; IDRBT, Hyderabad etc.

Industrial Relations

In order to monitor and maintain good industrial Relations
climate in all offices/Branches of the Bank, circulars/ guidelines
are issued from time to time regarding enforcement of discipline,
policies to be followed, etc. Wherever dispute arises between the

Employer & Employee and among Employees, the department
amicably settles by conciliation/counseling members or initiate
disciplinary proceedings, if required, according to the terms of
the settlement and regulations in force to maintain industrial
harmony.

With regard to complaints/matters pertaining to IR matters
committed by staff members, disciplinary action, wherever
necessary, had been initiated against erring members to maintain
discipline and harmonious industrial relations in the Bank.

HRMD-IR Section, Central Office had entered into settlement
with the recognized union for award staff, regarding promotion,
transfer, benefits, etc. to redressed the grievances of employees/
Officers through collective bargaining with Unions/Associations.

The Industrial relations environment for the Bank remained
cordial and conducive for achieving organization’s objectives.

The guidelines issued by the Ministry of Finance and Indian
Banks Association with regard to staff matters are implemented
expeditiously by issuing circulars for the benefit of our employees.

Bank introduced Biometric Attendance System to simplify the
leave updating procedure and to have control over our staff
punctuality. Automation of employees’ leave records helps us
to maintain accuracy and reduce the time involved in updating
leave records.

Introduced uninterrupted customer service by permitting the
employees in the branches to observe the lunch recess on
rotational basis.

Online Disciplinary Proceedings Register System access is given
to HRDD and HRMD, to enable them to generate IR clearance
of our staff for various purpose such as promotion, posting of
first line, avail loans/CC, retirement etc. which reduces the time,
manpower and stationery involved.

Online submission of Return of Movable, Immovable and
valuable properties by officer employees as on 31.03.2017 has
reached a record of 99% submission. The 100% scrutiny of the
movable and immovable statement process submitted by the
staff members has been implemented and made online.

Internal complaints committees were constituted at all
Administrative offices (Central, Zonal & Regional Office) under the
instruction of HRMD-IR Section, as per the Sexual Harassment of
Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act
2013. As per the recommendation of the Committees, appropriate

action has been taken to redress the grievances.

The details of the Sexual harassment Complaints received and
disposed during the year 2017 — 2018 are as follows:
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Court cases are reviewed by the Bank at Apex level as per
Ministry of Finance guidelines and efforts are taken to settle/ get
the Court cases disposed of expeditiously. In such cases which
cannot be settled, the cases are contested strongly

Security

Security measures, mandatory and recommendatory, were
correctly and strictly implemented in all the branches, ATMs and
administrative offices were reviewed periodically keeping in view
the local law and order situation and necessary steps taken to
fortify security thereby creating a safe business environment
for customers and our staff. The Bank continued to stress on
preventive measures for security and fire safety arrangements and
inculcation of fire prevention and security consciousness among
staff to ensure safety to life and property. Bank has sensitized staff
members regarding security awareness and ensured installation
of security electronics viz., CCTV and Burglar Alarm functioning
24x7x365 days basis incorporating Passive Infra Red (PIR)
sensors and vibration sensors in all branches and deployment
of outsourced Watchmen/ Armed Guards at vulnerable ATMs
and branches on case to case basis respectively. The Security
Department at Central Office is monitoring and regulating the
operations of cash flow, duly aided by the team of Regional
Security Officers PAN India.

Rajbhasha (Official Language Policy)

The Bank has taken all efforts to implement the Official Language
Policy of Government of India during the year 2017-18. During the
year 98 Staff members who do not possess working knowledge
of Hindi were trained in IOB Praveen. 2,535 Staff members
possessing working knowledge of Hindi were trained in General
Hindi Workshops held during the year. As per the directives of
Gouvt. of India Bank has enabled Hindi Unicode font in all Regional
Offices and has provided the facility of downloading of the same
on IOB ONLINE. Banking terminology has been provided on
IOB ONLINE for the benefit of staff members. Training has been
given to 1,958 staff members for the use of Hindi in computers.
Four issues of quarterly Hindi Magazine “VANI" in print as well
as in digital form have been published. Lekhmala - 3 is also
published.

Govt of India has awarded Second Prize for Hindi house
magazine "VANI" for the year 2016-17 in C Region under
Rajbhasha Keerti Puraskar. Regional Offices were inspected
on O L implementation by Official Language Department,
Central Office and Rajbhasha Shields were awarded to Regional
Offices and branches doing good work in official language
implementation.
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Drafting and evidence committee of Parliamentary Committee
on Official Language conducted inspection of our Nithari
and Faridabad branches on 07.07.2017 and 06.09.2017
respectively. Both the committees expressed satisfaction over
the implementation of Official Language in these centers.

Bank has conducted Hindi competitions in all Regional Offices
and Central Office on the occasion of Hindi Day Celebrations.
An All India Hindi Essay Writing competition was held on 07th
September 2017. Regional Offices have conducted various
Hindi Competitions for school children on the occasion of Hindi
Day Celebrations. On 10th January 2018 World Hindi Day was
observed in Central Office and Regional Offices, Various Hindi
competitions, seminars and workshops were held in Regional
Offices. Quarterly OLIC meetings have been conducted regularly.

A general Hindi workshop for the officers of member banks of
Chennai TOLIC was also held on 13th February 2018.

Status of Implementation of IND AS in our Bank

Indian Overseas Bank has commenced the process of IND AS
(Indian Accounting Standards) implementation from FY 2016-
17. IND AS for Banks has been deferred by one year by RBI on
05.04.2018, hence Bank is now required to implement Ind AS
from FY 2018-19.

In line with the guidance issued by the Reserve Bank of India in
February 2016, the Bank has set up a Steering Committee headed
by the Executive Director along with a Working Group consisting
of four (4) General Managers which monitors the progress of Ind
AS implementation. Bank has also formed a Core team of ten
(10) members and ECL (Expected Credit Loss) team of seven (7)
members drawn from various functional departments for taking
forward the implementation of Ind AS. The Bank has filed the
Pro-forma financial statements as on 30.09.2016, 01.04.2017 and
30.06.2017 with the Reserve Bank of India. Further, the status
report on progress of implementation of Ind AS has already been
placed to the Audit Committee and also to the Board of the Bank.
The Bank has undertaken pan India training to officers attached
to various Regional and Zonal Offices. Also Ind AS awareness
program was undertaken to the Executives attached to the
various Regional and Zonal Offices of the Bank.

Bank has identified the gaps in existing system for meeting Ind
AS requirement which includes fair valuation of staff advances,
staff deposits, computation of Effective Interest Rate (EIR) etc
and has taken up the same with the vendor (Finacle). With regard
to roll out of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Solution under Ind
AS, which will be outside Finacle, Bank has initiated next steps
towards streamlining the workflow of various departments viz.,
Treasury, Credit verticals, Risk Management Dept etc by bridging
the existing gaps for meeting Ind AS requirements.
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Implementation of Goods and Service Tax

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is a comprehensive Indirect Tax
reform that has replaced the erstwhile Service Tax/Entry tax/Octroi
and certain other Indirect Taxes and has come into effect from
01.07.2017. GST is having far-reaching impact on almost all the
aspects of the business operations in the country ranging from
pricing of products and services, supply chain optimization, IT,
accounting and Tax Compliance systems. GST is a consumption
based tax wherein the tax is determined based on the place of
supply.

GST has different rate structures: 5%; 12%; 18% and 28%. GST
on sale/auction of Gold is fixed at 3%. GST on Banking and
Financial Services is 18%.

The Bank has appointed M/S Deloitte Haskins and Sells as the
Consultant for GST implementation in the Bank. Necessary
system modifications have been done for complying with GST
requirements. All requisite system modifications have been
developed in-house by our Information Technology Department
(ITD) to suit the needs of the Bank. All the MIS required for making
the payments as well as filing Returns are being generated.

The Bank has successfully migrated from Centralized Service Tax
Registration to State-wise GST Registrations for 35 States where
Bank has its Branches.

Work related to filing of monthly GST Returns, payment of GST
has been centralized and is being made by Tax Compliance and
Payment Cell, C.O.

Bank has duly filed all the Returns under GST up to date.

PSBs- Reforms Agenda - EASE - Enhanced Access & Service
Excellence

Further to the recapitalization plan of PSBs approved by the
Government in October-2017, PSB Reforms Agenda- “Enhanced
Access & Service Excellence (EASE)” has been framed by
MOF, GOI based on the recommendations made by the PSB
Whole Time Directors and senior executives in PSB Manthan in
November-2017.

Reforms Agenda for PSBs

The Reforms Agenda titled “Responsive and Responsible PSBs-
Banking Reforms Roadmap for a New India” aims at “Enhanced
Access and Service Excellence (EASE)” and has been further
subdivided in to 6 themes as given below:

(1) Customer Responsiveness -EASE for customer
comfort

(2) Responsible Banking- Financial Stability, governance
for ensuring outcomes and EASE for clean and
commercially prudent business.

(8) Credit off-take-EASE for the borrower and proactive
delivery of credit.

(4) UdayamiMitra for MSMEs-EASE of financing and bill
discounting for MSMEs.

(5) Deepening Financial Inclusion & Digitalization-
EASE through near-home banking, micro-insurance
and digitalization.

(6) Ensuring Outcomes - Governance / HR-Developing
personnel for Brand PSB.

DFS-MOF has advised that capital infusion is dependent on PSB
performance on these reform themes.

The six themes of action have been divided in to 30 Action
Points (APs) and further sub divided in to 62 Sub-action points.
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Accordingly, specific timelines have been fixed forimplementation
and closure for each of the 62 Sub Action Points.

Implementation of EASE

To ensure monitoring of the EASE action points and to ensure
timely compliance, we developed a dashboard with action points
and actionable items, tagging ownership to each point and to
monitor and update the progress on a real time basis, which can
be accessed by directors.

Each action point is assigned as KPI to the GM and allotted to
ED and MD for oversight. Each action point is further sub divided
in to actionable items whose progress can be measured and
mapped with time lines within the overall timeline. The dashboard
enables drill down to actionable items for close monitoring. The
Dash Board also acts as a Score Board.

The Board is apprised of the progress made under EASE in its
meetings. We are taking all out efforts to ensure completion /
compliance of the EASE action points as per timelines.

Planning & Economic Desk

The Planning function continues to derive useful results towards
monitoring region wise monthly Profit & Loss movement,
Corporate level Budgeting, reporting provisional daily MIS to
top Management & various study analysis. The economic desk
supports top management with day-to-day developments apart
from analyzing the Government/ RBI policies at regular intervals.

Parliamentary Committee

The bank hosted the visit of following Parliamentary Committees
during the FY 2017-18.

a) Study Visit on Welfare of OBC, Lok Sabha to
Coimbatore and Ooty from 29.04.2017 to 01.05.2017.

b) Study Visit on Government Assurance, Rajaya
Sabha to Udhagamandalam and Coimbatore from
11.05.2017 to 13.05.2017.

c) Study Visit on Social Justice and Empowerment, Lok
Sabha to Coimbatore from 01.06.2017 t0.02.06.2017.

d) Study Visit on Urban Development, Rajya Sabha to
Chennai on 07.06.2017.

e) Study Visit of Department Related Standing
Committee on Industry at Tirupathi and Chennai from
15th to 19th January 2018.

f)  Study Visit on Rural Development to Chennai and
Madurai from 20 to 22 January 2018.

Outlook 2018-19

Economic growth in India is expected to strengthen to 7.3%
in financial year 2018-19 on the back of robust activity from
construction, manufacturing, and services sectors. The growth
prospects are favourable, due to the implementation of key
reforms and appropriate fiscal and monetary policies. In the long
run, the new tax regime, in addition to the permanent account
number regulations and cash restrictions in business transactions,
is expected to impact all businesses and encourage a shift from
the unorganized to organized sectors. A simplified tax structure
will improve the ease of doing business, increase productivity
and efficiency and also incentivize Flls to invest more. The
more streamlined businesses due to the GST might boost GDP
growth by 0.4 percent to 2.0 percent. In Banking Sector, due to
the process of recapitalisation of public sector banks and large
distressed borrowers are referenced for resolution under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) is expected to improve
credit flows further and create demand for fresh investment.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2017-18
A. Mandatory Requirements

1. Bank’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Bank is conducting its day to day affairs in accordance with the principles of Corporate Governance. The Bank has always stood
for transparency, accountability and responsiveness within the framework of regulatory, market, stakeholders and internal governance.
In the context of the pivotal role that banks play in the financial and economic system of the country, the Bank values the critical
importance of effective corporate governance in determining its ethical values, objectives, strategies and control environment.

2. Board of Directors:
a. Composition:

The business of the Bank is vested with the Board of Directors. The MD & CEO and two EDs function under the superintendence,
direction and control of the Board. The strength as on 31.03.2018 is eleven directors comprising three whole time Directors and eight
non-executive Directors, which includes one non-executive Chairman and two directors elected from amongst the shareholders to
duly represent their interest. The Non-Executive Chairman presides over the meetings of the Board.

b. Particulars of Directors who held office during the financial year 2017-2018:

S Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship | Date of Appointments Retirement /
No. (Shri/Smt) Demission of office
during the year
01 T C A Ranganathan Chairman Non Executive/Part 16.02.2017
Time Non Official
Executive Director
w.e.f 29.09.2016* i

02 | R.Subramaniakumar e Executive / Whole 29.09.2016

Managing Director & Time

Chief Executive Officer
03 K Swaminathan Executive Director Executive / Whole 17.02.2017
Time
04 | Ajay Kumar Srivastava Executive Director Executive / Whole 09.10.2017
Time
05 | Annie George Mathew Govt. Nominee Official - Non 22.07.2016
Director Executive
06 Nirmal Chand RBI Nominee Director | Official -Non Executive 13.03.2014
07 K Raghu Chartered Accountant Non-Executive 26.07.2016
Director
08 Vishnukumar Bansal Additional Director Non-Executive 08.08.2016
09 Niranjan Kumar Shareholder Director Non-Executive 08.12.2014 07.12.2017
Agarwal

10 Sanjay Rungta** Shareholder Director Non Executive 08.12.2014 07.12.2017

Shareholder Director Non Executive 08.12.2017
11 | Navin Prakash Sinha** | Shareholder Director Non Executive 08.12.2017
12 Sivaraman Anant Director / Part-time Non Executive 27.12.2017

Narayan Non - Official

* Entrusted with Addl. Charge of MD & CEO for a period of 3 months from 11th November 2016 to 10th February 2017 and for a period
of another 3 months from 28th February 2017 to 27th May 2017.

**Elected from amongst the shareholders, other than the Central Government, at the EGM held on 29.11.2017

Profile of Directors of the Bank is enclosed as an Annexure. It is declared that none of the directors are related to each other. The Board
has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and all the General Managers and a declaration has been obtained from the MD & CEO
confirming their compliance with the Code of Conduct and is attached to this report.

Shri S Umapathi, General Manager, was the Secretary to the Board till 31.05.2017. Shri C Haridas, General Manager, is the present
Secretary to the Board.
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c. Meetings of the Board: . During the financial year 2017-18, the Board meetings were

held 12 times on the following dates and places:
The date and place of the meeting as well as the agenda papers are d P

advised to all Directors well in advance. The Directors have access SL NO. DATE OF MEETING PLACE HELD

to all additional information on the agenda. Executives of the Bank o1 17.04.2017 Chennai
are also invited to attend the Board meetings to provide necessary 02 17.05.2017 Chennai
clarifications. During the year under review, the meetings of the -
. . . ) 03 10.06.2017 Chennai

Board were held 12 times as against the requirement of holding
) . - o 04 27.06.2017 Chennai

meetings at least once a quarter with a minimum of six times a year.
05 10.08.2017 Chennai
During the year 2012-13, the Bank has promoted an e-governance -
o . . . 06 19.09.2017 Chennai
initiative for e-conduct of Board and Committee meetings by ensuring .
timely and seamless flow of information to Board members through o7 07.11.2017 Chennai
the use of a Board Portal, a web based online workspace. The 08 29.11.2017 Chennai
portal offers Directors confidential e-access on iPads, on a real-time 09 29.01.2018 Chennai
basis, to agenda papers. This initiative has transformed the way 10 13.02.2018 Chennai
meetings are conducted while resulting in substantial savings in 11 13.03.2018 Chennai
cost, time and resources. 12 28.03.2018 Chennai

. All the meetings were conducted with proper quorum and without any adjournments.

*  Attendance of the directors at the Board meetings and last AGM held on 28.06.2017 are furnished below:

Sl. No. Name of the Director Number of Board Attendance in the Last AGM 28.06.2017
Meetings attended/held

01 Shri T C A Ranganathan 12/12* Attended

02 Shri R. Subramaniakumar 12/12 Attended

03 Shri K Swaminathan 12/12 Attended

04 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 06/06 Appointed on 09.10.2017
05 Smt Annie George Mathew 06/12 Not attended

06 Shri Nirmal Chand 1112 Not attended

07 Shri K Raghu 11/12 Not attended

08 Shri Vishnukumar Bansal 10/12** Not attended

09 Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 08/08*** Not attended

10 Shri Sanjay Rungta 12/12 Attended

11 Shri Navin Prakash Sinha 04/04 Appointed on 08.12.2017
12 Shri Sivaraman Anant Narayan 04/04 Appointed on 27.12.2017

* Shri T C A Ranganathan attended the meeting through videoconferencing on 13.02.2018.

** Shri Vishnukumar Bansal attended the meeting through videoconferencing on 10.08.2017, 07.11.2017, 29.01.2018 and 13.03.2018.
*** Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal attended the meeting through video conferencing on 27.06.2017 and 10.08.2017.

Details of Shares held by Non-Executive Directors in terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as on 31.03.2018
1. Shri Sanjay Rungta - 600 shares

2. Shri Navin Prakash Sinha - 100 shares; No other Non-Executive Directors hold any IOB shares.

d. Number of other Boards or Board Committees in which the Director is a member / Chairperson:

Name of the Number of other companies (excluding private companies and Number of Committees (other than
Director I0B ) in which he / she is a member/ Chairperson of the Board 10B) in which a member
(excluding alternate / nominee director)
ShriTCA 5 1
Ranganathan
Shri 1 -
Vishnukumar
Bansal
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e. Membership in Committees:

None of the directors on the Board is a member in more than 10
committees or acts as a Chairman of more than 5 committees
across all listed entities in which he is a director. (For the purpose
of reckoning the limit in terms of Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, only
the chairmanship/membership of the Audit Committee and the
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee are considered).

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

In order to facilitate the decision-making process, Board has

constituted the following committees and delegated specific powers

to them. The minutes of each meeting is subsequently placed

before the next meeting of the committee for confirmation. The

minutes are also placed before the Board Meeting for information.
1. Management Committee of the Board

Credit Approval Committee of the Board

Audit Committee of the Board

Risk Management Committee of the Board

Committee for Monitoring Large Value Frauds

Customer Service Committee

N o o ks~ e

Committee for Review of Disciplinary Cases & Departmental
Enquiries

8. Remuneration Committee

9. Nomination Committee

10. Information Technology Strategy Committee

11. Steering Committee on Human Resources

12. Board Level Committee to Monitor Recovery in NPA

N
&

13. Committee of Directors for Issue of Equity Share Capital
14. Review Committee on Wilful Defaulters
15. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

3.1 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

MCB is constituted as per the provisions of the Nationalized

Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme,
1970. The functions and duties of the MCB are as under:

a. Sanctioning of credit proposals (funded and non funded) as
per quantum fixed by the Board

b. Loan and Interest Compromise / Write off proposals — as per
quantum fixed by the Board

c. Proposals for approval of capital and revenue expenditure

d. Proposals relating to acquisition and hiring of premises,
including deviation from norms for acquisition and hiring of
premises

e. Filing of suits / appeals, defending them etc

f. Investments in Government and other approved securities,
shares and debentures of companies, including underwriting

g. Donations
h. Any other matter referred to the Management Committee by
the Board
Items (a) to (g) will be in respect of proposals beyond the
discretionary powers of MD & CEO/ powers of Credit Approval
Committee, as may be applicable.
The Chairman of the Committee is the MD & CEO of the Bank. The

Committee met 11 times during the year. All the meetings were
conducted with proper quorum and without any adjournments.

The Members who held office during the period 01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018 and the details of number of meetings attended during their

tenure by each Committee member are as under:

Sl. Name of Director Position Tenure of membership Number of
No. From To Meetings
Attended/held
1 Shri R Subramaniakumar Chairman of the committee 29.09.2016 11/11
2 Shri K Swaminathan Member 17.02.2017 11/11
3 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava Member 09.10.2017 05/05
4 Shri. Nirmal Chand Member 13.03.2014 9/11*
5 Shri Sanjay Rungta Member 01.11.2016 30.04.2017
17.05.2017 16.11.2017 11/11
08.12.2017 07.06.2018
6 Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal Member 25.01.2017 24.07.2017 06/07**
03.08.2017 07.12.2017
7 Shri Navin Prakash Sinha Member 08.12.2017 07.06.2018 04/04

*Shri Nirmal Chand attended the meeting through video conferencing on 29.04.2017.
** Shri N K Agarwal attended the meeting through video conferencing on 29.04.2017, 28.06.2017 and 28.08.2017.

3.2 CREDIT APPROVAL COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

The Credit Approval Committee of the Board has been constituted on 25.02.2012 by the Board of Directors in terms of the amendment
of the Nationalised Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme 1970 vide Notification No. S.0.2736(E) dated December
5, 2011. The Committee is empowered with specific financial powers for sanctioning of credit proposals and for settlement for loan

compromise / write off.
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The Chairman of the Committee is the MD & CEO of the Bank. The Committee met 24 times during the period 01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018.
Number of Meetings attended by each Committee Member during the period:

Name of Member Position Tenure of membership | Number of Meetings
attended/held
From To

Shri R Subramaniakumar Chairman of the Committee | 29.09.2016 24/24
Shri K Swaminathan Member 17.02.2017 24/24
Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava Member 09.10.2017 11/11
General Manager, Large Corporate Dept

Member 25.02.2012 24/24
& Mid Corporate Dept
General Manager, MSME Dept Member 25.02.2012 19/24
General Manager, Balance Sheet Member 25.02.2012 23/24
Management Dept(CFO)
G M Risk Management Dept Member 25.02.2012 23/24
G M ARID Member 03/03
GM International Member 01/01
GM DBD Member 00/01
DGM Retail Banking Member 04/04

3.3 AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

The Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) has been constituted by
the Board of Directors as per instructions of the Reserve Bank of
India/GOI and presently consists of four members comprising of
the Executive Director (in charge of Internal Inspection and Audit),
Government Director, RBI Director and one non-official director.
RBI, vide its letter dated September 24, 2015, advised that the ED
in charge of Internal Inspection and Audit should be the member
of the ACB whereas other EDs can be invitees to the meeting.

The delegated functions and duties of the ACB are as under:

= To provide direction as also oversee the operation of the
total audit function in the Bank. Total audit function will
imply the organization, operationalisation and quality
control of the internal audit and inspection within the Bank
and follow up on the statutory / external audit of the Bank
and inspections of RBI.

= To review the internal inspection / audit function in the Bank
—the system, its quality and effectiveness in terms of follow-
up and also the inspection reports of specialized and extra
large branches and all branches with unsatisfactory ratings

= To obtain and review half — yearly reports from the
Compliance Officers of the functional areas

= To review and follow up on the report of the statutory audit
and all the issues raised in the Long Form Audit Report
(LFAR) and interact with the external auditors before the
finalization of the annual / quarterly financial statements
and reports.

= To review and follow up all the issues / concerns raised in
the Inspection reports of RBI.

=  This Committee specially focuses on the follow-up of:
= Inter — Branch Adjustment Accounts

= Unreconciled long outstanding entries in Inter — Bank

Accounts and Nostro Accounts
= Arrears in balancing of books at various branches
= Frauds and all other major areas of house — keeping,

The following additional role functions/powers have been entrusted
to ACB in terms of SEBI Committee on Corporate Governance
guidelines issued by RBI to Indian Commercial Banks listed on
stock exchanges:

. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
. To seek information from any employee.
*  To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if
it considers necessary.

The role of the Audit Committee shall also include the following in
addition to the existing role function:

*  Overseeing of the company’s financial reporting process and
the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

. Reviewing with the Management the financial statements
with special emphasis on accounting policies and practices,
compliance of accounting standards and other legal
requirements concerning the financial statements.

. Reviewing with the Management, external and internal
auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems.

. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

. Discussing with external auditors before the commencement
of audit the nature and scope of audit as well as having post
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
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. Reviewing the company’s Financial and Risk Management 3) Cases of One time settlement involving high value loans
Policies. i
olicies 4)  High value accounts - to evaluate / re-evaluate the value

In line with the suggestions of the Ministry of Finance, Government
of India, the scope of the Audit Committee of the Board was
broadened to include the following reviews of accounts at specific
exposure levels as approved by the Audit Committee of the Board:

1)
2)

Potential NPA / stress cases as and when required.

High value loans which have been granted against a
security which is not free from encumbrances

and quality of security / collateral (both tangible and
especially intangible) provided against the account.

The committee met 12 times during the year 2017-18 on
16.05.2017, 17.05.2017, 09.08.2017, 06.11.2017, 07.11.2017,
29.11.2017, 01.12.2017, 05.12.2017, 30.01.2018, 13.02.2018,
13.02.2018(Financial Result) and 12.03.2018.

All the meetings were conducted with proper quorum and without
any adjournment.

The members who held office during the period 01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018 and the particulars of the number of meetings attended by

them during the year are as under:

SI. No. | Name of Director Position Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended/held
1 Shri K Raghu Chairman of the 09.08.2016 12/12*
Committee

2 Shri K Member # 17.02.2017 08.10.2017 05/05
Swaminathan

3 Shri Ajay Kumar Member # 09.10.2017 07/07
Srivastava

4 Smt Annie George Member 22.07.2016 06/12**
Mathew

5 Shri Nirmal Chand Member 13.03.2014 10/12%**

# With effect from 01.11.2015 ED in charge of Inspection and Audit
is a member of ACB and the other ED is an invitee as advised by RBI.

Till 09.10.2017, ED, Shri K. Swaminathan was in-charge of
Inspection and Audit and since 09.10.2017, ED, Shri Ajay Kumar
Srivastava is in-charge of Inspection and Audit.

*Shri K Raghu attended the meeting through video conferencing
on 01.12.2017 and 05.12.2017.

**Smt Annie George Mathew attended the meeting through video

conferencing on 01.12.2017, 05.12.2017 and 30.01.2018.

*** Shri Nirmal Chand attended the meeting through video
conferencing on 01.12.2017 and 05.12.2017.

3.4 RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Chairman presides over the meetings of the Committee. The
Committee met 5 times during the period from 01.04.2017 to
31.03.2018. Number of Meetings attended by each Member of
the Committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings Attended / held
From To

1 Shri T C A Ranganathan 24.02.2017 05/05*

2 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 05/05

3 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 05/05

4 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 09.10.2017 02/02

5 Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 03/04**

6 Shri Sanjay Rungta 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 05/05

29.01.2018
7 Shri Vishnukumar Bansal 08.08.2016 03/05***

* Shri T C A Ranganathan attended the meeting through video conferencing on 12.02.2018.

**Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal attended the meetings through video conferencing on 17.04.2017 and 27.06.2017.

***Shri Vishnukumar Bansal attended the meetings through video conferencing on 06.11.2017 and 12.02.2018.
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3.5 95 Y0 ! dranufSal & vty og afufa

A Pt 93P B Segerdr THet g W3l gRIBI T 01.04.2017 ¥ 31.03.2018 F SR IAf 2 aR el | af & SR Tfofa & vds
et Bt ufaHIfTaT ol Soe! Bt T

. Jexgdr &t i o
PH Y. frewe w1 — 3 IR/ e 93! 3t H@I
1 St & o T I 16.02.2017 02/02
2 o 3R FEAWEGHAR 29.09.2016 02/02
3 ot & Ty 17.02.2017 02/02
4 | 4t 3o HER diaRdd 09.10.2017 01/01
5 syt U St A 22.07.2016 01/02
6 i & g 26.07.2016 02/02
7 oft Torg I=TeT 08.12.2017 01/01
3.6 UTe® Aar giAfa

AT B} Sob B e THS! d TSN HIA &1 01.04.2017 A 31.03.2018 F SR IAf 4 IR firettl af & SR Tfdfa & wds
e Bt ufaHIRIar o ool &1 TS

P . fAe=re @1 am a:mma%’raraﬁ% IuTR(A/ T Se! Bt TE
1 ot SR GEHEFHIAR 29.09.2016 04/04
2 oft & AT 17.02.2017 04/04
3 ot 3o HAR Farkda 09.10.2017 02/02
4 et Ut oISt g 22.07.2016 03/04*
5 ot FRIRT 3T AR 27.12.2017 01/01

+ offorel} T STt A, Y 10.08.2017 Y WU S5 T ST BIHRAT & TR 1T fera
3.7 3RS ATHE! Bt weften &g affa

TS ) Sob B Semeidl THS! g W3 gRI BT A1 01.04.2017 F 31.03.2018 F SR FiAfd 4 §R et af & SR Iffd & uded
et o ufauifiar a1e S3T B T

P . =T &1 A a:awma%’rarzﬂz U@/ AT do! Pt T=I
1 ot 3R GIHUIHHAR 29.09.2016 04/04
2 oft & T 17.02.2017 04/04
3 ot 3o HAR Harkdd 09.10.2017 02/02
4 et Ut oISt Ay, 22.07.2016 03/04*
5 ot ffa =i 13.03.2014 03/04
+ el O STt A, 3 27.06.2017 Y WU doh W AT BI96RAT B WY U femm
3.8 uTiesyfae afafa

quicTieres e &Y g uiRefie (@rd-fsire | 8 Mg &l Sisa?) & IR H S IWHR gRT iy fomr wrdr 21 3 Az
D H% WPR & A P Gaa® do® Yo P AT S& gRT BIg 30 TIRHTHS T T ST §1 HRd WPR & femnfd =i &
IR ¥ TR FRIUTAS FED! B Jodb Yoo & ARG Bls 3= TS 61 a1 81 S 96% BT 96% Yo — ¥.20000/- U
Yo 3R 3T IS TR FAfY S3b! B Yo +.10000/- UfY 93 B

IF & QUipIad Fem! B WHR! RIM-FE & 3y - & Hedisd 9 Si-FureT Wiems &1 YidH & &
R &34 gq Fexe ded o1 3u afifa- uiefie affa Sfa gug wR e &t s
HAfT av 2017-18 F ERM U@ IR +f 7 et
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3.5 COMMITTEE FOR MONITORING LARGE VALUE FRAUDS

The Chairman presides over the meetings of the Committee. The Committee met 2 times during the period from 01.04.2017 to

31.03.2018. Number of meetings attended by each member of the committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings Attended / held
From To
1 Shri T C A Ranganathan 16.02.2017 02/02
2 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 02/02
3 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 02/02
4 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 09.10.2017 01/01
5 Smt Annie George Mathew 22.07.2016 01/02
6 Shri K Raghu 26.07.2016 02/02
7 Shri Sanjay Rungta 08.12.2017 01/01

3.6 CUSTOMER SERVICE COMMITTEE

The MD & CEO presides over the meetings of the Committee. The Committee met 4 times during the period from 01.04.2017 to

31.03.2018. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings Attended / held
From To

1 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 04/04

2 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 04/04

3 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 09.10.2017 02/02

4 Smt Annie George Mathew 22.07.2016 03/04*

5 Shri Sivaraman Anant Narayan 27.12.2017 01/01

* Smt Annie George Mathew attended the meeting through video conferencing on 10.08.2017.
3.7 COMMITTEE FOR REVIEW OF DISCIPLINARY CASES

The MD & CEO presides over the meetings of the Committee. The Committee met 4 times during the period from 01.04.2017 to

31.03.2018. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings Attended / held
From To

1 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 04/04

2 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 04/04

3 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 09.10.2017 02/02

4 Smt Annie George Mathew 22.07.2016 03/04*

5 Shri Nirmal Chand 13.03.2014 03/04

* Smt Annie George Mathew attended the meeting through video conferencing on 27.06.2017.

3.8 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration (excluding performance linked incentive) payable to the whole time directors is decided by the Central Government.
The Bank does not pay any remuneration to other directors except sitting fees as per directives of Central Government. The Bank does
not pay any remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors excepting sitting fees as per the Government of India guidelines. The sitting
fees paid for Board Meetings — Rs.20000 per meeting and for other Board Level Committee Meetings Fees — Rs.10000/- per meeting.

A Remuneration Committee, a Sub-Committee of the Board of Directors, would be constituted at an appropriate time for evaluating
the performance in terms of government guidelines and to recommend payment of performance-linked incentives to the whole time
directors of the Bank.

The Committee did not meet during the year 2017-2018.
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3.9 AHiHA Ifufa

YR Rod 9 7 f&Aiep- 01.11.2007 & uRuz T Sidtens! I, St 1. 47/29.39.001/2007-08 , S SfebTT U (SUHH &b 3ol T
3faROT) AT 1970 H U M & SIAR B 3R 16.10.2006 F AL R, Fe=e! &) Fgfed &= awa g aur Ifa gRwa o
i A9 & TP/ ugfa, TieR & RuRo & o sravas feznfdws 9™t ferar g1

YR o § 3 fewr fean g 6 v qur Ifea Ireus &1 ofd ¥ g7 U e Rie! (RRRYRS AR - adar qur yfas gt #
ot ] fasa e

01.04.2017 § 31.03.2018 I 3(afY H SR I Th IR 16.11.2017 Y et | remer AT B 3] DI 3egerl Hrd § | Iffa Bt
ST TIRAT gRT b1 Tt

E ke R &AM meaﬁ&rafﬁ - w@ﬁ/a@gﬁéﬁﬁ
1 off 1 <t T IR 16.02.2017 01/01
2 | ot O St Ay 22.07.2016 01/01
3 | fivg 26.07.2016 01/01
*ftH I A 16.11.2017 B YUF 3% & ST HIBRIT & TR Wit feram
3.10 AT Mt Torifa afafa
AT BT Sferard JoRAA RIS T 9N & SR G & e Fawd! Bi URIHIRI ard 96! &t Se:
FAY PR &1 T — Waﬁ&ﬁfz au@ra/en?gaaaam
1 gt &t TR 16.02.2017 04/04
2 | ot 3R YHUISHHR 29.09.2016 04/04
3| ot wriERE 17.02.2017 04/04
4 ot 3T AR Hardd 09.10.2017 02/02
5 | vy 26.07.2016 03/04
6 | ot TdH gt R 08.12.2017 01/01
3.11 99 HH1YA W SIS wRig |fafa

JiRfa B 93F BT remerdl THS! 9 TSN gRT P TRI 01.04.2017 ¥ 31.03.2018 b SR Iifd 3 IR fireft | a9 & SRM Tffd & ude
ot & UfaHIfTGT ard Sooh! 31 T

FU . PR &1 M el 1 St SRR SR S Bt

GEZ ) ezl
1 o SR GEHEFHIAR 29.09.2016 03/03
2 it & TrEATRE 17.02.2017 03/03
3 ot 3o HHR Harkdd 09.10.2017 02/02
4 | ol O SISt Ay 22.07.2016 01/03
5 | SIAAIm AR 21.12.2011 02/03
6 &t FRIGRHT 3 TR0 27.12.2017 02/02

sftereht Tt SISt B2, A 27.06.2017 HY WUF 9 B ST HI6RIT & TRT 1T feran |
SIAAIAMHGTT 27.06.2017 T 30.01.2018 Bl TUF 6% H ST HITHRAT P FWRY HFT ferm|
off fRIGRTAT 3T ARM™UT T 20.03.2018 P TUF S35 | dif STl BIDpRIT 3 WY HIT fora|
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RBI, vide circular ref: DBOD. No. BC. No.47 / 29.39.001 / 2007-08 dated 01 11 2007, pursuant to the amendment in The Banking

Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 effective 16.10.2006, has issued necessary guidelines for determining

the authority, manner/procedure and criteria for deciding the ‘Fit and Proper’ status etc., while appointing the Directors.

RBI has directed that the “Fit and Proper” criteria, as of now, be made applicable to the elected directors (Shareholder directors) — both

present and future.

The Committee met one time during the period from 01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018 on 16.11.2017. The Chairman presides over the

Meetings of the Committee.

SI. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended / held
1 Shri TCA Ranganathan 16.02.2017 01/01
2 Smt Annie George Mathew 22.07.2016 01/01
3 Shri K Raghu 26.07.2016 01/01*

* Shri K Raghu attended the meeting through video conferencing on 16.11.2017.

3.10 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Chairman, presides over the meetings of the Committee. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during

the year:
SI. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended / held
1 Shri TCA Ranganathan 16.02.2017 04/04
2 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 04/04
3 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 04/04
4 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 09.10.2017 02/02
5 Shri KRaghu 26.07.2016 03/04
6 Shri Navin Prakash Sinha 08.12.2017 01/01

3.11 BOARD LEVEL STEERING COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

The MD & CEO presides over the meetings of the Committee. The Committee met 3 times during the period from 01.04.2017 to

31.03.2018. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended / held

1 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 03/03

2 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 03/03

3 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 09.10.2017 02/02

4 Smt Annie George Mathew 22.07.2016 01/03*

5 Dr T T Ram Mohan 21.12.2011 02/03**

6 Shri Sivaraman Anant Narayan 27.12.2017 02/02***

*Smt Annie George Mathew attended the meeting through video conferencing on 27.06.2017.
**Dr T T Ram Mohan attended the meetings through video conferencing on 27.06.2017 and 30.01.2018.

***Shri Sivaraman Anant Narayan attended the meeting through video conferencing on 20.03.2018.
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AT Pt 5P B eHerdl THe! g A3 gRI BT T 01.04.2017 ¥ 31.03.2018 B SR IR 6 IR el | af & SR T & v

T Bt ufauIiTaT aret 9a ! &t TRe:
HHY Ry® HTAH R B S Iufyd/ &Tchﬁﬂ Joh! B

aw 3 Nicsl

1 ot 3R GIHUIHHR 29.09.2016 06/06

2 | it @rfErE 17.02.2017 06/06

3 ot 3o HAR Harkdd 09.10.2017 03/03

4 | it O S g 22.07.2016 05/06

5 DI CIEREINITE 08.12.2017 02/02

6 | HEIUSYD (@gel) 08.12.2012

7 | "SI USYD (GBUT YY) 08.12.2012

8 | % & aRgad HeT Usits 08.12.2012

* i U SISl A A 27.06.2017 T 10.08.2017 HY WU 93 B Fifga HIRHRIT & TR v ferar |

3.13 SR TR Fot 3 Pt ¥ Priwe @t wif

IS ) So B SeHerd] THS! g D3N gRTBT T 01.04.2017 F 31.03.2018 & SR FiHfd 4 IR fireht| avf & SRM IRl & uds

Fat &t UfaHIaT ard Seeh! Bl T
. Tl T Al IufRd; MR S
9T, YT BT T| / S 3l
EZ J T
1 off 3R YEAWUFHAR 29.09.2016 04/04
2 ot & WHATRAE 17.02.2017 04/04
3 ot S $UR srard 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 02/02
. 08.12.2014
4 ot Torg F1er 08122017 07.12.2017 04/04
5 | vy 26.07.2016 04/04
6 ot 91 g Rsgr 08.12.2017 02/02
3.14 RIGAA qH Pt TR THtem afifa
it 1 935 BT 3remed THS! 9 TS3N gRI P TR 01.04.2017 H 31.03.2018 & SR IHfd 4 IR firel | a9 & SR IfHfa & ude
Jet Bt UfaHIRTaT ard el o1 BT
_ eI o 3afy Jufydy MR 93! Bt
HH Y. = &1 AH .
GEo I =T
1 o 3R YEAWGHAR 29.09.2016 04/04
2 | R s 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 04/04
29.01.2018 e
3 ot RS $ER SraTd 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 03/03
4 ot 981 gepTRr Rt 08.12.2017 01/01
3.15 fgaur® Ay gfafa
off Ior TeT 39 AT P e g1 01.04.2017 ¥ 31.03.2018 & R FHfT 4 IR firehh| o & SR IS & Ul et &t
Ui TS 93! Bt TEBT:
i FEwdl b 3fafe IR/ AR S5l
9T, YT T TH / S #l
REZ I =
1 A1 3R IHUIHHR 29.09.2016 01/01
2 ot & ATy 17.02.2017 03/03
L 08.12.2014
3 ot Torg F1er 50012018 07.12.2017 04/04
4 i FARSH AR eard 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 02/02
ot FRIRTAA 3Fd AR™U 29.01.2018 02/02
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3.12 BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEE TO MONITOR RECOVERY IN NPA
The MD & CEO presides over the meetings of the Committee. The Committee met 6 times during the period 01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018.

Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended / held

1 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 06/06

2 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 06/06

3 Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava 09.10.2017 03/03

4 Smt Annie George Mathew 22.07.2016 05/06*

5 Shri Navin Prakash Sinha 08.12.2017 02/02

6 General Manager (Recovery) 08.12.2012

7 General Manager (Credit Monitoring) 08.12.2012

8 Senior-most General Manager of the Bank 08.12.2012

* Smt Annie George Mathew attended the meetings through video conferencing on 27.06.2017 and 10.08.2017.

3.13 COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS FOR ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
The MD & CEO presides over the meetings of the Committee. The Committee met 4 times during the period from 01.04.2017 to
31.03.2018. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended / held
1 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 04/04
2 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 04/04
3 Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 02/02
4 Shri Sanjay Rungta 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 04/04
08.12.2017

5 Shri K Raghu 26.07.2016 04/04

Shri Navin Prakash Sinha 08.12.2017 02/02

3.14 REVIEW COMMITTEE ON WILFUL DEFAULTERS

The MD & CEO presides over the meeting of the Committee. The Committee met 4 times during the period from 01.04.2017 to

31.03.2018. Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

SI. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended / held
1 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 04/04
2 Shri Sanjay Rungta 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 04/04
29.01.2018
3 Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 03/03
4 Shri Navin Prakash Sinha 08.12.2017 01/01

3.15 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Shri Sanjay Rungta is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee met 4 times during the period 01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018.

Number of meetings attended by each member of the Committee during the year:

Sl. No. Name of the Directors Tenure of membership Number of Meetings
From To Attended / held
1 Shri R Subramaniakumar 29.09.2016 01/01
2 Shri K Swaminathan 17.02.2017 03/03
3 Shri Sanjay Rungta 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 04/04
29.01.2018
4 Shri Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 08.12.2014 07.12.2017 02/02
5 Shri Sivaraman Anant Narayan 29.01.2018 02/02
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et (Ter.31 2t 3iR) & fafom 6 & Taiy & Yafl, wies vaaa onfe
& fafay yraei & srguTer gg Ieemdi= safy & gR gt ar
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a. Compliance Officer:

In terms of Regulation 6 of SEBI (LODR), Ms. Deepa Chellam
is the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer during
the period under review for the purpose of complying with the
various provisions of SEBI, Stock Exchanges etc.

b. Shareholders Complaints
Number of complaints received, resolved and pending during
the year:

Pending as on 01.04.2017 1
Received during the year 119

Redressed during the year 120

Pending as on 31.03.2018 Nil
In terms of Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR), we have
advised the shareholders that an exclusive e-mail ID -
investorcomp@iobnet.co.in has been allotted and Ms. Deepa
Chellam, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for the
purpose of registering and redressal of complaints by investors.
We have displayed this email ID and other relevant details
prominently on our website. The Investor Relations Cell headed
by the Company Secretary is handling the redressal of investor
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complaints.

5. GENERAL BODY MEETING:

a. Location and time where last three Annual General Meetings
were held:

Sl. | Nature of | Date, Day and time Venue
No. | Meeting of Meeting
1 | 15th AGM | 30.06.2015,Tuesday, | Narada Gana Sabha
10.30 AM 314, TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018
2 | 16th AGM 18.07.2016, Rani Seethai Hall,
Monday, 10.00 AM 603, Anna Salai,
Chennai — 600 006
3 | 17th AGM 28.06.2017, Narada Gana Sabha
Wednesday 314, TTK Road,
10.00 AM Chennai 600 018

b. In the 15th ,16th and 17th AGMSs, special resolutions were
put through to obtain the shareholders approval to raise capital
by way of issue of equity shares through Qualified Institutional
Placement (QIP), Rights Issue, Preferential allotment or Follow-on
Public Offer or preference shares (cumulative / non cumulative).

d. Location and time where Extra Ordinary General Meetings were heldThere was no postal ballot exercise.

Sl. No. Nature of Meeting Date, Day and time of Meeting Venue
1 EGM 16.12.2013 Monday 10.00 A.M. Hotel Ambassador Pallava, 30,
Montieth Road, Egmore,
Chennai — 600 008
2 EGM 26.02.2014 Wednesday 10.00 A.M. Narada Gana Sabha 314, TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018
3 EGM 23.09.2015 Wednesday 10.00 A.M. Narada Gana Sabha 314, TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018
4 EGM 24.03.2016 Thursday 10.30 A.M. Narada Gana Sabha 314, TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018
5 EGM 15.09.2016 Thursday 10.00 A.M. Rani Seethai Hall, 603, Anna Salai,
Chennai - 600 006
6. EGM 29.11.2017 Wednesday 10.30 A.M. * Narada Gana Sabha 314, TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018
7. EGM 30.01.2018 Tuesday 10.30 A.M.** Narada Gana Sabha 314, TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018
8. EGM 28.03.2018 Wednesday 10.00 A.M. Narada Gana Sabha 314, TTK Road,
Chennai 600 018

The above EGMs were held for obtaining shareholders approval
for issue of equity shares to Government of India and LIC and its
various schemes on preferential basis.

*EGM held for election of Shareholder Directors

** EGM held for obtaining shareholders approval for set off of
Share Premium Account against accumulated losses

e) E-Voting:

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 44 of SEBI
(LODR), the Issuer agrees to provide E-Voting facility to its
shareholders in respect of all shareholders resolutions, to be
passed at AGM/EGM. Accordingly, the Bank is providing e-voting
facility.

6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

a. The quarterly un-audited financial results of the Bank are
approved by the Board of Directors and the same are submitted
within the stipulated period to all the stock exchanges where the
Bank's shares are listed. The Bank has been sending Annual
Reports under Green Initiative by email to those shareholders
whose e-mail addresses are available with the Bank and through
courier/post to shareholders who have not registered their email
id for this purpose.

b. The quarterly financial results are published in a national daily,
Hindi daily and a regional vernacular daily in terms of Regulation
47 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (LODR). The details and dates of publication
are as under:
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Quarter ended English Daily Tamil Daily Hindi Daily Date of
publication
31.03.2017 Business Line The Hindu Jansatta 18.05.2017
30.06.2017 Business Line The Hindu Jansatta 11.08.2017
30.09.2017 Business Standard The Hindu Business Standard 08.11.2017
31.12. 2017 Financial Express The Hindu Jansatta 14.02.2018
c. The quarterly results/annual results and Performance Analysis Dividend Date of Transfer to | Due Date for Transferring
are also being displayed on the Bank's web-site www.iob.in for the year | Unpaid Dividend A/c | to Government (IEPF)
d. Bank displays official press release during quarterly/annual 5010-11 02.09.2011 September 2018
results —
2011-12 16.10.2012 September 2019
7. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 2012-13 01.08.2013 September 2020
a) AGM: Date, Time and Venue:- 2013-14 () | 05.03.2014 April 2021
Date 11.07.2018 2013-14 (F) | 01.08.2014 September 2021
Time 10.00 am f. The Bank's shares are listed on the following stock exchanges:
Venue Auditorium Staff College, Indian Overseas
Bank, Behind Vee Care Hospital, 100 Feet Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code
Road towards Thirumangalam, 230/7A Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 532388
Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Anna Nagar, National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. | IOB EQ AE BE BT
Chennai- 600 040 Annual Listing Fees for the year 2017-18 have been paid to the

b) Financial Year : 01st April 2017 to 31st March 2018.

c) Dividend Payment Date : NIL (Bank incurred losses during
FY 2017-18)

d) Date of Book Closure : 04.07.2018 to 11.07.2018 (Both
days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

e) Unpaid Dividend:

The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of
Undertakings) and Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment)
Act, 2006, has incorporated a new section 10(B) in the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act 1970
on Unpaid dividend of banks and Ministry of Corporate Affairs had
advised the process to be followed by banks for transferring the
Unpaid Dividend amount to Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF).

Accordingly, the unpaid dividend of previous years has been
transferred to Unpaid Dividend Account/s of IOB and hence such
monies, which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
years, shall be transferred to |IEPF:

stock exchanges within the prescribed due dates.

Authorised Capital: As on 31.03.2018, the Authorized Capital of
the Bank is Rs.10000 crore.

Increase in Paid-up Capital:

The Bank has issued 39,78,30,018 equity shares of Rs.10/- each
for cash at issue price of Rs.27.65 per equity share (including
premium of Rs.17.65 per equity share) aggregating upto Rs.1100
crore to Government of India on Preferential Basis on 31.08.2017
and 203,82,11,029 equity shares of Rs.10/- each for cash at issue
price of Rs.23.03 per equity share (including premium of Rs.13.03
per equity share) aggregating upto Rs.4694 crore to Government
of India on Preferential Basis on 28.03.2018. Hence, the paid-
up capital of the Bank has increased from Rs.2454.73 crore
to Rs. 4890.77 crore. Government of India’s shareholding has
increased from Rs.1953.04 crore (79.56%) to Rs.4389.08 crore
(89.74%) and the Public shareholding stood at Rs.501.69 crore
(10.26%).

g) Market Price Data:-
Period - Month NSE BSE
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
April 2017 29.20 26.70 29.65 26.75
May 2017 32.20 24.90 32.25 24.85
June 2017 26.90 24.50 26.95 24.55
July 2017 27.45 24.60 27.45 23.60
August 2017 25.30 21.60 25.60 21.50
September 2017 25.25 22.20 25.25 22.20
October 2017 28.40 19.80 28.70 21.55
November 2017 26.70 23.05 27.00 23.10
December 2017 24.10 21.00 24.15 22.10
January 2018 25.40 22.15 25.20 21.75
February 2018 22.80 18.70 22.85 18.80
March 2018 19.70 17.15 19.95 17.00

Figures in bold represent the high/low price of the Bank’s shares traded during the year 2017 -18, in the respective Stock Exchanges.

Our Bank was not suspended from trading.
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i) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:

Cameo Corporate Services Limited (Unit-IOB)
Subramanian Building, V Floor No.1 Club House Road, Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28460395 Fax: 28460129 e-mail: cameo@cameoindia.com

i) Share Transfer System:

Our Bank’s Board of Directors have delegated the power of transactions on equity shares to Executive Level Share Transfer Approval
Committee (ELSTAC), Committee of General Managers, to consider and approve Share Transfer, Transmission etc. The minutes of the
ELSTAC meetings are reported to the Board of Directors in each meeting. The Committee met 26 times during last year and reports
were submitted to the Board.

k) Distribution of shareholding as on 31.03.2018:

S No Category No. of Shares % of share holding
PROMOTERS HOLDING

1 Government of India 4389084289 89.74
Sub-Total 4389084289 89.74

NON-PROMOTERS HOLDING

2 Institutional Investors

A Mutual Funds and UTI 0 0

B Banks, Financial Institutions 279093543 5.71

C Insurance Companies 13438245 0.27

D Foreign Institutional Investors 242012 0

E Overseas Corporate Body 48000 0

F Foreign Portfolio Investor 26415977 0.54
Sub-Total 319237777 6.52

3 OTHERS

A Private Corporate Bodies 24350241 0.50

B Individuals 149952363 3.07

C NRI 6973788 0.14

D Others 1171517 0.03
Sub-total 182447909 3.74

GRAND TOTAL 4890769975 100.00
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1) Distribution schedule as on 31.03.2018

No. of Shareholder % to Total No.of Shareholding in terms Share Amount % to Total
Shareholders of nominal value of (Face Value)
Rs.10/-

208595 81.63 1 - 5000 368931190 0.75
26963 10.55 5001 - 10000 226888640 0.46
10826 4.23 10001 - 20000 162207330 0.33
3108 1.22 20001 - 30000 79491020 0.16

1478 0.58 30001 - 40000 53494920 0.11
1202 0.47 40001 - 50000 57228350 0.12
1787 0.70 50001 - 100000 133865690 0.27
1582 0.62 | 100001 - And Above 47825592610 97.79
255541 100.00 Total 48907699750 100.00

m) Foreign Shareholding as on 31.03.2018

S No Category As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2018
No. of shares % To total capital No. of shares % To total capital

1 Foreign Institutional 5803296 0.24 242012 0.00
Investors
OCBs 48000 0.00 48000 0.00
NRIs 6380013 0.26 6973788 0.14
Foreign  Portfolio 19986890 0.81 26415977 0.54
Investor
Total 32218199 1.31 33679777 0.69

As detailed in the above table, the total foreign shareholding (Flls, OCBs, NRIs and Foreign Portfolio Investors) as at 31.03.2018
was 0.69% which is within the stipulated level of 20% of the total paid up capital of the Bank.

n) Top five shareholders of the Bank as on 31.03.2018:

S No Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares held % of Total Holding
1 The President of India, Government of India 4389084289 89.74
2 LIC of India 262053524 5.36
3 Ashish Rameshkumar Goenka 12865778 0.26
4 United India Insurance Company Limited 8756567 0.18
5| sorsofVanguard inemstors Euiyncex Funce 7504209 015

o) Dematerialization of shares & Physical Holding:The shares of the Bank are under compulsory demat trading. The Bank is a

member of the depository services with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited

(CDSL) as an issuer company for dematerialization of the Bank's shares. Shareholders can get their shares dematerialized with either
NSDL or CDSL. The depository services have allotted the following ISIN code to the Bank: INE565A01014.

Out of 489.08 crore equity shares as on 31.3.2018, 486.18 crore equity shares or 99.41% are held by 168607 shareholders in Demat

form (of which Government of India holds 438.91 crore equity shares in Demat form aggregating to 89.46%) and 2.90 crore equity
shares or 0.59% are held by 86934 shareholders in physical form.
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Unclaimed shares held in Demat Account:

The position of shares held in the unclaimed suspense account is mentioned below:

Details No. of shareholders No. of Shares

Aggregate number of shareholders and outstanding shares lying in unclaimed 221 55000
suspense account at the beginning of 01.04.2017

Number of Shareholders who approached for transfer of shares from unclaimed 1 200
suspense account during the year

Number of Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the unclaimed 1 200
suspense account

Aggregate Number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in the 220 54800
unclaimed suspense account at the end of 31.03.2018

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.
q) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:
The Bank has not issued any GDRs /ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments.

r) The bank has raised non-convertible bonds in the nature of promissory notes from time to time. The details of such bonds
outstanding as on 31.03.2018 are as follows:

Series Date of Allotment | Size (Rs. in cr) Tenor (in months) | Coupon % Redemption Date
LOWERTIER I

Xl 22.08.2008 300.00 120 10.85 22.08.2018
Xl 24.08.2009 290.00 120 08.48 24.08.2019
XIvV 31.12.2010 1000.00 120 08.95 31.12.2020
Upper Tier Il Call Option Date
I 17.09.2008 655.30 @180 11.05 @17.09.2018
Il 01.09.2009 510.00 @180 08.80 @01.09.2019
v 10.01.2011 967.00 @180 09.00 @10.01.2021
Tier | Basel Il (Perpetual )

v | 29.9.2009 300.00 @perpetual 09.30 @29.09.2019
Tier | Basel lll (Perpetual)

| | 04.02.2015 1000.00 *perpetual 10.00 04.02.2020
Basel lll Tier Il

1 | 03.11.2016 800.00 @120 9.24 @@03.11.2021

@Call option available at the end of 10 years (with the prior approval of RBI). If the call Option is not exercised, the coupon rate will
be stepped up by 50 bps.

@@Call option available at the end of 5 years (with prior approval of RBI)

*Call option available at the end of 5 years (with prior approval of RBI).
s) BOND TRUSTEE TO THE ISSUE:

The Bank has appointed M/s. IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd., Mumbai, as Bond Trustees to all the above Bond Issues, to safeguard
and to protect the interests of the investors of the Bonds. Address of the Trustees is given below:
IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.,

Asian Building, 17 R Kamani Road, Ballard Estate, Fort, MUMBAI-400 001
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. TR &1 Udl:

TR P SR, ATHIRT YA SR et & et s it forarerany e R 7 WeR 3R 0T Yol A ) HiaRe gard fer. &
Hrafad B fHu o ¥ | AIRYRS 307 3R ferg 3R 37 1 +ff craw, R Fafifad ud W oof &R gahd 21
I Hra HuRe 9idaw fa.
@fe - 3mz.3is) gemorme fafegT, utadt dfre
.1, 79 ST AS I 600 002
MBI -044- 28460395, aﬁ'\‘f— 28460129: 's:ﬁﬁ : cameo@cameoindia.com
% & FefaRad 1 W IRURS! Bt Riwmd & Fuer & faw ik 376! a1 & faw o & Sy srfaa o e d6y w3l

gfUey O 9@
e YU Fel, FT BT, 763 AU A
3-600 002
MBI : 044-71729791, 28415702, 28889392 ThaHg-044-28585675

é.ﬁﬂ: investor@iobnet.co.in/investorcomp@iobnet.co.in

UHEHT

T UdeH & Y afgaal gt guiefers Fewie ok M ot sifiert § Teifta urdf aea & udhed ot fadmet siuR W
griten Hed B oAt ulen Qivfa gRT B ST § |

. 9% & R, sy 7% It nfe & gy § & &M3R Hifd 8, ot fop gAY JeT8e R Uy B
U IE Aeayyl uref oe el § fd ¥ & fodl | $ ¥ 3 Wfapd o » R wRda Rerd b7 uRd
TAGd THIG ISt Y | WHR GRT I 90T W SR wifafdes / feenfd=n /

@ AH T o fFufge Ry SuSt-2/SNEliRy e 7 & S gt arfird e amamant o1 urer faar
3RSi1/2437/1/2018 feAifdhd- 24.01.2018 $ GRT qat g
AR 1992 BT URT 15 TIEl BAR 5 & HW . Ast (CASIEINR) B AT 34 ¥ Gedf § ¥ 2017-
¥.2.00 TG &1 U] TR B 1 I8 UHTee] IR SiguTad 18 ¥ R ERE IWRE RO TR §F
& PHRU A TR A T YA 12.03.2018 B JeTEE www.iob.in B IUTR BIE T &
e _ o, TR aRet B 9 3w RO F SaT T oER R
W Tadel /At / et s wifafie miteRt gr ifYard sravaaralt B o T &

31.03.2018 & GAT U diF a8t & SR Yol eIk : o .
e Foelt 1t R O% 3o T 4 21 20 e T SR a3 HUEE SR AR &1 dare T8 Bl gl

T AR B TS @ | TS, THS! 9 WE3N aUT st BT YIRS HRd TRER gRI
2. e Rt ¥ oFuR adaH ¥ ¥ & e fewa freffd 8, forenT faavor e wu § fear man &
. TR YIS &7 SRT AR (. H)
®.9. Sic) U™ 3afd
Jaq Lo
A S PR, 01.04.2017
1 {3 30.06.2016%! g ag® aify 30.06.2017 182573* 76581* 259154
a1 fAgqd o
ot Siqa Sprard feHid
2 30.09.2016 &I JaT CaRC 01.04.2017 239414* 101205* 340619
30.06.2017
3 ot 3R GIHUIHHAR g age ofy 21 '8:581 ; 2624035 249429 2873465
01.04.2017
4 ot & Ty CaRC 31032018 2277512 216930 2494442
ot 35 FHAR 09.10.2017
5 S CIA] 31032018 1065933 101517 1167450
*da1 g UUw &1 SH1T

HYRJ IHR & fA® 20.07.2015 & IRUF . 15/1/2011- S.3M.1 F IR §F TR RS FH HI U SIS 8% ¥.20000/-
6@ Yo d F. 10000/- Ui AT oo & Srarar freht +ft yR o1 aikefiie =16t ver &l
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t) Address for Correspondence:

Share transfers, dividend payment and all other investor related activities are attended to and processed at the office of Cameo
Corporate Services Ltd., Registrars & Share Transfer Agents. Shareholders may lodge the transfer deeds and any other documents,
grievances and complaints at their address:
Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(Unit-IOB) Subramanian Building, V Floor
No.1 Club House Road, Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28460395 Fax: 28460129 email:cameo@cameoindia.com

The Bank has an Investor Relations Cell at its Central Office to handle the complaints and service requirements of the shareholders at
the following address:
Indian Overseas Bank
Investor Relations Cell, Central Office, 763, Anna Salai
Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28519654, 71729791, 28415702, Fax : 044-28585675
email: investor@iobnet.co.in / investorcomp@iobnet.co.in

Disclosures

a. Disclosures as to Related Party Transactions of Key Bank has a Whistle Blower Policy and affirmed that no
Managerial Personnel i.e. Whole Time Directors are being personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee
reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Audit Committee of the as per CVC guidelines and the same is disclosed in our
Board. website.

b. There are no significant related party transactions of the The Bank has complied with all the mandatory requirements
Bank with its directors, management or their relatives etc to the extent provided for in the statutes/guidelines/
that would have potential conflict with the interests of the directives issued from time to time by RBI/Government of
Bank at large. India to the nationalized banks.

c. SEBI vide its Adjudicating Order EAD-2/DSR/ In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR), Business
RG/2437/1/2018 dated 24.01.2018 had imposed a penalty Responsibility Report for the year 2017-18 is made available
of Rs.2.00 lakhs on our Bank under Section 15HB of the in our Bank’s web site: www.iob.in
SEBI Act 1992. The penalty was imposed due to cgrtain The Non Mandatory requirements have been adopted as
non compliance and the penalty amount was paid on stated in this report against the relevant items.

1205.2018 h.  The Bank does not undertake commodity market activities.
Except for the above, no other penalties were imposed or
strictures passed on us by Stock Exchanges/SEBI /any i The remuneration of MD & CEO and EDs is fixed by the
statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets Government of India. The details of remuneration paid to
during the last three years ended 31.03.2018. the MD & CEO and EDs are detailed below:
Details of Remuneration
S No Name Designation Period Amount (Rs)
Salary PF
1 Mr R Koteeswaran MD & CEO 01.04.2017 182573* 76581* 259154
Superannuated on 30.06.2017
30.06.2016
2 Mr. Atul Agarwal ED 01.04.2017 239414* 101205* 340619
Superannuated on 30.06.2017
30.09.2016
3 Mr R Subramaniakumar MD & CEO 01.04.2017 - 2624035 249429 2873465
31.03.2018
4 Mr K Swaminathan ED 01.04.2017 - 2277512 216930 2494442
31.03.2018
5 Mr Ajay Kumar ED 09.10.2017 - 1065933 101517 1167450
Srivastava 31.03.2018

*Arrears of Salary and PF
The Bank does not pay any remuneration to the non executive directors except sitting fee fixed by Government of India which is
Rs.20,000/- per Board Meeting and Rs.10,000/- per Committee Meeting in terms of GOI Circular No.15/1/2011- BO.1 dated 20.07.2015.
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¥ JAEasiElemR) & g 17 8) & AR WEaft 3R
S sl &1 gHUE 6 $ PR ded ) I g w3
3R we Ui 39 RUIE & a1y Jau &

T I§ (TASNSR) & faf o 34 & Jed & av 2017-18 &
foru o ¥ BIURe e W IuFe Sy awr et §
T U3 U1 o 7T B 3R g 39 Ul & 91y Srgeifia g |

TH §b @ arHi faaRor Ay § Pt IgdEe www.iob.in TR
REREIE

T et & fore uRfed srfeal &1 AR §& @t daumge
www.iob.in tIT%EITTI'CIT%r

. R-rftrd=mere srdemd
R- =TS )
o ¥ grT SUaTE T
S, PUH S TAIRR | yrg WPR gRT 3§dd R-
T STUEN | s e @ P e
WT% FITEE |
. fo<itg ufeom deeTge W yelid
TRRYRB| & SHABR T T 2|
2017-18 1 aroien fewgoft #
S st A s e T 2
Aot & & Sl b A IR
Uy G & Ug Bl YR TRPR
BRI Ue TR-BRGRY feqes H et
feges g WgsN & AT | T § alfes §a bl o Aifa fgw
uq femn 1 9% SR uw yolwifes
PRGRT TEY FR=d R dgai
¥ & fe-ufafed wrf ot R
FRAD
. o Jap Rl 3mafie
49 | vy @ when 3q 91 » AE
Td Bl STl B
Fd I xS Hed & iR
EF| (3R, GTHUIHHR)
29.05.2018 UaY R 7 e SRiuTad SHfrdRY

~ &

The Certificate of CEO and CFO in accordance with
Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) has been submitted to the
Board of Directors of the Bank and a copy is attached to
this report.

l. In terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR), a certificate
has been obtained from the Statutory Central Auditors on
corporate governance in the Bank for the year 2017-18 and
the same is annexed to this report.

m. The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Bank is available on
the Bank’s website at www.iob.in

n. Details of familiarization programmes for Directors have
been given on the Bank’s website at www.iob.in

B. NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

Non Mandatory Our Adoption
Requirements

The Board — Maintenance | Bank has not provided office for
of an office by a non | the non-executive Chairman
executive Chairman at
the company’s expense

Shareholders Rights The financial results are displayed
in our website.

Audit Qualification The Audit Reports for the year
2017-18 do not contain qualified
remarks.

Separate post of | The post of Chairman and
Chairman and CEO Managing Director of Public
Sector Banks has been bifurcated
by the Government of India into a
non-executive Chairman to give an
overall policy direction to the Bank
and a full time executive Managing
Director & CEO to oversee the day
to day functioning of the Bank.

Internal Auditor The Bank has its own Internal
Audit/Inspection and their reports
are periodically placed to the Audit
Committee for review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chennai (R. Subramaniakumar)

29.05.2018 Managing Director & CEO
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2017-18
TR9TeRt T SftaT U= DIRECTORS PROFILE

1.t & T T
e

3 9 o fafd 64 98- 19.11.1953

1. Shri. T C A Ranganathan
Chairman

TGl WabRR SIRd

Age and Date of Birth: 64 years - 19.11.1953

fgfad &t [l 16.02.2017

Qualification: MA (Economics)

IAAM <H BT g fafy
15.02.2020

Date of Appointment: 16.02.2017

Date of expiry of the current term: 15.02.2020

SfHd

Id WA dias |, ool @a T SeFe 3 A/
Wﬂ;ﬂﬁ%@ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁqmﬁwwaﬁmw
YT B

oft 1 Tt T IFRA T BRER) 2010 ¥ TR 2013 S SR TRH
do # diurst & U # s fHar ufegn o & e &
FOH, d YRd WIR & FS ﬁ%ﬁﬁm@ﬁﬁ?s@—mu
aﬁbﬁm?ﬁ%&hqﬁw @Wﬁaﬁﬂmﬁms@ AR
Tgad AMUR G 9% BRY , e |

H AR TIARET 7 30 HRIR B LIATT HRAT T §F F
B STE1 QIR T/ IR e & w0 H we sfbu
P A & I WY S, wigRe fag, FHaw S
&t & ft 7 o IR Y U R b

-2009-2010 & R Ve §& 3 FHMR 7 TR & ey
o= ¥ 38

- 2007-2009 ¥ GRM R §& T a1 & & T5T Uaed
& =0 § wrf foan

- 2005-2007 & ERM We d& 3T e & T sriapry
S & Fu A B fasan

- 2004-05 ¥ SR IR HRd H Hel Yays 3R g wroRke
28 890 Bruiag & U § 1 fhar

- 2001-2004 & SR TTSIATS Hitcd AP < fAfies & aky
1Y WS ud Y Efsar 38 & wu & &rd fpam |

atfzooo 2001%%%%%&1%”@?%%%
IRad 8 URAIT We d& gRT R ddh-itd! a1 ga
%W%Wﬁm

- a9 1997-1999 ¥ SR Ta dd HU T He&f, HRAT
RedH F RS

- 99 1995-1997 % ERM HRAN W< 9F & &I UsUD (
gt o) & U H HRRd

T qd & SRIT Srgval & i (@aiang , <Erg) # ugen
YR aifofsaes s aftared &1 guRY , 1 i
Waqﬁmﬁﬁmﬂwﬁaﬁmﬁaﬁéﬁw
Te1, 3G 2 |

FHAE T 7 SR SHaT (T gAS o) ¥ Tdg 819 &
Y- TS /0TS /e sudy /Afea SeRid 3k
TR & Ua & W fuifaes & =0 o &l a3 & Srarar
AT 3YIRE SIRRIPTT TRl et - A 1 SgHe
%me%%muﬁwg%ﬁﬁ?m

S{RTPT STUR/ B Srefeuae H e 3
JHARIR- Y31 Td Aol & BiaH ford g

Experience:

Shri T. C. A. Ranganathan has over 39 years of
banking experience after completing his graduation/
post-graduation in Economics from St. Stephen’s
College, Delhi School of Economics.

Shri T. C. A. Ranganathan served as the Chairman
and Managing Director of Export-Import Bank of India
from February 2010 to November 2013. As Chairman
of Exim Bank, he had been a member of several
Government of India overseas initiatives such as
Indo-South Africa CEO Forum, Indo-Africa Business
Council, Indo-Myanmar Joint Trade and Investment
Forum etc.

Shri T C A Ranganathan started his career with State
Bank of India wherein he had diverse assignments in
International Banking, Investment Banking, Corporate
Finance and Consultancy, in addition to Domestic
Banking as Branch Head/ Branch Controller and also
held the following positions :

- Managing Director of State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur
from 2009-2010.

- Chief General Manager of State Bank of India from
2007-2009

- Chief Executive Officer of State Bank of India from
2005-2007

- General Manager and Head of the Mid Corporate
Regional Office for North India (2004-05)

- Senior Vice President and North India Head of SBI
Capital Markets Ltd. (2001-2004)

- Member of Technology Planning Group set up by
SBI for introducing new technology and change
management initiatives (2000-2001)

- Head of Credit Appraisal Cell of the newly formed
Commercial Network, State Bank of India, New
Delhi (1997-1999)

- Regional Manager of SBI (Western Rajasthan)
(1995-1997).

His earlier International experiences include start-
ing the first Indian Commercial Banking operations in
China (SBI Shanghai) and Board positions in various
SBI subsidiaries in North America, Africa and Asia.

Currently, he is associated with ITC Geneva (a UNDP
organization) as also 2 US based international
consultancy  organizations M/s. Gerson Lehman
Group and M/s. Bower Asia Group apart from
working as an arbitrator through the panels of NSE/BSE/
NCDEX/Indian Council of Arbitration in addition to
contributing columns in various economic newspapers
and magazines on issues relating to international trade/
domestic economy.
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ff & I T I Y Hed & IR efeRt fFewe B
T, 3TSUUHUE ARCTSH SWPREHR HUH! fafes
1. THeMsTy fafcs
Tt 3RUTd Ue® IdTS fafies

He does not hold any shares of the Bank.
Other Directorships:

Shri T C A Ranganathan is an independent non
executive Director on the boards of :

a) ILFS Maritime Infrastructure Company Ltd.
b) SIS Ltd.
c) RAL Consumer Products Ltd.

3. aifvde 3afaes faftes d) Orient Electric Limited
2. A SR IHATIHHRY 2. Shri R Subramaniakumar
ey fewre ua A Managing Director & CEO

29.09.2016 B! HAUTAD FeRH & FTU H HRYR JHIE|

3% 11.11.2016 9 f&Ai® 10.02.2017 I dF A Pt 1Ay
F foru ud femies 28.02.2017 ¥ 3ifafved i 7 &t 3rafdy
& fore yey FeRre 9 g sriuas SifveRt o1 sifafed
UHR JIYT 7|

05.05.2017 ¥ THS! 9 Wig 3l & Ug R FAged

31y g 5 fafy 59 ay - 15.06.1959

T - e, Fusngense, e o & uke dgue
fSwirmn, emsway, Wemsrawd

fgfaa ®1 fafy 29.09.2016 ESI & T H)
05.05.2017 (TS d HZ3i & =0 H)

Appointed as Executive Director with effect from
29.09.2016

Entrusted with the Additional charge of MD & CEO for a
period of 3 months from 11.11.2016 to 10.02.2017 and
for a period of another 3 months from 28.02.2017.

Appointed as MD & CEO w.e.f. 05.05.2017

Age and Date of Birth: 59 Years — 15.06.1959

Qualification: B.Sc., CAIIB, Post Graduate Diploma in
Computer Science, CISA, CISM

Date of Appointment: 29.09.2016 (as ED) /
05.05.2017 (as MD & CEO)

A e Pt Ity fafy 30.06.2019

3guq
TSN o 3 & gd 22 FaRY 2016 dF A ST §F &
P FEYE ¥ 5309 9% & FHDHRI e & w4
o 98 GaR], THUHUHS 3R 30 a1 afédh e o FURY
& Y AR IR - & Agaqyl YHeT Ay Isea
U I} AR Jarst & Gy e o ulads o
Teayul YffreT US| Joemd & ft R, TaHER doe
AT S § 2 gU 3R i =l ¥ oifdiew I dw
g1 o1 fhaT| USTe A2d S & 3 SridId & SR,
g8 ffeR g & 1Y § F HR b1 wrafae iR
TN Ugal &1 Add [a, 3R TI3IR, Ibfus 9,
T, Yo, THTaens, 7€ smaiiie ugel # uRad
31T, 31 & B ufRad 3nar- "wIfa” &1 Aq o |
T8 Y & g Nl & IS & 41 IgH deeit & 3o
BB P SR Al saraaniie aideal § & fpar g
3R Ty g I diee & o wrfe & GRE sd
TR & w0 § ot s 3R afdea & &% eiftra §fHT
T O T &1 39 g RSIRS Hewy disa
P P Y Bl gRT AT T | 3TF Y & I8
THag Arsd § ot 3191 aie fea

e Jal fIbT 1 31 36 d §U ST s e Adl Ifa
Ugd forgH “UTgeh Uga” 1 YRUM BT YHRH DA b SHerdl
fuet o YU Hg & RIGAT B |

Date of expiry of the current term: 30.06.2019

Experience:

Prior to joining I0B, Shri. R. Subramaniakumar was
Executive Director of Indian Bank since 22" January
2016. As Executive Director of Indian Bank, he was
instrumental in bringing the business transformation with
introduction of Retail, MSME & other business verticals.
He spearheaded Digital Banking transformation with new
products & services. Earlier, Shri. R. S. Kumar joined
Punjab National Bank and served for more than three
decades. During his stint in Punjab National Bank, he
lead the core banking implementation and technology
initiatives of the Bank, along with BPR exercise, and lead
the “Pragati” — transformation exercise across HR, Alternate
Channel, Technology, Retail, MSME, New Business Initiatives,
etc. He was on the Board of “Druk PNB”, Bhutan. He has
experience across various business verticals and also served
as Zonal Head during his tenure at PNB and introduced
many innovative banking solutions across the verticals. His
innovative RRB CBS model was adopted by many other
banks. He also championed the FI model.

As part of customer service enhancement exercise, he
established the contact centre practice in PNB apart from
introducing many Customer Service enhancing initiatives
including "Customer First' concept.
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THI SHR B gU, 361 UreliiTeb! g facia qHTaRH favge
3t angeiT quT MsSteReld giffaal § avem feur
3R T WIC PTS TUT AISH! TIUH K SgH WA & BR
T 91 9 ISR, §arrare qur 1R ufreor o,
I ¥ il Gorg V13107 36 98 & SfhT PR F I=H
faft uel R 3R faftre &= & & foar |

F1P U S B 3B FaReiar e 1.

3= FIGRIh T -

3. ot & WA=
prduTa® e

Being a techno Banker, he contributed in various IBA & IDRBT
committees on technology & Fl and was core member of the
Smart Card and Micro ATM Standards Committee. He was
a guest faculty at IDRBT, Hyderabad and RBI Staff Training
College, Chennai. He has worked in various positions and
geographies during his career spanning 36 years in the
industry.

He does not hold any shares in our Bank
Other Directorships: Nil

31g 9 o fdfd 55 98 - 30.07.1962

3. Shri K Swaminathan
Executive Director

A Siih 4, HTLSATS3MS S, TUHT TSEHIS gy

Age and Date of Birth: 55 Years — 30.07.1962

fgfed &t fafy 17.02.2017

Qualification: B.Com., CAIIB, C.F.A., AICWA

FAH™ TH Dt JAT Y 16.02.2020

Date of Appointment: 17.02.2017

SHd

of} & TS 3 10.06.1985 B 3 URAIemei Siferl &
0 H d o wfiyd gu qur Sfb & wft st s
SIHE TG R §U MR & faftrsr oy oref- wredt/ wredt
/IS HrRAad) § SR fodT| 3961 8- S H off IR
I B HRIBT 8T

3 g &g UeYh & U H X d SerIaTE &5 b UHE I8
TP ¢ | T8 UEY® & =0 § 30! Uardid 01.09.2014 I g
3R 3% HIURE HUT GAREAT faumT gt firs wraRe faumr
F TEEYS & w0 § HE HRfe § o1d fosar
FHRUTAS (=P & FU § Ud g9 & 4d 36l Jal
TSP b dR W Hes 3d R 07 &7 Wite € & St
TG & &9 § ST fHa | Toran il A guR , et &1
HY HAT, 3HToidh AT B agell , TEH fSamse W AR
1, 31 S aral 3t o 39 U T ST €

3% U §& & 1300 St AR B

Date of expiry of the current term: 16.02.2020

Experience:

Shri K Swaminathan joined the Bank on 10.6.1985 as
Probationary Officer at Chennai and worked at various
Branches under different capacities in Rural/Semi urban
and urban Branches/administrative offices pan India
gaining rich experience and knowledge in all domain of
Banking. He also had a four year stint in Hongkong.

Shri K Swaminathan headed Madurai and Hyderabad
Regions as Chief Regional Manager and contributed
significantly for the development of the Bank. He was
elevated as General Manager on 1.9.2014 and posted
to Central Office as GM of Corporate Debt Restructuring
Department and Mid Corporate Department.

Before his elevation as Executive Director, he was
heading Mumbai Zone, comprising of 7 western Regions.
Improving quality assets, minimizing TAT, recovering Non
Performing Assets and targeting customer delight are his
main agenda for the days to come.

He holds 1300 equity shares of the Bank.

3 FeRIHdT YA

Other Directorships: Nil

4. t 3510 FUR faraa
iU feTrs

4. Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava
Executive Director

3{1g 9 54 fafy 50 a8 - 15.10.1967

Age and Date of Birth: 50 Years — 15.10.1967

argar o Tt (317, desrsemsst 4T 1

Qualification: B.Sc (Hons), CAIIB Part |

fgfda @1 fafy 09.10.2017

Date of Appointment: 09.10.2017

A o ) At fafy 08.10.2020

Date of expiry of the current term: 08.10.2020
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3qHqa Experience:
ot o FUR AlaRad A 09.10.2017 H FRIUAS D & Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava has assumed Office

Y ¥ YR T8 fHa1l 39% Id J 3a8IeTE 5 H Bl
TRT UeY - feeet & U H 1R 3

I AT BRI B LA 1991 H ARG s o
uRkatenefs St & wu § BT 3R 3o 27 99 & offh
PRI A 3B 3 & faftm urit e wice 3R vemafAs
Pty a8, & fafs emarst & o faan 3 wes fagry
PG R TEDHR IR & forg Wice PI A= eya §
YT 3% IR U, TORId U4 fieeh & 99 T Heayuf &= &1
AT@ B BT U U ¢ | IBi- HRIAD IRTATHD 3R
ARl URad o § Heaq e P § IR o &
faftr aféaa 1 Aga Fd T P ¢ Ugal B YURY fowar
glmmﬁwaﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁwuﬁf@auﬁwmm

|

ST U S B 3l AU el Bl

as Executive Director of Indian Overseas Bank on
9" October 2017. Prior to this he was working as Field
General Manager- Delhi with Allahabad Bank.

He started his banking career as Probationary Officer
in 1991 with Allahabad Bank and during his banking
career spanning over 27 years, he has worked in various
capacities in different parts of the country which include
Field as well as Administrative Offices. He is an astute and
hardcore banker with vast field level experience and has
the distinction of having successfully led the largest and
most critical areas of Uttar Pradesh, Gujarat and Delhi.
He has been instrumental in bringing positive structural
and cultural changes and took many new initiatives while
heading different verticals in the field. Mr Srivastava has
undergone some very prestigious training programmes
both in India and abroad.

He does not hold any shares in our Bank.

3= FGRIHdT -

Other Directorships: Nil

5. gt Tt vef Aoy
PR A1t fgzre

5. Ms Annie George Mathew
Gol Nominee

Mg S Al 54 a9 - 21.10.1963

Age and Date of Birth: 54 years - 21.10.1963

g fagm & Taee

Qualification: M. Sc.,

fAgfet &t fafd 22.07.2016

Date of Appointment: 22.07.2016

JAAH H B gAY fafy HRT TSR & 3T e db

Date of expiry of the current term: Until further orders
from Government of India

3gHa Experience:
3t adam & o fqumT, URd WReR & Tgad gfra gl Ms.Annie George Mathew is presently the Joint Secretary,

. . Department of Expenditure, Government of India.
P U o F Bt gt eRemar el 8| P P

She does not hold any equity shares of the Bank
3 =l I Other Directorships: Nil
6. Mt @ g 6. Shri. Nirmal Chand
! RBI Nominee

YR Rerd 9% &1 A1t fezmes

I oA fafy 57 a8 - 31.01.1961

Age and Date of Birth: 57 years - 31.01.1961

T : USTTE fayfemers &t Hidh R, THAT g
RIEIECIES]

Qualification:
Post Graduate from Punjab University, M.B.A. , CAIIB

fgfda & [l 13.03.2014

Date of Appointment: 13.03.2014

FAAH H B JAI fafy HRT WPIR P AT 3T dh

Date of expiry of the current term: Until further orders
from Government of India
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Experience:

Shri Nirmal Chand joined Reserve Bank of India in 1986.
He has held several positions in RBI's various Offices.
He has earlier worked in RBI's Central Office at Mumbai
as well as other Regional Offices at Kolkata, Jaipur,
New Delhi and Raipur in the departments of Banking
Supervision, Non-Banking Supervision, Currency
Management and Payment Systems. Shri Nirmal Chand
was the Regional Director of Reserve Bank of India,
Thiruvananthapuram having jurisdiction over State of
Kerala and Union Territory of Lakshadweep. Later he was
the Regional Director of RBI, Chandigarh. Now he has
been transferred to Mumbai as CGM.

He does not hold any shares of our Bank

Other Directorships: Nil

7. Shri Sanjay Rungta,
Shareholder Director

Age and Date of Birth: 52 Years — 26.01.1966

Qualification: B Com., F.C.A., FA.FP.

Date of Appointment: 08.12.2017

Date of expiry of the current term: 07.12.2020

Experience:

Shri Sanjay Rungta from Mumbai has done B.Com
from Rajasthan University and is a practicing Chartered
Accountant with more than 28 years of experience in
Banking, Finance & Taxation and has been working for
the Public/Private sector Banks. He is a Senior Managing
Partner of M/s. S. P. Rungta& Associates, Chartered
Accountants. He is also a partner in DMKH Insolvency
Resolution Services LLP.

Shri Rungta is a ‘Registered Insolvency Professional’ (IP)
with ‘Insolvency & Bankruptcy Board of India’(IBBI). He
is also on the panel of “Peer Reviewers” nominated by
the ICAIl and has also conducted peer reviews of various
CA firms in accordance with the ICAI regulations in the
last few years. Apart from vast experience of audits of
banking industry, he has also handled various types
of assignments of many private and public sector
corporations, insurance companies, central cooperative
societies, government companies.

In the last 28 years he has conducted various kinds
of audits of the Bank's Branches like regular internal
inspection, Concurrent Audit, Statutory Audit and having
conducted stock audit, valuation of primary securities,
due diligence and monitoring of large corporate
domestic borrowers on behalf of Public Sector Banks.

He was also appointed as concurrent auditor of large

borrowers under the CDR mechanism by the Monitoring
Institution under CDR cell of RBI.

He has widely travelled in India and abroad. His special
interests are Banking, Finance, Cooperative Sector and
Social Work etc.

He holds 600 shares of our Bank.

Other Directorships: Nil
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8. Shri K Raghu
Chartered Accountant Director

31g q 57 fafd 52 98 - 09.10.1965

Il S iH g THHY

Age and Date of Birth: 52 Years — 09.10.1965

fgfda 1 fafY 26.07.2016

Qualification: B.Com., FCA

A o ) At fafy 25.07.2019

Date of Appointment: 26.07.2016
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Date of expiry of the current term: 25.07.2019

Experience:

CA K. Raghu is a Fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India with more than 26 years of
professional standing and is the senior partner of K. Raghu
& Co., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore.

CA K. Raghu served as the President of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India during 2014-15 and as a
member of the Central Council for a period of 9 years from
2007 to 2016.

He is currently a Member of the following:

- The Board of International Federation of Accountants —
New York.

- Honorary Member of the Certified Public Accountants
of Australia and The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Australia and New Zealand.

CA K. Raghu has served in various other Institutions and
Government Committees as under:

- Member of the Board of Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (IRDA)

- Member of the Confederation of Asia and Pacific
Accountants, National Advisory Committee on
Accounting Standards

- Member of the High level Steering Committee for
Implementation of XBRL based data submission by
Banks.

- Member of the Working Group constituted by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in the areas of Corporate
Governance, Corporate Social Responsibility and other
aspects of Corporate Affairs

- Member of the Advisory Committee on Mutual Funds of
Securities and Exchange Board of India.

- Member of the Regional Monitoring Committee of
NBFCs in Karnataka.

- Member of the Audit Advisory Board constituted by the
Office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

- Member of the Government Accounting Standards
Advisory Board (GASAB) for Union and the States
constituted by C&AG.

- Member of the India-UK (Indo-UK) Task Force on
Corporate Affairs constituted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

- Member of the Governing Body of the National Institute
of Public Finance and Policy.

- Member of the Central Direct Taxes Advisory Committee
(CDTAC) of Central Board of Direct Taxes and on
Regional Direct Taxes Advisory Committee (RDTAC).

- Member of the Governing Council of National
Foundation for Corporate Governance (NFCG).

He does not hold any shares of our Bank.
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Other Directorships: Nil
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9. Shri Vishnukumar Bansal
Additional Director

TGl Te! PR

Age and Date of Birth: 64 Years — 06.09.1953

fAgfda 1 fafd 08.08.2016

Qualification: CA

A o ) eI fafy 07.08.2018

Date of Appointment: 08.08.2016
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Date of expiry of the current term: 07.08.2018

Experience:

Shri. Vishnukumar Bansal, is one of India’s most experienced
investment bankers with around 41 years of overall work
experience.

Shri. Vishnukumar Bansal currently serves as the Chairman
of Morgan Stanley’s Investment Banking Division in
Mumbai, India. Under his Chairmanship, Morgan Stanley is
one of the top ranked Investment Banks both in Advisory
and Equity Capital market transactions in India. On a day-
to-day basis, Shri. Bansal brings forth his experience and
in-depth understanding of Indian institutional finance and
provides strategic advice to corporations on structuring
their capital requirements and M&A strategy. He has helped
to raise substantial amount of equity and debt capital for
Indian clients from domestic and global investors. He works
with global clients in framing their inbound interest into India
in core growth sectors like infrastructure, power, banking,
technology and healthcare, etc.

He also works with Indian clients to help expand into other
global markets by acquiring mineral assets such as coal,
oil & gas, cement, chemicals and general industrials. Shri.
Vishnukumar Bansal helps to raise growth capital for Indian
Corporates from financial sponsors/ sovereign wealth
funds. Also, works closely with financial sponsors in helping
identify high growth investment opportunities across various
sectors while developing appropriate exit strategies for
them. He has contributed significantly in bringing out new
regulations like InvIT/ REIT recently announced by SEBI for

the development of infrastructure /real estate sector which
will also help in churning out debt exposures of the Indian
banking system.

Shri. Vishnukumar Bansal joined the Investment Banking
Division of Morgan Stanley in 2007. Prior to Morgan Stanley,
he was the Managing Director at JM Morgan Stanley
(Morgan Stanley’s erstwhile joint venture) since 1999.
Earlier, he was the President of JM Financial since 1994.
Prior to JM Financial,  Shri. Bansal worked with Indian Oil
Corporation (sole canalizing agent for India’s oil needs) for
18 years, most recently as the Chief of International Finance
where he handled India’s oil imports worth over US$ 10
billion a year and worked with global banks for financing
the same.

He was the Chairman of the Association of Merchant
Bankers of India and assisted in drafting key financial and
capital markets policies. He has been the Co-Chairman of
the Capital Markets Committee of the Bombay Chamber of

Commerce. He was also one of the longest serving members
of the SEBI Primary Markets Advisory Committee and a
member of the SEBI Corporate Governance committee.

Currently, he is co-chairman of National Capital Market
Committee of Assocham. He has closely worked with
Government of India on its multi-billion dollar disinvestment
programs.

He does not hold any shares of our Bank.
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Other Directorships: Nil

10. Shri Navin Prakash Sinha
Shareholder Director

Age and Date of Birth: 55 years 15.10.1962

Qualification: BA (Hons) Economics
Licenciate of Insurance Institute of India

Date of Appointment: 08.12.2017

Date of expiry of the current term: 07.12.2020

Experience:

Shri Navin Prakash Sinha has vast experience in the field of

Financial Product Marketing, Human Resource Management

and Labour laws especially related to Pension, Gratuity, and

other Employees’ benefits.

Financial Product Marketing:

* As a Sr. Divisional Manager (In-Charge) of Hazaribagh,
Patna and Hyderabad Division, he was responsible for
monitoring and controlling both marketing and servicing
activities of all branches under these Divisions for
achieving targeted performance.

* As a Regional Manager (Marketing), he was responsible
for developing and implementing Marketing strategies of
the Zone, Supervising marketing activities under Zone.

* As a Chief (P&GS), he was involved in investment of Group
portfolio which included daily monitoring of Financial
Markets.

Human Resource Management:

* As a Regional Manager (P&IR), he was responsible for
human resource management of the zone involving
promotion and placement of officers.

* As an additional Director and Director ZTC, Gurgaon, he
was responsible for training of all officers & employees
of Northern zone and develop it as a learning centre of
excellence. Labour laws especially related to Pension
,Gratuity, and other employees’ benefits:

* As a Chief (P&GS), he was responsible for marketing
and administration of Pension & Group Insurance vertical
from Corporate Office.

Post held in LIC at Present/Past

* Director (Zonal Training Centre), Gurgaon from

October,2017 till date

» Additional Director (Zonal Training Centre), Gurgaon from
April, 2017 to September, 2017

* Chief (Pension & Group Superannuation Schemes),
Central Office, Mumbai from April, 2015 to April,2017

* Regional Manager (Marketing), South Central Zone,
Hyderabad from April, 2012 to April, 2015

* Regional Manager(Personnel & Industrial Relations),
Southern Zone, Chennai from April, 2011 to April , 2012

9
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* National Relationship Manager, Chennai from July, 2010
to April, 2011
* Chief Manager, Mauritius from August, 2007 to July, 2010

» Sr. Divisional Manager (In-charge) of Hyderabad from
May, 2006 to August, 2007

» Sr. Divisional Manager (In-charge) of Patna Division from
May, 2004 to May, 2006

* Sr. Divisional Manager (In-charge) of Hazaribagh Division
from May, 2002 to May, 2004.

He holds 100 shares of our Bank
Other Directorships - Nil

11. Shri S.A.Narayan
Part-time Non-Official Director

Age and Date of Birth: 68 years 29.09.1950

Qualification: B.Sc. (Hons.)
M.A. in Personnel Management &
Industrial Relations, LLB (Gen.)

Date of Appointment: 27.12.2017

fgfea &1 fafy 27.12.2017
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Date of expiry of the current term: 26.12.2020

Experience:

Shri S A Narayan has served in various institutions as under:

* Director (HR) on the Board of BPCL — from June 1998 - till
June 2008.

* Chairman of Petronet India Ltd from 2007 till June 2008.

* Chairman of Petronet Cochin-Coimbatore-Karur Ltd. 2007
till June 2008.

* Director on the Board of Numaligarh Refinery Ltd. for 6
years

* Director on the Board of Bharat Shell Ltd. for 2 years.

* Director on the Board of Kochi Refineries Ltd. for 5 years
until its merger with BPCL.

e Chairman on the HR/IR Committee of Employers'
Federation of India for 2 years.

» Founder Member of the Governing Council of Petroleum
Federation of India.

* Member of the Management Committee of Petroleum
India International for a decade.

* Member of the Expert Committee on HRD of ASSOCHAM
for 2 years.

* Member of the Academic Council of University of
Petroleum & Energy Studies, Dehra Dun.

Shri S A Narayan has vast experience in the following fields:

* As seniorindustry Director, significantly influenced industry
policies, practices related to compensation, benefits, IR
policies, CSR, Hindi Implementation etc.

* Spear-headed the professional and progressive HR
practices resulting in awards as ‘Best Employer’ and
‘Great Place to Work’ for successive years.

* Held additional charge as Marketing Director and Chief
Vigilance Officer.

* Directly in-charge of Anti-adulteration Cell for monitoring
fuel quality at petrol Pumps

He does not hold any shares of our Bank

Other Directorships - Nil
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DECLARATION

This is to confirm that the Bank has laid down a code of
conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Management
(i.e., General Managers) of the Bank and the said code is
posted on the website of the Bank. The Board Members and
Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code
of Conduct.

For Indian Overseas Bank

R Subramaniakumar
Managing Director & CEO

Chennai
Date: 29.05.2018

To
The Board of Directors
Indian Overseas Bank

Financial Statements of the Bank for the 12 months ended
31.03.2018

CEO/CFO Certification as per Regulation 17(8) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (LODR)

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR), we
certify that:

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash
flow statement for the year and to the best of our knowledge
and belief:

i. These statements do not contain any materially
untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair
view of the Bank’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the Bank during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Bank’s Code of Conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining
internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Bank pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed
to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which
we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take
to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee
i. Significant changes in internal control over financial
reporting during the year;
ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during
the year and the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have
become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the Bank’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

C Haridas
General Manager & CFO

R Subramaniakumar
Managing Director & CEO

Chennai
Date : 29.05.2018
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of
Indian Overseas Bank
Chennai

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by Indian Overseas Bank (“the bank”) Chennai,
for the year ended on 31.03.2018, as stipulated in the
Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46 (2)
and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the Management. Our examination was carried
out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of
Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Bank for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we certify that
the Bank has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Regulation 17 to 27 and
clauses (c) to (f) and (i) of regulation 46(2) and paragraphs
C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
to the extent applicable to the Bank, for the year ended on
March 31, 2018.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Bank.

For HARIBHAKTI & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 103523W/W100048

(G.N.RAMASWAMI)
Partner
M.No.202363

For R SUBRAMANIAN AND
COMPANY LLP

Chartered Accountants
FRN 004137S/5200041

(N KRISHNAMURTHY)
Partner
M.No0.019339

Place : Chennai
Date : 29.05.2018

For TALATI & TALATI
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110758W

(UMESH TALATI)
Partner
M.No.034834

ForS AR C & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
FRN 006085N

(SUNIL KUMAR GUPTA)
Partner
M.No.084884
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ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2018

(¥. @M@ ¥ Rs. in lakh)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
deh deh
gSfta ¥ CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
gsft Capital 4890 77 2454 73
4890 77 2454 73
Rt AT A Reserves and Surplus
arfferfa Statutory Reserves 2962 12 2962 12
ST s ferdt Capital Reserve 3514 10 3502 08
CRESIERE] Share Premium 4029 08 7650 06
TSTET U o+ Afferdy Revenue and Other Reserves 4251 61 4154 51
AT U g T ' W Balance in Profit & Loss A/c -6373 70 -6978 95
. 8383 21 11289 82
m . Deposits
ATTSHAT Demand Deposits 12935 53 13036 99
A F TG Savings Bank Deposits 66742 32 63231 57
BRI Term Deposits 137153 96 135074 07
216831 81 211342 63
SUR Borrowings
WA § 39T Borrowings in India
(@) arehT R SR fr aes 9 (a) from Reserve Bank of India 0 0
CUEREEIR (b) from other Banks 0 0
(%) s "EqTsH 3T USifEAT A TTE T (c) from other institutions and agencies 7939 92 10543 98
AT & FTEY I Borrowings outside India 1288 16 5553 69
L. 9228 08 16097 67
37 ¢UaTY T4 Jraur Other Liabilities & Provisions
ERARE Bills Payable 602 87 624 38
SRR IRIEREIRIEEN(REK)) Inter-Office adjustments (net) 0 0
ﬁ'{‘i'cf TS Interest accrued 39 29 41 35
HIAF ATEqAT 6 (o ITaem Provisions towards Standard Assets 629 49 1084 12
AT #T e (feren) Deferred Tax Liability (net) 0 0
I Others 7362 58 4232 78
8634 23 5982 63
Total Capital and Liabilities 247968 11 247167 48
amfaat ASSETS
qRetg RRsTd o & It et 3 a7ty Cash and balance with Reserve Bank of India 11579 45 11499 97
11579 45 11499 97
SRt W STIIIT 37T HIT YT 92T o7eq  Balances with Banks and Money at Call and
AT W YT & Short Notice
AT & o1 § FohraT Balances with banks in India 228 04 190 66
HIT ST s AT 97 g ey Money at call and short notice in India 12800 00 4650 00
T & FTgY TohTaT Balances outside India 1937 50 6882 41
14965 54 11723 07
fraw Investments
WRa H . In India
() AR Qﬁﬁﬁm (a) Government Securities 56788 74 57848 12
(f1) e SRLEE afe i (b) Other approved securities 134 311
(@Fr) T (c) Shares 1201 32 1333 37
(31) fed= Oz afve (d) Debentures and Bonds 2962 92 5989 34
(2) ¥Tro Sfrey = T T (e) Subsidiaries and/ or Joint Ventures 0 0
() =T (0 Others 4057 06 2795 60
65011 37 67969 55
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YR & T8 Outeide India 3634 56 3684 58
3634 56 3684 58
68645 94 71654 12
| Advances
YRd | In India
(1—3 g U &6 Q‘:‘.’aﬁT . (a) Bills Purchased and discounted 796 38 1492 07
3 h i |
(=) ;jﬁ' 1Y, AEALGTHE T 9T (b) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and loans 48748 28 75426 83
T repayable on demand
(xft) srafer sk (c) Term Loans 71477 63 51087 00
121022 29 128005 90
HRA P qTER Outside India 11466 53 12452 70
. 132488 82 140458 60
e amiaar FIXED ASSETS 2893 43 3054 33
2893 43 3054 33
= At Other Assets
FAT FTITAT THTATSTH Inter-Office adjustments (net) 3525 80 11573
e sam Interest accrued 2417 34 2431 56
AR § Y& F/ ITAF 9T Ferdl Tax paid in advance/ deducted at source 1954 84 637 01
m FT aeq (Fae) o Deferred Tax Asset (net) 4218 04 1828 71
e St srfea IuTiia # arat i Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of
. . 21002 211 55
qqfe claims
q Others 5068 89 3552 83
17394 93 8777 39
P AT TOTAL ASSETS 247968 11 247167 48
g ] ) Contingent Liabilities
T T AT Aol & 9 4% % [9%E  Claims against the bank not acknowledged as
— debts 47 07 47 67
FHRMT UTYT fAwT s ga F @10 Liability on account of outstanding forward 28543 17 35650 00
qT ) exchange contracts
afsa a¥ é‘q T . Guarantees given on behalf of constitutents 14435 96 16274 09
TETFAT, TOTRA U = qTear ggﬁggtt;r;cses, endorsements and  other 8933 13 9966 72
o= 72 e g 9% s ®TH - Other items for which the bank is contingently
S = liable 6407 12 6388 50
58366 45 68326 99
LU RUKD o faer Bills for Collection 15239 38 14109 56
ST T - T H HTE | Schedules Form Part of the Balance Sheet
e & T0 ud SHeht 3| FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
EGILEUEIDE I GIHITHAT o T oY 351 PR Margda
Y Bredehrt STeet e ue Hidat FrefuTer Fraves CAURINCAEENEY
T C A Ranganathan R. Subramaniakumar K. Swaminathan Ajay Kumar Srivastava
Non Executive Chairman MD & CEO Executive Director Executive Director
e = - A TARE
frsfer A a1t IR Prafer e
Nirmal Chand K. Raghu .
Sivaraman Anant Narayan
| BT oft fayu] PUR swa
Sanjay Rungta Vishnukumar Bansal

fe¥®%  DIRECTORS

WM : 99 Chennai
feish: 29.05.2018
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31.03.2018 R THTE I & TTT oy
ABRIDGED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE Y!

I Erar
AR ENDED 31.03.2018

(¥. @r@ ¥ Rs. in lakh)

W EATA AE Rt W aS
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
3T INCOME
3Rfa =1 Interest earned
S / foreft ;R On advances/ bills 11960 83 14053 02
o= On Investments 4797 04 5209 48
YIRS, T3 3R o MR & 9y Iww On balances with RBI and inter bank funds 483 69 416 55
S Others 673 65 39 54
17915 20 19718 59
T AT Other income
e fAafame e s TeAret Commission exchange and brokerage 1022 12 949 99
Fraert it fasht oz ffaer @y Net profit on sale of Investments 454 63 62197
, AT UE ST emteaai i faeht 1% Net Profit on sale of land, buildings and 179 124
T other assets
fm de W gg A Net Profit on exchange transactions 590 27 571 80
ATATH & 517 3, TOATET | Income by way of dividends, etc from
Hag Tl / FAAE] / STAaT HYEd Subsidiaries / Companies and/ or joint
e / e & sem ventures abroad / in India 0 0
ey s Miscellaneous Income 1677 62 1227 64
3746 44 3372 64
T 3T TOTAL INCOME 21661 64 23091 23
T EXPENDITURE
ST FRAT T =TT Interest expended
ST R On deposits 11493 83 13025 93
YIRS, 09 3R I IURaf R On RBI/ inter-bank borrowings 953 75 1503 05
AT Others 5 4
12447 64 14529 02
qR=ETET = Operating expenses
FHHARA & T Trae™ Td 3@ YiraH Payments to and provisions for employees 2994 15 3044 67
fo=rar, R wd faga Rent, taxes and lighting 452 34 448 31
T el it Printing and Stationery 2570 22 42
IERICERCREEIN Advertisement and publicity 60 192
% @) I R S Depreciation on Bank's property 272 47 214 86
=TT 1 Yelep, Wld T q9d Director's fees, allowances and expenses 78 107
IRAT TET URIEfeh] Afgd ol TRI&ah! Auditor's fee and expenses including 08 38 3376
DT [P Td Y branch auditors
fafd® guR Law Charges 23 48 2193
ST, <A™, it 3qaTe Postage, telegrams, telephones etc., 57 59 69 65
TRHAd T4 [@REMG Repairs and maintenance 1208 13 67
ClLll Insurance 221 46 256 04
ST Others 1495 90 783 71
5584 93 4912 01
YT AT ATHRR =T Provisions & Contingencies
A= IR SaqeEH 8q Wau™ Provisions for depreciation on investment 829 21 23 14
3foics 3Tt & forg rae™ Provision towards non performing assets 11934 98 6948 26
e 3l %gl;na%m Provision towards standard assets -455 07 179 89
3T (STPR BISHY ) Others (excluding income taxes) -48 34 -120 16
12260 78 7031 13

9
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ANA
\ A%
T Total Expenses and Provisions 30293 35 26472 16
T/ T (-) Profit/ (loss) before tax -8631 71 -3380 92
T Current Tax 59 81 268 55
SR AR Deferred Tax -2392 02 -232 74
IR & a6 A/ @) Profit/ (loss) after tax -6299 50 -3416 73
Y / (8T 3 AT Y Profit/ (loss) brought forward 0 -3423 59
_nT Total -6299 50 -6840 31
CIERISES APPROPRIATIONS
T 3TN ¥ § 3fawor Transfer to Statutory Reserve 0 0
ST SR | afawur Transfer to Other Reserves 74 21 138 62
TAIfad TRBRT ATy & Sfavor Transfer to Government proposed dividend 0 0
74 21 138 62
St 1 F g W 1 R 3 E Schedules Form Part of the Profit & Loss Account
wOfaryr @t ARt Rure & TRy VIDE OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

For HARIBHAKTI & Co LLP

T @R Chartered Accountants
THIANEA 103523 39 / 39 100048
FRN 103523W / W100048

(<ft. T, THTEETH?)

(G. N. RAMASWAMI)

HFS?HTI Partner

9.9.202363 M.No. 202363

et AT EIAUAT U FOAT TATAUT,

For R SUBRAMANIAN AND COMPANY LLP

e} AEHR Chartered Accountants

THARTA 00413775 / ©9200041 FRN 004137S / S200041

(T o)

(N KRISHNAMURTHY)

HIS?EF{ Partner

9.9. 019339 M.No. 019339

For TALATI & TALATI
Het @R Chartered Accountants
THANTA 110758 S59 FRN 110758W

(SH9T aTet)

(UMESH TALATI)

HI??{F{ Partner

¥.9. 034834 M.No. 034834

Fd T T AW H U wEitned

For S AR C & ASSOCIATES

Gl dER Chartered Accountants
TH3TREA 006805T4 FRN 006085N

(e R )
(SUNIL KUMAR GUPTA)

H‘I@'QT{ Partner
¥4, 084884 M.No. 084884

T Te% CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

T : 99 Place : Chennai
&% Date : 29.05.2018
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dEl R fewforat
1. 9HTASH
1.1. YR Rerd & (W) & =i & oquR, §¢ & o didwiferat @=h) &t @i varf & oifea fear mar @,
S S PR 8
Tt IHd 98! G (3 BrIsf 1) $d A= &1 ufa=id (%)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
gRuear & fore uiia 49 241.08 48 883.32 70.09 67.66
fawt & fore Suasy 21009.86 23 367.89 29.91 32.20
of & o forw e 0.00 101.59 0.00 0.14
1.2.ufuesar & U uia” & dgd TauasiR ufayfaar 2. 3Bm
17.94 E?jﬁia;g%iﬁﬁ;sf;ﬁwgﬁg 2.1 S T P T T OF ST 1
4 feord ¥ g1 SR} Pyt & SER R T 2

3 AT 9 Frafd aarsii &1 19.50 Ufawd (O3 a8 20.50
yfa=ma) &l |
1.3. "uRusar & e «ia” vatf & foe & Jdu § %.68.62

e & N (Ozd avf 3.98.228%0%) &1 39 a9 &
R Ui o fear gl

1.4. Grftemsua IHeiar MRS Y & ufd $.1005.5 FRIS
s a9 ¥.1053.50 TXIQ) & Sifhd T o1 ufaufaat
3R Furifeigrd IUR FHUT STegdrsii & ded SUR & forg
Turfies & ufd T 9168.57 1S (A a¥%.12213.57
P) BT ufaufaat fFerafi e i 3fear & ur
T T § 1 3.1500 BRIS (U I 3.1500 HRIS) B
3iferd Jour &1 Ufaryfadt &I §21 S IUR TG SRSNSATS &
T T T 2 | §HA TAUU sl & 3faifd gAR SUR ¥
IR S® & Iy 36150 I 3.6150 HRIS) BRI
gfIYfa AT 81 39F SieraT, B IRETaH /g fEiee
Ay & ufa %, fae=ht ufere & fo T4 12.50 RIS
Orsa v 3. 12.50 FRIS) Bt AR HI Yftengud & a8l
@R

1.5. &3 Uil dof F A & dgd AW H T 222,04/
FRIe ((UBd N %.222.04 /- FRIS) & WR Yot TG
MAAE |

1.6.9F I 3AFcRZe R YR Rold §F F Fa TOR
afETa (3hTHSM) Y & Sidiid 98 & R Taeed
vaif & WRHR wfaufear | sfegsht & siafd dF gR
forlt ( oftdh) o1 fasha 16T gon (Ued oy 5073.63 FRIS)
3rqug 3iffa oy T B (o Rwd aef 103.17 FAs ) |
I 3 W ufqufaat @ieasi & sifafead) of st 3R
¥, 573.86 BIS ( Sidl)(OSd T 2519.87) (MRS B 5
3 TS T & 3feR) F1 fasha gam, oiR Sifofd A1y %.19.01
RIS 2(sd av 70.70 FS) |

()

2.2. TR GR13ft & Tgf FAuer & o dfd @ graR feg o
e U 2ral, ot Tmarsit 3 uge &t §, R uaee
3Tt F e 39 3MuR W AR fear mn & f W@ e
Y 9 Igei AT |

2.3. 31T affepRT 3R 311 B! U5 & I2=d T 3 S
F IS B AT 1 R A F e wfayfa &
STHIT Hed, Fv% TRBR B TR 3N1fe Y e o
TRl

2.4. 3AT-URiera wrRarait & ey H AT o1 guffemor e
Yeieeh! gRT {3 71T TAT0H & SR fasar T ]

2.5. HTIRe 3 ufos TR Shefeiie Tean it 79/ 21.04.048/
2014-15 feAifrd 30.03.2015 & SFAR dF &l
31.12.2014 & GG AP Ik gRI UIRG Ul
YIIYTHROl FHR / Halicd Was™ &I 50 Ufd=Id TanT
PR F e 3rgHd fear 81 99 2017-18 & SRA 8%
J (31.03.2017 T) 3oid AT & FAIGHE Ui &
TR A & o Ufdashig Traeraor g = 338.22
PRIS & UfcapIT UaUIeR0r g% fHdt ff UmT &
W e fbar (ed o g) |

3. 3rad fwrar

3.1.9Y 2017-18 % SR AUT Y 2016-17 & Y YT TART
TafRId B3 Ghed e forar 7 |

3.2. 3Tl &t ot R oy AR 2018 H 3.1.79 RIS el

Ud oy 3.1.24 Fre) O Tolt emferedt & fafaifoa
[CRIRIEI!

4. 3T TS §3 QY

feRen 8g o 7T el WU & FREA W 31 A 2018 9%
BIs IHH ToI(L) A TS |
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. Investments

¢

e d

%

1.1 In accordance with RBI guidelines, the investments portfolio of the bank has been classified into three categories, as

given below:
Category Gross Book Value Percentage to Total
(Rs. in crore) Investments (%)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Held to Maturity 49241.08 48883.32 70.09 67.66
Available for Sale 21009.86 23367.89 29.91 32.20
Held for Trading 0.00 101.59 0.00 0.14

1.2 SLR Securities (domestic) under “Held to Maturity”
accounted for 18.83 % (previous Year 17.94%) of bank’s
Demand and Time liabilities as at the end of March 2018 as
against ceiling of 19.50% (previous year 20.50%) stipulated
by RBI.

1.3 In respect of Held to Maturity category of Investments,
premium of Rs.68.62 Crore was amortized during the year
(previous year Rs.92.88 Crore).

1.4 Securities of Face Value for Rs. 1005.50 Crore (previous
year Rs. 1053.50 Crore) towards CCIL Settlement Guarantee
Fund/Default Fund and securities for Rs.9168.57 Crore
(previous year Rs. 12213.57 Crore) towards collateral for
borrowing under Collateralized Borrowing and Lending
Obligations/Default Fund have been kept with Clearing
Corporation of India Limited. The Bank has placed securities
of face value Rs.1500 Crore (previous year Rs.1500 Crore)
with RBI for intraday borrowing. The Bank has also placed
Securities to the extent of Rs.6150 Crore (previous year
Rs.6150Crore) with Reserve Bank of India for our borrowing
under the LAF window. Besides, a sum of Rs.57.38 Crore
(previous year Rs.47.38 Crore) has been lodged with CCIL
towards default fund for Forex operations and Rs.12.50 Crore
(previous year Rs.12.50 Crore) held with NSCCL for currency
derivative segment.

1.5 Shares under Investments in India in Regional Rural Banks
is Rs.222.04 Crore (previous year Rs.222.04 Crore) including
amount towards share capital Deposits.

1.6 The Bank sold Government Securities from HTM category
during the year as outright sale operations and there was no
participation under RBI's Open Market Operations (OMO).
The extent of sale by the Bank under OMO was NIL (BV)
[previous year Rs. 5073.63 Crore]and hence the profit earned
was NIL [previous year Rs.103.17 Crore]. The Bank has also
sold Government Securities (other than OMO), to the extent of
Rs.573.86 Crore (BV) [previous year Rs. 2519.87 Crore](within
5%, prescribed limit of RBI) and booked a profit of Rs.19.01
Crore (previous year Rs.70.70 Crore).

2. Advances

The Classification for advances and provisions for
possible loss has been made as per prudential norms
issued by Reserve Bank of India.

2.2 Claims pending settlement and claims yet to be lodged
with Guarantee Institutions identified by the branches
have been considered for provisioning requirements on

the basis that such claims are valid and recoverable.

2.3 In assessing the realisability of certain advances,
the estimated value of security, Central Government
Guarantees etc. have been considered for the purpose of

asset classification and income recognition.

2.4 The classification of advances, as certified by the Branch
Managers have been incorporated, in respect of unaudited

branches.

2.5 The Reserve Bank of India, vide Circular No. DBR.No.BP.
BC.79/21.04.048/ 2014-15 dated 30.03.2015, allowed
banks to utilize upto 50% of Counter-cyclical Provisioning
Buffer / Floating Provisions held by them as at the end
of 31.12.2014. During the year 2017-18, Bank has not
utilized any portion of Counter-cyclical Provisioning Buffer
[previous year NIL] out of balance in Counter-cyclical
Provisioning Buffer of Rs.338.22 Crore held (as on
March 31, 2017) for meeting specific provisions for Non-
performing Assets.

3. Fixed Assets (Property, Plant and Equipment)

Revaluation has not been carried out during the current
year 2017-18 and in the previous year 2016-17 pertaining
to land and building.

3.2 Profit on Sale of Assets for the year ending March 2018
is Rs.1.79 crore (previous year Rs.1.24 crore), has been

appropriated to Capital Reserve, net of Taxes.
4. Rupee Interest Rate Swap

Deferred income on account of gains on termination of
Rupee Interest Rate Swaps taken for hedging as on 31st
March 2018 is NIL (previous year NIL).
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5. Yol ud Smféfaat

forita o 2016-17 & SR §& B TH-3RES Jafg faxii
AR TS & ded HRd WER T F0Y 1100 HIS U
8T e o §% 3 URd WBR & Uffie MR W)
31.08.2017 ®I ®U 10/- YAH T & 39,78,30,018 (T
17.65 Wi AR TR fohvd Tiga) AHMT WR ORT 6T |
fod af 2017-18 F ERM YRA WPHR F GRI I Sb
& fore gAfdiiem o1 & ded TR E 0D 4,694 BRAS Hed
1 foxiia gamRRH fear 9% fiw S 3 mufier steR )
28.03.2018 B TUY 10/- YD Ted & 203,82,11,029 (FUI
13.03 Ufd GE R foha wfgd) A= WR S UIsH
23.03 Tifa I AR & RTe F R SR T | 3ra: S b
UG Uoll U 2454.73 RIS A T PR ©UY 4890.77 PRIS
8 T8 | YR WHR & JW YIRal TUT 1953.04 PRIS
(79.57%) T T B 4389.08 BRI (89.74) B T3 aUT TSP
TR YTRAT U 501.69 BRIS (10.26%) B |

% 7 30.01.2018 HI §U Soilud & fIRY Yhed & gRT WK
URDI BT STHIG IUT SRENSMTE S GRT HFHIGT & U
31.03.2017 Pl Yo ¥UY 6978.94 HRIS $I P gl 4 (AueA
& fou IR fed @Id H 31.03.2017 & IUASK THRAT Bl
JUIRT T | HeRaRey, RIAR fored W1l a1 $d 814 &1 39
WR d% HH QT S TP |

6. BT

6.1 3dicral WipIREl & Ao =i duiwomsif iR
PR-TART BT I W BT TR R P 91e, 31 HR I
TafId 3.3916.26 BRI (VDA a9 . 1974.46 BRIS) B
fyarfed T SR Mg Al & Toy H fpdt UPR &1
UIGUTHIHROT HRAT SaRAD Ta! FH 7T |

%

6.2 Y & oI B T STRIMT B PBTT. (-1)23321.21 RIS §
(Ured av 3. 35.81 FRIS) — T e T=AT 18.6

6.3 IaAM a7 9 & SR S 3 fUsd auf & 395 I
SHREUT BT U SIHR HAFTH 1961 F 3G 36(i)
(viii) [ORIY U ¥ T 741.60 TS AU 3mReor #
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5.

During the Financial Year 2016-17, Bank had received Rs.1,100

Capital and Reserves

¢
&

6.2 Tax expense for the year is Rs.(-)2332.21Crore net of

deferred tax(previous year Rs.35.81crore) — refer note

crores from Government of India as part of Turnaround Linked
Capital Infusion Plan for which Bank had allotted 39,78,30,018 6.3

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each for cash at issue price of Rs.
27.65 per equity share (including premium of Rs.17.65

per equity share) to Government of India on 31.08.2017 on
preferential basis. During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Bank
had received an aggregate sum of Rs.4,694 crore as capital

infusion by the Government of India including Recapitalisation

Plan for Public Sector Banks for which the Bank has allotted

203,82,11,029 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each for cash at issue
price of Rs. 23.03 per equity share (including premium of Rs.
13.03 per equity share) on preferential basis to Government
of India on 28.03.2018 for this capital infusion. Hence the paid
up capital of the Bank has increased from Rs.2,454.73 crore
to Rs.4,890.77 crore. GOI's shareholding has increased from
Rs. 1953.04 crore (79.56%) to Rs.4,389.08 crore(89.74%) and
the Public Shareholding stood at Rs.501.69 crore (10.26%).

The Bank had, after obtaining the approval of the shareholders

by way of a Special Resolution at the EGM held on 30.01.2018
and as approved by RBI utilized the balance available in
the Share Premium account as at 31.03.2017 to set off
the accumulated losses as at 31.03.2017 amounting to
Rs.6978.94 crore.Consequently, the share premium account
and accumulated losses stand reduced to that extant.

6. Taxes

6.1 Taking into consideration the decisions of Appellate
Authorities, judicial pronouncements and the opinion of tax

no.18.6.

7. Reconciliation

Financial Statements of the bank.

8.

experts, no provision is considered necessary in respect

of disputed and other demands of income tax aggregating

Rs.3916.26Crore (previous year Rs.1974.46Crore).

DISCLOSURES AS PER RBI REQUIREMENTS:

During the current year the Bank has transferred the
Special Reserves of Rs.741.60 crorecreated under section
36(i) (viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, in earlier years, to
its General Reserves. Consequently, the Deferred Tax
Liability on above till 31.03.2017 remain adjusted in the
Deferred Tax Assets.

6.4 The Bank has carried out during the year a detailed
review of its adjustments relating to Income Tax, on the
basis of relevant records / assessments and determined
the availability of future taxable income against which
timing differences arising on account of unabsorbed
depreciation, bad and doubtful debts, employee benefits,
etc. can be realized. After ascertaining the availability of
virtual / reasonable certainty duly supported by convincing
evidence, viz., the detailed projections approved by the
Management, the Bank has recognized the Deferred Tax
Assets of Rs.2392.02 crore during the year, in accordance
with Accounting Standards (AS) 22 — “Accounting for
Taxes and Income”.

The Management in relation to Migration has implemented
action plan including systems audit to address significant
areas.Reconciliation of certain inter branch transactions are
being addressed to and the Management does not anticipate
any material impact emanating out of such exercise on the

Information relating to vendors registered under Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
and from whom goods and services have been procured
by the Bank has been disclosed to the extent information
was made available to the Bank by the vendors.

9. Capital
S.No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
In %
i) Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 6.39 7.58
ii) Tier | Capital 717 8.21
iii) Tier 2 Capital 2.09 2.28
iv) Total Capital Ratio (CRAR) 9.25 10.50
V) Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of India 89.74 79.56
Rs. In Crore

Vi) Amount of Equity Capital raised (excluding security premium received) 2436.04 647.46
vii) Amount of Additional Tier 1 raised Nil Nil
viii) Amount of Tier 2 capital raised Nil 800
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10. o=t
10.1. fa=n &1 gew
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HH T faa=ur 2017-18 2016-17
3=l &1 9Ha g
@) YRd & 66 619.26 68 731.72
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- sl | 1982018 | PO o et | sfReter | whvgd o
&1 fowR fowr GRS
1) 2) 3) 4) 5) 6) 7)
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5 885.01 5779.56 179.65 8.75
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10. Investments

10.1 Value of Investments

(Rs. in Crore)

S.No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Gross Value of Investments*
Q) a) Inindia 66619.26 68731.72
b) Outside India 3643.87 3685.90
Provisions for Depreciation
(ii) a) Inindia 1607.89 762.18
b) Outside India 9.31 1.32
Net value of Investments
(iii) a) InIndia 65011.37 67969.54
b) Outside India 3634.56 3684.58
*net of provision held for NPI
10.2 Movement of Provisions held towards depreciation on Investments (Rs. in Crore)
S.No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(i) Opening Balance 762.18 632.38
(1 ADD: Provisions made during the year 892.70 191.75
LESS: Write-off/Write-Back of excess provisions
(ifi) during the year 46.99 61.95
(iv) Closing Balance 1607.89 762.18
10.3 Inter Bank Repo transactions (in face value terms) (Rs. in Crore)
Minimum Maximum Daily average Outstanding as on
outstanding outstanding during | outstanding during March 31 ot
Particulars during the year the year the year
17-18 16-17 17-18 16-17 17-18 16-17 17-18 16-17
Securities sold under Repo
i. Government securities - - - - - - - -
ii Corporate debt securities - - - - - - - -
Securities Purchased under reverse repo
i. Government securities - - - - - - - -
ii. Corporate debt
securities
10.4 Non-SLR Investment Portfolio
10.4.1 Issuer Composition of Non-SLR Investments (Rs. in Crore)
S. Issuer Amount Extent of Pri- | Extent of ‘Be- | Extent of ‘Un-| Extent of ‘Un-
No As on 31.03.18 vate low mvestmerft rated _ securi- | listed _ securi-
grade’ securi- ties ties
Placement .
ties
M @ @) (4) (%) (6) @)
(i) PSUs 5885.01 5779.56 179.65 - 8.75
(if) Fls 316.31 300.21 - - -
(iii) Banks 209.57 161.35 0.50 - -
123
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(iv) Private Corporates 7189.34 6535.86 175.85 - 55.98
(v) Subsidiaries / 199.58 - - - -
Joint Ventures
(vi) Others (Including Over- 545.34 - - - -
seas Non Government
Investments)
(vii) Provision held towards (1256.25) (955.11) - - (0.69)
depreciation
Total 13088.90 11821.87 356.00 -- 64.04
10.4.2 Non Performing Non SLR Investments (Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Opening Balance 295.61 259.53
Additions during the year since 1st April, 1420.887 78.48
Reductions during the above period 68.927 42.41
Closing Balance 1647.57 295.61
Total Provisions held*/** 1245.99 164.13

*of which Rs.1034.66 crore held towards MTM of Equity Shares classified as NPl as on 31st March 2018 against Rs. 20.68 crore as

on 31st March 2017

**there is one non performing non SLR investments in our books, but that has been technically written off and book outstanding in
that investment account is USD 1.00 only

10.5 Sale and Transfers to/from HTM Category: NIL

(Total transfer of securities to/from HTM category was within permissible limit of 5 %.)

11. DERIVATIVES

11.1 Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

(Rs. in Crore)

PARTICULARS 2017-18 2016-17
Rupee FX Total Rupee FX Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure Exposure

i) The notional principal of swap - 119.28 119.27 73.00 3413.26 3486.26
agreements
i) Losses which would be in- -- 1.35 1.35 0.41 4.01 4.42
curred if counter-parties failed to
fulfill their obligations under the
agreements
i) Collateral required by the - - - - - -
Bank upon entering into swaps
iv) of credit risk arising from the - - - - - -
swaps
v) The fair value of the swap - 1.35 1.35 0.41 4.01 4.42
book
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11.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

%

(Rs. in Crore)

S. No. Particulars

2016-17

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate - -

derivatives undertaken during the year

(i)

derivatives outstanding as on 31st March

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate - -

(i)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate - -
derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective”

(iv)

outstanding and not “highly effective”

Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives - -

11.3 DISCLOSURES ON RISK EXPOSURE IN DERIVATIVES

11.3.1 Qualitative Disclosure

Treasury (Foreign)

The Bank uses Interest Rate Swaps (IRS), Currency Swaps
and Options for hedging purpose to mitigate interest rate risk
and currency risk in banking book. The Bank also offers these
products to corporate clients to enable them to manage their
own currency and interest rate risk. Such transactions are en-
tered only with Clients and Banks having agreements in place.

a)

d)

e)

The Risk Management Policy of the Bank allows using of
derivative products to hedge the risk in Interest/Exchange
rates that arise on account of overseas borrowing/
FCNR(B) portfolio/the asset liability mis-match, for fund-
ing overseas branches etc., and also to offer derivative
products on back-to-back basis to customers.

The Bank has a system of evaluating the derivatives ex-
posure separately and placing appropriate credit lines for
execution of derivative transactions duly reckoning the
Net Worth and security backing of individual clients.

The Bank has set in place appropriate control systems
to assess the risks associated in using derivatives as
hedge instruments and proper risk reporting systems are
in place to monitor all aspects relating to derivative trans-
actions. The Derivative transactions were undertaken
only with the Banks and counterparties well within their
respective exposure limit approved by appropriate credit
sanctioning authorities for each counter party.

The Bank has set necessary limits in place for using de-
rivatives and its position is continuously monitored.

The Bank has a system of continuous monitoring ap-
praisal of resultant exposures across the administrative
hierarchy for initiation of necessary follow up actions.

Derivatives are used by the Bank to hedge the Bank’s
Balance sheet and offered to select corporate clients on
back-to-back basis. In respect of hedge transactions,
the value and maturity of hedges have not exceeded

that of the underlying exposures. In respect of back-to-
back transactions, the transactions with clients are fully
matched with counter party Bank transactions and there
is no uncovered exposure.

The income from such derivatives are amortized and tak-
en to profit and loss account on accrual basis over the
life of the contract. In case of early termination of swaps
undertaken for Balance Sheet Management, income on
account of such gains would be recognized over the re-
maining contractual life of the swap or life of the assets/
liabilities whichever is lower. In case of early termination of
derivatives undertaken for customers on a back-to-back
basis, income on account of such transactions will be rec-
ognized on termination.

All the hedge transactions are accounted on accrual ba-
sis. Valuations of the outstanding contracts are done on
Mark to Market basis. The Bank has duly approved Risk
Management and Accounting procedures for dealing in
Derivatives.

The derivative transactions are conducted in accordance
with the extant guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

Risk Management policies pertaining to derivatives with par-
ticular reference to the extent to which derivatives are used,
the associated risks and business purposes served. Also to
include

a)

The structure and organization for management of risk in
derivatives trading;

The scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting
and risk monitoring systems;

Policies for hedging and/or mitigating risk and strategies
and processes for monitoring the continuing effectiveness
of hedges/mitigants; and

Accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge
transactions; recognition of income, premiums and dis-
counts; valuation of outstanding contracts; provisioning,
collateral and credit risk mitigation.

€
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Treasury (Domestic)

The

Bank uses Rupee Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) for hedging

purpose to mitigate interest rate risk in Government Securities

and

to reduce the cost of Subordinated Debt. In addition, the

bank also enters into Rupee Interest Rate Swaps for trading

purposes as per the policy duly approved by the Board.

Swap transactions are entered only with Banks having ISDA

¢
&

down policies, set in place appropriate control systems

to assess the risks associated in using derivatives and

proper risk reporting and mitigation systems are in place

to monitor all risks relating to derivative transactions. The

IRS transactions were undertaken with only Banks as

counter party and well within the exposure limit approved

by the Board of Bank for each counter party.

agreements in place. c) Derivatives are used by the bank for trading and hedging.
a) The bank has put in place an appropriate structure and The bank has an approved policy in force for derivatives
organization for management of risk, which includes and has set necessary limits for the use of derivatives and
Treasury Department, Asset Liability Management the position is continuously monitored. The value and
Committee and Risk Management Committee of the maturity of the hedges which are used only as back to
Board. back or to hedge bank’s Balance Sheet has not exceeded
that of the underlying exposure.
b) Derivative transactions carry Market Risk (arising from
adverse movement in interest rates), Credit risk (arising d) The accounting policy for derivatives has been drawn
from probable counter party failure), Liquidity risk (arising up in accordance with RBI guidelines, asdisclosed in
from failure to meet funding requirements or execute Schedule 17 - Significant Accounting Policies (Policy
the transaction at a reasonable price), Operational risk, No.6)
Regulatory risk and Reputation risk. The Bank has laid
11.3.2 Quantitative Disclosures (Rs. in Crore)
Sr. 2017-18 2016-17
No. Particulars CURRENCY INTEREST CURRENCY DE- INTEREST
DERIVA- RATE DERIVA- RIVATIVES RATE DERIVA-
TIVES TIVES TIVES
Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
(i) a) For Hedging 1614.89 0 7.71 23.00
b) For Trading 0 0 0 50.00
Mark to Market Positions
(ii) a) Asset (+) 4.96 0 0 0.11
b) Liability (-) 26.45 0.81 *
(iii) Credit Exposure 166.45 15.42 0.36
Likely impact of one percentage change in inter-
est rate (100*PV01)
(i) a) On hedging derivatives 40.01 0 0.02 0.24
b) on trading derivatives 0 0 0.00 0.22
Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during the year
a) on hedging
Maximum 42.97 0 0.64 2.34
V) Minimum 0 0 0.02 0.24
b) on trading
Maximum 0.07 0 0.09 0.93
Minimum 0 0 0.00 0.22

*The exposure to the swaps hedged against liability is Nil.
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12. TR TuTa=T
12.1.1. 3FSi® Sl (@dg) @HAS T
2017-18 2016-17

iy Tae TIdie &1 goamn J fAaa sifdm () 15.33% 13.99
ii) TAUTT Bt MfaRitadT (o)

P) Y A 35098.26 30 048.63
W) Y & R gRaeH 16 824.79 13 003.70
M) a9 & SR FHelfaar 13 742.90 7 954.07
T) 3fa QW 38 180.15 35098.26
iii) e Tt ot fa=faarn

F) Y Y 19 749.32 19 212.58
W) 98 & R uRaeq 4 889.81 6 055.44
M 98 & IR Helfaar 423946 5518.70
T) sfa QW 20 399.66 19 749.32
iv) TTOTE & TfaRfiedT & o urau™ @ e Sieadl & il Jrau™ & Siea)

®) Y Y 14 149.97 974338
W) aY & SR T T Yrge™= 11 934.98 6 948.26
) 9 TId T STdl T / GRifda stfcfad wraum™ 8751.17 254167
msfa Ay 17 333.78 14 149.97

(v &, ufRuaw g . sft. e, it st o, | 63/21.0.2018/2016-17 feAifeRa 18 31de 2017 SRY) TAUT &g 3l
TR F Yrae=teRur § feerer

&0 dE Teraor RS
1 % g 31 A 2017 e &1 f3han T Hebed AT 35,098.25
2 q1.RA. g 31 9 2017 e TR 6 T4 Tehet TTHT 37,577.65
3 el TTHT ¥ e (2-1) 2,479.40
4 q.RA. g 31 A e & fhan T fae Ty 19,749.33
5 q.RA. g 31 9 2016 T SR A 74T fage TAdie 22,228.73
6 frae Tfit 7 famer (5-4) 2,479.40
7 .S, g 31 A ek &St (Y T TAHT & foIw graen 14,149.97
8 qr.RA. g1 31 A e e 3T 7T TAdftT & fofw graem 14,558.87
9 W01 7 e (8-7) 408.90
10 31 1€ 2016 1 a9 & oI X & 1= o g oy (feet) (3,416.74)
11 TIHIeh0T B ot 819 & o1 31 A/ 2016 i TATE a9 o T & & =18 FHEST (3,858.84)
(Freufh) g @ (feeh)

o W 3 o Gelelr § Wehe! TAUTT § UTT T ST Tererer 14 S §
12.1.3. iR @rdl & faawor

R3S GRS & SFAR TTUMT &1 715 WY FHavel Surd (URASMR) 31.03.2018 (31.03.2017 BT 53.63%) &
qHIEd 59.45% 2|

@




>

&
12. ASSET QUALITY
12.1.1 Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)
(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 15.33% 13.99
i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening Balance 35098.26 30048.63
b) Additions during the year 16824.79 13003.70
c) Reductions during the year 13742.90 7954.07
d) Closing Balance 38180.15 35098.26
iii) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening Balance 19749.32 19212.58
b) Additions during the year 4889.81 6055.44
c) Reductions during the year 4239.46 5518.70
d) Closing Balance 20399.66 19749.32
iv) Movement of Provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 14149.97 9743.38
b) Provisions made during the year 11934.98 6948.26
c) Write-off/Write-back of excess provisions 8751.17 2541.67
d) Closing balance 17333.78 14149.97

12.1.2:Divergenceinthe Asset Classification and Provisioning for NPAs (vide RBI Circularno.DBR.DP.BC.N0.63/21.04.018/2016-
17 dated 18.04.2017)

(Rs. In Crore)

S.No Particulars Amount
1 Gross NPAs as on March, 31,2017 as reported by the Bank 35,098.25
2 Gross NPAs as on March, 31,2017, as assessed by RBI 37,577.65
3 Divergence in Gross NPA (2-1) 2,479.40
4 Net NPAs as on March, 31,2017 as reported by the Bank 19,749.33
5 Net NPAs as on March, 31,2017 as assessed by RBI 22,228.73
6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) 2,479.40
7 Provision for NPAs as on March, 31,2017 as reported by the Bank 14,149.97
8 Provision for NPAs as on March, 31,2017 as assessed by RBI 14,558.87
9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) 408.90
10 Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March,31,2017 (3,416.74)
11 Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March,31,2017 after taking into (3,858.84)
account the divergence in provisioning

Interest reversal pertaining to the Divergence in Gross NPA as at S.No.3 is Rs.14.00 Crs

12.1.3 Provision Coverage Ratio

The Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) computed as per the RBI guidelines stood at 59.45% as on 31.03.2018 (53.63% as on 31.03.2017).
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12.2 Particulars of Accounts Restructured (Rs. in Crore)
. : Under SME Debt Restructuring
Type of Restructuring Under CDR Mechanism Mechanism Others Total
] Asset Classification B e e B
Z 3 3 3 3
? g s |2 § s |2 § |5 |2 g |5 |2
° » 2 k] » 2 k] » 2 k] » 2
E |a (3 |9 |5 [ |2 [3 |2 |5 g€ |& |2 [2 [ | |2 |83 |9 |=
Details S > [} o ° 3 5 o o ° 3 S o o ° 3 S o o >
7] 7] a | (4 n 7] a | 4 n »n a | 4 n 7] a | -
< ()] N~ o o )] D [o)] o N~ )] < [aV] [aV) N~ (3] (3] o] N <
No. of - -~ < - o) © < - S © © ) ~ 2
Borrowers
™ [To] N~ o [Te) [¢)] «© [aV] o (o)) < [Te) [o)] [aV) o O [o] o] (V] <
Restructured 0 N @ Q © @© @© ~ Q - 2 2 N < @© « Q N < ©
Amount Al < o] o Yo} Al (o2 © o [s¢] — N N~ [0} Te) N (] N 0 <
; |Accountsas | ou I S5 Y8 S8l f|le(~|g|8|2|g|~|8
on April 1, standing - o 0 0 o «© ~ - 0 s
2017
N [sp] N o N~ - [To] [o)] o T9] 1o} N~ To] o N [+ n - o (2]
o w o lw | N|]b|]S|ao]|]Sd|la|N|Ad]|] x| S| x| & a|a| S| n
Provision © ~ © o < o o o o o N ™ < o To} < < - =] -
AAAVVV Thereon 0 N ot ® ® - 0 o ™ © o
~— -
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Restructuring Borrowers
during 1.4.17
— - ~
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. . Tl . . - . - - 3 - Q -
for existing Provision - o © IS - o ] S IS IS - S o o o ] ] < o o
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- - o o o - o - o o © o < o o © ] ) (<)
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standard Amount 2|la|ls|s|s|s|s|[s|s|[s|s|a|ls|ls]|s|a|ls|2|s]|s
3 | category Out 3 8 ° ° © e e < ° ° % 5 © ° ° 2 4 ] o °
during standing ' A A ' N q !
01.04.2017 to o) o) o o o o o o o o o © -~ o o ® ~ - o o
31.03.2018 Provision o Ql = S b= S S =] o =] 0 < =] =] o ~ o = = =
Thereon ' i T ; :
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ucturi i A
Type of Restructurin Under CDR Mechanism Under SME Debt Restructuring Others Total
Mechanism
o Asset Classification T T 4 e
Z ] 3 ] 3
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. . Under SME Debt Restructuring
Type of Restructuring Under CDR Mechanism Mechanism Others Total
<] Asset Classification < < 2 B
Z 3 3 3 3
C HEERE T |E |3 |5 |z HEERE
g |3 |E g |3 |E g |3 |E g |3 |%
) o _ \ 2 _— T 2 _— i o] -_—
Detais s |5 |3 (2 |2 |2 |53 (|8 (|2 |5 (5 /318 (2|5 /5138 |8 |3
b |o 06 (3 | |6 [0 @ |3 [ |6 |6 | |3 |8 |6 |6 |6 [3 |[R
No. of © © @ © @ 1 A3 @ © © @ © 0 A @ P i3 N i3 5
Write off/ sale/ | VO © v i v o @
closure/ exit Borrowers
from CDR/ - - o o o o 1) - o < N~ o o © © © < < © o
Amount o @ 0 = Al © @ 2 S © 0 © @« o © < ] 0 9. 0
o e8|l f|2|°|g|3 || |K|g|8|3|8|K]|¢3
g | action initiated Out - ._| » iy _ v i ; o i Y _ N © _ © _ )
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: o (o2} (oo} o ~ < Al [Te) o — [9V) [To] o o N~ © © (82} o [Ye]
during o I3 < te} S o (=] =] I\ s} ™ Yo} To) 5] o (] N =] - =] o
1.04.2017 to Provision %_ Q_u % o M._O ﬁ_v ﬁ.v 0_ o 0_ Q_u 9__ A_.. o m_ Mm_u n_O nA«__.u o M_
31.03.2018 | Thereon
N - - - — -
L No. of ol vle|°] s “ls8|°|ls |25 g8 |8 2
AAAAAAVVV Borrowers
Restruc tured
© o — o N~ [o)] [eo] N~ o < < [aV) © © (oo} (o2} o < «© (2]
Accounts as Amount - 0 N~ S ™ © 3 ™ s} ™ ~ o)} < < 0 Irs} N~ te} < IS\
[\ <t N~ o < -~ - (o] o [¢)] < 2] D o (o] (oo} (2] (32} o [\
on March 31 Out ~ © — Yo} — < ] @ 3 N~ 0 Yo} o [ - =]
7 9] 3V} © ™ ™ © o © Te} ® < [aY} ©
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Figures) © © Y] o © o ™ - o < - © - o © o 0 < o ©
Provision © © N S ™~ S o ® = © 0 9 o = © - © ] o ™~
ereon - -
12.3 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset reconstruction
A. Details of Sales
(Rs. in Crore)
S. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
NO.
(i) No. of accounts 13 8
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 2113.05 276.75
(iif) Aggregate consideration 2 364.98 425.55
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 5.92 0
(V) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value 251.91 148.80
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AN
. A\ 2 %
3. e g | a1 &1 ge &1 faavor
@. S A)
faawor 2017-18 2016-17
i) Sfafed & gRT 92 MY TG gRT wafid 1355.01 483.39
ii) Sfaffed s st / fdia ST / R-Sfh faxia Fufat g1 99 7w Ty
FREERG]
Fd 135501 48339
3. Jren Wie ¥ faw & gwr ger R sifafvad gadtavor
@. S H)
P Y [CERY Bd s auf AR | fUsd 5 auf & a1g | 8 UTd Ugd oI} &t
P THAIR | AT 8 auf A ugd TS TH3R
SR &1 TS TSR
() dfed o gRT 9 T THUIY GRT GHRI THSHRTY P 366637 294.34 2.89
P 9,
) & Raar® grau 193.85 2.89
(ii) Sfafied & wu o o= sl / foxfta Tt/ IR-afd
forfta Fufl gRT o T TAUIY gRT SARid THeRTd
P gH IG
(ii) & T TrauE - _
Fd ()+ (ii) 3 666.37 294.34 2.89
12.4. 3 I A w4/ fawa it 13 oo faxita snferat &1 faazor
12.4.1. 9 P T S faxita snfxral @1 faaor
@ S H)
faarur 2017-18 2016-17
1 [@] 39 & SR B ST 7T Tdl &1 AT
(9] P T
2 [@] a9 & GRM 98 U GA-IRRId WTal Y T
@] $d gHrl
12.4.2. fapa Ft 13 3sie faxdta snfRmal &1 faaror
@. NS A)
faavor 2017-18 2016-17
1 faopa foru 7T @ma
2 FdIHEl
3 T sifaRad ufawa
12.5. W& 3Mfdl W Urae=
@. BAS H)
afavor 2017-18 2016-17
HH® STl & Ut uraem 629.49 1084.11
13. PRIGR Ut
faazu 2017-18 2016-17
@) 3d FRIGRY A & ufaed & ©0 § Seid o 7.26% 7.77%
(ii) 3d FrRiGRY Al & Ufawd & U o sareidR 3 1.52% 1.33%
(iii) 3d PRiBRY ATl & ufdwd & 0 H uRaAeHIdS ary 1.47% 1.44%
(iv) STl T @y -2.33 -1.21
V) PRITR (AL g 3R ) Ufd HHIRT (3. ISt H) 13.10 12.28
(vi) ufd AR A (3. BRIS! H) -0.2243 -0.1140
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B. Details of book Value of Investment in Security Receipt

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
i) Backed by NPAs sold by the Bank as underlying 1 355.01 483.39
ii) Backed by NPAs sold by other banks/financial institutions /non-banking - -
financial companies as underlying
Total 1 355.01 483.39

C. Additional Disclosure on book Value of Investment in Security Receipt

(Rs. In Crore)

S. NO. Particulars SRs issued SRs issued more | SRs issued more
within past 5 than 5 years ago | than 8 years ago
years but within past 8
years
(i) Book Value of SRs backed by NPAs sold by the 3 666.37 294.34 2.89
bank as underlying
Provision held against (i) 193.85 2.89
(ii) Book Value of SRs backed by NPAs sold by other - -
banks/financial institutions/non-banking financial
companies as underlying
Provision held against (ii) - -
Total (i) + (ii) 3 666.37 294.34 2.89
12.4 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold from other banks
12.4.1 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased: (Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
1 (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year - -
(b) Aggregate outstanding - --
2 (a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year - -
(b) Aggregate outstanding - --
12.4.2 Details of non-performing financial assets sold: (Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
1. No. of accounts sold - -
2. Aggregate Outstanding - -
3. Aggregate consideration received - -
12.5 Provisions on Standard Assets (Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Provisions towards Standard Assets 629.49 1084.11
13 BUSINESS RATIOS
S. No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 7.26% 7.77%
(ii) Non-Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 1.52% 1.33%
(iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 1.47% 1.44%
(iv) Return on Assets -2.33 -1.21
(v) Business (Deposits plus advances) per Employee (Rs. in Crore) 13.10 12.28
(vi) Profit per employee (Rs. in Crore) -0.2243 -0.1140

@




»

AYL
A\ %
14. TR STaT yae=
31 AT 2018 A% MMETAI T TSl Bt F© Al @1 TRUS T BT YfoA™
afavor ST 3 Frawr (@) IUR faosftger | fae=igan
(FP) 3ferar 3gare
1fe= 2227.87 2072.80 9560.69 3.75 3506.88 1450.52
29 7fea 5117.39 3430.45 2201.77 0 1334.75 981.22
sd14fe 6189.96 3167.48 1416.91 0 702.38 1146.92
15930 a9 4998.45 5298.72 961.39 313.17 3692.44 3448.49
3MfEAd2ad a9 8294.17 13181.02 1877.43 130.74 4784.67 2804.05
2 HE ¥ 3ifYe ug 3 HEiA 8050.60 15934.30 1773.32 309.41 2167.38 2713.51
GEg
3 HEH & 3ifYe ud 6 AER 22613.86 17788.94 5906.86 3604.01 4677.36 6072.60
GED
6 HER ¥ 3iftrep ud 1 9 d 51397.89 32701.56 11866.91 0 1668.31 3120.04
199 ¥ 31 ud 3 9¥ a% 24835.14 32072.77 9712.92 3100.00 1990.63 1616.65
399 ¥ 3ffYe wd 5 a9 d& 7064.66 9961.80 3045.21 0 2563.19 3059.53
599 & 3fie 76036.68 14372.87 21939.72 1767.00 1972.99 2647.45
Pda 216826.67 | 149982.71 70263.13 9228.08 29060.98 29060.98
31 1T, 2017 F! Jufal iR SN & $© Il Ft ufkuear de «
faawor ST 3 frawr (@) IUR faositger | fae=i s
FP) 3ferar 3gare
1fea 3019.23 7243.87 10071.57 0.20 2127.58 1274.56
297 5202.00 2783.86 2499.30 144.11 1136.40 42676
8914 6104.89 5159.22 1378.93 175.10 361.17 480.23
159 30 e 4201.59 4574.02 1021.14 64.85 911.06 1110.50
31fead 27 T 7679.05 13555.36 1849.27 389.11 1961.99 1561.05
2 HER 9 aiftre w4 3 HEA 7890.48 17135.28 1986.63 356.66 3893.60 978.55
GEg
3 HEH & 3ifYe ud 6 HER 2382870 14403.25 6772.86 2891.13 1636.03 2838.66
GEg
6 HEH ¥ 3iftre vd 1 9 d 48431.56 23741.24 11933.95 817.26 1691.79 3481.45
199 ¥ 3 ud 3 9¥ P 2622950 41962.77 10018.38 8492.25 1257.88 3413.16
3 99 ¥ 3iftre v 5 99 a% 5444.86 11989.03 2176.72 1000.00 1723.07 447.65
539 § 3fie 73310.76 14227.93 22603.93 1767.00 1973.45 2661.45
Pa 211342.63 | 156775.81 72312.68 16097.67 18674.02 18674.02
YU GIRT SIFUTEA 3R YHTG & =q o
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14 . ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT:

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2018*

¢

¢

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars Deposits Advances |Investments | Borrowings | Foreign Cur- | Foreign Cur-
(Gross) (Gross) rency Assets | rency Liabili-
ties

Day 1 2227.87 2072.80 9560.69 3.75 3506.88 1450.52

2to 7 days 5117.39 3430.45 2201.77 0 1334.75 981.22

8to 14 days 6189.96 3167.48 1416.91 0 702.38 1146.92

15 Days — 30 Days 4998.45 5298.72 961.39 313.17 3692.44 3448.49

31 Days — 2 Months 8294.17 13181.02 1877.43 130.74 4784.67 2804.05

2 Months — 3 Months 8050.60 15934.30 1773.32 309.41 2167.38 2713.51

3 Months — 6 Months 22613.86 17788.94 5906.86 3604.01 4677.36 6072.60

Month 1

Over 6 Months & Upto 1 year 51397.89 |  32701.56 11866.91 0 1668.31 3120.04
Months

Over 1 year & up to 3 years 24835.14 32072.77 9712.92 3100.00 1990.63 1616.65

Over 3 years & up to 5 years 7064.66 9961.80 3045.21 0 2563.19 3059.53

Over 5 years 76036.68 14372.87 21939.72 1767.00 1972.99 2647.45

Total 216826.67 149982.71 70263.13 9228.08 29060.98 29060.98

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2017*
(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars Deposits Advances Investments Borrowings | Foreign Cur- | Foreign Cur-
(Gross) (Gross) rency Assets | rency Liabili-
ties

Day 1 3019.23 7243.87 10071.57 0.20 2127.58 1274.56

2to 7 days 5202.00 2783.86 2499.30 144.11 1136.40 426.76

8 to 14 days 6104.89 5159.22 1378.93 175.10 361.17 480.23

15 Days — 30 Days 4201.59 4574.02 1021.14 64.85 911.06 1110.50

31 Days — 2 Months 7679.05 13555.36 1849.27 389.11 1961.99 1561.05

2 Months — 3 Months 7890.48 17135.28 1986.63 356.66 3893.60 978.55

3 Months — 6 Months 23828.70 14403.25 6772.86 2891.13 1636.03 2838.66

Over 6 Months & Upto 1 year 48431.56 23741.24 11933.95 817.26 1691.79 3481.45
Months

Over 1 year & up to 3 years 26229.50 41962.77 10018.38 8492.25 1257.88 3413.16

Over 3 years & up to 5 years 5444.86 11989.03 2176.72 1000.00 1723.07 447.65

Over 5 years 73310.76 14227.93 22603.93 1767.00 1973.45 2661.45

Total 211342.63 156775.81 72312.68 16097.67 18674.02 18674.02

*as complied and certified by the management
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15. IYR
15.1. TR HUGT &F P BT
T | 2017-18 | 2016-17
3) & F0T
i) RReTeeh dud - IRl 1 39 R Fufd WS4 gRT Iuia: Ufayfd IR fored
YRG! GG Y& § IT 8 aTalm ¢ a1 fory fame o feram smam | fordf vrufiyasar &= & dgd 16298.78 12327.00
FiferRT & foQ UT dafadds STar ol
ii) AT RITAR-TUGT - IO RITGR JUGTSH TR §4dh GRT Ufyd SR (@RI HaH,
BICI-AIE 1, 9g-31Na aiftiicuss ueR, 9g-uRaR FHariy ya, sgfay fomg o faar gen 369,56 263129
IS uwR, Shelfies a1 JeRersy Wi, glea, Yfi i, fawror g fFafor snfe) Iur & ' '
IR snetia W @ uws) Sfffed §
iii) RITIR YIS 3 - Bled, SRUATd 3R ferfdie H07 ot HRE & dgd el © 5983.04 5425.42
iv) S gRT FATIT ufaufaat & e 3R 370 yamyd IuUR  Rerseh amffsue wimeaR Yuer 3 1838.20 2210.27
0 20.00
SUIE HUT
) SR H : TG ST I (L) 31 fad e (e W R 1697.00 1156.00
TR SR TR-AfY amenfed IR ' '
RITGR WUGT UGt &1 Hd BT (3 +31) 25817.02 21138.69
15.2. Yoft IR &) BT S|
(. PG H)
faaRor 2017-18|  2016-17
3 sfdel AR, uRacd =i aiel, uRad—=id fEaeRrl ok Sl 3™ TI3d Hel &I SHIsal § far 47230 540.33
T e Faw, et i @1 o fafea: suie o & 78 fear man g,
ii) QR (RN / Sugandt wied), uRad=ie sisl ok uRad-=iia SRl iR et 3w g
sl i gt # fax & fou safdad! o Rt/ sist / fed=ri ar o ufayfadl & ufa a1 ey eer 0.68 0.29
R 34O
iii) forddt 3 TRIST 2 faU U a 3if¥, STt RRRY a1 uRadHRiTd dTel a1 uRad-Rid fesert a1 Sfedt 1.98 2.26
I W3 B! Bt giel Bl Jot ufayfd & =0 H ferar S g |
iv) S8l AR / uRad=id sisl / uRad=iia feawrt / Sfedt 38 Isrd hs &1 giHe J Sar uuH
gfayfa Sl & Gt ke A FR T8 BRal, a8l KT A1 IRad=AS siel a1 uRadsita fEeeRl 653.41 1594.13
1 et I o s B gAST 1 Tuifies Tiaf g vy a Y o Ieal & forg
e SHi;
v) W% P B U T JRI&A T SRREAA 3P 3R Tl SR 3R HThe AHY DI 3R I AR B 0.60 0.88
vi) T DY e BT U T T3 UG Bl SfBA T Uadd B RSH B R HIA & (o7 IR / STa
/ F&a=RY a1 o wfayfadl &t wfayfa & ufay a1 e snyR &R FHTuRe! & HeR HUr; 0.00
vii) TTRId gfdel yarg /el iR dufat & e BT, 0.00 0.00
viil) TRRY 1 URad-=ie siel a1 uRad-=ie fSaeRt a1 $fdvet 3790 RS e &1 gcl & Jay o 0.00 0.00
St gr1 &t i grefteRt ufdesary;
ix) TS SFET o fo i it o1 o e e, 0.00 0.00
x) S i R (dofigd 3 srioiga ST ) ¥ ufy @it o 142.10 169.83
Foft ST B P IUR 1271.07 2307.72
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15 Exposures
15.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector (Rs. in Crore)
Category 2017-18 | 2016-17

(a) Direct Exposure

i) Residential Mortgages-
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the
borrower or that is rented; 16298.78 12327.00

Out of which individual housing loans eligible to be classified under Priority Sector 7369.56 7631.29

ii) Commercial Real Estate-

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-
purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenated commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construc-

tion etc.) Exposure would also include non-fund based(NBF) limits; 5983.04 5425.42
iii) Real estate other (Hotel, Hospital & liquirent not under CRE ) 1838.20 2210.27
iv) Investments in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures-

a. Residential

b. Commercial Real Estate 0 20.00

c. other investment CIG Reality

(b) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National
housing Bank(NHB) and Housing Finance companies(HFCs) 1697.00 1156.00

TOTAL EXPOSURE TO REAL ESTATE SECTOR 25817.02 21138.69

15.2 Exposure to Capital Market

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- 472.30 540.33
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

i) advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units 0.68 0.29
of equity-oriented mutual funds;

i) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures 1.98 2.26
or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds ie. Where 653.41 1594.13
the primary security other than shares/convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/units of equity
oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

v) Secured and unsecured advances to stock brokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stock 0.60 0.88
brokers and market makers;

vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/bonds/debentures or other securi-
ties or on clean basis for meeting promoters contribution to the equity of new companies in antici- 0.00 0.00
pation of raising resources;

vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues; 0.00 0.00
viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue of shares or con- 0.00 0.00
vertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds;

ix) financing to stock brokers for margin trading; 0.00 0.00
x) all exposures to venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered and commitment 142.10 169.83
charges)*

TOTAL EXPOSURE TO CAPITAL MARKET 1271.07 2307.72
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15.3. SfQ¥ 97f IR =1 HBUT
(. PRSI /)
Sy qui 31.03.2018 d% 31.03.2018 d% 31.03.2018 9% | 31.03.2018 dF
(e sl EIEGRICOIE] (Fraen sifirm T wTaem
gAYl 12454.40 8.18 15319.36 9.43
G 5447.40 -- 7177.42 --
qH= 77.65 -- 2236 -
qH 3 824.41 - 752.49 -
I 10.56 - - -
$d 18814.42 8.18 2327163 9.43
« fafa goft TREA e farfies & i) & arg ara 9oft affevur & sreR ™
15.4. Uhd IYRS! ATHT (THET) FT f3aRv1, THE IURSGAl ST (sheiee) S gRT UR fomar mam:
% 7 -2 fou e amat B siRatens gr1 Py fad@m & oifiie ved / THg IUREal TeareR ferar or:
2017-18
@. RS )
. . 31.03.2018
U Bl faw TR B E | g safd R SR Wiar | i #t uegd
" IURS! &I A9 X 3 o1 3l - N TP & forw
’ TR B fRAfq
foa wR gifdw o,
1 ¢ - 260.70 391.05 12 AgH 29.04.2017 312.85
2016-17
@. AT H)
PHYE. | SURGAIHIATE | BUHaadar | TR | @I dRm | A H U@ F | 31.03.2018TF &
drar Har o1 SiftrTHe g faazor fore sor @) fRufa
1 THdtTd 2345.53 3163.54 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 | 18.04.2016 2438.47
2 fea wR ifgw fa, 389.10
N . . 259.40 (ST 40.00 389.10 (S
TIRRN - GBI @UES! 60.00 | 01.04.2016-31.03.2017 |  05.12.2014
faa) 60.00 fira)
RUCl| faf)
3 01.04.2016-
03.10.2017 INR.64.85
ReTgea WA far. - | 259.40 @UTST 40.00 | 457.19 (GUIS
. ?E e 70.50 vl JuaSle9 560037 05.12.2014 guHsti/-)
' (FT8451.10 BRIS) (In actuals)
P T aH
4 | gEdd) 324.25
o 259.40 (JUHST 40.00 304.80
TZTAETATSA ) @UESI50.00 | 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 |  20.09.2013 T 47.00 o
ST KD '
5 | TR 500.00 977.21 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 |  05.02.2015 934.89
6 | SWR! 100.00 1700.00 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 |  02.09.2016 689.05
7 | IO UHRA T 100.00 194.01 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 | 11.12.2015 167.67
8 | THIRTH FXege 100.00 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 | 22.12.2015 138.89
3T WY U8
THATTON 150.00
9 | gACHI 3§ BI- 100.00 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 | 13.07.2015 112.02
3y Hige Tamd
fafies 150.00
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15.3 Risk Category-wise Country Exposure:

¢
¢

(Rs. in Crore)

Risk Category* Exposure (net) as | Provision held as | Exposure (net) as Provision held

at 31.03.2018 at 31.03.2018 at 31.03.2017 | as at 31.03.2017

Insignificant 12454.40 8.18 15319.36 9.43
Low 5447.40 - 7177.42 --
Moderately Low 77.65 - 22.36 -
Moderately High 824.41 - 752.49 -
High 10.56 - - -
Very High - - - -
Total 18814.42 8.18 23 271.63 9.43

*Based on seven category classification followed by Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Ltd. (ECGC)

15.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL), Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Bank:

The bank had taken single/group borrower exposure in excess of prudential limit prescribed by RBI in the cases given below:

2017-18
(Rs. In Crore)
SL Name of the Exposure Limit Period during which limit | Board ratifi- | Position as
No borrower Ceiling sanctioned exceeded cation details | on 31.03.2018
outstanding
1 Twin Star Holdings 260.70 391.05 12 months 29.04.2017 312.85
Ltd, Mauritius
2016-17
(Rs. In Crore)
SL Name of the Exposure Limit Period during which limit | Board ratifi- | Position as
No borrower Ceiling sanctioned exceeded cation details | on 31.03.2017
outstanding
1 MTNL 2345.53 3163.54 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 18.04.2016 2438.47
2 Twin Star Holdings | 259.40 (USD | 389.10 (USD 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 05.12.2014 |[389.10 (USD
Ltd, Mauritius 40.00 mio) 60.00 mio) 60.00 mio)
3 Varada Twelve Pte | 259.40 (USD | 457.19  (USD 01.04.2016- 05.12.2014 INR.64.85
Ltd 40.00 mio) 70.50 mio) 03.10.2017 to the extent of (USD1/-)
USD69.560mio(INR451.10 (In actuals)
crore)
4. MVP Group 259.40 (USD 324.25 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 20.09.2013 304.80
40.00 mio) (USD50.00 (USD 47.00
mio) mio)
5 Air India 500.00 977.21 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 05.02.2015 934.89
IFFCO 100.00 1700.00 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 02.09.2016 689.05
Velammal Educa- 100.00 194.01 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 11.12.2015 167.67
tional Trust
8. SRM Institute of Sci- 100.00 150.00 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 22.12.2015 138.89
ence & Technology
9. Buldana Urban Co- 100.00 150.00 01.04.2016 -31.03.2017 13.07.2015 112.02
op Credit Society
Ltd.
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#17.3.2016 B! 9o H THINS! gRT 100 e srRiew! STeR &1 o Wigd AAT J 40 e SRt STaR o1 SR fawar
fow

## BTAP 31.3.2016 P Tl Bl s B [TT TAT §, Ah N AT 20.8.2015 T RAET 31afyy F TR 40 fifer it TR &
TISITS I 31fere 8 TS 81 20.8.2015 P THT 46.80 Hi3 T 310.07 HRIS) UTI

*+ WPl & dTe TN & ded fad $1 ufaffia a1 - 56 W TaRuoR

@ T 1.4.15 ¥ TGP 31.12.15 SIAR 81 718 ¢ SR THINET §RT 1.1.16 T 31.3.16 A 50 FAferH smia) STR &1 778 §
S gRT TR / Heuie g1 ga Wipta @1 fafd & a1e Suded ardl & Say & I d B1E of S e g8 B

15.5.  3mfaya M

(. BRIST T)
oo 2017-18 2016-17
et Tfayfaet Bt ot IHH ol SMIBR, AT WBR TR fby 7T 7623.85 6932.94
UYR 31T
Ut 3 Surfent b1 e Terd Hed 7623.85 6932.94
16. WY T §s:
faavor 2017-18 2016-17
TR §% gRT eIE U € 2.00
ell & GRT AT T S 0.02
AGIH AFD! & AR YHIHRUT

17.0. @B AFS 5 - 3afy & o g oy a1 g1, g orafdy ot axgait ofik arates =fifadt & ulkadH

Tt R TG A 10 (GRNFAT 2016) F IR [hRe Ty & TR FR TR Teag & S(aTdl 31 AT, 2017 P JATW 98
¥ forg It e Hifeat ok wameit & a1 g faaRor doR fw U €, = & Tu A WU SR U

fheRe TheH & I R IR Heagm ! T eich- o & @M 3R 811 T H STHT 3R & Soi1g oied Rord # RIFARd R
fea mn g

17.1. AGIHT HIHS 9 - oG AT
Heayul daie diferd - 3rget 17 # #e 9.2 # aftfargar Iva S Aaar i E |
17.2. AGiH AP 15 - FHARY aTH
) S® 01 AT 2007 Y HRHTT TS AWIBR TRIH GRT SIRT “HHATRET & ATH” Taieht SRaich=T JHh 15 (TRNTA) BT So=man
g

ii) AT AF®-15 @RI & TR SAfEE ay @ g1 WM 3R ga- U= | Uga U feH-3wR andt 3iR fieraH sHart
B Ry s aRwREad g

@) aRyIfE a1 AT

reAars & adar geal § uikada
@ IS H)
& Uz (i) =gt (k) SAHT TH B (IR fAfIP)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Y & ARY H FreAdrsd H1
7562.52 6815.05 1313.48 1139.92 469.79 435.40
A g
SIEKI] 566.60 510.13 90.01 82.49 32,69 28.42
A JaT ANT 168.65 162.75 60.24 58.48 3151 31.68
eGSR (634.04) (583.21) (164.17) (170.14) (93.68) (93.33)
A R IRATAD JHA
/ 595.21 657.80 172.84 202.74 23.89 67.62
(<TTH)
9 & 3fd § areaarsil HT gaa=
- 8258.95 7562.52 1472.41 131348 464.20 469.79

@
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# Unavailed portion of USD 40 mio cancelled by MCB in its meeting dated 17.3.2016 out of total sanctioned limit of USD 100 mio

## Even though the accounts stands closed as on 31.3.2016, the balance exceeded SBL of USD 40 mio during the reporting
period upto 20.8.2015. Outstanding was USD 46.80 mio [INR 310.07 cr] as on 20.8.2015.

** Represents bills under LC after acceptance — exposure on Bank
@ Limit reduced to USD 55 mio from 1.4.15 to 31.12.15 and USD 50 mio wef 1.1.16 to 31.3.16 BY MCB

There has been no increase in limits in respect of the above accounts after the date of original sanction by MCB/Ratification by
Board.

15.5 Unsecured Advances
(Rs. In Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Total amount for which intangible securities such as charge over 7623.85 6932.94
the rights, licenses authority, etc., has been taken
Estimated value of such intangible collateral 7623.85 6932.94

16 Disclosure of Penalties imposed
(Rs. In Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Penalties imposed by RBI 2.00 -
Penalties imposed by SEBI 0.02 -

DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

17.0 Accounting Standard 5 - Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared following the same accounting policies and practices as those followed for the
year ended March 31, 2017, except for the treatment of depreciation on revalued portion of Fixed Assets in accordance with
Accounting Standard 10 (revised 2016) on Property, Plant and Equipment as below:

Depreciation on revalued portion of Fixed Assets has been transferred from the revaluation reserve to the revenue reserve in-
stead of crediting to the Profit and Loss account.

17.1 Accounting Standard 9 — Revenue Recognition
Revenue has been recognized as described in item No. 2 of Significant Accounting Policies — Schedule 17.
17. 2 Accounting Standard 15 —- Employee Benefits

i. The Bank had adopted Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) “Employees Benefits” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, with effect from 1stApril, 2007.

ii. The summarized position of Post-employment benefits and long term employee benefits recognized in the Profit & Loss Account
and Balance Sheet as required in accordance with Accounting Standard — 15 (Revised) are as under:-

(a) Defined Benefit Schemes:

Changes in the present value of the obligations
(Rs. In Crore)

PENSION ?:tﬁ'u-rduell)v LEAVE ENCASHMENT
Particulars (Funded) (Un Funded)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Present Value of obligation as 7562.52 6815.05 1313.48 1139.92 469.79 435.40
at the beginning of the year
Interest Cost 566.60 510.13 90.01 82.49 32.69 28.42
Current Service Cost 168.65 162.75 60.24 58.48 31.51 31.68
Benefits Paid (634.04) (583.21) (164.17) (170.14) (93.68) (93.33)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on Obli- 595.21 657.80 172.84 202.74 23.89 67.62
gations
Present Value of Obligation at 8258.95 7562.52 1472.41 1313.48 464.20 469.79
year end
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(@) FierT T & Sfera e ® ulkad=
@ IS H)
R ¥ () A=t (D) AHT TH B (R Aifirep)
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Y & SRY T IS T &l 7589.84 6807.24 1308.94 1255.42 - --
SRkl
IS SR TR STHTT arH 610.23 548.35 109.56 101.16 - -
e &1 SfRre 684.66 677.77 204.58 188.29 93.68 93.33
U&d Ay (634.04) (583.21) (164.17) (170.14) 93.68 93.33
T3 TR IRATdD THaH / 3.09 139.69 13.50 (65.79) - --
(<ITH)
Ty & 3fd B AT MR HT 8253.78 7589.84 1472.41 1308.94 - --
S e
R e TepHUrBTE ST - - - -
M) g U ® UgaT i Iew
@A)
P gz (f) Tl (FlR) THTI TH BT (TR )
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
9 & 3id I SreHarstt o1 8258.95 7562.52 1472.41 1313.48 464.20 469.79
STATT IdHH g
Y & 3fd o qP Ao AT T 8253.78 7589.84 1472.41 1308.94 - --
3o g
I U= B ugar T8 fAfdE 5.17 - - 454 464.20 469.79
aa qgar
o U ® Ugarl TS e - 17.21 - - - --
aa Saan
U 3R At At F fAifea or-Fehra fRraa Saar 6t orTat ves ad 1 3rafy & SRm= ufe=nfa fear s
H) ATYH T g1 § UgaH ¢ g
@ PASIH)
R U [fiiE) gt ([fP) THTR AFEIHT (R AUfP)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
T aT AN 168.65 162.75 60.24 58.48 31.51 31.68
TS AT 566.60 510.13 90.01 82.49 32.69 2842
IS TR TR SFATT Ay (610.23) (548.35) (109.56) (101.16) -- --
9 o ygarT a1 fad Stifed 592.12 518.12 (159.34) (268.52) 23.89 67.62
(@) / &1
Y 9 g1 W1 | THIRG B 717.15 642.64 200.04 308.33 88.10 127.72
qvg $d g
|| oo fawfetat / duw & T et A el GG T et RIVEG T et
e & 3i=IEH ¥ U XbH
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(b) Change in Fair Value of Plan Asset
(Rs. In Crore)
Particulars PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Un Funded)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the 7589.84 6807.24 1308.94 1255.42 - -
beginning of the year
Expected return on Plan As- 610.23 548.35 109.56 101.16 - -
sets
Employer’s contribution 684.66 677.77 204.58 188.29 93.68 93.33
Benefit Paid (634.04) (683.21) (164.17) (170.14) 93.68 93.33
Actuarial gain/(loss) on Obli- 3.09 139.69 13.50 (65.79) - -
gations
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the 8253.78 7589.84 1472.41 1308.94 - -
end of the year
Unfunded Transitional Liability - - -- - - -
(c) Amount recognized in Balance Sheet
(Rs. In Crore)
Particulars PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE ENCASHMENT
(Funded) (Funded) (Un Funded)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Estimated Present value of 8258.95 7562.52 1472.41 1313.48 464.20 469.79
obligations as at the end of
the year
Actual Fair value of Plan As- 8253.78 7589.84 1472.41 1308.94 - -
sets as at the end of the year
Unfunded Net Liability recog- 5.17 - - 4.54 464.20 469.79
nized in Balance Sheet
Funded Net Assets to be rec- -- 17.21 -- - - -
ognized in Balance Sheet
(d) Expenses Recognized in Profit & Loss
(Rs. In Crore)
Particulars PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Un Funded)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current Service Cost 168.65 162.75 60.24 58.48 31.51 31.68
Interest Cost 566.60 510.13 90.01 82.49 32.69 28.42
Expected return on Plan Asset (610.23) (548.35) (109.56) (101.16) - -
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 592.12 518.12 (159.34) (268.52) 23.89 67.62
recognized in the year
Total expenses chargeable in 717.15 642.64 200.04 308.33 88.10 127.72
Profit & Loss Account
Amount received from N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Il Pension optees/ employer’s
contribution of PF
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(Figures in %)

Particulars Pension Trust Gratuity Trust
2018 2017 2018 | 2017
a) Debt Instruments
Central Government Securities 12.93 10.29 2.73 3.45
State Government Securities 13.43 18.45 69.03 58.24
Investment in PSU/PFI/ Corporate Bonds 73.12 64.59 26.90 34.83
Other Investments 0.07 6.47 - 2.37
b) Equity Instruments 0.45 0.20 1.34 1.11
(f) Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date (expressed as
weighted average)
(Figures in %)
Particulars PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE ENCASHMENT
(Funded) (Funded) (Un Funded)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Discount Rate 7.73 7.31 7.73 7.31 7.73 7.31
Expected rate of return on 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 - -
Plan Assets
Expected Rate of Salary 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
increase

Method used

Projected unit credit

Projected unit credit

Projected unit credit

(9) Experience Adjustments

(Rs. In Crore)

Particulars PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE ENCASHMENT
(Funded) (Funded) (Unfunded)
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account actual return on plan assets, infla-
tion, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employee market.

In respect of overseas branches, disclosures if any required for Employee Benefit Schemes are not made in the absence of
information.

The financial assumptions considered for the calculations are as under:-

Discount Rate: The discount rate has been chosen by reference to market yield on government bonds as on the date of valua-
tion (Balance sheet dated 31.03.2018).

Expected Rate of Return: The Overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. There has been significant change in expected
rate of return on assets due to the improved stock market scenario.

Bank’s best estimate expected to be paid in next Financial Year for Gratuity is Rs.200 Crore.
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17.3 Accounting Standard 17 - Segment Reporting

The Bank has adopted Reserve Bank of India’s revised guidelines issued in April 2007 on Segment Reporting in terms of which the reportable segments have been divided
into Treasury, Corporate/Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking and Other Banking Operations.

Part A: Business Segments

(Rs. In Crore)

Business Segments Treasury Ooﬁoﬂwﬁws\x%mo_omm_m Retail Banking Other Banking Operations TOTAL
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Revenue 6 093.26 6612.08 8 159.26 9411.26 6 367.63 6 724.75 366.03 302.38 20986.18 23 050.47
Result 1314.11 1 050.87 52.14 494.87 1284.11 1807.70 303.52 256.19 2953.88 3609.63
Unallocated Income 675.47 40.76
Unallocated Expenses 0.27 0.19
Operating Profit/Loss 3629.08 3 650.20
Income Taxes (2 332.21) 35.81
Provisions & Contingencies 12 260.78 7 031.14
Extraordinary profit / loss 0.00 0.00
Net Profit (62 99.49) (34 16.74)
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 79 628.80 81 130.63 90761.16 | 103126.91 71016.76 60 017.54 149.53 191.89 | 241556.25 | 244 466.97
Unallocated Assets 6411.78 2700.51
Total assets 247 968.03 | 247 167.48
Segment Liabilities 77 197.58 74 907.37 88 301.20 99214.11 69 175.08 57 955.35 75.57 223.06 | 234 749.43| 232299.89
Unallocated Liabilities 20.38 1123.04
Total Liabilities 234 769.81 | 233 422.93
Part B — Geographic segments (Rs. In Crore)
Domestic International Total
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Revenue 20 960.23 22 302.07 701.42 789.16 21 661.65 23 091.23
Assets 230 414.98 228 493.46 17 553.05 18 674.02 247 968.03 247 167.49
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The details of the Directors of IIBM VV
S.No. Name Designation
1. Mr. RS.Jayakumar Non Independent Non-Executive Director
2. Datuk Bhupatrai a/l MaksukhlalPremji Independent Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Goh Ching Chee Independent Non-Executive Director
4. Mr. Santhanam VangalJagannathan Independent Non-Executive Director

Details of Salary and Performance Incentive paid to Whole Time Directors during the year 2016-17 and 2017-18:

S| Remuneration* Remuneration*
No. Name Designation Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) (2016-
) (2017-18) 17)
1. Shri R. Koteeswaran Ex-Managing Director & 2,59,153.50 5,62,240.95
Chief Executive Officer
2. Shri Atul Agarwal Ex-Executive Director 3,40,618.50 9,99,342.30
3. Shri Pawan Kumar Bajaj Ex-Executive Director -- 10,13,025.76**
M ing Direct hief
4. Shri R Subramaniakumar anaging Director & Chie 28,73,464.63 12,37,308.80
Executive Officer
5. Shri K Swaminathan Executive Director 24,94,442 .43 2,82,880.00
6. Shri Ajay Kumar Srivastava Executive Director 11,67,450.32** -

*Remuneration Includes salary & allowances, salary arrears, performance incentives, leave encashment arrears and gratu-
ity arrears.

**Part of the year

17.5 Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings per Share
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Net Profit after Tax available for Equity Shareholders (Rs. in Crore) (6299.49) (3416.74)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 270,92,23,826 216,45,61,771
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share Rs.(23.25) Rs.(15.78)
Nominal value per Equity Share Rs.10.00 Rs.10.00

17.6 Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting Standard 23 - Accounting for Invest-
ments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements
As there is no subsidiary, no consolidated financial statement is considered necessary.

17.7 Accounting Standard 22: Accounting for Taxes on Income

(Rs. in Crore)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Particulars
DTA DTL DTA DTL
Depreciation on Investments 52.54 439.61
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 14.11 73.02
Provision for Employee Benefits 160.65 171.37
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Provision for Frauds 38.21 17.91
Provision for Other Assets 27.97
Provision for Restructured Advances 80.10 121.15
Reserve for Severance Pay 2.66
Special Reserve 256.65
Provision for NPA 3501.16 2102.97
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 337.68 9.94
Others 136.25 31.40
Total 4284.68 66.65 2527.76 696.26
Net DTL /DTA 4218.03 1831.50

17.8 Accounting Standard 26 - Intangible Assets

The software acquired for core banking system is treated
as intangible asset and amortised over a period of 3
years.

17.9 Accounting Standard 27 - Financial Reporting of
Interests in Joint Ventures

Our Bank (with 35% share) has floated a Joint Venture at
Malaysia along with Bank of Baroda (40%) and Andhra
Bank (25%). Bank Negara, the Central Bank of Malaysia,
issued the license to the Joint Venture on 16.04.2010. The
Joint Venture was incorporated at Malaysia on 13.08.2010
by name INDIA INTERNATIONAL BANK (MALAYSIA) BHD
(IIBM). 1IBM has an Authorised Capital of MYR 500 Mio.
The Joint Venture’s Paid up Capital is MYR 330 Mio.
(previous year MYR 330 Mio.) Our Bank’s share in the
Assigned up Capital is 35% - MYR115.500 Mio.

As on 31.03.2018, Bank has paid Rs.199.58Crore
(Previous year Rs. 199.58Crore) towards 11550000
shares of MYR10 each aggregating to MYR115.500
Mio. The Joint Venture has commenced operations on
11.07.2012.

17.10 Accounting Standard 28 — Impairment of Assets

Fixed Assets owned by the Bank are treated as ‘Corporate
Assets’ and are not ‘Cash Generating Units’ as defined by
AS-28 issued by ICAL. In the opinion of the Management,
there is no impairment of any of the Fixed Assets of the
Bank.

17.11 Accounting Standard 29 - Provision for Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

The guidelines issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India in this respect have been incorporated
at the appropriate places.

18 Additional Disclosures

18.1 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures

and NPAs
18.1.1

Concentration of Deposits

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Total D its of t ty | t
otal Deposits ot twenty 1argest | - 5415015 | 17145.82
depositors
Percentage of Deposits of
twenty largest deposits to Total | 9.31% 8.11%
Deposits of the Bank

18.1.2
including derivatives)

Concentration of Advances (Credit Exposure

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Total Advances to twenty largest 1999192 | 2124997
borrowers
Percentage of Advances to
twenty largest borrowers to Total | 11.80% 10.68 %
Advances of the Bank
18.1.3 Concentration of Exposures (Credit and

Investment exposure)

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars

2017-18

2016-17

Total Exposure to twenty largest
borrowers / customers

20225.24

30306.46

Percentage of Exposures to
twenty largest borrowers/ cus-
tomers to Total Exposure of the

Bank on borrowers/ customers

12.17%

14.54%
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18.1.4. 3FSic AR BT H=HIT
faa=or 2017-18 2016-17
I IR TSI WIdl § TERT FA TRIUR 4202.67 4759.95
18.1.5. Ua¥l-arR ARM / 3Sie nf&ral
@. S H)
. 2017-18 2016-17
H. &
3. T &
b PN 29520.00 3594.76 12.18 29348.13 3550.26 11.85
2. TIfE &F IUR
EAREREED 17854.85 3307.42 1852 16199.99 4544.04 1822
RPEEAEIDE
3. |dEm 14760.07 1.843.81 12.49 11895.53 2159.76 18.82
4. | Jufaae Hur 11419.04 329.43 2.88 9936.10 302.48 1.87
Fd (3) 73553.96 9 075.42 12.34 67379.75 10556.54 13.14
g R Ui &7
1 oMa 1230.00 0.00 0.00 1610.41 95.74 5.84
. P . . . . . .
2. I 41657.97 24 516.58 58.85 50335.14 18241.00 39.55
3 Jama 9204.62 428488 46.55 20054.73 4222.06 20.66
4. Jufdas Bur 25352.74 303.27 1.20 17395.78 1982.92 12.07
Fd @) 7744533 29 104.73 37.58 89396.06 24541.72 29.36
P (3(+9) 150999.29 38180.15 25.28 156775.81 35098.26 22.39
18.2. 3FSie TERTAT BT HIa—
@ FASH)
faa=or 2017-18 2016-17
1 30 B Gbdl TIUIT (YRS Q) 35098.26 30048.63
¥ F IR G (73 3ol KT 16 378.81 11737.52
3 Qv Tislel Widl & s 44598 1266.18
JU-TNT (3) 51 923.05 43 052.33
‘El’cfﬂw\j :
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18.1.4 Concentration of NPAs
(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 4202.67 4759.95
18.1.5 Sector-wise Advances / NPAs
(Rs. in Crore)
2017-18 2016-17
. Percentage
S. Outstanding Percentage of | Outstanding of Gross
No SECTOR Gross NPAs to Total Gross
Total Advances | Gross NPAs NPAs to total
total advances Advances NPAs i
. advances in
in that sector
that sector
A. Priority Sector
1. Agriculture and allied
activities 29520.00 3594.76 12.18 29348.13 3550.26 11.85
2. Advances to Indus-
tries sector eligible as
. . 17854.85 3 307.42 18.52 16199.99 4544.04 18.22
priority sector lending
Services 14760.07 1 843.81 12.49 11895.53 2159.76 18.82
Personal Loans 11419.04 329.43 2.88 9936.10 302.48 1.87
Sub Total (A) 73553.96 9 075.42 12.34 67379.75 10556.54 13.14
B Non Priority Sector
Agricult d allied
1. griculture and afle 1230.00 0.00 0.00 1610.41 95.74 5.84
activities
2. Industry 41657.97 24 516.58 58.85 50335.14 18241.00 39.55
3. Services 9204.62 4 284.88 46.55 20054.73 4222.06 20.66
4. Personal loans 25352.74 303.27 1.20 17395.78 1982.92 12.07
Sub Total(B) 77445.33 29 104.73 37.58 89396.06 24541.72 29.36
TOTAL (A+B) 150999.29 38180.15 25.28 156775.81 35098.26 22.39
18.2 MOVEMENT OF NPAs
(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Gross NPAs as on 1st April (Opening Balance) 35 098.26 30048.63
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 16 378.81 11 737.52
Other Debits / Credits in Existing Accounts 445.98 1266.18
Sub-total (A) 51 923.05 43 052.33
Less:-
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i. AT 2329.86 332535
ii.;nii?ﬁ (Bﬂ?;g;“%ﬁﬁ@ 1T ferd! P SIS 3R 1105.13 1674.68
LESIEING]

iii) Tap=ih! =/ Ya Read 701832 2 294.03
Y 9 d¢ WId 8d 1T 3253.95 42477
iv) TSR &I faspt anfe 35.64 235.24
v) faf7g IdR =gra anfe 13 742.90 7 954.07
3IU-Fd 38180.15 35098.26
31 A & foIT A6 d 3Fsia SNl (GaT ]H) (31-31)
18.3. AH-Id! ¥U | 9 WId | STeH 3t Afafafs

faaror 2017-18 2016-17

1 30 B TH-D! / TS RI H1 URMIS AW 74 90.21 6 472.94
N7 o & IR a2 WA B S1A T db-1! / T Rre a8 57 77.36 1894.21
JU-TNT (A) 132 67.57 8367.15
e gd & a8 § 9 | STa ¢ W@l B ahb-1d1/ TG aul IS Rad o 11 34.47 876.94
31 A1 (A-B) &1 3ifcd ST 121 33.10 7 490.21

18.4 faa=ht enfemal, sMSie Snf&Tal oiR Ieia

UIGYTT 3R SMHRID AT - T3 fyaror
oY 9 T W o W & dgd i T ouEyE iR

@ TS H
faazor 2017-18 2016-17
CERLS 1902996 |  18674.02
Fa et 199336 2576.87
T TSI SRl 822.16 789.16
ESRUSES|
185. Qo U SaR UTAIfoId Tl (ST aaid-Argust
& TR G fpar ST 3fard B)
o Tadidt &1 AW
<o fae=h
RS RS
18.6. T & GRT HTI-PR P 7T T 7T Trae=ii 1 7
@ TS H)
faavor 2017-18 2016-17
31 B & ferT Urae™ 59.81 268.55
qTel T AR & forg urae™ -2.392.02 -232.74
ad grau™ -2332.21 35.81

3BT RTB AT BT - 3T IR
R IsH)
faa=or 2017-18 2016-17
FH W N @ 829.21 23.14
UGy
3Toieh 3R & forg uraem= 11 934.98 6 948.26
AP T & T vray™ -455.07 179.88
gifed @l & forg uraur -118.61 -171.01
A B P U UGy
GG &R g July -2332.21 35.81
Hfga)
3 UTGYT d 3ATHIRIBaTT 70.28 50.85
Fd 9928.58 7 066.94
18.8. AfRR Urgey™=
R FUS H)
faa=or 2017-18 | 2016-17
JHfRR gy Wid # TR
G-TY T forT 7T SRR T
CAREIE
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(i) Up-gradations 2329.86 3325.35
(i) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts) 1105.13 1674.68
(iii) Technical Write-offs / Prudential Write-offs 7018.32 2294.03
(iv) Sale to ARC etc 3253.95 424.77
(v) Exchange Fluctations / Others 35.64 235.24
Sub-total (B) 13 742.90 7 954.07
Gross NPAs as on 31st March (Closing Balance) (A-B) 38 180.15 35 098.26
18.3 Movement of Technical Write off
(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Opening Balance of Technical / Prudential Write off as on 1st April 74 90.21 6 472.94
Add: Technical / Prudential Write offs during the year 57 77.36 1894.21
Sub-total (A) 132 67.57 8367.15
I;izz:ui:escz;/z:;:fe?r;ga?tshEeEr’)adjustments in Technical / Prudential written off 1134.47 876.94
Closing Balance as on 31st March (A-B) 121 33.10 7 490.21

18.4 OVERSEAS ASSETS, NPAs AND REVENUE

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Total Assets 19 029.96 18 674.02
Total NPAs 1 993.36 2576.87
Total Revenue 822.16 789.16

18.5 Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are re-
quired to be consolidated as per accounting norms)

Name of the SPV sponsored

Domestic

Overseas

18.6 Amount of provisions made for Income Tax during

the year:
(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Provision for Income Tax 59.81 268.55
Provision for Deferred Tax -2 392.02 -232.74
Net Provision -2 332.21 35.81

18.7 Provisions and Contingencies - Break-up

Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Provisions for depreciation
on Investment / Written 829.21 23.14
back
Provision towards NPA 11 934.98 6 948.26
Provision towards Stan-
-455.07 179.
dard Assets %50 9.88
Provision for Restructured 118.61 171.01
accounts
Provision made towards
Income Tax (including -2 332.21 35.81
Deferred Tax & Wealth Tax)
cher P.rowsnon and Con- 20.28 50.85
tingencies
Total 9928.58 7 066.94
18.8 Floating Provisions
(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17
(a) Opening balance in the
floating provisions account
(b) The quantum of floating pro-
visions made in the accounting - -
year
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oET-ay & R FeTelt 18 YHH @ |9 & IRE Prffad Bt
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18.9. T« 1 UBdIHr ) Maﬂaﬁﬂa” @E
18.9.1. TTEH! F Rrerd Sifefofat i e
- G ELEELSEEICiERE
S faa=or 2017-18 2016-17 fpu Ty sifafAora) ot
Rirc|
(@) aﬁ%m’uﬁﬁlﬁj 4515 2432 * ST 3Fad Hrafad 3 did MieRY, feqdt TawR, sReteng
) Ripradl o) T=m Tjed, % T e aRR # R
@ |9 & &R o (9254 .y 18.9.4. DI SMYTHT UF (TS
ATl 1 HS o 2017-18 | 2016-17
M aﬁ%aﬁm_ Ea.g 22603 19178 o & RA W Y g
TS Rrepradt o e PILERE]
N = 31.03.2014 &I THAT g gt , ,
dfed 6 Rierdi & 1206 4515 ST o
T fRifea faxia uvra
sl el o e e B e o R a1 e e R R A AR facf e

7 & STep! faaRur & =nfie =8 fvar
18.9.2. THUH 3 Rrerd

H

. faazor 2017-18
J&

2016-17

a9 & URY § dfed @
Rreprdl ot e

(P)

720 134

I & SR U Rieraal

. 76918
P g=

6096

a¥ & GRM fFuerg T8

. 75757 5510
Rl Bt Te

¥ Pt U R dfed

Gl X ) e 1881 720

S Sura gR1 Ui e 1w sifufAofa

fazor 2017-18 | 2016-17

¥ & gRY ® Hrffag
A fbu 7w o i

a§ % SR Ui fhu T .
Sifefyofal @t Tem 2

Y 2009-10 % GRM, % 4 TS DI YR TART UF SR
foan i doie AT & ey A 12 &1 Aad HHRUSR &7
SFREITT foraT SITQ T foh 4 TTQ sl &b goit Ml & =y
® ufvafda faan smem aut i HeRTsR &1 12 F JATH TR
W SRIEE B & fw ik oht @ ot s=id iR S® @
A U g |

IRAT & HgUf o ST B! fGT MU 9ot IURT & G aRe 3ioid
R §99 & BRI, gH et 676.273 = af st
495.276 firl) o1 Sifafkad Urau™ &t sgaR AT RN, Fifeh
a8 9% I b HED A BT sy e g 1 afe A
BB ITF B, AU IHH I JRM&d dx+ & e
I RffIar uafd 8 & SRUT sifafad Isht &7 Iy Ha
P HALIHAT Tal g |

Iy 2010-11 & ERM §F 3 §F R TARMAT & ver § FDhIch
MY O SR} o o1 | S g SH & 3T UniieRl &
TgaNT Ifgd Sftear e =Ha S& @aRm sefe & A ugm
FA F g, AR SR 3 e B o Ht sriféa &), gada
TE ST 3R AT 0 o5 G Hraf o, siuaies ufkarest
IR vEyE Taeh Aalkar & S, fafant ok uifafRey @t
3fUefmaif BT SUTe fHaT ST @ |

dF IR FARM™T T IR BT TT T g STy uF H
foxfra wuTa 7% 8 o5 e Ut tHarg s 330 Xt & 35 wfawrd
I, THATESR 115.500 B &1 UWOT FHRAT BT | GHAR & o
THATER 115.500 e &t Ioft & forg 199,57,52,186/- Suaf &1
oy fpar g |




»

%
V4

(c) Amount of draw down made
during the accounting year
(Transferred to Counter Cycli-
cal Buffer)

(d) Closing balance in the float-
ing provisions account

18.9
18.9.1 Customer Complaints other than ATM

Disclosure of complaints

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

No. of complaints
pending at the be-
ginning of the year

4515 2432

No. of complaints
received during the
year

19294 21261

No. of complaints
redressed during
the year

22603 19178

(d)

No. of complaints

pending at the end 1206 4515

of the year

Wherever the complaints are redressed within next working
day is not included in the statement

18.9.2 ATM - Customer Complaints

¢
¢

S.
No.

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(a) No. of ATM complaints
pending at the begin-

ning of the year

720 134

No. of ATM complaints

. . 76918
received during the year

6096

No. of ATM compilaints
redressed during the
year

75757 5510

No. of ATM complaints
pending at the end of
the year

1881 720

18.9.3 Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

No. of unimplemented
Awards at the begin-
ning of the year

No. of Awards passed
by the Banking Om-
budsmen during the
year

*2

No. of Awards imple-
mented during the year

No. of Awards lapsed
due to non acceptance
by customer

(e) No. of unimplemented
Awards at the end of

the year

*Z0 Bangalore has preferred an appeal before Appellate au-
thority, Deputy Governor, RBI Mumbai

18.9.4 Letters of Comfort (LoC)
Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17
Letters of Comfort issued during
the year
Letters of Comfort outstanding as > 5

on 31st March

Assessed financial impact

Cumulative Assessed Financial
Obligation

During the year 2009-10, the Bank has issued a Letter of
Comfort (LOC) undertaking to maintain a minimum CRAR of
12% in respect of Bangkok branch and to arrange to convert

retained earnings to capital funds and/ or infuse further capital
in order to restore the CRAR to a minimum of 12% subject to

approval from RBI.

In the worst case scenario of the entire textile exposure of
the branch becoming NPA, we may have to make additional
provision to the extent of THB 676.273 mio (previous year
THB 495.276 mio) being unsecured portion of standard textile
advances and the capital of Bangkok centre is THB 1797.890
mio as on 31.03.2018. If this contingency arises, there would
be no additional capital to be remitted as existing reserves

are adequate to cover the unsecured amount.

Duringthe year2010-11, the Bank has issued a letter of comfort
favoring Bank Negara Malaysia. The Bank in association with
other JV partners will provide support to India International
Bank (Malaysia) Bhd in funding, business and other matters
as and when required and ensure that it complies with the
requirements of the Malaysian Laws, Regulations and Policies

in the conduct of its business operations and management.

The financial impact for the letter of undertaking issued to
Bank Negara Malaysia is remittance of our share of 35% of
the paid up capital of MYR 330 mio ie. MYR 115.500 mio. Our
Bank has remittedINR 199,57,52,186/- towards the capital of
MYR 115.500 mio.
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(ERSE:) R BRIS H)
— 1
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1 Shgq &tar mfaRet S1UTs @1 SiaRd AR -
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“dF gRT ol T SHURR HRIOR & Tay T U Yedb /
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18.11. wfaydtexur & Weafla usdtarur 3 (a af
)

18.12. SUR Shiee WU Aww) 3 (1a af =)
18.13.  SRfarferal & smgvur

ST 1 o ST & foTl =00 ad 971S 05.02.2018 (04.02.2018
DI Fel & FYH) T 100 RIS P HUA YA 04.02.2018 B g
Sffafad yrrar faan o un | srqafe @y & wey o e Y 3R
YA / ITaeT A Rord & e qamaifsrd faar S g1

18.14. $T1-YU THAUISIR

2016-17

faa=or
ST U THRIUISR Bi Pl AR

e 20 ST U THIUIGR &t Fa A
SYRBAIST / TGP IR §F & Ha
TRIUIGR & 321 YU TRIUTGR &1
2T U TaUIeR W 4T e &
f3aRur 3R 31 R @Y 718 e
HRATS, UG BIS 81

2017-18

20. 3R faesh ge1 Bur @ Uw 4t %)

RS, & olus 4R §./2013-14/620 T HTRS.,/2013-14/448
F SR, TATS ¥ YRSl & g UH W § 9 Gafd sidvs
TS I fHu o § SR Sifew geiem faumT gry orféa
Tt et 50T aTct STl & HUT & oy Uit 9 saféra sifafvad
UIGYT Y T BT JRB BT ST g1

wige T ot geuida 31.03.2018 HI 3Fess faexlt aT
THUISR & fore sifafkad uraur Saxgear 30T § 8.99 HRIS
(31.03.2017 T 11.08 BRI IUT) 3R 31.03.2018 HI 3RS
fae=t gar vemueR =fia far T § & Y 9edt siResgy
TSN 2,57.81 TS T (31.03.2017 Bl 360.20 HRIS UL
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18.10 Bancassurance Business 19. Transfer to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund
(Rs. in Crore) (DEAF)
(Rs. in Crore)
S- Nature of income* 2017-18 2016-17
No. Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17
F ling Life | -
@ a:::ji’;:giesl © Insur 2.70 3.39 Opening Balance of Amounts trans- 639.07 530.87
ferred to DEAF ' '
F ling Non Lif
(b) | Forselling Non Life 17.50 11.83 Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF
Insurance Policies . 83.80 110.61
- during the year
© Eor jelllgg I\c/:ItutuaI 1.05 0.41 Less: Amounts reimbursed by 5799 241
unc procu .S DEAF towards claims ' '
@ Others (specify) _ _ Closing Balance of Amounts trans-
Total 21.25 15.63 ferred to DEAF 695.58 639.07

*Fees/Remuneration received in respect of the Bancassur-
ance Business undertaken by the Bank.

18.11 Disclosures relating to Securitisation NIL(previous
year — NIL)

18.12 Credit Default Swaps (CDS)
NIL(previous year — NIL)

18.13 Draw Down from Reserves

Coupon payment of Rs.100 crore on Basel Il compliant Ad-
ditional Tier | Perpetual Bonds due for payment on 04.02.2018
was made on 05.02.2018 (04.02.2018 being a holiday). The
payment / provision towards interest remain adjusted against
General Reserves in view of insufficient profits.

18.14 Intra-Group Exposures

(Rs. in Crore)

Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17

Total amount of intra-group expo-
sures

Total amount of top 20 intra-group
exposures

% of intra-group exposures to total
exposure of the bank on borrowers/ - -
customers

Details of breach of limits on intra-
group exposures and regulatory - -
action thereon, if any

20 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (UFCE)

As per RBI circular ref to RBI/2013-14/620 & RBI/2013-14/448,
data relating to UFCE of borrowers from individual branches
is obtained through online and consolidated working of the
required additional provision and capital for Exposures to
entities with Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure is done at
Risk Management Department.

The additional provision requirement for Unhedged Foreign
Currency Exposure as on 31.03.2018 is Rs.8.99 Crore (As
on 31.03.2017 is Rs.11.08 Crore) and the incremental RWA
requirement for Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as on
31.03.2018 is Rs.257.81 Crore(As on 31.03.2017 is Rs.360.20
Crore) which is included as part of the Credit Risk Capital
assessment.




17 9H-16 RydaR-17 RrdaR-16 feaR-17 fedaR-16 ard-18 ard-17

1 Dol 3= UIgl

TAY) 29003.26 13256.19 32170.54 9397.63 38597.66 25295.10 37641.35 16740.23

YT ST 9 ST, 59046.78 5118.90 | 26317.43 1529.02 53127.05 4628.37 54519.22 4695.28 53438.04 4658.80 64243.82 | 5444.21 55043.70 | 4818.88 | 60381.59 5204.37

15715.60 785.78 | 22054.36 1102.72 | 13686.61 684.33 | 15132.69 756.63 13700.01 | 685.0005 | 19603.41 980.17 | 13709.72 | 685.486 | 16675.67 833.78

4333118 | 4333.118 4263.07 426.30 | 3944044 | 3944.044 | 39386.53 3938.65 | 39738.03 3973.80 | 44640.41 4464.04 | 41333.98 | 4133.398 | 43705.92 4370.59

A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ud i it
o 3478580 | 8050.31 | 26535.31 9166.86 | 37838.10 | 1011743 | 3251093 | 10514.66 | 40798.16 | 10579.92 | 2983162 | 6413.74 | 4155864 | 11926.96 | 37747.81 8864.63
i RIS STHTY
@ BrdeR TIfE) 2336855 | 122347 |  7210.38 42511 | 2281335 |  1176.83 | 16385.35 857.00 | 2499933 |  1306.80 | 20747.03 | 1077.68 | 21336.48 | 1109.82 | 25676.20 1330.89
R - aRETFTES
TG (@ BreeR 11417.25 | 6826.84 | 1932493 | 874175 | 15024.75 |  8940.60 | 1612558 |  9657.57 | 15798.83 | 927312 | 9084.59 | 5336.06 | 2022216 | 10817.14 | 12071.61 7533.74
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4 485.47 0 47176 0 0 0| 45039 0 152.44 15244 | 2473.04 0| 130734 | 130734 | 489.58 0
5
8467.97 | 89212 | 1023337 | 126290 | 15051 10359 | 9734.06 |  1534.44 192.66 15478 | 867211 | 96276 192,05 | 167.82 | 8431.14 1123.78
i
51.09 51.09 126.49 126.49 98.49 9849 | 19656 196.56 150.63 150.63 72.34 72.34 16522 | 16522 | 182.94 182.94
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21 Disclosure on Liquidity Coverage Ratio

(Rs. in Crore)

Jun-17 Jun-16 Sep-17 Sep-16 Dec-17 Dec-16 Mar-18 Mar-17
Total Total Total Un- | Total Total Un- | Total Total Un- | Total Total Un- | Total Total Un- | Total Total Un- | Total Total Total
Unweighted | Weighted | weighted Weighted weighted | Weighted | weighted | Weighted weighted Weighted weighted Weighted | weighted Weighted | Un- Weighted
Value* Value # Value* Value # Value* Value # Value* Value # Value* Value # Value* Value # Value* Value# | weighted | Value #
[average] (average) | [average] | (average) [average] | (average) | [average] | (average) [average] (average) | [average] | (average) | [average] | (aver- Value* (average)
age) [aver-
age]
High Quality Liquid Assets
1| Total High Quality Liquid 29003.26 13256.19 3217054 939763 38597.66 2529510 37641.35 16740.23
Assets (HQLA)
Cash Outflows
2 Retail deposits and
deposits from smal
business 59046.78 5118.90 | 26317.43 1529.02 53127.05 | 462837 | 54519.22 | 4695.28 53438.04 4658.80 64243.82 | 5444.21 | 5504370 | 4818.88 | 60381.59 5204.37
customers, of which:
(i) Stable deposits
15715.60 785.78 | 22054.36 1102.72 | 13686.61 684.33 | 15132.69 756.63 13700.01 685.0005 | 19603.41 980.17 | 13709.72 | 685.486 | 16675.67 833.78
(ii) Less stable deposits
4333118 | 4333.118 4263.07 426.30 | 39440.44 | 3944.044 | 39386.53 3938.65 39738.03 3973.80 | 44640.41 4464.04 | 41333.98 | 4133.398 | 43705.92 4370.59
Unsecured Debt
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 Unsecured wholesale
funding, of which: 3478580 | 8050.31 | 26535.31 9166.86 | 37838.10 | 10117.43 | 32510.93 10514.66 40798.16 | 10579.92 | 29831.62 | 6413.74 | 41558.64 | 11926.96 | 37747.81 8864.63
(i) Operational deposits (all
counterparties) 23368.55 1223.47 7210.38 42511 | 22813.35 1176.83 | 16385.35 857.09 24999.33 1306.80 | 20747.03 1077.68 | 21336.48 | 1109.82 | 25676.20 1330.89
(i) | Non-operational
deposits (all 11417.25 6826.84 19324.93 8741.75 | 15024.75 8940.60 | 16125.58 9657.57 15798.83 9273.12 9084.59 5336.06 | 20222.16 | 10817.14 | 12071.61 7533.74
counterparties)
Unsecured debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4 M_ﬂmﬂmﬁ_ wholesale 48547 0| 4n7e 0 0 0| 45039 0 152.44 15244 | 247304 0| 1307.34 | 130734 | 489.58 0
S %mrmﬂm_ requirements, 846797 | 89212 | 1023337 | 126290 | 150.51 | 10359 | 973406 | 153444 19266 | 15478 | 867211 | 96276 | 19205 | 167.82 | 8431.14 | 112378
(i) Outflows related to
Mnumﬁwgowcé 51.09 51.09 126.49 126.49 98.49 9849 | 19656 196.56 150.63 150.63 72.34 72.34 16522 | 16522 | 182.94 182.94
collateral requirements
Outflows related to
loss of funding on debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
products




17 H-16 RwR-17 RydaR-16 fweR-17 feR-16 urd-18 ard-17

wﬂfﬁdwﬂ E P o P P Pq £ P P Pq E P P

Sy R wiia SrHTRa yria Sy Sy
o | G | o | ohew | Gl | Gl | Gl | Gl | Gl | Gl | el | e | ek | el | ek | e

FI I R Fefiavor ot

o8 < e 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

01 7 R gfar 8416.88 841.03 |  10106.88 1136.41 52.02 5.10 9537.50 1337.88 4203 415 8599.77 890.42 26.83 2,60 8248.20 940.84
6 3 HfagrTd Feftezor

e 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

! S K 68999.33 2833.82 42677.50 1755.86 55384.68 2185.36 58605.57 2562.46 58765.55 2337.15 55318.99 2355.29 49972.96 2021.99 63508.01 2620.63

8 | paTHe afedle 16895.15 13714.64 19306.84 17883.09 20242.99 17813.41
ECZARCIS

9 | v SR (3. frawf ¥ 27141.99 0 5655 0 20567 0 13350 0 15938 0| 620252 0 12800 0 4650 0

10 | gofar fFefed Teader @
) 14247 | 14247 | 23541 | 23541 | 218919 | 218919 | 50725 | 50725 | 215047 | 215047 | 20053 | 20053 | 300590 | 300590 | 22019 | 22049

fqdig
N

AAAAAA\VV 1| e st 885870 | 521344 | 1187051 | 795133 | 814880 | 4261.98 | 17987.09 | 10744.94 | 1205198 | 669548 | 1245219 | 733427 | 1071870 | 555388 | 15069.49 |  8354.06
AAAVVV 12 | paTee oiaie 3614316 | 535591 | 1776092 | 818674 | 3000499 | 645117 | 31845.24 | 1125219 | 3104015 | 884565 | 1885524 | 7534.80 | 2652460 | 855978 | 1994868 |  8583.25

Al || ey 29003.26 13256.19 3217054 9397.63 38597.66 25295.10 3764135 16740.23
22 | o Mad %e ya®
11539.24 5527.90 10583.58 8054.65 9037 44 7641.20 11683.21 923016

23 | SR HaRSl U []
251.3447 239.8052 303.9664 116.6734 427.0860 331.0357 3221832 181.3645

* T YRS e (3Na) TREEH GaRT [REM $iY Sd 8 3R aam TSt aRT HRIGT 63d B
TSR & TR T oraddl R b0l

39 111 Yol I TRUEEY TS | 1 3R 2013 B ARG € Td G 31 TRT 2019 T Y aR8 F ANL MG | 3 YR IR S 7 99 11 T AR e urd (@eriteR) &t
AR HAT § S B YR T dobT GaRT &A1 1 SFast 2015 T AR HRAT ST T SHHT FHIRU HRAMIT 1 SGRT 2019 T S [RIUIET R | TaRSR 39 ARG NEBR01 <arT &f 6 &
U Ui 30 & & 8 diaR a1a RIGRE &1 98 &4 & QY o B U WRATId ART | THTAfT dRadT a1y § &) b & Y faef & v &l 967al 3T § | S 3 o1 qHY
TREH B D A ST &b 01 SFART 2015 F TRUTET 8111 T 1 SHaRT 2019 TP U TGATH SMUSBH D 100% TP FHH aR0N & Tl S |

AR 30 g d% Fa ard deR 1 RGYE | F1 & A IRATId S ToEddr aTa aRd Sudal ({RETad) GAREM o1 & Al ot B GyTafd dRed quad™ & aft dat o
HAUBTATS T BT FGTaT 3l 8|

@




Jun-17 Jun-16 Sep-17 Sep-16 Dec-17 Dec-16 Mar-18 Mar-17

Total Un- Total Total Un- Total Total Un- Total Total Un- Total Total Un- Total Total Un- Total Total Un- Total Total Un- Total
weighted | Weighted | weighted | Weighted | weighted | Weighted | weighted | Weighted | weighted | Weighted | weighted | Weighted | weighted | Weighted | weighted Weighted
Value* Value # Value* Value # Value® Value # Value* Value # Value* Value # Value* Value # Value® Value # Value* Value #

[average] | (average) | [average] | (average) | [average] | (average) | [average] | (average) | [average] | (average) | [average] | (average) | [average] | (average) | [average] | (average)

Credit and liquidity

facilities 8416.88 841.03 10106.88 1136.41 52.02 510 9537.50 1337.88 42.03 415 8599.77 890.42 26.83 2.60 8248.20 940.84
6 Other contractual funding
obligations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 Other contingent funding
obligations 68999.33 2833.82 42677.50 1755.86 55384.68 2185.36 58605.57 2562.46 58765.55 2337.15 55318.99 2355.29 49972.96 2021.99 63508.01 2620.63

8 TOTAL CASH
OUTFLOWS 16895.15 13714.64 17034.75 19306.84 17883.09 15176.00 20242.99 17813.41

Cash Inflows

9 Secured lending (e.g.

27141.99 0 5655 0 20567 0 13350 0 15938 0 6202.52 0 12800 0 4650 0
IEVerse repos)
10 | Inflows from fully
performing exposures 142.47 142.47 235.41 235.41 2189.19 2189.19 507.25 507.25 2150.17 215017 20053 200.53 3005.90 3005.90 229.19 229.19

& 11 Other cash inflows
AAVVV 8858.70 5213.44 |  11870.51 7951.33 8148.80 4261.98 | 17987.99 | 10744.94 | 12951.98 6695.48 | 12452.19 7334.27 | 10718.70 5553.88 | 15069.49 8354.06

<
A

AAvvv 12 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 36143.16 5355.91 17760.92 8186.74 30904.99 6451.17 31845.24 1125219 31040.15 8845.65 18855.24 7534.80 26524.60 8559.78 19948.68 8583.25

Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted
Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value

21 TOTAL HOLA 29003.26 13256.19 32170.54 9397.63 38597.66 25295.10 37641.35 16740.23

22 | TOTAL NET CASH
OUTFLOWS 11539.24 5527.90 10583.58 8054.65 9037.44 7641.20 11683.21 9230.16

23 | LIQUIDITY COVERAGE
RATIO (%) 251.3447 239.8052 303.9664 116.6734 427.0860 331.0357 322.1832 181.3645

* Unweighted values (Average) are provided by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.
Qualitative Disclosure about LCR

Basel lll capital regulation has been implemented from April 1, 2013 in phases and it will be fully implemented as on March 31, 2019. Further RBI also introduced Basel Il Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (LCR) to be implemented by banks in India from January 1, 2015 with full implementation being effective from January 1, 2019 with a view to provide transition time
for Banks, the requirement would be minimum of 60% for the calendar year 2015 i.e. with effect from January 1, 2015 and rise in equal steps to reach the minimum required level
of 100% on January 1, 2019.

The LCR promotes short term resilience of banks to potential liquidity disruptions by ensuring that bank have sufficient high quality liquid assets (HQLA) to survive an acute stress
scenario lasting for 30 days.
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31.03.2018 B! §& P oY TSR 322.18% UT S GTAM dhaieR a & forg sRatang Fuffa 90% & TR A HTHI FW R | 8% 31.03.2018
I I U AT oA YuRrd! &1 Horgd fAfr 377641.35 RIS UL FR T € | FH I HH TITANR ATAHATSN & JHEd b &
T 10,750.83 FXIS TUY & IHR Ufayfodt § 1 SramMds Ao afgalg &1 I & & fore s H g aRerar @ |

I SifAard sazgdmdrsdl F FHW R FHWR THUANR Fa% & U & 7 T Y TRATAT §1Y 79 Y67 § | G ST $ fad Tiwor et
BT U 3 B, 3R U BT Wid orssl ke 3 fafay B 1 yeier &1 71 § b § ) wiasy 3 sreuaifere sazadharsil & IR a4 &
fore it aRadr FaR B

22. AER® B gRie Ao (R @ral # adue § Ws-fea safy & qga ) R ywdawu

faaRu 2017-18 2016-17
1At Pt T 51§ LIS ISR Pl AR fbar T § | - 17
[GREEaiEE)
DI BT AR 2017-18 2016-17
AHS & Aid Filfpd - 3410.09
YT & 3fad Fifepd - 245.73
WTa & GaY o FHT AR oI5t B W B BT FuiaR dfed § 2017-18 2016-17
THS & Sfaiid Jilied - 1123.82
YT & 3fard Fifepd - 245.73
T Wl & FaY T FHTT ALY OTGT HUT BT 3l TUTaRU g3 § 2017-18 2016-17
AHS & SHTd FIlfpd - 2286.28
TUT & 3fard Fifepd
23. TR Ul & qad Sxa-1 & [ JIoiT 0R e vl (T4 4 T)
(T B )
gfaRur 2017-18 2016-17
el b1 TG ST TH4U A b T ¢
UHS & =0 H Fiffd 4 2
Tl & ¥ § FEifepd ]
(Rs. in Crore)
RERKCEACIRIR 2017-18 2016-17
UHS & =0 | Fiffpd 250.13 122.65
Y & ¥ H FHfipd 54.75
(Rs. in Crore)
FHIT AR 2017-18 2016-17
OHS & =0 | Fiffdd
YR T H 127.96 66.05
kiR 122.17 56.02
Tt & ¥ § FEifegd
YT H 27.47%*
yr st o 27.28 -
yTRa foT T Urae™ 72.19 23.14

 FeH fgTie TR Tar TIUT SE-agg & 9ie, I T AMS | s fhar mar
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LCR for the bank as on 31.03.2018 stood at 322.18% which is well above the RBI stipulated level of 90% for the current calendar year.
Bank is having a strong build up of High Quality Liquid Assets at Rs.37,641.35 Crore as on 31.03.2018. Bank is having government
securities to the worth of Rs.10,750.83 Crore in excess to the minimum SLR requirements. Bank is having enough liquidity to meet

sudden cash outflows.

The Bank has been maintaining HQLA mainly in form of SLR investments over and above the mandatory requirements. Retail depos-
its constitute major portion of total funding sources, and such funding sources are well diversified. Management is of the view that

Bank has sufficient liquidity cover to meet its likely future short term requirements.

22 Disclosure on the Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (Accounts which are currently under the Stand-Still Period)

Particulars

2017-18

2016-17

Number of Accounts where SDR has been applied

17

(Rs. in Crore)

Amount Outstanding as on 2017-18 2016-17
Classified as Standard - 3410.09
Classified as NPA - 245.73

s;c:::; Outstanding with respect to accounts where conversion of debt to equity is 2017-18 2016-17
Classified as Standard - 1123.82
Classified as NPA - 245.73

gr:::r:l it;tstanding with respect to accounts where conversion of debt to equity has 2017-18 2016-17
Classified as Standard - 2286.28
Classified as NPA - -

23 Disclosure on the Scheme for Sustainable Structuring of Stressed Assets (S4A)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Number of Accounts where S4A has been applied
Classified as Standard 4 2

Classified as NPA

(Rs. in Crore)

Aggregate Amount Outstanding 2017-18 2016-17
Classified as Standard 250.13 122.65
Classified as NPA 54.75 -

(Rs. in Crore)
Amount Outstanding 2017-18 2016-17
Classified as Standard
In Part A 127.96 66.05
In Part B 122.17 56.02
Classified as NPA
In Part A 27.47** -
In Part B 27.28 -
Provision Held 72.19 23.14

**Account NPA as on reference date. After implementation, Part A upgraded to Standard
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SRS 12 df BRast 2018 F 31U UGS | StaE. 101 / 21.04.048 / 2017-18 & HILAH ¥, TIGURT Juferdl & THIUM WR ST gfan
oY fopa 1 =R Shrradh & SR, ¥ 7 fafkiy gifdd @t &t et SMEeRut Aresl & SFuR arffed frar & iR T ad &
IR 39 dE & WAl & AU 7 99.37 IS TUY BT UIayT faar g

24. A defa aa
gfazor 2017-18 2016-17
Rare foru U Rt &t T= 74* 106
FR RIS H)
faa=or 2017-18 2016-17
T USR & UGl H Wferet A - 31 AK DI Sbr 1372.90 850.45
Ty & R fPT TN Urgy™ &1 7T 1372.90 850.45
"3 HSR' Y dfd SfRifd UIau™ &1 HicH
25. TR &7 F01 THTUT U (UegueRt)
FR S H)
wH & 2017-18 2016-17
q. e fat EERI[ ICEd]
1 doauas HiY
2 YITaUerRil - THuh/ THU% - 1300
3 Yrouers - sifaey IeH ~ _
4 Tugued! 9E = - 105
e :

1) USRI RIS TRUT THATSSIS! PHLEM.IR23 / 04.09.01 / 2015-16 f&ifHd 7 3T 2016 WUTHBAT & 01 YA U
(duauef) & YR W |

26. YR ford S & femnfd =i & SR feanfermom ok feanfemmom dfgan (sl & uraemi & ded Har 5T T o YR Widl &
&t B 23 T, 2017 BT STRY 0 WA SISIRTAATE: 1519 9/ 21.04.048 / 2016-17 & STUR farferaro= iR fEanferaro= wfgar (ansath
F UEYT & d8d $S IUR Widl & JaY & 28 3R, 2017 GAifwd StemRuadtat TR, 1949 / 21.04.048 7 2017-18 F IR §F &I
HfAfead WAL HRAT U7 | TEGIAR, §F 7 02.04.2018 & REISME U . SISRUA . / 8756 / 21.04.048 / 2017-18 & TR fardt
farad &1 Ay I 51 39 Wrdl & Jau H 726.87 Hs 30 &7 ifalkad urae™ fearg |

27. qATHS 3ADHS
fored a¥ & s ot +ff SRt B, 4. TfRd / O iffgpd fru e § |
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RBI vide its Circular No.BPBC.101/21.04.048/2017-18 dated 12th February 2018, has issued revised framework on Resolution
of Stressed Assets. Pursuant to the revised framewoirk, the bank has classified the specific restructured accounts in
accordance with extant IRAC norms and made a provision of Rs.799.37 crore towards such accounts during the current year.

24 Advances Related Frauds

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Number of Frauds reported 74* 106
(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Amount involved in such Frauds - Outstanding as on 31t March 1372.90 850.45
Quantum of Provision made during the year 1372.90 850.45
Quantum of unamortised provision debited from ‘other reserves’ - -
*excluding two frauds pending as on 31.03.2018
25 Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs)
(Rs. In Crore)
S. 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
No. Purchase Sales Purchase Sales
1 PSLC - Agriculture - - - -
PSLC - SF/MF - 1300 - -
PSLC - Micro Enterprises - -- - --
PSLC - General - 105 - -

Note:

1) The disclosure is in line with RBI Circular FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated : April 7, 2016 on Priority Sector
Lending Certificates(PSLC).

26 As per RBI directions vide letter No.DBR.NO.BP:15199/21.04.048/2016-17 dated June 23, 2017 in respect of certain

borrowal accounts covered under the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) and vide letter no. DBR.NO.BP.
BC.1949/21.04.048/2017-18 dated August 28, 2017 in respect of certain borrowal accounts covered under the provisions of
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), the Bank was required to make additional provision as stated therein. Accordingly, the Bank
has made an additional provision of Rs.726.87 crore in respect of those accounts without availing any concession as per the latest
RBI letter No.DBR.No.BP/8756/21.04.048/2017-18 dated 02.04.2018.

27 Comparative Figures

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged / reclassified wherever necessary.
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FU=a 3TawHts a INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK

31.03.2018 TUTE T & T Teheh yaTg eht feramuft

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

& ® Rs. in ‘000s

|uTe 99 Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
TRETET Tfatenen § e yarg | CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

TP & q1G 19 gTi+ Net Loss after Income Tax -62 99 49 03 | -34 16 73 85
TS ; SH %ﬂ PIERIE] Add: Provision for Income Tax 59 81 14 2685463
AP | Ugd [~ad g1 Net Loss before Income Tax -62 39 67 89 | -3148 19 22
e o foe Tars= Adjustments for :
TEtun fAa e & o FoT uieed Amortisation of HTM Investments 68 61 89 92 88 23
fal o qAdeie 9 g% a1 Loss on Revaluation of Investments 186 03 09 16 19 10
T el T qeTe ™ Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2724703 2148649
SR & foght W (A1) / 71 (Profit) / Loss on Sale of Assets -179 39 -12373
SR & sfaRon Transfer from Reserves 80 39 55 -801077
TSt Nt & T grae Provision for NPAs 118163734 | 67772504
T Nl o oI JTaem Provision for Standard Assets -4550704| 1798891
el I B Depreciation on Investments 9123827 7995 39
311 A&l o foTe grae= Provision for Other ltems -24 049218 -2 38 69 80
e 11 gt W ya = Interest on Tier Il Bonds 4527826| 4487038
39 T Sub total 109272682 | 74 89 69 24
foreTerd o foTe qarE== Adjustments for :
el 5 9fs / (319) Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 54891845 | -131 71 61 29
IURA 7 95/ (F9) Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings -68 69 59 07 | -103 55 63 59
o7 2 T WA ﬁqﬁgl (&) rr(;ﬁ:isoen/s(Decrease) in Other Liabilities & 552242095 | -21143173
faasi # (3f5) /29 (Increase) / Decrease in Investments 18411525 | 74513294
0w 7 (3f5) / 39 (Increase) / Decrease in Advances 38465699 | 136247992
31 Nl § (3F5) / 39 (Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets 72996449 1524110
3T T Sub total -5163 0390 | -44 1302 65
T gl A (fere) Direct Taxes (Net) -1317 82 67 -4 334237
YR Attt NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM
e 9aTE () R (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES(A)/ -17932765| -5049500
fraer waieht wiafafen & Twe CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVI-
o TIES
e i &1 fasht / fAve™ Sale / disposal of Fixed Assets 66816 6 97 94
e s &t @l Purchase of Fixed Assets -1217411| -1418370
fraror waieft nferfafimet @ Sae NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED
et Tehe (@) IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 1150595 -1348576
Ryl A Fﬂﬁ@mm -CI-::ESS,H FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVI-

frfe @ aarm Proceeds of Equity Share Issue (includin
mggw) (¥ Shore premiunj) y ( 9 57940000 | 18129418
fooR | W 11 SiEl & A Redemption of Tier | & Tier Il Bonds 0| -15300000
aga 11 fe=r 11 sfei & fafmta Issue of Basel Ill Tier Il Bonds 0| 8000000
e 11 9 W gaea &= Interest Paid on Tier Il Capital -4637058| -4663374

9
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At (Tt afs W g s Interest paid on perpetual (AT1) bonds -1000000| -100 0000
IR TR G YT TR 3qae iy Share Application Money received from GOI 0| 11000000
fereaiwoT Tfefafirat | frere 9ehe | NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED 52302942 | 1616 60 44
(T IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)
Tehg Ud e GHQeT | act gig | NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 33219583| 9767968
(R+@ +7) EQUIVALENTS (A) +(B) + (C)
ad % e & - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
? e I TR WAA™ | BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
IR & 1 Tohe F 9T Cash & Balances with RBI 114999653 | 140334924
dehl 3 T I T HT-57 Balances with Banks & Money at Call 117230672 | 82127433
P - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
"’ TRE T TR EATT | END OF THE YEAR
e 9 AR % g 9 Cash & Balances with RBI 115794504 | 114 99 96 53
Hehl o WY VY I AT-57 Balances with Banks & Money at Call 149655404 | 117 23 06 72
Tehe U4 ehe TUGed W 149 qig/ | NET INCREASE / DECREASE IN CASH
Cil AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 33219583 9767968
3 foaoT STgeey Ugfd o 3MUR W d9R T T |
AR a o Thel ¥ TR 3 fTet ot o TSl Hi STTThaT STHR [H: T S T 2 |
This Statement has been prepared in accordance with Indirect Method.
*The previous year figures have been reqrouped wherever necessary to conform with the current year figures.
e T AN GIATHHAT ¥ whETT oft 3T FUR Margaa
T FRiER sTem SR ICEE) EIRRIGEARERED CAURIGEARENEY
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a1 ¥ 30T N §F F JooT

faxfta faawon o= fraYé

1.

1 TRafeR =fiferdt 3R 3= ARATAS BRI & TRIL Jard 31 AT 2018 B T a9 o g 3f0eem sfiarefiel §a "d%" &
A U G AT T B1 e a1 S af & e vaTg faaror afgd Taw fadia faavon ot grm v witen ot 81 37 facita faawon
T gUR GRT AT GfErd 20 Warsit qut IRaT & Tifafiie avar udierds! gRT akar Ui 8 fadef wmarst ¢k 9 &t st
Tfed 1564 WRaT Bt faaRfOmET off e Bt 18 €1 TR GRT TUT 30 TRAT-URieih! gRT ARaT-URifrd Xmarstf o1 99+ S gRT
YR eord S gRT oY fe=nfe =it & 3y € fhan ¥ 1 39 goi--u=1 3TR a1y @ 817 & faaror & 3 1820 wRanaii ud 39 &5t
Pt R 7 3d wrafadl o faaRfomt ot e ot 1< § et aar wlten 78 g3 81 3r-orkan wifdd 37 mans &1 sfm &
& o 3RS 11.24% , ST SIS H 25.72% , ST 31T H 8.88% 3R el aieft @i 7 23.83% 1 3SH g

faita faeront & forg e ot ormier®

2.

e faframes Sififaw 1949, 0T - THE R IR YR Refd d& & fe=nfd =it ofk WRd § 9 aR R Wier aaie
TH®! & AR 37 o ARl & IR Fv & o veied e 81 59 Rrier & fomg, srafaaa ¢k siafve Ao
1feret B it faciia faaRolt &) GuR B3a & 1T 3iawae § o a8 1Y J 4ad 8, =18 3 eanee) ar Terdt & HRor gl

o udierel $ forderdt

3.

BT oRET Tt & SR TR 37 it faarol R IR odd a1 gt e § 1 897 YR T SRaThR TRT gRT ok fahg
T TRATHRUN TR A P ST ST TRAT TR BT | S AT F S0 bt et § o g7 ot sremail & ey arar udtar
H3 | forita faaRor SrRfed 67 & TR & Iugad STy U aY |

oraT oRte § facitg faaroi & IRl 8§ ueciavon & IR § oRaT uRiaT H1ed UT SR Teieht T Y 18 ufdand wnfie e g
T BT TS kAT oRaT Tierept & Fofar wR R B R foxha fyaroit & axgfs Tad [aRor & gt o1 Sifew |
IEdT 3, IR 9 ORI T Tt & HRU 81 AW W 37 SNAT Hedich BT 3MHaT HIA W 3PS B AR T B
YUITGHTRGT TR I A DR & 3= ¥ o] dicth 39 G 1 URRUTGIl T Iugad @ TRI&T Ufshanaii & fSoms &+ oq
forfta faavont ) I wRgfa Ud 8 3 dad @ Tag Hiales a0 iR iR Fxar g1 axar udten & vgad &1 1S aaauT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Indian Overseas Bank

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indian Overseas Bank (“the Bank”) as at 31stMarch 2018,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31stMarch 2018, and Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. Incorporated
in these financial statements are the returns of 20 branches audited by us and 1564 branches (including 8 overseas
branches and 9 Regional Offices) audited by statutory branch auditors. The branches audited by us and those audited by
other auditors have been selected by the Bank in accordance with the guidelines issued to the Bank by the Reserve Bank
of India. Also incorporated in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are the returns from 1820 branches
(Including 39 Regional Offices and 7 Zonal Offices) which have not been subjected to audit. These unaudited branches
account for 11.24% of advances, 25.72% of deposits, 8.88% of interest income and 23.83% of interest expenses.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2.

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with Banking Regulations
Act 1949, Reserve Bank of India guidelines from time to time and accounting standards generally accepted in India. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

5.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion, as shown by books of the Bank, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

(i) the Balance Sheet, read with the notes thereon is a full and fair Balance Sheet containing all the necessary
particulars, is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of state of affairs of the Bank as at 31stMarch,
2018 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India;

(ii) the Profit and Loss Account, read with the notes thereon shows a true balance of loss, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, for the year covered by the account; and

(iii) the Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view of the Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

7. Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to:

a) Note No.6.4 (Schedule 18) relating to recognition of Deferred Tax Asset for the year aggregating to Rs.2392.02
Crores

b) Note No.7 (Schedule 18) relating to reconciliation of certain Inter branch transactions.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with Section 29 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949.
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9. 3T®e 195 Y 3 T T F} 7 var uhen 1 Are & dgd SHHR U ([SUHHT BT 3ol T 3faron) ffEE 1970/
1980 GRT SULTTIR 3R ITH S0fdd YarciamRur Bt irefi & AR it 81, g1 Rl axa §

) gAY T TR Td WHleRu U U € Sf i gARY SIMeR! Td I & S8R ISP €, g9RI a@l udian & g
TS Y 3R I8 YadIvvie Irar 74 g |

| d% S - o 5 TART TR 7 MU §, 3 9 &1 Wfckdl & ofeR fPu M
M) O & HrRtHl quT ARETs ¥ U et arar & 3= 8 Iugad TS TS g
10. &9 M RUE Fxa & 5
®) 39 Ui ¥ aftfa eI gomua Td @ 9 g1 A, o sfeal vl e & o H | B

¥ ofbfafam A am 1949 Y 4RT 29 F 3T S & AT AATURI&PT gRT ARATURIfed RAT3f & aval iR R g6 e
B 7S ® 3R 39 RO &1 IR $3d §U BHY I W GHId HRATS P18

) TR AR, AU, AT 9 81 I8 T ! TaTg faaRul AR aRai A & U | g

Pa g TS &. Tagadt Pd aame! ¢S daret
Te] AEBR TS AWHR
TH3HRTT 10352389 100048 UH3HRET 1107588%Y
(Y. T, AT (AT Tah)

TEER BSIECN

THH. 202363 TH. 4. 034834

Pd 3R FAAGT TS &. Tl % TH T 3R ¥ ¢S gHifgew

T} AR, e AEBR
TPH3RUT 004137TF/ TH200041 TWH3RTT 0060850
(T F ) (Fte PR )
BIEEN BIE AN
T H. 019339 T . 084884

”YE -

a1 : 29.05.2018

[N
o]
(=]




A
NN

%
K

WY

9. Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in paragraph 1 to 5 above and as required by the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980, and subject also to the limitations of disclosure required therein,
we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory;

(b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the Bank; and

(c) The returns received from the offices and branches of the Bank have been found adequate for the purposes of our
audit.

10. We further report that:

a) the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account
and returns;

b) the reports on the accounts of the branch offices audited by branch auditors of the Bank under section 29 of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report;

c) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement comply with the applicable
accounting standards.

For HARIBHAKTI & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 103523W/W100048

(G.N.RAMASWAMI)
Partner
M.No0.202363

For R SUBRAMANIAN AND COMPANY LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004137S/S200041

(N KRISHNAMURTHY)
Partner
M.No.019339

Place : Chennai
Date : 29.05.2018

For TALATI & TALATI
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110758W

(UMESH TALATI)
Partner
M.No.034834

For S AR C & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FRN 006085N

(SUNIL KUMAR GUPTA)
Partner
M.No.084884
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Indian Overseas Bank
Central Office:763, Anna Salai, Chennai — 600 002
PROXY FORM
(To be filled in and signed by the Shareholder)

Regd. FOlO ....c.ccooviiiiiiie
(If not dematerialised)
DPIDNO. oot
CL.ID NO. coeieirceeineeccee

(If dematerialised)

IV, ..ttt ettt sttt ettt eeae e te e e are e neeneenaeeneeneenren resident(s) Of ..ooovevvieri e
...................................................................... in the district Of.........oiiiiiiii D thE
State of being a shareholder / shareholder(s) of Indian Overseas Bank, Chennai, hereby appoint
Shri/Smt. ..o resident Of ........oooviiiiiiiiii in the district of .......ccoovvviiiiiiiin,
in the State of ... or failing him/her, Shri/fSmt. ... resident of
................................................ in the district of .............................inthe state of................................ @8 my / our proxy

to vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Indian Overseas Bank to be held on
11" July 2018 at 10.00 a.m. at Auditorium, Staff College, Indian Overseas Bank, Behind Vee Care Hospital, 100 Feet Road towards

Thirumangalam, 230/7A Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Anna Nagar, Chennai- 600 040 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this .......ccoeveevrecinene day of ...cooevviin 2018 Please affix
.................................................. Signature of Proxy R.1/-

. Revenue
NAME & oo Stamp
AdAreSS: ...

...................................................................... Signature of the first named/sole shareholder

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNING AND LODGING THE PROXY FORM

1. Noinstrument of proxy shall be valid unless
a) inthe case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him/her or his/her attorney, duly authorised in writing,
b) inthe case of joint holders, it is signed by the shareholder first named in the register or his / her attorney, duly authorised in writing,
¢) inthe case of a body corporate signed by its officer or an attorney duly authorised in writing.

2. An instrument of proxy shall be sufficiently stamped and signed by the shareholder. If for any reason he/she is unable to sign, then
his / her mark shall be affixed thereto and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other Government
Gazetted Officer or an Officer of Indian Overseas Bank.

3.  The proxy together with
a) the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or

b)  acopy of the power of attorney or authority, certified by a Notary Public or a Magistrate, should be deposited at the Central Office
of Indian Overseas Bank with the Company Secretary, Indian Overseas Bank, Investor Relations Cell, Balance Sheet Management
Department, Central Office, 763, Anna Salai, Chennai 600 002, not less than FOUR DAYS before the date of the Annual General
Meeting i.e. on or before 05.00 p.m., the closing hours of the Bank on Friday, 06" July 2018.

No instrument of Proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped and it is in Form “B”.
An instrument of proxy deposited with the Bank shall be irrevocable and final.

In the case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one form shall be executed.

N o g »

The shareholder who has executed an instrument of proxy shall not be entitled to vote in person at the Annual General Meeting to which
such instrument relates.

8.  No person shall be appointed as duly authorised representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee of Indian Overseas Bank.
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Indian Overseas Bank
Central Office:763, Anna Salai, Chennai — 600 002
ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be surrendered at the time of entry to the Venue)

Date 11t July 2018

Time 10.00.a.m.

Place Auditorium, Staff College, Indian Overseas Bank, Behind Vee Care Hospital, 100 Feet Road towards
Thirumangalam, 230/7A Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Anna Nagar, Chennai - 600 040

Regd. Folio No.

DP ID & Client ID |

(if shares are not dematerialized)

(If shares are dematerialized)

Name of the Shareholder

Number of Shares

Signature of the Shareholder / Proxy/ Representative
present

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on 11 July 2018 at Chennai.

Signature of the Shareholder/ Proxy/
Authorised Representative

3T safie d&
Fefa Hrafey, 76337007 TTe, 39S 600002
Iufyfa o=ff
(@3F & RIM R YA & THT UK B! o1 8)
faia 11 Y15 2018
qmg UTd: 10:00 S
EJIe] HIfECINTH, Yerw dicd, 30T IRyl d, df HER gRydicd & Ui, 100 e s, RAEHTAH Bt avw,
230/7, STATERTTA A6 RIS, SHUDN TR, T 600 040
Uoflpd gy AT SESIEFSERIRERC S|
@fE SHTTSNPA el ) @fe BTl ©)
TRRYRS BT A9
TRI BT TS
TRYR/ITa/IURRIT Uil & gxdier

H 11 a8 2018, B! A B ST S BT SRAYRVT VI 9% H TAGIRT 0 SURUT ol derell § |

YRRYRSG /I /Uy Ui & gxier
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TEE KUt wiue ardas fe.
(If=- 3frsan siatts 35)
HEmitTeA fafegT, uiear ad, .1- Fd geg T, 99- 600002
T 044-28460390 (B: @A)/ 044-28460395
ther: 044-28460129 T Bet: cameo@cameoindia.com

If Undelivered, please return to :

M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(Unit INDIAN OVERSEAS BANK)
Subramanian Building,5th Floor, No.1,
Club House Road, Chennai 600 002
Tel : 044-28460390 (Six Lines)/ 044-28460395
Fax : 044-28460129 email : cameo@cameoindia.com
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